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Part 1 - Annual Budget

1.1 Mayor’s Budget Speech
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1.1.1 Council Budget Resolutions




1
RAADSVERGADERING [ COUNCIL MEETING
2017/03/30

EMTHANJENI MUNISIPALITEIT

EMTHANJENI MUNICIPALITY

RAADSYERGADERING

COUNCIL MEETING

30 MAART /| MARCH 2017




2
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MUNISIPALITEIT EMTHANJENI MUNICIPALITY
Pasbus / PO Box 42
DE AAR
7000

Maart / March 2017

RAADSLID / COUNCILLOR

Kennis geskied hiermee ingevolge Artikel 19(a) van die Wet op Plaaslike Regering:
Munisipale Stelsels dat 'n Raadsvergadering gehou sal word op Donderdag,
30 MAART 2017 om 10:00 in die RAADSAAL, STADSAAL, DE AAR.

Die vergadering sal oop wees vir die publiek.

Notice is hereby given in terms of Section 19(a) of the Local Government; Municipal
Systems that a Council Meeting will be held on Thursday, 30 MARCH 2017 at 10:00 in

the COUNCIL CHAMBER, TOWN HALL, DE AAR.

The meeting will be open to the public.

/ u_/—/ I

VAL
MUNISIFALE)BESTUURDER / MUNICIPAL MANAGER
fwt
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RAADSVERGADERING { COUNCIL MEETING
2017103/30

NOTULE / MINUTES

Frtrdetrhdedededriededried fricirieri

OPENING: (OOMBLIK VAN NADENKE) [/ OPENING: (MOMENT OF

REFLECTION)

Raadslid C Louw open met ‘n gebed en Speaker verwelkom aimal teenwoordig.

Councillor C Louw opened with a prayer and Speaker welcomed everyone present.

AANSOEK OM VERLOF TOT AFWESIGHEID (MOET SKRIFTELIK WEES) /
APPLICATION FOR LEAVE OF ABSENCE (MUST BE IN WRITING)

Die Voorsitter berig dat Raadslid PD van Wyk nie die vergadering kan bywoon nie.
BESLUIT VAN DIE RAAD:

Dat verlof tot afwesigheid toegestaan word aan Raadslid PD van Wyk.

The Chairperson reported that Councillor PD van Wyk could not attend the
meeting.

RESOLUTION OF COUNCIL

That leave of absence is granted to Councillor PD van Wyk.

TEENWQORDIG / PRESENT

Raadslede | Councillors

MC Kivedo (Speaker), ST Sthenga (Mayor)

RR Faul, D Vanel, NP Mkontwana, LE Andrews, L Billie, MO Maramba HJ Rust, WJ
du Plessis, J Hoffran, CJ Louw, AF Jaftha, PP Mhlauli

et
—




RAADSVERGADERING /| COUNCIL MEETING
2017103/30

IN DIENS TEENWOORDIG /ON DUTY PRESENT

o

Munisipale Bestuurder/Municipal Manager, Hoof- Finansiéle Beampte/Chief
Financial Officer, Direkteur: Infrastruktuurdienste/Director; Infrastructure Services,
Direkteur: Gemeenskapsdienste/Director: Community Services,
Kantoorheof/Office Head: Hanover, Hoof- Administratiewe Beampte/Chief
Administrative Officer, Administratiewe Beampte 1 & 2/Administrative Officer 1 & 2

AANVAARDING VAN AGENDA / ACCEPTANCE OF AGENDA

Die agenda word aanvaar: Voorsteller: Raadslid HJ Rust
Sekondant: Raadslid D Vanel

The agenda was accepted: Proposed: Councillor HJ Rust
Seconded: Councillor D Vanel

VERKLARING VAN BELANGE(SKRIFTELIKE VERKLARING MOET GETEKEN EN
VOOR DIE AANVANG VAN DIE VERGADERING INGEHANDIG WORD /
DECLARATION OF INTEREST (WRITTEN DECLARATION MUST BE SIGNED AND
HANDED IN PRIOR TO THE START OF THE MEETING)

Al die Raadslede teenwoordig teken die vorms vir verklaring van belange en handig
hulle in.

All Councillors present signed and handed in the declaration of interest forms.

AANKONDIGINGS /| ANNCUNCEMENTS

Geen / None

VOORLEGGINGS / PRESENTATIONS

Geen ! None

e




RAADSVERGADERING / COUNCIL MEETING
2017/03/30

7. BEKRAGTIGING VAN NOTULES VAN VORIGE VERGADERINGS / CONFIRMATION
OF MINUTES FROM PREVIOUS MEETINGS

7.1 NOTULE: RAADSVERGADERING: 28 FEBRUARIE 2017 / MINUTES: COUNCIL !
MEETING: 28 FEBRUARY 2017

Die notule word aangeheg as Bylae “A”.

IESLUIT VAN DIE RAAD:

Dat die notule bekragtig word. i

Voorsteller; Raadslid RR Faul
Sekondant; Raadsiid D Vanel

The minutes are attached as Annaxure “A".

RESOLUTION OF COUNCIL: I
That the minutes are adopted. '

Proposed: Councillor RR Faul
Secondant: Councillor D Vanel

8. ONAFGEHAMDELDE SAKE / QUTSTANDING MATTERS

Geen | None

9. SUBMISSION OF REPORTS FROM COUNCIL REPRESENTATIVES: DISTRICT
MUNICIPALITY

Geen / None
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10. REPQRTS QF THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE:

10.1 RECOMMENDATIONS TO THE COUNCIL

Geen / Mane

10.2 DECISIONS UNDER DELEGATED AUTHORITY

Ceen [ None

' 11. REPORT FROM MPAC
Geen / None

12. REPORT FROM THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

Geen [ None

13. REPORTS ON WARD COMMITTEES / CONSOLIDATED REPORT ON WARD
COMMITTEES

Geen !/ None

14. REPORT ON_SALGA ACTIVITIES

Geen | None }

15. MONTHLY ACTIVITIES

Geen ! None
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16. REPQRTS FOR NQTING

16.1 MUNISIPALE KONSEPBEGROTING EN HERSIENE GEINTEGREERDE

ONTWIKKELINGSPLAN: FINANSIELE JAAR 2017/2018
MTEF / MUNICIPAL DRAFT BUDGET AND REVISED INTEGRATED
DEVELOPMENT PLAN: FINANCIAL YEAR 2017/2018 MTEF (5/1/1/18 & 19/2)

1. Agtergrond / Background

In Hoofstuk 4 van die WMFB word die munisipale begrolingsproses duidelik uiteengesit en
Artikels 15 tat 27 handel oor die implementering van die jaarlikse begroting.

Arikel 25 en 34 van Hoofstuk 5 van die Stelselswet bepaal dat die Hersiene GOP ook jaarliks
aan die Raad voorgelé moet waord vir goedkeuring.

Chapter 4 of the MFMA clearly outlines the municipal budget process and Sections 15 lo 27 give
effect to the implementation of the annual budget.

In terms of Section 25 and 34 of Chapter 5 of the Systems Act the revised IDP must also be
submifted to the Council annually for approval.

. Regsimplikasies / Legal Implications

Daar moet voldoen word aan die bepalings van die betrokke artikels in die WMFB en die
Stelselswet.

Die Munisipale Konsepbegroting en Konsep-GOP moet vir 2t dae geadverteer word vir
openbare kommentaar in die plaaslike koerant, op die munisipale webtuiste, by biblioteke en
die Munisipale Kantore.

The provisions of the relevant sections of the MFMA and Municipal Systems Act must be
complied with.

The Draft Bucget and Draft IDP must be advertised for 21 days for public comment in the local
newspaper, on the municipal website, at libraries and the Municipal Cffices.

R e .




i

|

i

|

3, Voorgestelde Aanbeveling | Proposed Recommendation ‘

| |

2017/03/30

3. Finansiéle Implikasies / Financial Implications

-

Alle uitgawes aangegaan vanaf 1 Julie 2017 sal in coreenstemming wees met die goedgekeurde |
begroling soos bepaal in die WMFB. | |

All expenditure incurred from 1 July 2017 will be in accordance with the approved budget as set | §
out in the MFMA. |

Dat die Raad kennis neem van:
1. Kommentaar van die Burgemeester oor - |

1.1 Die Konsepbegroting vir Totale Inkomste vir 2017/2018 wat R253 955 768 bedra.

1.2 Die Konsepbegroting vir Totale Kapitaal- en Bedryfsuitgawes vir 2017/2018 wat i
R278 792 964 bedra, asook aanduidende lotale bedrae vir die lydperk van die|)
Meadiumtermynuitgaweraamwerk:

1.2.1 Konsepbegroling vir Bedryfsuitlgawes wat R239 911 764 bedra, ‘
1.2.2 Kensepbegroting vir Kapitale Uitgawes wat R38 882 000 bedra. '
1.2.3 Aanwendingsbegrotingsposte volgens die regering se finansi€le statistiek- |

funksie. |

1.3 Verhoging van tariewe soos per tariefskedule
{1} Eiendomsbelasiing
(ii) Eleklrisiteit
{iii) Water
(iv) Vullisverwydering
(v) Riolering / Sanilasie

1.4 Die Dienslewerings- en Begrotingsimplementeringsplan (DLBIP) vir elke
Direkioraat, dit wil sé Munisipaie Bestuurder, Karporatiewe Dienste, Gemeenskapsdienste,
Finansiéle Dienste en Infrastruktuurdienste, scos uileengesit in elk van die N
Sleutelprestasiemelingsaanwysers wat gekoppel is aan die Sleutelprestasie-areas. | |
il

2. Ander begrotingsverwante dokumente

(a) 'n Opsomming van die Hersiene Geintegreerde Oniwikkelingsplan vir 2017/2018 wat |
gekoppel is aan die begroting soos uileengesit in die Kapitaalbegroting en
Bedryfsbegroting.

(b) die Hersiene Konsepeiendomsbelaslingsbeleid

(c} die Hersiene Konsepeiendomsbelastingsverordening

(d) die Hersiene Konsepkredielbeheerbeleid




| (h

(g)
(h)
(i)
(3
(k)

1. The

(e) die Konsepklientediensbeleid

RAADSVERGADERING /! COUNCIL MEETING
2017/03/30

die Hersiene Konsepbehoeftigheidsbeleid lesame met die begroling vir gesubsideerde
gratis dienste soos water, eleklrisiteit, vullisverwydering en riolering

die Hersiene Konseptariefbeleid vir water, elektrisiteit en ander munisipale dienste

die Konsepbeleggingsbeleid en Beleggingskedule

Hersiene Voorsieningskanaalbestuursbeleid i
Hersiene Reis- en Verblyfbeleid ;
ander sake soos voorgeskryf word in Artikel 17 (1)(a-e)

|
|

- Tabel van toekennings en subsidies ingevolge die Wet op Verdeling van Inkomste
- Voorgestelde vergoedingsuitgawes per tabel vir- _
|
|

{a) (i) Raadslede
(ii) Burgemeester
(ili)Speaker
{iv)Lede van die Uitvoerende Komites
(v) Ander gewone Raadslede

(b) (i) Munisipale Bestuurder
(i) Hoof- Finansiéle Beampie '
(iii) Direkleur; Korporatiewe Dienste !
{iv) Direkleur: Gemeenskapsdienste
{v) Direkteur: Infrastruktuurdienste
{vi) Ander Artikel 56-bestuurders

That the Council take note of:

Mayor's comments on -

1.1 The Draft Total Revenue Budge! for 2017/2018 amounting o R253 955 768. :
1.2 The Draft Total Capital and Operating Budget for 2017/2018 amounting to !
R278 911 964 and also indicative total amounts for Medium Term Expenditure Framewark: | |
1.2.1 Draft Operaling Budget amounting to R239 911 964.
1.2.2 Draft Capital Budget amounting fo R38 882 000,
1.2.3 The appropriation votes as per Government Finance Slatistics {GF)

Functions

1.3 Increase in lariffs as per tariff schedule ' I

(i) Property Rates |
(i} Electricity -
(i) Water

(iviRefuse

{v) Sewerage / Sanitation

(vi) Secondary Tariffs
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1.4 The Services Delivery and Budget implementation Plan (SDBIP) for each

2. Other budget-related documents such as:

directorate i.e Municipal Manager, Corporate, Community Services, Financial Services and
Infrastruclure as set out in each of the key performance measurement
indicators which are aligned to the Key Performance Areas.

{a) A Summary of the Revised Integrated Development Plan for 2017/2018, which is linked
to the budget as outlined in the Capital Budget and Operating Budget.

{(b) the Revised Draft Property Rates Policy

(¢} the Revised Draft Property Rales Bylaw

(d) the Revised Draft Credit Control Policy

(e} the Draft Customer Care Policy

{f) the Revised Draft Indigent Policy, together with the budget for subsidized free basic ! |
services such as waler, slectricity, refuse and sewerage |

(g) the Revised Draft Tariff Policy for water, electricity and other municipal services

(h) the Draft Investment Policy and Schedule of investments

(i) Revised SCM Policy

{f) Revised Subsistence and Travel Policy

(k) other matters as prescribed in Section 17{1)(a-e)

- Grants and subsidies schedule according to Division of Revenue Act (DORA)
- Proposed remuneration expenditure as per schedule for- !

(a) (1) Councillors
(if} Mayor
(i) Speaker
(iv} Members of Executive Commiittee
(v} Other Ordinary Councillors

(b} (i) Municipat Manager
(i) Chief Financial Officer
(iii)Director: Corporate Services
(iv)Director: Community Services
{v) Director: Infrastructure Services
(vi} Other Section 56 managers




12 1
RAADSVERGADERING ! COUNCIL MEETING '
2017/03/30 |

5. Kommentaar deur die Rekenpligte Beampte / Artikel 82 van die Strukturewet & Artikel 60 R

van die Wet op Munisipale Finansiéle Bestuur / Comments by the Accounting Officer /| |i
Section 82 of the Structures Act & Section 60 of the MFMA |

6. Aanhangsels / Attachments

SR

Die Raad moel kennis neem van die Konsepbegroting, Begrotingsbeleide soos hierbo genoem ¥
en die Geintegreerde Ontwikkelingsplan. ]

Council must take note of the Draft Budget, Budget Policies set out abave and Draft Integrated | |
Development Plan. :

e — —_— — mend it 4

I — i 114

|. Hersiene Geintegreerde Ontwikkelingsplan vir 2017/2018 word aangeheg as
RV 1 tot RV 225.

2. Hersiene Konsepeiendomsbelastingsbeleid word aangeheg as RV 226 tot RV 250.

3. Hersiene Konsepeiendomsbelastingsverordening word aangeheg as RV 251 tot RV 252,

4. Hersiene Konsepkredietbeheerbeleid word aangeheg as RV 253 tot RV 264, |

5. Kensepklientediensbeleid word aangeheg as RV 265 tot RV 283. |

6. Hersiene Konsepbehoefiigheidsbeleid en begroting vir gratis basiese dienste word |
aangeheg as RV 284 tot RV 294. '

7. Konsepbegrotingsbeleid word aangeheg as RV 295 tot RV 323,

8. Konsepbeleggingsbeleid en beleggingskedule word aangeheg as RV 324 tot RV 343.

9. Batebestuursbeleid word aangeheg as RV 344 tot RV 385.

10.Konseptariefbeleid word aangeheg as RV 386 tot RV 400.

11.Munisipale Voorsieningskanaalbestuurbeleid: Munisipale Finansigle Bestuur Wet, 2003 | §
word aangeheg as RV 401 tot RV 473.

12. Skedule A Begrotingskedules word aangeheg as RV 474 tot RV 483.

13. Bekendmaking van Salarisse, Toelaes en Voordele word aangeheg as RV 484.

14. Konsepaanvuliingsbeleid word aangeheg as RV 485 to RV 499. [ B

15. Konsepbeleid op Reis- en Verblyf word aangeheg as RV 500 tot RV 508. ¥

16. Konsepskedule van Beraamde Tariewe word aangeheg as RV 509 tot RV 525.

17.Konsep: Beknopte Begrotingsoorsig word aangeheg as RV 526 tot RV 534.

18. MFBW Omsendskrywes no, 82 word aangeheg as RV 535 tot RV 545,

|

|
1 Revised Integrated Development Plan for 2017/2018 is attached as RV 1 to RV 225. | ‘
2. Revised Draft Property Rates Policy is attached as RV 226 to RV 250.
3. Revised Draft Property Rates Bylaw is altached as RV 251 to RV 252.
4. Revised Draft Credit Control Policy is attached as RV 253 to RV 264,
5. Drait Cusiomer Care Policy is altached as RV 265 to RV 283 |
6. Revised Drait Indigent Policy and budgel for free basic services is attached as |\
RV 284 to RY 204. R ‘
|

&)
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| 7. Besluit van die Raad / Resolution of Council

7. Draft Budget Policy is altached as RV 295 to RV 323, e

8. Draft investment Policy and schedule of investrments is altached as RV 324 to RV 343.

9, Asset Management Policy is attached as RV 344 to RV 385. .

10. Draft Tariff Policy is attached as RV 386 to RV 400. l

11, Municipal Supply Chain Management Policy: Municipal Finance Management Act, 2003 is
attached as RV 401 to RV 473.

12. Schedule A Budget Tables are altached as RV 474 to RV 483.

13. Disclosure of Salaries, Allowances and Benefits is altached as RV 484,

14, Draft Augmentation Policy is attached as RV 485 to RV 499.

15. Draft Subsistence and Travel Policy is attached as RV 500 to RV 508.

16. Draft Schedule of Estimated Tariffs is altached as RV 509 to RV 525,

17. Draft Budget Executive Summary is aftaches as RV 526 to RV 534.

18. MFMA Circulars No. 82 are attached as RV 535 to RV 545.

Dat die Raad kennis neem van:
1. Kommentaar van die Burgemeester oor -

1.2Die Konsepbegroting vir Totale Inkomste vir 2017/2018 wat R253 955 768 bedra.
1.2 Die Konsepbegroting vir Totale Kapitaal- en Bedryfsuitgawes vir 2017/2018 wat
R278 792 964 bedra, ascok aanduidende totale bedrae vir die tydperk van die|
Mediumtermynuitgaweraamwerk:
1.2.1 Konsepbegroting vir Bedryfsuitgawes wat R239 911 764 bedra.
1.2.2 Konsepbegroting vir Kapitale Uitgawes wat R38 882 000 bedra.
1.2.3 Aanwendingsbegrotingsposte volgens die regering se finansiéle statistiek-
funksie.
1.3 Verhoging van tariewe soos per tariefskedule
{i} Eiendomsbelasting
{ii) Elektrisiteit
(iii) Water
(iv} Vullisverwydering
{v) Riolering / Sanitasie

1.4 Die Dienslewerings- en Begrotingsimplementeringsplan (DLBIP) vir elke
Direktoraat, dit wil sé Munisipale Bestuurder, Korporatiewe Dienste,
Gemeenskapsdienste, Finansiéle Dienste en Infrastruktuurdienste, soas uiteengesit
in elk van die Sleutelprestasiemetingsaanwysers wat gekoppei is aan die
Sleuteiprestasie-areas.

R
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2. Ander begrotingsverwante dokumente

‘n Opsomming van die Hersiene Geintegreerde Ontwikkelingsplan vir 2016/2017
wat gekoppel is aan die begroting soos uiteengesit in die Kapitaalbegroting en
Bedryfsbegroting.

die Hersiene Konsepeiendomsbeiastingsbeleid

die Hersiene Konsepeiendomsbelastingsverordening

die Hersiene Konsepkredietbeheerbeleid

die Konsepklientediensbeleid

die Hersiene Konsepbehoeftigheidsbeleid tesame met die begroting vir
gesubsideerde gratis dienste soos water, elektrisiteit, vullisverwydering en
riolering

die Hersiene Konseptariefbeleid vir water, elektrisiteit en ander munisipale
dienste

die Konsepbeleggingsbeleid en Beleggingskedule

Hersiene Voorsieningskanaalbestuursbeleid

Hersiene Reis- en Verblyfbeleid

ander sake soos voorgeskryf word in Artikel 17 (1)(a-e)

-Tabel van toekennings en subsidies ingevolge die Wet op Verdeling van
Inkomste
- Voorgestelde vargoedingsuitgawes per tabel vir-

(c) (i) Raadslede
(ii) Burgemeaester
(iii)Speaker
{iv)L.ede van die Uitvoerende Komitee
(v} Ander gewone Raadslede

{(d) (i) Munisipale Bestuurder
(ii) Hoof- Finansiéle Beampte
(iii) Direkteur: Korporatiewe Dienste
(iv) Direkteur: Gemeenskapsdienste
(v) Direkteur: Infrastruktuurdienste
(vi) Ander Artikel 56-bestuurders

Voorsteller: Raadslid ST Sthonga
Sekondant: Raadslid AF Jaftha

That the Council take note of:
1. The Mayor’s comments on -

1.3 The Draft Total Revenue Budget for 2017/2018 amounting to R253 955 768.
1.4 The Draft Total Capital and Operating Budget for 2017/2018 amounting to

NAOT— : : o
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" R278911 964 and also indicative total amounts for Medium Term Expenditure

Framework:
1.2.1 Draft Operating Budget amounting to R239 911 964,
1.2.2 Draft Capital Budget amounting to R38 882 000.
1.2.3 The appropriation votes as per Government Finance Statistics (GF)
Functions

1.3 Increase in tariffs as per tariff schedule
(i} Property Rates
(ii} Electricity
(iij)Water
(iv)Refuse
(v) Sewerage / Sanitation
(vi) Secondary Tariffs

1.4 The Services Delivery and Budget Implementation Plan {SDBIP) for each
directorate i.e. Municipal Manager, Corporate, Communily Services, Financial

Services and Infrastructure as set out in each of the key performance measurement |

indicators which are aligned to the Key Performance Areas.

2. Other budget-related documents such as:

(a) A Summary of the Revised Integrated Development Plan for 2017/2018, which is

linked to the budget as outlined in the Capital Budget and Operating Budget.
(b) the Revised Draft Property Rates Policy
{c) the Revised Draft Property Rates Bylaw
(d) the Revised Draft Credit Control Policy
(e) the Draft Customer Care Policy

(f) the Revised Draft Indigent Policy, together with the budget for subsidized free basic | |§

services such as water, electricity, refuse and sewerage

(g) the Revised Draft Tariff Policy for water, electricity and other municipal services

(h) the Draft Investment Policy and Schedule of Investments
(i) Revised SCM Policy

(j) Revised Subsistence and Travel Policy

{k) other matters as prescribed in Section 17(1)(a-e)

- Grants and subsidies schedule according to Division of Revenue Act (DORA)
- Proposed remuneration expenditure as per schedule for-

(¢) (i) Councillors
(ij) Mayor
(iii} Speaker
{iv) Members of Executive Commiitee
(v) Other Ordinary Councillors

(d) (i) Municipal Manager
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(li} Chief Financial Officer
(iii)Director: Corparate Services
(iviDirector: Community Services
{(v) Director: Infrastructure Services
(vi) Qther Section 56 managers

Proposed: Councillor ST Sthonga
Seconded: Councillor AF Jaftha




|
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17. VERSLAE VIR QORWEGING / REPORTS FOR CONSIDERATION |
171 HERNUWING VAN OORTROKKE BANKFASILITERE | RENEWAL OF BANK) |
____ OVERDRAFT (519/1) ) ) _ L
1. Agtergrond / Background

Die aorirokke fasiliteit in die bank vervai en moet hernu word. Aansoekvorms is van die bank
ontvang en slegs ‘n Raadsbesluil waarby die oortrekking gemagtig word, word afgewag ten
einde die coreenkoms met die bank te siuit. Die oareenkoms is geldig vir 'n tydperk van 12
maande wat op 30 Junie 2017 hernu moet word,

ABSA Bank het ook verskeie wentelkredielfasiliteite aan Emthanjeni Munisipaliteit loegestaan, |
wat ook op 30 Junie 2017 hernu moet word.

The bank overdraft facility will expire and must be renewed. Application forms have been
received from the bank and only a Council resolution authorizing the overdraft is awaited in order
to conciude the agreement with bank. The agreement is valid for a period of 12 months to be | |
renewed on 30 June 2017. | !
ABSA Bank also provided various revolving credit facilities to Emthanjeni Municipality, which
must also be renewed on 30 June 2017, | |

2. Regsimplikasies / Legal Implications

Aangesien die MFBW, Wet 56 van 2003, verwag dat plaaslike owerhede teen 30 Junie
2017, nie meer 'n oortrokke banksaldo mag hé nie, moet 'n fasiliteit mat ABSA onderhandel
word vir die finansiéle jaar 1 Julie 2017 tot 30 Junie 2018.

Die betrokke banksaldo moet herstel word na 'n gunstige banksaldo op 30 Junie 2017, wat sal
meebring dat ons nie meer ‘n cortrokke banksalda op 30 Junie 2017 sal hé nie.

Algemene Beleggings sal, indien nodig, op 30 Junie 2017 losgemaak moet word om ‘n gunstige
banksaldo te bewerkstellig.

In view of the fact that the MFMA, Act 56 of 2003, requires that local authorities may not have
an overdraft balance on 30 June 2017, a facility must be negoliated with ABSA for the financial
year 1 July 2017 to 30 June 2018,

The overdraft balance must be restored to a positive bank balance on 30 June 2017 which will |
result in us nol having a bank overdraft on 30 June 2017,

General Investments will, if necessary, have to be withdrawn on 30 June 2017 to create a
positive bank balance.
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3, Finansiéle Implikasies / Financial Implications

ingevolge Artikel 45(2)(3)(4) van die Wet op Munisipale Finansiéle Bestuur, Mo 56 van 2003,
kan 'n oortrokke hankfasiliteit (skuld) slegs aangegaan word indien |
(@)‘n resolusie van die Munisipale Raad, onderteken deur die Burgemeester, die f
skuldooreenkoms goedkeur, en .
(b) die rekenpligtige beampte die ooreenkems of ander dokument wat die skuld skep of erken, |
onderteken het.

Section 45(2)(3)(4) of the Municipal Finance Management Act, No 56 of 2003, provides for a
bank overdraft (debt} to be incurred only if

(a) a resolution of the Municipal Council, signed by the Mayor, has approved the debt
agreement, and

(b} the accounting officer has signed the agreement or another document which creates or
acknowledges the debt.

‘I

& Voorgestelds Aanbeveling | Proposed Recommendatian

1. Dat die banksaldo op 30 Junie 2017 gunslig mcet wees met geen oortrokke bankbalans nie.

2. Dat die hersiel van die banksaldo van ocortrokke na gunstig uil die Algemene
Beleggingsrekeninge gemaak word, indien nodig.

3. Dat ‘n oortrokke fasiliteit van R2 000 000.00 met ABSA onderhandel word vir die finansiéle

{ jaar 1 Julie 2017 tot 30 Junie 2018, indien van loepassing.

Paad

That the bank balance on 30 June 2017 must be positive with no overdraft,

2. That conversion of the overdraft into a positive bank baiance be accomplished from the
General Investments Accounts, if necessary. .‘

3. That an overdraft facility of R2 000 000.00 be negotiated with ABSA for the financial year 1 i

July 2017 to 30 June 2018, if applicable. ;

i
R e = = —= Z = 3 = = -
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3. Kommentaar deur die Rekenpligte Beampte / Artikel 82 van die Strukturewet & Artikel 60
van die Wet op Munisipale Finansiéle Bestuur / Comments by the Accounting Officer /
Section 82 of the Structures Act & Section 60 of the MFMA

Dat die voorgestelde asnbeveling corweeg word.

I

That the proposed recommendation be considered, i
|

i

6. Aanhangsels ! Attachments

! Geen / None
|

7. Besluit van die Raad ! Resolution of Council

1. Dat die banksaldo op 30 Junie 2017 gunstig moet wees met geen oortrokke
bankbalans nie.

2. Dat die herstel van die banksaldo van oortrokke na gunstig uit die Algemene
Beleggingsrekeninge gemaak word, indien nodig. |

3. Dat 'n oorirokke fasiliteit van R2 000 000.00 met ABSA onderhandel word vir die !

finansiéle jaar 1 Julie 2017 tot 30 Junie 2018, indien van toepassing.

Voorsteller: Raadslid HJ Rust

ﬂ Sekondant: Raadslid AF Jaftha .

|

1. That the bank balance on 30 June 2017 must be positive with no averdraft.

” 2. That conversion of the overdraft into a positive bank balance be accomplished from

the General Investments Accounts, if necessary.

3. That an overdraft facility of R2 000 000.00 be negotiated with ABSA for the financial
year 1 July 2017 to 30 June 2018, if applicable.

Proposed: Councillor HJ Rust
Seconded: Councillor AF Jaftha

!
L
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18. REPQRTS IN-COMMITTEE

Geen ! None

19. NOTICE OF MOTION

Geen | None

20. QUESTIONS

Geen /| None

21. URGENT REPORTS — ALLOWED ONLY WITH THE CONSENSUS OF THE
CHAIRPERSON

Geen / None

!‘ 22. SLUITING f CLOSURE

Vergadering sluit om 10:22

Meeting closed at 10:22

et =\ ou Doy

VOORSITTER / CHAIRPERSON DATUM/ DATE

|

e




2.14 Municipal Manager Quality Certificate

t the Draft Annbal Budgel and Supporting Documentation have been prepared in
accordance with the Municipal Finance Management Act and the regulations made under the
Act, and that the annuai budget and supporting documents are consisteni with the Integrated
Development Plan of the municipality.

Print Name jjﬁ L Mf‘ J' W

Municipal manager of Em i Municipality (NC0O73)

Signature

VI/"G

Date 30 March 2017




Executive Summary
Draft Budget 2017/2018 MTREF

Council adopted the budget schedule at the end of August 2016 where after the IDP and the
Budget processes started in earnest. Several consultative meetings, such as “Council mests
the People”, IDP Rep forums, Ward committee meetlings were conducted to silicate the views,
input, needs, etc. of the various communities of Emthanjeni Municipality. These will be
recorded and will be taken into consideration when the Budget is aligned to the IDP.

The budget was prepared in conjunction with the MFMA circulars and other regulations. The

Budget was prepared on a conservative approach as stipulated in MFMA Circulars 66,
67,70,71,72,74,75,78, 79 and 82.

A.IDP and linkage of IDP to budget (Capital Budget)

An Revised IDP will be tabled to Council during March 2017 and thereafter it will published for
comments before it will be adopted by Council during the final budget meeting of 31 May 2017.

Communities re-assess their needs which forms part of the revised IDP document during the
Budget feedback meetings. However all needs cannot be achieved, realized or addressed in
one financial year or over one MTEF period.

Emthanjeni Municipality's total direct Draft Capital Budget for 201 7/2018 financial year
amounts to R38 882 000.

The current linkage of the IDP to the budget is broken down as follows:

1. Capital Grants R32 292 000
1.1 Municipal Infrastructure Grant R12 292 000
1.2 Integrated National Electricity Programme (INEP) R 6000000
1.3 Water Services Infrastructure Grant R14 000 000
2. Own Capital Funding R 6 590 000

These capital projects will be finance from surplus internal
funding. Projects includes:

2.1 Resealing and construction of new streets R2 800 000
2.2 Machinery and Equipment amounts to R 630000
2.3  Building Renovations R 410000
2.4 Prepaid Eleciricity Meters R 500 000
2.5  Grap Compliance: Clean Audit status R 680000
26  MSCOA Readiness R1 350 000
2.7  Other smaller Capital Projects estimated to R 220 000.
3. Borrowed Capital RO

4. CAPITAL GRANTS IN KIND R 2000 000
4.1 Water Services Infrastructure Grant R2 000 0000

These grants are administered by the Department of Water Sanitation and will not be recorded in
Emthanjeni Municipality's budget.




B. OPERATING BUDGET

1. Budgeted Income

1.1. Total expected Net Rates Income will be R 26 620 0157 (R29 165 435 in
2016/2017)
-A new General Valuation Roll will be implemented from 01 July 2017,
-The new valuations as per the new valuation roll reflects a sharp increase in the
residential properties of the town of De Aar.
-The valuation in the towns of Hanover and Britstown almost remained static with the
current valuation roll. This was also the trend for all other property categories.
-With this situation, De Aar Residential Property owners will have an increase above
inflation rate whilst the other towns will have a decrease in property rates.
-The annual impermissible amount is R15 000 (R28 000 in the previous year) due to
the valuation in the new valuation roll.

1.2 Other Levied Services budgeted income are almost R117 495 979
1.2.1 -Electricity amount to R58 466 060

1.2.2 -Water amounts R29 745 658

1.2.3 -Sewerage amounts to R18 458 658

1.2.4 -Refuse removal amounts to R10 700 898

1.2.5 -Other service charges amounts to R124 974.

1.3 Fines will be budgeted for at gross amounts of R3 720 000

1.4 Licenses and permits will be R1 970 388

1.5 Rental of facilities and equipment expected income will be R732 075

1.6 Interest Income will be R1 813 544

1.6.1 External Investments amounts to R731 000

1.6.2 Interest charged on Arrear accounts amounts to R1 082 544
1.7 Operating Grants and Subsidies amount to R41 455 000
1.7.1 - Equitable Share R37 094 000

1.7.2 -Finance Management Grant R1 700 000

1.7.3 -Library Development Fund R1 575 000

1.7.4 -EPWP R1 086 000

1.8 Other Budgeted Revenue R27 588 625
Prepaid Electricity Sales of R26 505 839 is included in the other budgeted revenue.

1.9 The Total Budgeted Revenue {(Income) for the 2017/2018 Financial year are
R253 955 768. The total budgeted income consists out of

9.1 Capital Grants R 32 292 000
9.2 Operating Grants and Subsidies R 41 455 000
.9.3 Borrowed Capital - R 0

9.4 R 180 208 768
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There is an increase in total budgeted income of between 7,4 and 8,4 % in relation to the
previous year.

The main reasons for the increase are:

(i) Total revenue for Rates and Taxes will decrease compared to the previous
financial year, although valuations increased in the De Aar for residential property
owners. The rates tariff will see an increase above the inflation rate for residential
property owners in De Aar West, but in Hanover and Britstown the residential
property owners will reflect a decrease on the property rates. Agricultural property
owners will also see a decrease in their levies. The other property categories rates
and taxes will increased. The rebate amount decrease from R28 000 to R15 000 as
per the Municipal Property Rates Act.

(i) Water, Sewerage and Refuse will be increase very conservatively by 6.4% in
relation to the previous financial year.

(iii) Electricity tariffs will be increased by 1.88% as per NERSA drafts guidelines
discussion document and approval will have an impact on this final tariffs.

{iv) A very cautious and conservative approach were followed during the budget
preparations. The current payment patterns of consumers played a crucial role in
our budget approach.

(v) The Anticipated Budgeted Revenue for the majority of services has decrease from
the previous year. This relates to the current economic conditions that exist
nationally and within Emthanjeni Municipality.

(vi) The general increment of service tariffs and levies was followed as per MFMA
guidelines.

(vii)The general apathy of non-payment for municipal services by the
consumers will impact severely on service delivery and will contribute to
nonpayment of creditors and service providers.

{viii) Continuous Credit Control Mechanisms and the enforcement of credit
control policies together with all budgetary policies cannot be more
emphasize as it will impact negative or positive on the operations of the
municipality.

(ix) The budget has been prepared on the basis of sustainable delivery and
financial viability and cost effectiveness to render municipal services to its
communities, residents and consumers on an ongoing, unstoppable basis.
Payment for services by consumers cannot be emphasized more or
enough,

2. Expenditure
2.1 Salary and wages

-The total salaries and social contributions for the year amounts to R75 161 639

(R67 557 719 in 2016/2017)

-Annual increase of 7.33 % has been provided as per Collective Wage Agreement as per
SALGBC.

-The total salary package includes the salary of all the current personnel and some vacant
positions. Not all posts on the approved organogram have been budgeted for in the 2016-2017
financial year. If we have to budget for all the positions, our salary budget will take up more
than 70% of the municipal operating budget

-Efficient and effective alignment of staff, should to be undertaken to ensure overall productivity
of staff within the municipality.

-The salary budget needs to be monitored as we must really assess the current staff and
positions. The productivity of staff need to be prioritized as much more work must be done on
this issue. New appointments must be reconsidered as the wage bill is increasing at an
alarming rate.

-The salary percentage to the Operating Budget is 32% and to the total capital and
operating budget is +/- 29%




2.2 Councillor Remuneration
-Councilor Remuneration amounts for R5 297 232 (R5 046 248 in 2016/2017).

-Councillor remuneration has been provided a 5% increase on the current Public Officers
Bearers Act, dated December 2016.

-the councilor remuneration percentage to the total capital and operating budget is +/- 1,9%

The total salaries and wages, social contributions and councilor remuneration is 29% in
relation to the total capital and operating budget.

2.3  Provision for Bad Debts, working capital reserve to R9 6678 345 (R7 440 685
2016/2017).

2.4 Net Impairment of assets & depreciation estimated at R9 055 599
(R7 33 936 in 2016/2017)

2.5  Repair and maintenance total estimation are R 18 807 385 (R16 770 984 in
2016/2017) which is being be split between Materials and Contracted Services.
An amount of R4 944 000 is included for the Operating Vehicle Leases (Full
Maintenance Leases)

2.6 Contracted Services costs are budgeted for R9 318 660
(R7 882 495 in 2016/2017)

2.7 Capital Charges for interest on loans amounts to RS 754 710
(RS 468 355in 2016/2017).

2.8  Bulk Purchases for Water and Electricity amounts to R60 834 251 (R 57 122 623 in
2016/2017). This increase represents mainly the Eskom’s tariff increment as
stated in the MFMA Circular issued by National Treasury. The approved
guidelines will be issue by NERSA in due course. The issue of the remuneration
of Farmers for the mining of water whether through access or damage should be
finalise before the end of the current financial year. An Equitable Damage costs
for all farmers should be determine and concluded soon.

2.9  Operating Grants and subsidy expenditure amounts to R15 123 693
{R11 505 694 in 2016/2017), which are mostly spent on the 4000 Indigent
Households for the subsidized free basic services provide to approved Indigent
Households.

2.10 Capital Grants payments amounts to R32 292 000. These amounts are mainly
recognized on the income side and also on the expenditure side.

211 Capital projects that are finance from own funds amounts to R6 590 000 (R6 833
997 in 2016/2017).

212 The ward projects are finance from the repair and maintenance categoryof R2
000 000. Each ward has an allocation of R250 000 an decrease of R50 000 due to
the cash flow constrains experienced as a result of non-payment of municipal
services by consumers of Emthanjeni municipality.




2.13  Other expenditure amounts to R28 867 760 (R29 180 893 in 2016/2017) include
some of activities that will take place amongst others:

-Employee Wellness R1 750 000
-Audit Fees R2 622 390
-Telephone R 997 296
-Departmental Accounts (Water, Electricity, Street lighting, etc.) R4 184 793
-Fuel and Qil R3 311 706
-General Valuation Costs R 420 000
-Insurance R1 624 471
-Subsisience and Travel R1 400 156
-SALGA Membership R 730000
-Electrical Rural Pump Costs for Water provision R2 248 059
-Postage R 345450
-Stationery and Printing R 891 806
-Spluma expenses R1 280 000
-Skills Development and Training R 440471
-Provision for Performance Bonuses R 605 000
-Security Services R 2 700 000

The major types have been decrease in relation to the previous year. A marginal
increment was allocated at those expenditure types who increased. Real Budget
Austerity measures are being introduce to monitor expenditure. Proper planning must
be the order of the day when it comes to spending. A collective effort must be employed
to eliminate non priority spending from all stakeholders in the municipality.

Strict control mechanisms must be enforced by Budget Drivers. Expenditure must be
prioritized. Travelling expenses must be managed properly and only meetings that will
add value to the municipality should be attended by Councillors and Officials of the
municipality.

The Budgeted Expenditure for 2017/2018 are R278 792 964 which comprise of
Operating Budget of R239 911 964 and the Capital budget of R38 882 000. This
represents a total increase of +-14% in the relation to the previous year's Budget.
The increase is mainly due to the capital increase of grants received. The
operating expenditure increased very slightly and is almost insignificantly.
Expenditure budgeting control will continue to be enforce strictly. The

realization of revenue impacts on the expenditure management.

C.Tariff Increments
Tariffs expected increases for the 2017/2018 financial year are set out below. These are
1. Rates and taxes

> Residential properties will increased and decreased.

~ Agricultural properties will decreased mostly.
~ Other categories will increased.

» The New General Valuation Roll will be implemented from 01 July 2017
and will be effective till 30 June 2022. Properties where values increase
or decrease will see tariff increases or decreases




~ Agricuiture properties will be levied according (residential properties) in
the ratio 1:0,25 and must apply for the rebate of 25% before the end of
August 2017.

~ The owner must be at least sixty (65) years of age and total gross
monthly income or eamings must not exceed
(i) an amount of R4 950 to qualify for a 50% rates rebate
(i) an amount of R5 550 to qualify for a 45% rates rebate
(iii) an amount of R6 200 to qualify for a 40% rates rebate

~ Mining and industrial property will increase higher than the other
categories. Portions of farms which are exclusive used for renewable or
solar energy will be part of this category of properties.

2. Electricity

3. Water

~» Basic fee will increase by 4%

~ Conventional and Prepaid electricity tariffs will be increase (see tariff
schedule

e 1-50 kWh increase by 1.88 %

e 51-350 kWh increase by 1.88%

¢ 351 and more kWh units increase by 1.88%

~ Basic fee will increase by 6.4%.

~ Water consumption will be increased by 6.4% in all blocks

~ Water will be levied from the first kiloliter consumed for all consumers
that are not residential consumers.

~ A new block is being introduced for consumers who are consuming more
than 45kI.

4. Sewerage and sanitation

~ Tariffs increased by 6.4%

5. Refuse removal

~ Tariffs increased by 6.4%

6. All other secondary tariffs.

~ Tariffs increased by 8%.




D.Indigent households

A total of almost 4000 indigent households are expected to receive subsidized services every
month. The subsidizes services include

1.Rates RO
(The first R15 000 of municipal valuation s exempted from paying Rales and taxes)
1.50 kWh of electricity R47. 88
2. Water R93. 40
(Poticy makes provision that Indigent Households will receive
8kl of waler).
3. Monthly sewerage R182.71
4, Monthly refuse removal R113.93

Total monthly subsidized services to Indigent Households R437.92
Please note: Free Basic services amounis include Value added Tax (VAT)

The re-application of all indigent Households for Subsidized services (FBS) can continued and be
process early in the 2017/2018 financial year. The process needs to be completed by end of
June 2017 in order to update our records and registers annually. Auditors are auditing
the application process very intensively.

J. CONCLUSION

The 2017/2018 budget is an budget to make services affordable to all consumers. It is a plan
to implement the cross-cutting of expenditure. The budget testifies of the continuation with the
developmental agenda to expand the infrastructure to new and higher levels. It also aims to
continue with the creation of jobs, fighting poverty and most of all ensure that we invest in
infrastructure assets of the Emthanjeni municipality.

The inflationary increases of tariffs are mainly focused on affordability and to ensure that we
generated all revenue as budgeted for. Hence the low increment of operating expenditure and
expenditure control that will be sharpened over the next financial year.

The Council commitment to create an conducive environment for Investors to invest in the
economy of Emthanjeni municipality cannot be underestimated. The various economic
initiatives are testimony of Council's commitment, readiness and ability to ensure that we
continue with the path of National Development Plan.

The budget is prepared under the auspices and principles of revenue collection and
the actual realization of budgeted revenue. Taking these principles into consideration
which all of us must ensure that austerity measures are adhered te and implemented.
Sustainable service delivery still takes precedence in this draft budget.




1.2 Operating Revenue Framework

For Emthanjeni to continue improving the quality of services provided to its citizens it needs to
generate the required revenue. In these tough economic times, strong revenue management
is fundamental o the financial sustainability of every municipality. The reality is that we are
faced with development backlogs and poverty and socio economic conditions that affect rural
areas. The expenditure required to address these challenges will inevitably always exceed
available funding; hence difficult choices have to be made in relation to tariff increases and
balancing expenditures against realistically anticipated revenues.

The municipality’s revenue strategy is built around the following key components:

. National Treasury's guidelines and macroeconomic policy:

. Growth in the Municipality and continued economic development;

. Efficient revenue management, which aims to ensure a 90 per cent annual collection
rate for property rates and other key service charges;

. Electricity tariff increases as approved by the National Electricity Regulator of South
Africa (NERSA);

. Achievement of full cost recovery of specific user charges especially in relation to
trading services;

. Determining the tariff escalation rate by establishing/calculating the revenue
requirement of each service;

. The municipality's Property Rates Policy approved in terms of the Municipal Property
Rates Act, 2004 (Act 6 of 2004) (MPRAY);

’ Increase ability to extend new services and recover costs;

. The municipality's Indigent Policy and rendering of free basic services: and

. Tariff policies of the Municipality.

. The recovering of outstanding arrears with the assistance of a debt collection firm,

The following table is a summary of the 2017/18 MTREF (classified by main revenue
source): Table 1 Summary of revenue classified by main revenue source

NC073 Emthanjeni - Table A4 Budgeted Financial Performance {revenue and expenditure)
Description 2017/18 Medium Term Revenue & Expenditure Framework
R thousand Budget Year Budget Year +1 Budget Year +2
2017/18 2018/19 2019/20
Revenue By Source
Property rates 26 620 27 818 29 265
Service charges - elactricity revenue 58 466 61272 54 459
Service charges - water revenue 29 746 31 084 32 576
Service charges - sanilaton revenue 18 458 19 289 20 292
Service charges - refuse revenue 10701 11 215 11798
Service charges - other 125 132 139
Rental of facitites and equipment 732 779 817
Interest earned - ex temal inv estments 731 764 804
Inleresi earned - oulstanding deblors 1083 1132 1190
Dividends received - - —-
Fines, penaltes and forfeils 3720 3888 4 083
Licences and permits 1970 2 060 2 162
Agency services - - -
Translers and subsidies 41 455 44 109 47 146
Other ravenue 27 589 28 941 30 429
Gains on disposal of PPE 268 278 320
Total Revenue (excluding capital transfers and 221 664 232 760 245 479
contributions)




Table 2 Percentage growth in revenue by main revenue source

NC073 Emthanjeni - Table A4 Budgeted Financial Performance {revenue and expenditure)
Doscription 2017118 Medium Term Revenue & Expenditure Framework
R thousand Adjusted % Budget Year % Budget Year % Budget Year +2
Budget 2016/17 2017/18 +1 201819 2019/20
Rewv aurcs
Property rales 30 665 -13.2% 26 620 4.5% 27818 5.2% 29 265
Service chames - electricily revenue 56 217 40% 58 466 48% 61272 52% 64 459
Service charges - waler revenug 27 953 6.4% 29 746 1.5% 31084 4.8% 32 576
Service charges - sanitation fevenue 17 248 B.4% 18 458 4.5% 19 289 5.2% 20 292
Service charges - refuse revenua 10 057 6.4% 1070 4.8% 1215 5.2% 1798
Service charges - ober 118 6.0% 125 5.3% 132 5.6% 139
Rental of Baciliies and equipmenl 786 -6.8% 732 6.4% 779 4.9% 87
Interes| earned - ex kemal investiments 306 3% 3 1.5% 764 5.2%) B804
Interest earned - outstanding deblors 954 13 5% 1083 4.6% 1132 5.1% 1190
Dividends received - 0% - 0.0% - 0.0% -
Fines, penalies and forfeils 2882 29.1% 1720 4.5% 3888 5.0% 4083
Licences and permits 2508 -M14% 1970 4.5% 2060 5.0% 2162
Anency services - 0.0% - 0.0% - 0.0% -
Transters and subsidies 39983 1.1% 41 455 6.4% 44 109 6.9% 47 146
Other rgvenue 26 595 3% 27 589 4.9% 28941 5.1% 30 429
Gans on disposal of PPE 130 106.8% 268 37% 278 15.1% 320
Total Revenua {excluding capital (ransfers and AT 21% 221 664 232760 245479
contributions) 5.0% 55%

In line with the formats prescribed by the Municipal Budget and Reporting Regulations, capital
transfers and contributions are excluded from the operating statement, as inclusion of these
revenue sources would distort the calculation of the operating surplus/deficit.

Revenue generated from rates and services charges forms a significant percentage of the
revenue basket for the Municipality. Rates and service charge revenues comprise more than
ten percentage of the total revenue mix. in the 2017/18 financial year, revenue from rates and
services charges totalled R144, 116 million or 56.75 %. This increases to R150, 810 million,
and R158, 528 million in the respective financial years of the MTREF. A notable trend is the
increase in the total percentage revenue generated from rates and services charges which
increases from 1.23 per cent in 2017/18, 1o 4.64 per cent in 2018/19 and to 5.12 % in 2019/20.
This growth can be mainly attributed to the increased share that the sale of electricity
contributes to ihe total revenue mix, which in turn is due to rapid increases in the demand of
electricity due to the various developments taking place in Emthanjeni Municipality. Eskom
tariffs for bulk electricity. It is also worth noting that the increase in 2017/2018 financial the
increase is so small due to a new valuation roll being implemented and a drop in the valuations
results in a drop in rates revenue. The above table excludes revenue foregone arising from
discounts and rebates associated with the tariff policies of the Municipality. Details in this
regard are contained in Table 64 MBRR SA1.

The targest source of income is generated from Electricity which totals R38, 486. Water is the
second largest revenue source totalling 11.71 per cent or R29, 746 million rand and increases
to R64, 459 million by 2019/20. The third largest source is Property Rates and it followed by
Sewerage revenue realised. The ‘other revenue’ which consists of various items such as
income received from permits and licenses, building plan fees, connection fees, transport fees
and advertisement fees. Departments have been urged to review the tariffs of these items on
an annual basis to ensure they are cost reflective and market related.

Operating grants and transfers totals R41, 455 million in the 2017/18 financial year and
steadily increases to R47, 146 million by 2019/20.




The following table gives a breakdown of the various operating grants and subsidies
allocated to the municipality over the medium term:

Table 3 Operating Transfers and Grant Receipts

Description 2017/18 Medium Term Revenue & Expenditure
Framework
R thousand Budget Year Budget Year +1 Budgaet Year +2
2017/18 2018/19 2019/20
RECEIPTS:
Opaerating Transfers and Grants
National Government: 39 880 42 458 45 410
Local Government Equitable Share 37094 40 758 43 710
Finance Management 1700 1700 1700
EPWP Incentive 1 086
Provincial Government: 1 575 1651 1736
Sport and Recreation 1575 1651 1736
District Municipality: - - =
Other grant providers: - - -
Total Operating Transfers and Grants 41 455 44 109 47 146

Tariff-setting is a pivotal and strategic part of the compilation of any budget. When rates, tariffs
and other charges were revised, local economic conditions, input costs and the affordability of
services were taken into account to ensure the financial sustainability of the Municipality.

National Treasury continues to encourage municipalities to keep increases in rates, tariffs and
other charges as low as possible. Municipalities must justify in their budget documentation all
increases in excess of the 6 per cent upper boundary of the South African Reserve Bank's
inflation target. Excessive increases are likely to be counterproductive, resulting in higher
levels of non-payment.

The percentage increases of both Eskom and Water bulk tariffs are far beyond the mentioned
inflation target. Given that these tariff increases are determined by external agencies, the
impact they have on the municipality's electricity and in these tariffs are largely outside the
control of the Municipality. Discounting the impact of these price increases in lower consumer
tariffs will erode the Municipality's future financial position and viability.

It must also be appreciated that the consumer price index, as measured by CP!, is not a good
measure of the cost increases of goods and services relevant to municipalities. The basket of
goods and services utilised for the calculation of the CPI consist of items such as food, petrol
and medical services, whereas the cost drivers of a municipality are informed by items such as
the cost of remuneration, bulk purchases of electricity and water, petrol, diesel, chemicals,
cement etc. The current challenge facing the Municipality is managing the gap between cost
drivers and tariffs levied, as any shortfall must be made up by either operaiional efficiency
gains or service level reductions. Within this framework the Municipality has undertaken the
tariff setting process relating to service charges as follows.




1.2.1 Property Rates

Property rates cover the cost of the provision of general services. Determining the effective
property rate tariff is therefore an integral part of the municipality's budgeting process.

Property Rates tariffs increased very conservatively since 2009.

National Treasury's MFMA Circular No. 51 deals, inter alia with the implementation of the
Municipal Property Rates Act, with the regulations issued by the Department of Co-operative
Governance. These reqgulations came into effect on 1 July 2009 and prescribe the rate ratio for
the non-residential categories, public service infrastructure and agricultural properties relative
to residential properties to be 0,25:1. The implementation of these regulations was done in the
previous budget process and the Property Rales Policy of the Municipality has been amended
accordingly.

A new General Valuation Roll will be implemented from 01 July 2017.

-The new valuations as per the new valuation roll reflects a sharp increase in the residential
properties of the town of De Aar,

-The valuation in the towns of Hanover and Britstown almost remained static with the current
valuation roll. This was also the trend for all other property categories.

-With this situation, De Aar Residential Property owners will have an increase above inflation
rate whilst the other towns will have a decrease in property rates.

The following stipulations in the Property Rates Policy are highlighted:

. The first R15 000 of the market value of a property used for residential purposes is
Excluded from the rate-able value (Section 17(h) of the MPRA). 25 per cent rebate wiil
be granted on all agricultural properties but must be applied for before 31 August 2017
as per the rates policy.

. Mining and Industrial property will increase higher than the other calegories. Portions of
farms which are exclusive used for renewable or solar energy will be part of this
category of properties.

. 100 per cent rebate will be granted to registered indigents in terms of the Indigent
Policy if the market value of their property is R28 000 or less.

. For pensioners a further rebate will be granted upon application and must the criteria as
set out in the Rates Policy

. The Municipality may award a 100 per cent grant-in-aid on the assessment rates of

rate-able properties of certain classes such as registered welfare organizations,
institutions or organizations performing charitable work, sports grounds used for
purposes of amateur sport. The owner of such a property must apply to the Chief
Financial Officer in the prescribed format for such a grant.




The categories of rate-able propenrties for purposes of levying rates and the proposed rates for
the 2017/18 financial year based on a percentage increases(decreases) from 1 July 2017 is
confained below:

Table 4 Comparison of proposed rates to be levied for the 2017/18 financial year

Category Current Tariff Proposed tariff
(3 July 2016} | (from 1 July 2017)
c/R ¢/R
0.013632 0.009500
Residential properties
Agricultural Properties (1:0.25 irt residential 0.003408 0.002375
properties)

{Agricultural Property must take note that the
Nett Effect of the Agricultural Levy will be as

follows:)*

0.017950 0.017950
Slale owned properties
0.014200 0.016000
Business & Guesthouses
Industrial 0.018460 0.020000
Place of Worship 0.013632 0.009500
Public Benefit Organization 0.003408 0.002375
Mining 0.021565 0.017252
Vacant land 0.034503 0.017252
Farm properly where a portion is used for 0.043460 -

renewable energy generation purpose

1.2.2 Sale of Water and Impact of Tariff Increases

South Africa faces similar challenges with regard to water supply as it did with electricity, since
demand growth oulstrips supply. Consequently, National Treasury is encouraging all
municipalities to carefully review the level and structure of their water tariffs to ensure;

«  Water tariffs are fully cost-reflective — including the cost of maintenance and renewal of
purification plants, water networks and the cost associated with reticulation expansion;

+  Water tariffs are structured to protect basic levels of service and ensure the provision of
free water to the poorest of the poor (indigent); and

«  Water tariffs are designed to encourage efficient and sustainable consumption.

In addition National Treasury has urged all municipalities to ensure that water tariff structures
are cost reflective by 2015.

Better maintenance of infrastructure, new water provision construction programmes and cost-
reflective tariffs will ensure that the supply challenges are managed in future to ensure
sustainability. Emthanjeni Municipality will increase water tariffs by an average of 6,4 per cent
from 1 July 2017.




Emthanjeni Municipality has undertaken a critical assessment of its capital infrastructure
requirements. Regional Bulk Water's assessment indicates that for the extension of water
resources in De Aar and Water's current infrastructure is unlikely to sustain its long-term ability
to supply water and they had no other choice to upgrade infrastructure, hence the significant
increase in the cost of water.

A tariff increase of 6.4 per cent from 1 July 2017 for water is proposed. This is based on input
cost assumptions of between 6 to 15 per cent increase in the cost of bulk water to the water
farmers. In addition 6 ki waler per 30-day period will again be granted free of charge to all
households.

A summary of the proposed tariffs for households (residential) and non-residential are as
follows {these ariffs are exclusive of VAT):

Table 5 Proposed Water Tariffs

CATEGORY cu RRE{I;I"'I;;I;A;RIFFS PROPQZ%E?’;I':RIFFS
Rand per k¢ Rand per k£

RESIDENTIAL

Basic fee: Residential 60.83 64.73

(i 1 to 6 k€ per 30-day period 4.48 4.75

(i) 7 to 15 k¢ per 30-day period 8.11 8.60

(i) 16 to 30 k& per 30-day period 9.21 9.76

{iv) 31 to 45 k& per 30-day period 10.74 11.38

(v) 46 and 65 kI per 30-day period 11.28 11.96

(vi) 66 ké and more per 30-day period 12.41 13.15
NON-RESIDENTIAL

Basic fee: Business 310.75 330.64

(i) 1 to 6 kt per 30-day pericd 4.48 4,75

(i) 7 to 15 kt per 30-day period 8.11 8.60

(i) 16 to 30 ki per 30-day period 921 9.76

(iv) 31 to 45 ki per 30-day period 10.74 11.38

(v) 46 and 65 ki per 30-day period 11.28 11.96
(vi) 66 kf and more per 30-day period 12.41 13.15




The following table shows the impact of the proposed increases in water tariffs on the water

charges for a single dwelling-house: (excluding VAT)

Table 8 Comparison between current water charges and increases (Domestic)

Monthly Current amount Proposed Difference Percentage
amount {Increase) change
consumption Payable Payable
ke R R R
Basic Fee 60.83 64.73 3.90 6.4%
6 0%
15 72.99 77.66 4,67 6.4%
30 138.15 146.99 8.84 6.4%
45 161.10 171.41 10.31 6.4%
51 67.68 72.01 4.33 6.4%
100 603.55 642.18 38.83 6.4%

Emthanjeni Municipality tariff structure in 2017/18 has remained unchanged compared to that

of 2016/17, however the tariff structure is still designed to charge higher levels of consumption
a higher rate, steadily increasing to a rate of R13.15 per kilolitre for consumption in excess of

65kE per 30 day period.

1.2.3 Sale of Electricity and Impact of Tariff Increases

NERSA has announced the revised bulk electricity pricing structure. A 8 per cent increase in
the Eskom bulk electricity tariff to municipalities will be effective from 1 July 2017.

Considering the Eskom increases, the consumer tariff had to be increased by 1.88 per cent to
offset the additional bulk purchase cost from 1 July 2017. Furthermore, it should be noted that
given the magnitude of the tariff increase, it is expected to depress growth in electricity
consumption, which will have a negative impact on the municipality's revenue from electricity.

Registered indigents will again be granted 50 kWh per 30-day period free of charge.




The following table shows the impact of the proposed increases in electricity tariffs for
domestic customers (excluding VAT):

Table 7 Comparison between current electricity charges and increases (Domestic)

Percentage
Monthly Current amount Proposed amount Difference change
consumption Payable Payable (Increase)
kWh R R R
100 94.15 95.92 1.77 1.88%
1.88%
250 160.50 163.52 3.02
1.88%
500 335.00 341.30 6.30
1.88%
750 420.50 428.41 7.91
1.88%
1000 447.50 455.91 8.41
1.88%
2 000 1790.00 1823.65 33.65

it should further be noted that Emthanjeni Municipality implemented the IBT as required by
NERSA. The effect thereof will be that the higher the consumption, the higher the cost per
kWh. The aim is to subsidise the lower consumption users (mostly the poor). Emthanjeni
Municipality has implemented the Incline Block Tariff (IBT) structure since 01 July 2009.

The inadequale electricity bulk capacity and the impact on service delivery and development
remains a challenge for the municipality. Most of the suburbs and network reticulation was
designed or strengthened during the 1980's and 1990’s with an expected 20-25 year life-
expectancy. The upgrading of the municipality’s electricity network has therefore become a
strategic priority, especially the substations and transmission lines.

Owing to the high increases in Eskom’s bulk tariffs, it is clearly not possible to fund these

necessary upgrades through increases in the municipal electricity tariff — as the resuitant tariff
increases would be unaffordable for the consumers.

1.2.4 Sanitation and Impact of Tariff Increases

A tariff increase of 6.4 per cent for sanitation from 1 July 2017 is proposed. This is based on
the input cost assumptions refated to water. It should be noted that electricity costs contributes
approximately between 20 - 30 per cent of waste water treatment input costs. The following
factors also contribute to the proposed tariff increase:

. Free sanitation will be applicable to registered indigent households; and
. The network extension and upgrade of exiting purification plants will impact on tariffs
over the MTEF period.

The total revenue expected to be generated from rendering this service amounts to R18, 458
million for the 2017/18 financial year.




The following table compares the current and proposed tariffs:

Table 8 Comparison between current sanitation charges and increases

CURRENT TARIFF PROPOSED TARIFF
CATEGORY 2016/17 201718
Residential Households 150.62 160.27
Business 210,53 224.01
Government 283.88 302.06

1.2.5 Waste Removal and Impact of Tariff Increases

Currently solid waste removal is at a deficit. it is widely accepted that the rendering of this
service should at least break even, which is currently not the case. The Municipality will have
to implement a solid waste strategy to ensure that this service can be rendered in a
sustainable manner over the medium to long-term. Considering the deficit, it is recommended
that a comprehensive investigation into the cost structure of solid waste function be
undertaken, and that this include investigating alternative service delivery models. The
outcomes of this investigation will be incorporated into the nexi planning cycle.

A 6.4 percent increase in the waste removal tariff is proposed from 1 July 2017. Higher
increases will not be viable in 2017/18 owing to the significant increases implemented in
previous financial years as well as the overall impact of higher than inflation increases of other
services.

The following table compares current and proposed amounts payable from 1 July 2017:

Table 9 Comparison between current waste removal fees and increases

Service CURRENT TARIFFS PROPOSED TARIFFS
201617 2017/18

Tariff per households

container per month or part of

a month: 93.90 99,94
Tariff per Special refuse

removal * 163.60 174,13
Building rubble* 329.10 350,23
Solar Rubble per ! Kg seif 43,99 46,81
removal*
Solar Rubble per/ Kg :Removal 43,99 2 850,00
by the Municipality per truck*




1.2.6 Overall impact of tariff increases on households

The following table shows the overall expected impact of the lariff increases on a large and
small household, as well as an indigent household receiving free basic services.

Table 10 MBRR Table SA14 — Household bills

2017/18 Medium Term Revenue & Expenditure
Framework
oL Budget Year Budget Year +1 Budget Year +2
2017118 2018/19 2019/20
Rand/cent
Monthly Account for Household - "Middle
Income Range’
Rates and services charges:
Property ratas 542.29 574.83 609.32
Electricity : Basic levy 145,94 184.67 199.44
Electricity : Consumption 1.381.26 1464.14 1551.98
Water: Basic levy 64.73 64.73 69.90
Waler: Consumption 224.72 238.20 252.50
Sanitation 182.71 193.66 209.17
Refuse removal 113,93 120.76 130.43
Other
sub-total 2 655.58 2 840.99 3022.73
VAT on Services 371.78 397.74 423.18
Total large household bill: 3 027.36 3 238.72 3 445.92
% Increase/-decrease - 7.0% 6.4%
Monthly A unt for sehold -
‘Affordable Range'
Rates and services charges:
Property rates 383.96 407.00 431.42
Electricity : Basic levy 145.94 184.67 199.44
Electricity : Consumption 920.95 976.21 1034.78
Waler: Baslc lavy 64.73 64.73 69.90
Waler: Consumpton 175.78 186.33 197.51
Sanitation 182.71 193.66 209.17
Refuse remov al 113.93 120.76 130.43
Qther
sub-total 1 988.00 2133.35 2 272.64
VAT on Services 278,32 298.67 318.17
Total small household bill: 2 266.32 2 432.02 2 590.81
% increasel/-decrease = 7.3% 6.5%
Monthly Account for Household - ‘Indigent’ |
Household receiving free basic services
Rates and services charges:
Property ralas 225.63 239.17 253.52
Electricily : Basic levy 145.94 184.67 199.44
Electricity : Consumption 62.39 66.13 70.10
Water: Basic levy 64.73 64.73 69.90
Water: Consumption 160.26 169.88 180.07
Sanitation 182.71 193.66 20917
Refuse remov al 113.93 120.76 130.43
Qther
sub-total 955.59 1 039.00 1112.63
VAT on Services 133.78 145.46 155.77
Total small househeld bill: 1 089.37 1 184.45 1 268.39
% increase/-decrease = 8.7% T1%




1.3 Operating Expenditure Framework

Emthanjeni Municipality's expenditure framework for the 2017/18 budget and MTREF is
informed by the following:
» The asset renewal strategy and the repairs and maintenance plan;

Balanced budget constraint {operating expenditure should not exceed operating
revenue) uniess there are exisling uncommitted cash-backed reserves to fund any
deficit;

Funding of the budget over the medium-term as informed by Section 18 and 19 of the
MFMA;

The capital prograrmme is aligned {o the asset renewal strategy and backlog eradication
plan;

L

Operational gains and efficiencies will be directed to funding the capital budget and other
core services; and

Strict adherence to the principle of no project plan no budget.

The following table is a high level summary of the 2017/18 budget and MTREF (classified per
main type of operating expenditure):

Table 11 Summary of operating expenditure by standard classification ltem

Description 2017/18 Medium Term Revenue & Expenditure
Framework
R thousand Budget Year |Budget Year +1| Budget Year +2
2017/18 2018/19 2019/20
Expenditure By Type
Employ ee related costs 75 162 80 423 86 053
Remuneration of councillors 5 297 5 668 6 065
Debt impairment 9678 9 463 10 670
Depreciation & asset impairment 9 056 9 463 9 936
Finance charges 5 755 6 042 9 805
Bulk purchases 60 834 63 876 67 198
Other matarials 18 807 19 551 20 416
Contracted services 9 319 9 785 5477
Transfers and subsidiaes - - -
Other ex penditure 46 003 47 469 49 155
Loss on disposal of PPE - - -
Total Expenditure 239 911 251 740 264 775

The budgeted allocation for employee related costs for the 2016/17 financial year totals
R75, 162 million, which equals 31.33 per cent of the total operating expenditure. Based on the
three year collective SALGBC agreement and as per National Treasury Budget Circular
85/2016, salary increases have been factored at a perceniage increase of 7.3 per cent for the
2017/18 financial year. As part of the Municipality’s cost reprioritization and cash management
strategy vacancies only departmental prioritization of critical vacancies within the Municipality
has been budgeted for. In addition expenditure against overtime must significantly he managed
to reduced costs, with provisions against this budget item only being provided for essential
services and other critical functions.




The cost associated with the remuneration of councillors is determined by the Minister of Co-
operative Governance and Traditional Affairs in accordance with the Remuneration of Public
Office Bearers Act, 1998 (Act 20 of 1998). The most recent proclamation in this regard has
been taken into account in compiling the Municipality's budget.

The provision of debt impairment was determined based on an annual collection rate of 90 per
cent and the Debt Write-off Policy of the Municipality. For the 2017/18 financial year this
amount equates to R9, 678 million and escalates to R10, 670 million by 2019/20. While this
expenditure is considered 10 be a non-cash flow item, it informed the total cost associated with
rendering the services of the municipality, as well as the municipality's realistically anticipated
revenues.

Provision for depreciation and asset impairment has been informed by the Municipality’s Asset
Management Policy. Depreciation is widely considered a proxy for the measurement of the
rate asset consumption. Budget appropriations in this regard total a Net of R9, 056 million for
the 2017/18 financial and equates to 3.77 per cent of the total operating expenditure. Note that
the implementation of GRAP 17 accounting standard has meant bringing a range of assets
previously not included in the assels register onto the register. This has resulted in a
significant increase in depreciation relative to previous years.

Finance charges consist primarily of the repayment of interest on tong-term borrowing (cost of
capital). Finance charges make up 2, 40 per cent (R5. 755 million) of operating expenditure
excluding annual redemption for 2017/18 and increases to R 9. 805 million by 2019/20.

Bulk purchases are directly informed by the purchase of electricilty from Eskom and water from
Farmers within the municipal boundaries. The annual price increases have been factored into
the budget appropriations and directly inform the revenue provisions. The expenditures
include distribution losses.

Other materials comprise of amongst others the purchase of fuel, diesel, materials for
maintenance, cleaning materials and chemicals. In line with the Municipality’s repairs and
maintenance plan this group of expenditure has been prioritised to ensure sustainability of the
Municipality's infrastructure.

Contracted services have been identified as a cost saving area for the Municipality. As part of
the compilation of the 2017/18 MTREF this group of expenditure was critically evaluated and
operational efficiencies were enforced. In the 2017/18 financial year, this group of expenditure
lotals R9, 319 million and has decreased since last year. For the out year growth has been
limited to 5% per cent. . Further details relating to contracted services can be seen in Table
64 MEBRR SA1.

Other expenditure comprises of various line items relating to the daily operations of the
municipality. This group of expenditure has also been identified as an area in which cost
savings and efficiencies can be achieved. Growth has been limited to 7.76 per cent for
2017118 and curbed at 3.19 and 3.55 per cent for the two outer years, indicating that significant
cost savings have been already realised. Further details relating to contracted services can be
seen in Table 64 MBRR SA1.




The following table gives a breakdown of the main operating expenditure categories for the
2017/18 financial year.

e
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Figure 1 Main operational expenditure categories for the 2017/18 financial year

1.3.1 Priority given to repairs and maintenance

Aligned to the priority being given to preserving and maintaining the Municipality's current
infrastructure, the 2017/18 budget and MTREF provide for extensive growth in the area of
asset maintenance, as informed by the asset renewal strategy and repairs and maintenance
plan of the Municipality. In terms of the Municipal Budget and Reporting Regulations,
operational repairs and maintenance is not considered a direct expenditure driver but an
oulcome of certain other expenditures, such as remuneration, purchases of materials and
contracted services. Considering these cost drivers, the following table is a consolidation of all
the expenditures associaled with repairs and maintenance:

Table 12 Operational repairs and maintenance

2017118 Medium Term Revenue & Expenditure Framework
Description
Budget Year 2017/18 Bud;;::;::r “ Budzg::g‘::;r 2
R thousand
Repairs and Maintenance
by Expenditure Item
Employ ea related costs - - -
Cther materials 10091 10 496 9448
Confracted Services 8 717 9085 10 968
Other Ex penditure -
Total Repairs and Maintenance Expenditure 18 807 19551 20416




During the compilation of the 2017/18 MTREF operational repairs and maintenance was
identified as a strategic imperative owing to the aging of the Municipality's infrastructure and
historic deferred maintenance. To this end, materials (repairs and maintenance) were
gradually increased in the 2017/18 financial year, from R11, 661 million to R18, 807 million. As
part of the 2017/18 MTREF this strategic imperative remains a priority as can be seen by the
budget appropriations over the MTREF. The total allocation for 2017/18 equates to R18, 807
million a growth of 12.14 per cent in relation to the Adjustment Budget and continues to grow at
3.96 and 4.42 per cent over the MTREF. In relation to the total operating expenditure, repairs
and maintenance comprises of 7.84, 7.77 and 7.71 per cent for the respective financial years
of the MTREF.

The table below provides a breakdown of the repairs and maintenance in relation to asset
class:

Table 13 Repairs and maintenance per asset class

Description 2017/18 Medium Term Revenue & Expenditure
Framework
R thousand Budget Year |Budget Year +1 | Budget Year +2
2017/18 2018/19 2019/20
Repairs and Maintena Asset Class 18 807 19 5§51 20 416
Roads Infrastructure 368 383 400
Storm water Infrastructure 336 349 365
Electrical Infrastructure 1732 1 801 1 880
Water Supply Infrastructure 1 380 1435 1 498
Sanitation Infrastructure 74 77 81
Saolid Waste Infrastructure - - -
Rail Infrastructure - - -
Coastal infrastructure - - -
Information and Communication Infrastructure - = -
Infrastructure 3 891 4 045 4 223
Community Facilities 2150 2 235 2334
Sport and Recreation Faciliies 134 139 145
Community Assets 2 284 2374 2479
Heritage Assets - - -
Revenue Generating - - -
Non-rev enue Generating - = -
Investment properties - - -
QOperational Buildings 2 100 2183 2 280
Housing - - -
Other Assets 2 100 2183 2280
Blological or Cultivated Assets - - -
Serviludes - - -
Licences and Rights 1708 1775 1855
Intangible Assets 1708 1775 1 855
Computer Equipment 699 728 760
Furniture and Office Equipment 999 1038 1 084
Machinery and Equipment 1079 1121 11714
Transport Assets 6 047 6 286 6 564
Libraries - - -
Zoo's, Marine and Non-blological Animals - - -
TOTAL EXPENDITURE OTHER ITEMS 18 807 19 551 20 416




For the 2017/18 financial year, 20.69 per cent or R3, 891 million of total repairs and
maintenance will be spent on infrastructure assets. Electricity infrastructure has received a
significant proportion of this allocation totalling 9.2 per cent (R1, 732 milion), water
infrastructure at 7.3 per cent (R1, 380 million). Community assets have been allocated R2, 284
million of total repairs and maintenance equating to 12.14 per cent.

1.3.2 Free Basic Services: Basic Social Services Package

The social package assists households that are poor or face other circumstances that {imit
their ability to pay for services. To receive these free services the households are required to
register in terms of the Municipality Indigent Policy. The target is to register +/- 4 000 indigent
households during the 2017/18 financial year, a process reviewed annually by the end of June
2017. Detail relating to free services, cost of free basis services, revenue lost owing to free
basic services as well as basic service delivery measurement is contained in Table 27 MBRR
A10 (Basic Service Delivery Measurement) on The cost of the social package of the registered
indigent households is largely financed by national government through the local government
equitable share received in terms of the annual Division of Revenue Act.

1.4 Capital expenditure

The following table provides a breakdown of budgeted capitai expenditure by vote:
Table 14 2017/18 Medium-term capital budget per vote

Vote Description 2017/18 Medium Term Revenue & Expenditure Framework
R thousand Budget Year Budget Year +1 Budgst Year +2
2017118 201819 2019120
Capital Expenditure - Functional
Governance and administration 2 885 IM5 3 160

Execulive and council 1425 1489 1 561

Finance and administration 1460 1526 1599
Community and public safety 242 253 265

Community and social services 120 125 131

Sport and recreation 65 68 7

Public safety 57 60 62
Economic and environmental services 15153 15734 16 354

Road transport 15153 15734 16 354
Trading services 20 602 2 629 1659

Energy sources 6 500 2523 1 548

Water management 14 080 84 88

Wasie management 22 23 24

Total Capital Expenditure - Functional 38 882 2160 21 438
Funded by;

National Govemment 32 292 14 744 14 221
Transfers recognised - capital 32292 14 744 14 21
Public contributions & donations - - -
Borrowing - - -
Internally generated funds 6 590 6 887 7217

Total Capital Funding 38 882 21631 21 438

For 2017/18 an amount of R38, 882 million has been budgeted for the development of assets.
Infrastructure Assets represents 52.99 per cent of the total capital budget. In the outer years
this amount totals R21, 631 million, 12.15 per cent and R21, 438 million, 7.73 per cent




respeclively for each of the financial years. Roads department receives the highest allocation
of R15, 153 million followed by water management of R14, 080 million in 2017/18 financial
years. Roads will receive the highest allocation in 2018/19 as well as in 2019/20, this will
amount to R15, 734 and R 16, 354 respectively.

Further detail relating to asset classes and proposed capital expendilure is contained in Table
26 MBRR A9 (Asset Management). In addition to the MBRR Table A9, MBRR Tables SA34a,
b, ¢ provides a detailed breakdown of the capital programme relating to new asset
construction, capital asset renewal as well as operational repairs and maintenance by asset
class. Some of the salient projects 1o be undertaken over the medium-term includes, amongst
others:

1.5 Annual Budget Tables - Emthanjeni Municipality

The following eighteen pages present the ten main budget tables as required in terms of
section 8 of the Municipal Budget and Reporting Regulations. These tables set out the
municipality's 2017/18 budget and MTREF as approved by the Council. Each table is
accompanied by explanatory notes on the facing page.




NCO073 Emthanjeni - Table A1 Budgot Summary

Doscription

2017/18 Medium Term Reavenue &
Expendituro Framowork

R thousands

Budgot Yeor

Budget Yeaor

Budgot Year

2017/18 +1 20168/19 +2 2019/20
Finoncial Performance
Proporty rotos 26 6§20 27 818 29 285
Searvice chargos 117 498 122 992 129 2649
inv ostmont rev enue 731 764 B804
Transfars recognised - aparptonal 41 465 44 109 A7 146
Other ow N rev onue a5 362 a7 078 39 001
Total Revenue (exciuding capital transfors and 221 664 232 760 245 479
contributions)
Employ ee conls 75 162 80 423 88 053
Ramunaration of counclliors 5 207 5 668 8 085
Doprociaticon 8 asset impairment 9 058 9 463 9 936
Finance charges 5 755 G 042 9 BOS
Natorials and bulk purchases 79 642 A3 427 87 613
Transfers and grants -— - —
Qthar ax pandiiure 65 00O 68 717 65 303
Totnl Expenditure 239 911 251 740 264 775
Surpluas/{Deficit) {18 247) {18 979) {19 296)
Transfors and subsidies - capital {(monetary allocotiona) 32 202 44 744q 18 978
Confributions recognisced - capital & contribuiod assots - — —
Surplus/{Deoficit) after copital transfors & 14 045 25 765 (218)
contributionsa
Share of surplus/ {deficit) of associalo = = =
Surplus/{Deficit) for the yaar 14 045 25 765 {318)
Copitnl expondiiure & fungds sources
Capital oxpenditure 38 882 21 631 21 438
Transfors rocognisad - capital 32 292 14 Ta4 14 221
Public contributons & donations - = —
Baoarrow ing - - o
fntornaily genorated funds & 590 6 887 7 217
Total sources of capital funds 38 8A2 21 631 21 438
Einancioal poaition
Tolal curreni assets 111 264 112 494 111 112
Tolal non currant assats 0953 090 962 673 972 350
Total current liabilitios 34 159 35 174 36 974
Total non currant liabilitics 36 792 A7 528 38 279
Community wenlth/Equity 983 403 1 002 165 1 008 209
Sash fiows
MNat cash rom (usod) operating 38 341 39 459 A0 711
Nat cash from (used) investing {38 614) {40 548) {42 547)
Net cash from (usead) financing 95 92 89
Cash/cash equivalonts ot tho yoar ond 960 (A7) (1 784)
Cosh bachina/surplus reconcilintion
Cash and inv estiments av ailablo 989 (8) {1 755)
Application of ¢cash and invesiments (13 747) (14 184) {14 733)
Balance - surplus {(shortfalt) 14 735 14 176 t2 978
Ansgt monogomaont
Asseat reagister summary (WDV) 953 005 962 585 o972 261
Dapreciotion - - -
Ranewal of Existing Assota 8 590 6 887 7 217
Repairs ond Maintlenance 18 807 19 551 20 416
Eroo norvicon
Coat of Free Basic Searvicas providod = =
Rev onue cost of frea services providod 21 111 22 0681 23 208
Houwsoholds halow minimum sarvice lovel
valter: i - "
Sanitntion/sow oraga: 4] 8] [+

Enargy

Refuse




Explanatory notes to MBRR Table A1 - Budget Summary

1. Table A1 is a budget summary and provides a concise overview of the Municipality's budget
from all of the major financial perspectives (operating, capital expenditure, financial
position, cash flow, and MFMA funding compliance).

2. The table provides an overview of the amounts approved by Council for operating
performance, resources deployed to capital expenditure, financial position, cash and
funding compliance, as well as the municipality's commitment 1o eliminating basic service
delivery backlogs.

3. Financial management reforms emphasises the importance of the municipal budget being
funded. This requires the simultaneous assessment of the Financial Performance,
Financial Position and Cash Flow Budgets, along with the Capital Budget. The Budget
Summary provides the key information in this regard:

a. The operating surplus/(deficit) (after Total Expenditure) is positive over the MTREF
b. Capilal expenditure is balanced by capital funding sources, of which

(i) Transfers recognised is reflected on the Financial Performance Budget,

(ii) Internally generated funds are financed from a combination of the current
operating surplus and accumulated cash-backed surpluses from previous
years. The amount is incorporated in the Net cash from investing on the
Cash Flow Budget. The fact that the municipality's cash flow remains
positive, and is improving indicates that the necessary cash resources are
available to fund the Capital Budget.

4. The Cash backing/surplus reconciliation shows that in previous financial years the
municipality was not paying much attention to managing this aspect of its finances, and
consequently many of its obligations are not cash-backed. This places the municipality in a
very vulnerable financial position, as the recent slow-down in revenue collections
highlighted. Consequently Council has taken a deliberate decision to ensure adequate
cash-backing for all material obligations in accordance with the adopted policies. This
cannol be achieved in one financial year. But over the MTREF there is progressive
improvement in the level of cash-backing of obligations. It is anticipated that the goal of
having all obligations cash-back will be achieved by 2017/18, when a small- surplus is
reflected.

5. Even though the Council is placing great emphasis on securing the financial sustainability of
the municipaliity, this is not being done at the expense of services to the poor. The section
of Free Services shows that the amount spent on Free Basic Services and the revenue
cost of free services provided by the municipality continues to increase. In addition, the
municipality continues to make progress in addressing service delivery backlogs. It is
anticipated that by 2017/18 the free basic water will remain at 8kl for Indigent Households.




Table 15 MBRR Table A2 - Budgeted Financial Performance (revenue and expenditure
by standard classification)

NC073 Emthanjeni - Table A2 Budgeied Financial Performance (ravenue and expendilura by funciional classification)

2017118 Meclum Term Revenue &

Functional Classification Desctiption | Ref 201314 01415 201518 Current Year 2016117 o Fr N
R thousand ] Audited Audited Audited Original Adjusted Full Year | Budget Year | Budget Year | Hudgel Year
Qulcoms Quicome Quicome Budget Budget Forecast 201113 +1201849 | +2 201920
|Beyenye - Fynctional
G and administration - - - - - - 49125 $2 004 56 033
Exetutva and councd - - - - - 4238 4458 470
Finance and adminiskaton - - - - - £4 BEG 48 351 51 2668
Inermal audl - = - - & - = -
Community and public safety - - - - - - 110 770 0%
Communidy and social sernvces - - - - - - 2 233 2 453
Sport and recrsaton - - - - - - 3 137 44
Pubbc salaly - - - - - - 4 969 5 192 5 452
Housing - - - - - - 44 a7 50
Heath = 5 - = = = = 5 -
Economic and snvironmental services - - - - - - 13 850 1323 13 739
Planning and develppmant - - - - - - 11 378 12 144 13221
Road ransport - - - - - - i 434 518
Envranmantal prolecton - - = 5 - - - - -
Trading services - - - - - - 181 611 203 148 106 500
Engrgy Sourtes - - - - - - 93 567 93 840 97 574
Waler managemant - - - - - - 48 030 65 660 42221
Viaske waier managemant - - - - - - 26 416 7T 29 389
Wask management - - - - - - 15 598 16 452 17 399
Othar 4 - - - - - - - - -
Total Revenue - Funclonal 2 - - - - - - 153 956 117 504 264 45T
Expengityre - Funciional
Governance and - - - - - - 50 636 53 641 55115
Executve and counci - - - - - - 14 637 15 520 19 640
Finance and adminstrabon - - - - - - 15993 38123 35 495
Irternal audit - - - - - - - - -
Community and public safaty - - - - - - M 32976 35087
Commundy and socal services - - - - - - 13 147 13816 14 676
Sporl and recreabon - - - - - - 5 531 5889 6273
Public salety - - - - - - 3847 10 554 M0
Housing ~ - - - - - 2398 2557 27T
Haalth - - - - - - 153 160 168
Economic and snvironm enial sevices - = - - - - 25 48 29 963 12074
Planting and development - - - - - - 12370 11 861 12 852
Road transport - - - - - - 17 113 18 102 19 181
Envronmantal protecion - - - ~ - - - - =
Trading services - - - - = = 127 129 134 426 1R
Energy sowces - - - - - - TH 052 82 062 B6 432
Watar managemanl - - - - - - 7 )62 18 236 19 154
Wasks waler managament - - - - - - 4 900 15 101 16 584
VVasle management - - - - - - i 415 18327 13 52
Other ‘ = = = = . - 50 E Tie
Total Expenditurs - Functional 1 = - - = - - 139 251 740 284 775
Surplusi{Deficit) for the year = - - - - - 14045 25 765 (318}

Explanatory notes to MBRR Table A2 - Budgeted Financial Performance (revenue and
expenditure by standard classification)

1. Table A2 is a view of the budgeted financial performance in relation to revenue and
expenditure per standard classification. The modified GFS standard classification divides
the municipal services into 14 functional areas. Municipal revenue, operating expenditure




and capilal expenditure are then classified in terms if each of these functional areas which
enables the National Treasury to compile ‘whole of government’ reports.

2. Note the Total Revenue on this table includes capital revenues (Transfers recognised —
capital) and so does not balance to the operating revenue shown on Table A4.

3. Note that as a general principle the revenues for the Trading Services should exceed their
expenditures. The table highlights that this is the case for Electricity, Water and Waste
water functions, but not the Waste management funclion. As already noted above, the
municipality will be undertaking a detailed study of this function to explore ways of
improving efficiencies and provide a basis for re-evaluating the function’s tariff structure.

4. Other functions that show a deficit between revenue and expenditure are being financed
from rates revenues and other revenue sources reflected under the Corporate Services.

Table 16 MBRR Table A3 - Budgeted Financial Performance (revenue and expenditure
by municipal vote)

NC073 Emthanjen! - Table A3 Budgeted Financial Performance (revenus and expenditure by municipal vote)

201713 Medtum Term Revenue &

Vole Description Ref} 20114 201415 201816 Curremt Yaar 201617
Expenditurs Framework

Audited Audited Audlted Original Adjusted Full Year | Budge! Year | Budget Year | Budget Year
Oulcoms @ Ouicome Quicome Budget Budget Forecasi 01718 +1201819 | +2 2019720

R thousang

Vole 14 - WATER
Vole 15 - [NAME OF VOTE 15)

8030 65 660 4222

Vo 1 - EXECUTIVE AND COUNCIL - - - - - - 423 4458 4170
Voke 2 - FINANCE ANID ADMINISTRATION - - - - - - 44 886 18 351 51268
Vol 3 - PLANNNG AND DEVELOPMENT - - - - - - 13378 12 734 1l
Vot 4 - HEALTH - - o - - - - - -

Voie 5 - COMMUNRITY AND SOCIAL SERVICES] o = = = - = 22 234 2453
Vom & - PUBLIC SAFETY - - - - - - 4969 §192 5452
Voke 7 - SPORT AND RECREATION - - - - - - 3 137 144
Voi 8 - ROAD TRANSPCRT - - - - - - 472 134 518
Vola 9 - OTHER - - - - - - - - -

Yole 10 - HOUSMG SERVICES - - - - - - L1 a7 50
Vol 11+ WASTE MANAGEMENT - - - - - - 15 698 16 452 17393
Vol 12 - WASTE WATER MANAGEMENT - - o - - - 26 416 21796 29389
Vol 13- ELECTRICITY o = - - - o 93 567 9 820 97 51

253 9% 277 504 264 457

Tetal Revanue by Vots 2

Expendifure by Vols to be apprepriated 1
Vo 1+ EXECUTNE AND COUNCIL - - - - - - 14637 15520 19640
Vote 2 - FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATION - - - - - - 3599 8123 15485
Vol 3 - PLANNNG AND DEVELOPMENT - - - - - - 12370 11 861 12 692
Voie 4 - HEALTH - - - - - - 153 160 168
Yole § - COMMUNITY AND SOCIAL SERVICES - - - - - - 1347 13816 14 676
Voi 6 - FUBLIC SAFETY - - - - - - 3947 10 554 1 20%
Vol 7+ SPCRT AND RECREATION - - - - - - 550 5889 62N
Vol B - ROAD TRANSFORT - - - - - - 17413 8 102 19181
Vol 9 - OTHER - - - - - - 690 TR i
Ve 10 - HQUSING SERVICES - - - - - - 2195 2557 2
Volg 11 - WASTE MAHAGEMENT - - - - - - 17415 18 427 13522
Vel 12 - WASTE WATER MANAGEMENT - - - - - - 14 900 EER AT 16 584
Vel 13 - ELECTRICITY - - - - - - 18052 82 D62 86 432
Vole 14 - WATER - - - - - - 17 362 18 236 19 194

Vo 15 - [RAME OF VOTE 15)
Total Expandiiure by Vots H
| Surplusi{Deficit) for the ywar 2

[ 251 740 2684 775
14 045 5765 [18)

Explanatory notes to MBRR Table A3 - Budgeted Financial Performance (revenue and
expenditure by municipal vote)

« Table A3 is a view of the budgeted financial performance in relation to the revenue and
expenditure per municipal vote. This table facilitates the view of the budgeted operating
performance in relation 1o the organisational structure of the Municipality. This means it is
possible 10 present the operating surplus or deficit of a vote. The following table is an
analysis of the surplus or deficit for the electricity and water trading services.




Table 17: Surplus/(Deficit) calculations for the trading services

201718 Medium Term Revenue & Expenditure

01213 2012114 201415 Cument Year 2016/17
Description Framework
Budget ¥ Budget Year
Rthousand Audted | Audited | Audied | Orginal | Adjusted | FulYear | BudgetYear | . oeo.of | U DS
Qutcome Outcome Qutcome Budget Budget Forecast 2017118
Electreity
72801 90239 89653 89653 93 567 934840 97 571
Total Revenue (incl
capital grants and 52352 60 390
transfers) o
7491 82559 69 876 71539 12776 72716 78052 82062 86432
Operaling Expenditure
SurplusiDeficit) for 22559 21,963 2,925 18 700 16 877 16 877 15515 11778 11139
the year
4% 14% 13.82 1882 16.58 12.55 1142
Percentage Sumplus (30)% (26)%
Water
27000 384N 38 160 33160 48 030 65660 2221
Talal Revenue {ingl
capital granis and 29792 25603
transfers)
26 484 z2ne 25637 12 906 14 750 14750 17 362 18236 19184
Operating Expenditure
Surplus/(Deficit) for 7,107 1363 25565 23410 23410 Jo 568 47424 23027
the year 3,308
5.32 66.45 6135 61.35 63.85 7223 54 54
Percentage Surplus 11% {22%)

=  The electricity trading surplus increases over the 2017/18 MTREF in terms of rand value but
decreases in terms of percentage surplus, from 16.58 per cent to 11.42 per cent or R15,
515 million to R11, 139 throughout the MTREF. This is primarily as a result of capital
projects and grants as well as the high increases in Eskom bulk purchases and the lariff
setting policy of the municipality to buffer the impact of these increases on individual
consumers.
* The surplus on the water account remains positive over the MTREF translating into a
surplus of 63.85 per cent, 7.23 per cent and 54.54 per cent for each of the respective
financial years. The surplus excludes the capital expenditure that will be incur during the
2017/18 financial year.
= Note that the surpluses on these trading accounts are utilised as an internal funding source
for the capital programme for asset renewal, refurbishment and the development of new
asset infrastructure, and are not used to cross-subsidise other municipal services.




Table 18 MBRR Table A4 - Budgeted Financial Performance {revenue and expenditure)

NCO73 Emthanjen| - Table A4 Budqgeted Financlal Performance (mvenus and expenditure)
201713 Medium Tarm Revenue &
Descrlption Ref] 013U 201418 paac il ] Currenl Year 2016147
Expandilure Framawori
R thousand 1 Audited Audited Andited Qriginal Adjusted Full Yam Pre-audit | Budgel Year | Budgel Year | Budgel Year
Outcome Cutcome Oulcome Budget Budgel Forecast outcome 2017118 H 200819 +21 2001920
Revanye By Source
Property raies 2 - - - - - - - 26620 21 818 3 265
Service charges - slectncry revenue 2 - - - - - - - 8 466 61212 64459
Service chames - walef rev ehue 2 - - - - - - - 9746 Jogd 32576
Service chamges - sandavon ravenus 2 - - - - - - - 18458 19 289 20292
Service chamges - rehiie sevenue 2 - - - - - - - 10701 1ms 1788
Service charges - oher 125 132 139
Fent of bekaes and equopment 1z bk a7
nietest eamed - axiemal invesknents H 64 804
Inierest eamed - Guis inding delriors 1083 1132 1190
Do idends recen ed - - -
Fines, penahies and brieds kil kY-.L3 4080
Licences and pemits 1970 2060 2162
Agency services - - 5
Teanskers and subsides 41455 4108 47 146
Dther severue z - - - - - - - i 589 aum 30428
Gans on drsposal of PFE 28 e 2%
Total Revenus {excluding capital Iransfery - - - - - - - 211 664 232 760 PILE N
and conlributions)
Euendilyre By Tyos
Employ ¢e relaied coss 2 - - - - - - - 15162 80423 86051
Remunesaten of councdion 5297 5660 6065
Oebt impament 3 96718 4463 10870
Deprecsabon & assel ynpainnent 2 - - - - - - - 9058 3 453 9936
inance charges 5755 6 (a2 9 805
Bulk purchases 2 - = S = = - - 60 834 63876 67 198
Qs maktoly 8 18 807 19551 2416
Conyacked services o o) - - - - - 9319 9785 5477
Teanslery and subsiey. - - - - - - - - - =
Other ex pentire 1.5 - - - - - - - 46 007 a7 269 49 155
Loss on crsposal of PPE - = =
Total Expenditure - - - - - - - 239911 251 740 264 778
Surplus/{Deficit) - - - - - - - 18 247} (18 979) (19 238
Transters and subiickes - cagntal (menetary
apocarans) {Habonal 1 Provincral and Distct 2192 H T 1B 978
Transiers and Subskhes - capeal (monetary
alocatans) {Natenal / Provinoial Deparmental
Agercies. Houscholds, Nonpaicht nskuscny,
Prv ale Enterpises, Pubsc Corporatons, Hgher | 6 - - - - - - - - - -
‘Fransiers and subsudies « capeal {in-kind - 2l
Surplusd{Daficet) alter capital Wansiers § - - - - - - - 14 45 25 788 (318
conlributions
Taxpson
Surptes(Daficid) after tasation - - - - - - - 14 045 25185 [F113]
Amntutable [ mancakes
Surplusl(Daficit) sitributable lo municipality - - - - - - - 14 48 25785 (318
Share of surplus! (dekeit of assoce 7
Surplus(Deficit) for the year - - - - - - - 14 045 25765 (318}

Explanatory notes to Table A4 - Budgeted Financial Performance (revenue and

expenditure)

1. Total revenue is R253, 956 million in 2017/18 and increases to R264, 457 million by
2019/20. This represents an increase of 10.8 per cent for the 2017/18 financial year and

increases by 4.13 per cent for the 2019/20 financial year.

2. Revenue to be generated from property rates is R26, 620 million in the 2017/18 financial
year and increases to R29, 265 million by 2019/20 which represents 10.48 per cent of the
operating revenue base of the Municipality and therefore remains a significant funding
source for the municipality. It remains relatively constant over the medium-term and tariff
increases have been factored in at 6 per cent across the MTREF.

3. Services charges relating to electricity, water, sanitation and refuse removal constitutes the
biggest component of the revenue basket of the Municipality totalling R117, 371million for
the 2017/18 financial year and increasing to R122, 860 million by 2018/19 and increasing
to R129, 125million by 2019/20. For the 2017/18 financial year services charges amount to
46.22 per cent of the total revenue base and grows by 2.61 per cent per annum over the
medium-term. This growth can mainly be attributed to the increase in the bulk prices of

electricity and water.




4. Transfers recognised — operating includes the local government equitable share and other
operating grants from national and provincial government. |t needs to be noted that in real
terms the grants receipts from national government increases over the 2017/18 MTREF, in
2017/18 il increases 3.68 per cent and then increases again by 69.34 per cent 2019/20.
The percentage share of this revenue source declines due to the more rapid relative

growth in service charge revenues.

5. Bulk purchases have significantly increased over the 2013/14 to 2019/20 period escalating

from R43, 536 million to R67, 198 million. These increases can be attributed to

the

substantial increase in the cost of bulk electricity from Eskom and water from the water
contracts with farmers. As well as the increase in demand for the above mentioned

commodities.

6. Employee related costs and bulk purchases are the main cost drivers within the municipality

and alternative operational gains and efficiencies will have to be identified to lessen
impact of wage and bulk tariff increases in future years.

Budgeted Capital Expenditure by vote, standard classification and funding source

the

HCO073 Emthanjeni - Table AS Budgetad Capital Eapanditure by vote, functional classification and funding
vols Description Ref| 201314 | 20145 | 200808 Current Year 201617 SRR RS
R thosasnd 1 Audiled Audited Audited Orlginal Adjusted Full Year Preraudit | Budgel Year (Budget Yaar | Budgel Yaar
QOulcome Qutcoms Ouicome Budpsl BudgH Foretasl oulcoms 20171 +1 2018119 | +2 2019120
Capital
Wuli-veps expenditurg (o be appropriated 2
|§antmLuumum 10 be spproptisted | 2
Vol 1 EXECUTIVE AND COUNCE, - - = = - - - 1428 1 489 1 561
Vota 2 » FRIANCE AND ADMINISTRATION - = = = = - - 1 460 1526 1593
veis §- COMMUNITY AND SOCIAL SERVICES - - - - - - - 120 125 131
Vol & - PUBLIC SAFETY = - - - - - - 57 £0 62
Vol 7 - SPORT AND RECREATION - - e - - - - 65 5] |
Votn B - ROAD TRANSPORT - - - - - - - 15 153 15 TH 16 354
Vois 11 - WASTE MANAGEMENT = - - = - - - r] 23 24
Vo 13 - ELECTRICITY - - - - - - - § 500 2523 1 548
Vola 14 - WATER = - - = = - - 14 0D & 88
Capital alngle-year expenditure sub-total - - - - - - - a2 2161 1 438
Tolal Capitsl Expenditurs - Vols - - - - - - - RLLLH 2160 21 438
Capitsl Expenditye + Funciional
Governance and administrahon - - - - - - - 28684 3015 1160

Exettdve and councl 1425 1489 1561

Finance angd aammne3gann 1460 1526 1599
Community and public salely - - - - - - - 242 153 265

Commundy and social services 120 125 ikt

Sport and recreaon £5 68 T

Pubke salcty 57 &) 62
Economic and environmenial services - - - - - - - 15183 15 134 16 354

Road vanspon 15153 15 74 16 354
Trading services - - - - - - - 20 642 2523 1659

Energy swwces & 500 25 1548

Waler managemend 14 G0 3] L5

Watm management 22 2] Fil

Tolal Capital Expandilura - Funclional 3 - - - - - - - 38 887 2t éN 1438
Eundsd by;

H ational Govemment 32 292 14 744 14221
Teanglers recognised - capital 4 - - - - - - - 29, 1474 142
Intarnally generaled funds 6590 6807 1217

Tolal Capilal Funding 1 - - - - - - - 33882 21631 21408




Explanatory notes to Table AS - Budgeted Capital Expenditure by vote, standard
classification and funding source

1. Table A5 is a breakdown of the capital programme in relation to capital expenditure by
municipal vote (multi-year and single-year appropriations); capital expenditure by standard
classification; and the funding sources necessary to fund the capital budget, including
information on capital transfers from national and provincial departments.

2. The MFMA provides that a municipality may approve muiti-year or single-year capital
budget appropriations. In relation to multi-year appropriations, for 2017/18 has been
allocated of the total RO capital budget.

3. Single-year capital expenditure has been appropriated at R38, 882 million for the 2017/18
financial year and remains relatively constant over the MTREF.

4. Unlike multi-year capital appropriations, single-year appropriations relate to expenditure
that will be incurred in the specific budget year such as the procurement of vehicles and
specialized tools and equipment. The budget appropriations for the two outer years are
indicative allocations based on the departmental business plans as informed by the |DP
and will be reviewed on an annual basis to assess the relevance of the expenditure in
relation to the strategic objectives and service delivery imperatives of the Municipality. For
the purpose of funding assessment of the MTREF, these appropriations have been
included but no commitments will be incurred against single-year appropriations for the two
outer-years.

5. The capital programme is funded from capital and provincial grants and transfers, internally
generated funds from current year surpluses as well as borrowings from financial
institutions. For 2017/18, capital transfers totals R32, 292 million (83.05%), increases to
R14, 744 million by 2018/19 (68.16%) and then decreases to R14, 221 million in 2019/20
(66.35%). Inlernally generated funding totaling R6, 530million, R6, 887 million and R7, 217
million for each of the respective financial years of the MTREF. The municipality does not
plan to enter into any borrowings over the 2017/18 MTREF.

These funding sources are further discussed in detail in 2.6 (Overview of Budget Funding).




Table 19 MBRR Table A6 - Budgeted Financial Position

NC073 Emthanjen! - Table A6 Budgated Financial Position | | [
Description Ref | 201314 | 2014115 | 2015018 . Current Year 201617 m7‘::;:;:::‘“"[‘:::“:;:":"' e
R thousand Audited | Audited | Audited | Original | Adjusted | Full Year | Pre-audit | Budgel Year | Budget Year | Budget Year
Quicome | Outcome | Outcoma | Budget | Budget ] Forecast | outcoma | 2017118 +1 2012119 | +2 2019720
ASSETS
Current asseis
Cash 358 351 344
Call investmenl deposils 1 - - - - - - - 9571 9093 8638
Cuonsumer deblors 1 - - - - - - - 23 509 24 214 24940
Qther deblers 11615 11 964 12 322
Currenl por$on of lang-lerm receiv ables = = -
‘v enlory 2 65 211 66 873 64 B67
Total curreni assefs - - - - - - - 111 264 112 494 111112
Non current aszets
Long ke receivables = - =
Iny astments 29 29 29
Inv estment property 5018 5018 §018
Inv estment in Associats - = =
Property . plant and equipment 3 - - - - - - - 947 605 957 181 966 853
Agncutiural - = =
Biofogical - - -
Inangible 182 386 3490
Other non-cument assels 56 59 60
Total non current assels - - - - - - - 953 130 962 673 972 350
TOTAL ASSETS - - - - - - - 1064 354 1075 167 1083 462
LIABILITIES
Currant liabilities
Bank overdraf 1 8 969 9 480 10 766
Bomowing 4 - - - - - - - = = =
Consumer deposits 243 2 592 2754
Trade and other pay ables 4 - - - - - - - 19127 19 510 19900
Provisions - 163 1592 3554
Total current liabilities - - - - - - - 4159 35174 36974
Non cutrent llabilities
forrowing - - - - - - & = = -
Provisions - - - - - - - 36 792 37 528 38275
Total non current liabllitles - - - - - - - 15792 37 528 18279
TOTAL LIABILITIES - - - - - - - 10 951 72702 75 252
NET ASSETS 5 - - - - - - - 993 403 1 002 465 1 008 209
COMMUNITY WEALTHIEQUITY
Accumulated Surplusi{Debcil) 993 401 1002 465 1008 208
Raserves 4 - - - - - = = = - o
TOTAL COMMUNITY WEALTH/EQUITY | 5 - - 992 403 1002 465 1008 209

Explanatory notes to Table A6 - Budgeted Financial Position

1. Table A6 is consistent with international standards of good financial management practice,
and improves understandability for councilors and management of the impact of the budget

on the statement of financial position (balance sheet).

2. This format of presenting the statement of financial position is aligned to GRAP1, which is
generaily aligned to the international version which presents Assets less Liabilities as
“accounting” Community Wealth. The order of items within each group illustrates items in
order of liquidity; i.e. assets readily converted to cash, or liabilities immediately required 1o

be met from cash, appear first.




3. Table 66 is supported by an extensive table of noles (SA3 which can be found on page 102)
providing a detailed analysis of the major components of a number of items, including:
« Call investments deposits;

« Consumer debtors;

+ Property, plant and equipment;

« Trade and other payables;
« Provisions non - current;
« Changes in netl assets; and

» Reserves

4. The municipal equivalent of equity is Community Wealth/Equity. The justification is that
ownership and the net assets of the municipality belong to the community.

5. Any movement on the Budgeted Financial Performance or the Capital Budget will inevitably
impact on the Budgeted Financial Position. As an example, the collection rate assumption
will impact on the cash position of the municipality and subsequently inform the level of
cash and cash equivalents at year end. Similarly, the collection rate assumption should
inform the budget appropriation for debt impairment which in turn would impact on the
provision for bad debt. These budget and planning assumptions form a critical link in
determining the applicability and relevance of the budget as well as the determination of
ratios and financial indicators. In addition the funding compliance assessment is informed
directly by forecasting the statement of financial position.

Table 20 MBRR Table A7 - Budgeted Cash Flow Statement

NC073 Emthanjeni - Table A7 Budgeted Cash Flows

2017118 Medium Term Revenue B

Description fel| 2013114 | 2014715 | 2015116 Current Year 201817
Expanditure Framework
R thousand Audited | Audited | Audiled [Original] Adjustied | Full Year | Pre-audit| Budget Year | Budget Year | Budgei Year
Quts O [ Budpet | Budget | Foracast | oulcome| 2017418 +1 2018119 | +2 201920

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Recelpts

Propary rales 23 799 24 003 24875
Sarvice charges 111 621 116 842 122 800
Othar rav enue 32 31 11 B4 35616
Government - operabng t 41455 44 109 47 146
Gavernment - ¢amlal t 32 292 14 744 18978
Interast 1723 1802 1 894
D dends = = =
Payments

Supplers and employ ees

{199 105) (219 882) {200 794)

Finance charges 15 T55) (6 042) (9 B05)

Transfars and Grants 1 5 5 5
KET CASH FROM/{USED) OPERATING ACTIVITIES - - - - - - - 28 M1 19 459 40 711
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVIMES
Racalpta

Proceeds on duposal of PPE 268 278 30

Decrease {increasa) in non-current dabiors

Decrease (ncreasa) otier nOM-Curent secew ables

Docrease (increass) in nan-curtent invasiments

Payments

Caplal assel

{18 882} {40 826) (42 B6T}

HET CASH FROM/(USED) INVESTING ACTIVITIES

{38 614) {40 548) {42 54T}

LASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Receipts
Shor fetm loans - - 5
Botraw ing long termireknancing 95 92 89
Increase {decraasa) in consumar deposity - - -
Paymenis
Repay manl of bomow ng - - -
MNET CASH FROM/|USED) FINANCING ACTIVITIES - - - - - - - 35 92 49
NET INCREASE! {(DECREASE] IN CASH HELD - - - - - - - {1179 (397) {1 747)
Cash/cash equivalents ot he year begn: 2 1119 560 {17}
Cashicash equivalents at he year end; 2 - - - - - - - 960 (kL] {1 784)




Explanatory notes to Table A7 - Budgeted Cash Flow Statement

1

. The budgeted cash flow statement is the first measurement in determining if the budget is
funded.

It shows the expected level of cash in-flow versus cash out-flow that is likely to result from
the implementation of the budget.

. It can be seen that the cash levels of the Municipality increased slightly over the 2017/18
MTREF.

. The 2013/14 year provide for a netl decrease in cash of R10,640 million for the 2013/14
financial year resulting in an overall cash position of R233 thousand at year end.

. In 2017/18 the Municipality will undertake an extensive debt collection drive resulting in
cash receipts on arrear debtors, these interventions translated into a net cash position.

. The 2017/18 has been informed by the planning principle of ensuring adequate cash
reserves over the medium-term and after the adjusiment budget process it became clear
that huge amount of funds would become necessary in the next financial year to acquire
new fleet which would curb raising costs of repairs and maintenance,

In the 2017/18 MTREF the municipality will enter into a lease contract in order to finance a
fleet of infrastructure vehicles, expected cash and cash equivalents totals R0.960 million
as at the end of the 2017/18 financial year and escalates to —R1.784 million by 2019/20.

Table 21 MBRR Table A8 - Cash Backed Reserves/Accumulated Surpius Reconciliation

NCOT3 Emthanijeni - Table AB Cash backed reserves/accumulated sumplus reconciliation

I01T11E Medium Term Revenue &
Description Relj 201314 201415 201316 Current Year 201617
Expenditure Framework
Rihausand Audited Audited | Awdited | Original | Adjusted | Full Year | Preaudit | Budget Year | Budget Year | Budget Year
Quicome ; Outcome | Oulcome | Budget Budget | Forecast | outcome | 20118 | + 2008119 | +2201%/20

Cash and Investments available

Cashicash equivalents at he year end 1 - - - - - - - %0 an {1784)

Oer cumentinvesimens > 90 days - - - - - - - 0 bl 0

Non ciment asse’s - Ivesimens 1 - - - - e pi] i
Cash and investments available: - - - - - - - %9 L {1755)
Application of cash and Invesiments

Unspent condional ransiers - - - - - - - - -

Unspent borowing - - - - - - - - -

Stabiory requiramenss 2

Other working capital requrements 3 - - - - - - - asmml et nene

Ohet provisions

Long fem mvestment commited ] - - - - - - - -

Reserves o be backed by cashfinvesmens
Total Application of cash and investmenls: - - - - - - - (13140 |14 184) 1147
Surplus(shortfall) - - - - - - - 15 14176 129




Explanatory notes to Table A8 - Cash Backed Reserves/Accumulated Surplus
Reconciliation

1. The cash backed reserves/accumutated surplus reconciliation is aligned to the requirements
of MFMA Circular 42 — Funding a Municipal Budget.

2. In essence the table evaluates the funding levels of the budget by firstly forecasting the
cash and investments at year end and secondly reconciling the available funding to the
liabilities/commitments that exist.

3. The outcome of this exercise would either be a surplus or deficit. A deficit would indicate
that the applications exceed the cash and investments available and would be indicative of
non-compliance with the MFMA requirements that the municipality's budget must be
“funded”.

4. Non-compliance with section 18 of the MFMA is assumed because a shortfall would
indirectly indicate that the annual budget is not appropriately funded,

5. Considering the requirements of section 18 of the MFMA, it can be concluded that the
adopted 2016/17 MTREF was funded owing to the surplus.

6. As part of the budgeting and planning guidelines that informed the compilation of the
2017/18 MTREF the end objective of the medium-term framework was to ensure the
budget is funded aligned to section 18 of the MFMA.




Table 22 MBRR Table A9 - Asset Management

NCOT] Ermhanisnl - Table AD Anset Manapement
Heacriphon Het | 2013014 a1418 1013118 Currant Yeer 2018it7 “"""::' CTTLCTIL LTI
# thousand Audited Auditest Aud Originsl Adjusted Full Yesr |Budget Yesr
Ourceme ] Dutcoma Huag Hudpet Parscant 43 3018/20
CAFITAL BapanbituRe
1 - - - - - - 18744 14 34
Howdd inlinstr iure - - - - - - = 12 744 13 220
Aot watne Infrastictin H - = = = = 17 7uz = — |
4 ncTecal infrastasclure - - - - - - A 0% 2 bos F uan
Water Supply intrestarcivm - - - - - - 14 003 - -
- - - = - - 371 393 i4 k3F
2 - —~ - - - n u 9o T 5y
s tnlasrie s - - - - - - 2 mis 1080
F I AF IRTres b fuse - = - - - = =0 si1 nan
Watws Supply Infrmstn turm - - - - - = an md nn
Lond Watta Infvmutoyef v - - - - - - i o 24
Enteantrychure = - - - - - 3 407 3358
Communry Faciipas - ~ - - - - 130 174
Snart and Recinason | acw - ~ - - - = ) o
Communtty A - - - - - - [FT] rar
= = - ~ - - 120 And
= B = = - - aze 134
Laancas and dghm = = = = = -~ L LR
Inisnginie Assats - = - - - = 90 rer
Camputer Equipment - = - - - = 18I0 t 77y
ind Omes - - - - - - (1) 181
Maghinety and Bauipmani - - - - - - 140 177
tasLigaradina of Exsung Assls . - - = = = = B 483 (A1)
Hpans Infzeinciurs - = - - - = [T 2 s
{ imcircal inirastruchire - - - - - - #a0 [ ARl
Warer Supory infrastmtum - - - - = - 111 1754 (LD
Setnianon (ntmarnichune - - - - - - i34 1hi nzr
Sk waare ind = - ~ ~ - - 290 303 im
- = - = = - 4720 408
Commumly Fatdilas - - = = = . 1 /3 3 fon 1 781
Commuynily Avvets - - - - - - Ay ¥ a8 [RIT]
HNon.tay snve Gensreing = = - - - - 26 )
investm ent properts - - - - - = aw o
Cparavonal Dutksings - - - - = & 381
. = - = - - - aar
Squinmen - - - - - - (17
i Othice Eguipment - - - - - - T
I anepatt Assels - - - - - = PR
EEPITIE-PYIT Py .
Huadd ivbimatnture - - - - - = 4 U8z V7 i [CETY]
Srprm wates toliasincriure = = = - - - 11 292 - — ]
{imetc 4s infray tructure, - - - - - - FRET
. 1oply Inirestructum - - - - - - 15 289
Sanvar=m infresrucrive - - = - = - 1.4
Lot Watre rnfrasinciue - - - = = = 112
infrastructur, ~ - - - - - 49 a30
Communny Fe - - - - - = ' rar
Zpal and Hectaston Faciles - - - - - - 23
Cammunity Adeels - - - = - - t ez
Hie revefue Generatng - - - - - - 2
Invesiman! propert - - - - - = 20
Qpstatonal Budamps - - - - - - nat
Othet Avsers - - - - - - .7
Lizarces and Haghts - - - - - - HHE fui 148
Intanginie Asseis - - - - - - 748
Computer Bauipment - = = - - - o1
Fufnitute snd OMce Gauipman) - - - - - - 1T 307
Machinery and Squipment - = - - - - 17 164
Tianspor Anasts - - - - - - FXI 2171 I 31
JOIAL CAPITAL EAPLHDIIURE - Assat class - - - - - - AT 838 31 otd 51 374
ASSUT REGIBIER SUMMARY - PRI IwDV} A
Hosan nltmitit fure EETETT 348 BET R 943
dsmctncal intranthe ture b4 827 a2 810 A5 9h0
Woatat Supply infrastntyre 119 769 128 18 132 048
Santalon (alrstrucive 118 471 118 pan 4@ 140
Seind ¥rmete inlrnsiruciore 4 DAn 4 392 asar
- - - - - - air 77 a3 B ssm 15
Communiry T aznives 218 04w 319 C4p 218 048
Cammunity As - - - - - - 119 9. It g4y 21084
Her [} & 989
raponal Buldings 5 01 Anta
Oiher Avsats - - - - - - 1418 3014
| Compuler Baulpment 10 303 T3 018
TOTAL ANSET REGIBTEH SUMMARY - A - - - - - - 9331 pos #F7 281
LK PENDITURE OtHER iTEME
| AL AS L DAL AN DL AMELEINL H = = = = = = LT
ST Infrasfreiogn - - - = - = wan M3
Ltsen woler Injtagiin ture - - 2 r S = v 140
Limi Troc i Intrmatrtec st - = - = E - R 1 mot
Supahy Infeastnicive - - - - - -
Gommuniy ¢ ncdibas = = = -
Liort amil Hacreason © acdiles - - = 5 B = an
Communiry Avssts = - ~ - - - Za4r8
Finetabaial Duddings - - - - - - 2 200
Dihst Aneats = - = - - - 2200
L miicen ami Humis - - = - - 1 mht
iniangibls A - - - - - - 1933
Compuiss Bauipmant ~ - - - - - T80
Fysniturs and OMice Equipment - - - - - - 1084
Machinery and Bqulpment - - - - - - 1401
Transpori Asssts - - - - - - & 384
TOTAL €A PEMDITURE OTHEH 1fRMS - - - - - = 0 418




Explanatory notes to Table A9 - Asset Management

1. Table A9 provides an overview of municipal capital allocations to building new assets and
the renewal of existing assets, as well as spending on repairs and maintenance by asset
class.

2. The following graph provides an analysis between depreciation and operational repairs and
maintenance over the MTREF. It highlights the municipality's strategy to address the
maintenance backlog.

Tahle 23 MBRR Table A10 - Basic Service Delivery Measurement

NC073 Emthan|eni - Tabla A10 Basic service defivery maasuremani
wnasd | amans | 20518 | Current Year 201807 UL T LI
LLLCLL Ll Original] Adjusted | Full Year | Budgat 5%
Cutcome | Qutcoms | Outcome
Budget | Budyet | Forecast| 2017118 +1 201819 | +2 201320
hol iy T i
|niars
Piped wair insids dwalling B 284 H738 9135| 11114 11114 11114 11 4B0 1t 554 1640
Piped waler intide y atd (bul not i dw elng) - 450 473 €95 695 695 136 41 763
Using pubkic bap (al least min servica level} 2 21 an 455 465 465 165 152 4 430
Ofer water supply {al leas! min sarvica level) 4 - 450 473 Mt 3t m fkx ] 320 30
Minmmum Sorvice Lavel and Above sub-iolal 8309| 10103] 10614 | 12615 12 615 12 615 1300 13t 13143
Totsl number of househalds 5 8308| 10t0%]| 10614| 12615 12615} 12615 11001 11101 13143
Sunitation/sewerdoe;
Flush el (connecied I sew eragal 6 838 7 288 7652 BB47 BBd7 B 47 37 9 507 9 560
Flush toslet (w ith seric ank) 1177 1627 17030 2252 2252 2282 2 365 242% 2430
Chemica olsl 1] 633 72! 708 708 105 £631 636 £25
P toile] {v entlaied) - 450 LIkl 458 458 458 41 406 402
Minimum Service Lavel and Abave sub-fotal Bz58| 10058| 10561 | 12282 12 262 12 262 12836 12974 13 097
Buckel et 63 511 53% 353 353 353 3 28 19
Other toet privw isions i< min service level; - 450 9115 - - - - - -
Mo oilel provisions - - 9115 - - - - - -
AREF} 63 3| 18888 3531 351 353 i 28 19
Total number of households 1] 3311 1021 29349 12615| 12615 12615 13 167 11302 11418
{Eagay
Elecicty {at lsasi mn.sesvice level) Jaa 3768 3957 3338 33838 383 3950 1008 4250
Elecncity - prepaid {mmn 3ervice lavel) 1933 542 5715 8115 ang 3115 8 206 8230 4350
Wimum Service Leved and Above sub-lotal FEL 9211 9671 | 11953 11951 11953 1219 12 295 12640
Elsc¥icity (< min yervice level) i1 461 484 169 369 1469 435 419 400
Elecicdy - prepaid (< min. service lovel) - 450 473 193 193 193 189 175 162
¥REF! 1 an 956 662 662 662 24 S 562
Total numbet of households 5 i 10121 t062F| w2815] 11845] 12815 12 820 12 889 11 202
Refusy;
Removed at least once a week &3 10121 06zr| 12615 12615 12615 13624 13 909 14210
Eirwtturn Servica Leved and Above sub-lofal 81 10121 10627 | 12615 12615 1261% 13624 13 509 14210
Total number of households 5 121 10 0827 | 12615] 12815| 12615 13 62¢ 13 909 14 210
Hi lgvel srvlce pr hali
Propery rales (R vaius hreshuid) 15000 15000 15000
Walet (hilolres per household per monh) § ] ]
Sanvtabion ¢hiolires per househokd per month) - - -
Sanutabon {Rand per household per mont) 183 194 208
Elscinery (kwh per household per month) 50 50 50
Rehise lav arage Lies por week) 78 78 7
Property tates exempions. reducions and rebaies and impermiasable values
in sacess of section 17 of MPRA) - - - - - - 2tm 22081 23208
Tolal cast of subsidised sarvices provided - - - - - - nin 22061 23 208




Part 2 — Supporting Documentation

2.1 Overview of the annual budget process

Section 53 of the MFMA requires the Mayor of the municipality to provide general political
guidance in the budget process and the seiting of priorities that must guide the preparation of
the budget. In addition Chapter 2 of the Municipal Budget and Reporting Regulations states
that the Mayor of the municipality must establish a Budget Steering Committee to provide
technical assistance to the Mayor in discharging the responsibilities set out in seclion 53 of the
Act.

The Budget Steering Committee consists of the Municipal Manager and senior officials of the
municipality meeting under the chairpersonship of the Mayor, who is also the chairperson of
the Finance Committee.

The primary aims of the Budget Steering Committee are to ensure:

» that the process followed to compile the budget complies with legislation and good
budget practices;

» that there is proper alignment between the policy and service delivery priorities set out in
the Municipality's IDP and the budget, taking into account the need to protect the
financial sustainability of municipality;

« that the municipality's revenue and tariff setting strategies ensure that the cash resources
needed to deliver services are available; and

e that the various spending priorities of the different municipal departments are properly
evaluated and prioritised in the allocation of resources.

i. Budget Process Overview

In terms of section 21 of the MFMA the Mayor is required to table in Council ten months before
the start of the new financial year (i.e. in August 2016) a time schedule that sets out the
process to revise the IDP and prepare the budgel.

The Mayor tabled in Council the required the IDP and budget time schedule in September
2016. Key dates applicable to the process were:

» August 2016 - Strategic planning session of all the Councillors and
Management. Aim: to review past performance trends of the capital and
operating budgets, the economic realities and to set the prioritisation criteria for
the compilation of the 2017/18 MTREF;

. November 2016 — Detaii departmental budget proposals {capital and operating)
submitted to the Budget and Treasury Office for consolidation and assessment
against the financial planning guidelines;

. January 2017 - Review of the financial strategy and key economic and financial
planning assumptions by the Budget Steering Committee. This included financial
forecasting and scenario considerations;

. 25 January 2017 - Council considers the 2017/18 Mid-year Review and
Adjustments Budget;

. January 2017 — Mulii-year budget proposals are submitted to the Executive
Committee for endorsement;
. February 2017 - Recommendations of the Executive Committee are

communicated to the Budget Steering Committee, and on to the respective
departments. The draft 2016/17 MTREF is revised accordingly;




31 March 2017 - Tabling in Council of the draft 2017/18 IDP and 2017/18
MTREF for public consultation;

. April 2017 - Public consultation;
. 25 April 2017 - Closing date for written commenis;
) 6 to 21 May 2017 — Draftisation of the 2017/18 IDP and 2017/18 MTREF, taking

into consideration comments received from the public, comments from National
Treasury, and updated information from the most recent Division of Revenue Bill
and financial framework; and

° 31 May 2017 - Tabling of the 2017/18 MTREF before Council for consideration
And approval.

There were deviations from the key dates set out in the Budget Time Schedule tabled in
Council due to commiiments that arose con the planned activities.

ii. IDP and Service Delivery and Budget Implementation Plan

The Draft IDP as tabled Council on 30 March 2017. It started in September 2016 after the
tabling of the IDP Process Plan and the Budget Time Schedule for the 2017/18 MTREF in
August.

The Municipality's IDP is its principal strategic planning instrument, which directly guides and
informs its planning, budget, management and development actions. This framework is rolled
out into objectives, key performance indicators and targets for implementation which directly
inform the Service Delivery and Budget Implementation Plan. The Process Plan applicable to
the revision cycle included the following key IDP processes and deliverables:

. Registration of community needs,

Compilation of departmental business plans including key performance indicators and
targets;

Financial planning and budgeting process;

Public participation process;

Compilation of the SDBIP, and

The review of the performance management and monitoring processes.

The IDP has been taken into a business and financial planning process leading up to the
2017/18 MTREF, based on the approved 2017/18 MTREF, Mid-year Review and adjustments
budget. The business planning process has subsequently been refined in the light of current
economic circumstances and the resulting revenue projections.

With the compilation of the 2017/18 MTREF, each department/function had to review the
business planning process, including the setting of priorities and targets after reviewing the
mid-year and third quarter performance against the 2017/18 Departmental Service Delivery
and Budget Implementation Plan. Business planning links back to priority needs and master
planning, and essentially informed the detail operating budget appropriations and three-year
capital programme.

iii. Financial Modelling and Key Planning Drivers

As part of the compilation of the 2017/18 MTREF, extensive financial modelling was
undertaken to ensure affordability and long-term financial sustainability. The following key
factors and planning strategies have informed the compilation of the 2017/18 MTREF:

Municipality's growth potential

Policy pricrities and strategic objectives

Asset maintenance

Economic climate and trends (i.e. inflation, Eskom increases, household debt,
migration patterns)

" & & @




. Performance trends The approved 2016/17 adjustments budget and performance
against the SDBIP

Cash Flow Management Strategy

Debtor payment levels

Lean and investment possibilities

The need for tariff increases versus the ability of the community to pay for

services;
. Improved and sustainable service delivery
. Solar Energy project potentials

In addition to the above, the strategic guidance given in National Treasury’'s MFMA Circulars
51 and 54 has been taken into consideration in the planning and prioritisation process.

iv. Community Consultation

The Draft Budget 2017/18 MTREF as tabled before Council on 31 March 2017 for community
consultation was published on the municipaiity's website, and hard copies were made available
at customer care offices, municipal notice boards and various libraries.

Council held Budget Input meetings at venues in all wards of Emthanjeni municipality. Knock
and drops were distributed at Il households to inform the communities about the meetings.
Advertisements of the notifications were sent to all organisations on the municipality's
database, including ratepayer associations, community-based organisations and organised
business.

Ward Committees were utilised to facilitate the community consultation process from 01 to 15
March 2017, and included eight public briefing sessions with communities, and other
stakeholders. The applicable dates and venues were published in all the local newspapers
and were attended by the members of the community. This can be attributed to the additional
initiatives that were launched during the consultation process, including the specific targeting of
ratepayer associations. Individual sessions were scheduled with organised business and
imbizo’s were held to further ensure transparency and interaction. Other stakeholders involved
in the consultation included churches, non-governmental institutions and community-based
organisations.

Submissions received during the community consultation process and additional information
regarding revenue and expenditure and individual capital projects were addressed, and where
relevant considered as part of the Draflisation of the 2017/18 MTREF. Feedback and
responses to the submissions received are available on request. The following are some of
the issues and concerns raised as well as comments received during the consultation process:

Significant changes effected in the Draft 2017/18 MTREF compared to the draft 2016/17
MTREF that was tablted for community consultation, include:

* The Draft Eskom bulk tariff increase, applicable to municipalities from 1 July 2017, was
factored into the proposed consumer tariffs, applicable from 1 July 2017. This resulted
in an increase of 8 per cent;

« The SALGBC parties’ settlement regarding the salary negotiations have been Draftised
for in the 2017/18 financial year;

» The 2017 Division of Revenue Act {DORA) grant allocations were Draftized and aligned
io the gazetted allocations; and

» Funding was allocated to address metering discrepancies and unmetered premises.




2.2 Overview of alignment of annual budget with IDP

The Constitution mandates local government with the responsibility to exercise local
developmental and cooperative governance. The eradication of imbalances in Souih African
society can only be realized through a credible integrated developmental planning process.

Municipalities in South Africa need to utilise integrated development planning as a method to
plan future development in their areas and so find the best solutions to achieve sound long-
term development goals. A municipal IDP provides a five year strategic programme of action
aimed at setting short, medium and long term strategic and budget priorilies to create a
development platform, which correlates with the term of office of the political incumbents. The
plan aligns the resources and the capacity of a municipality to its overall development aims
and guides the municipal budget. An IDP is therefore a key instrument which municipaiities
use to provide vision, leadership and direction to all those that have a role to play in the
development of a municipal area. The IDP enables municipalities to make the best use of
scarce resources and speed up service delivery.

Integrated developmental planning in the South African context is amongst others, an
approach to planning aimed at involving the municipality and the community to jointly find the
best solutions towards sustainable development. Furthermore, integrated development
planning provides a strategic environment for managing and guiding all planning, development
and decision making in the municipality.

It is important that the IDP developed by municipalities correlate with National and Provincial
intert. It must aim to co-ordinate the work of local and other spheres of government in a
coherent plan to improve the quality of life for all the people living in that area. Applied to the
Municipality, issues of national and provincial importance should be reflected in the IDP of the
municipality. A clear understanding of such intent is therefore imperative to ensure that the
Municipality strategically complies with the key national and provincial priorities.

The aim of this revision cycle was to develop and coordinate a coherent plan to improve the
quality of life for all the people living in the area, also reflecting issues of national and provincial
importance. One of the key objectives is therefore to ensure that there exists alignment
between national and provincial priorities, policies and sirategies and the Municipality's
response to these requirements.

The national and provingial priorities, policies and strategies of importance include amongst
others:

Green Paper on National Strategic Planning of 2009;

Government Programme of Action;

Development Facilitation Act of 1995;

Provincial Growth and Development Strategy (GGDS);

National and Provincial spatial development perspectives;
Relevant sector plans such as transportation, legislation and policy;
National Key Performance Indicators {(NKPIs);

Accelerated and Shared Growth Initiative (ASGISA);

National 2014 Vision;

National Spatial Development Perspective (NSDP) and

The National Priority Outcomes.

The Constitution requires local government to relate its management, budgeling and planning
functions to its objectives. This gives a clear indication of the intended purposes of municipal
integrated development planning. Legislation stipulates clearly that a municipality must not
oniy give effect to its IDP, but must also conduct its affairs in a manner which is consistent with
iis IDP, The following table highlights the IDP's five strategic objectives for the 2016/17
MTREF and further planning refinements that have directly informed the compilation of the
budget.




Table 24 IDP Strategic Objectives

2016/17 Financial Year 2017/18 MTREF

Ensure that all residenls have access to | Provision of access to all basic services
sustainable free basic services and all other | rendered to residents within the available
services rendered resources.

Development and transformation of the | Development and transformation of the
institution with the aim of capacitating the | institution with the aim of capacitating the

municipality in meeting the municipality in meeting their objectives.,

Objectives

Promote sustainable and representative | Promote the equitable crealion and

governance through the efficient, effective distribution of wealth in Emthanjeni Municipal
area.

Promote sustainable and representative | Promote representative governance through
governance through the efficient, effective and | the sustainable utilization of available
sustainable  utilization of resources in | resources in consultation with the residents

consultation with the residents of Emthanjeni | of EMthanieni Municipality.

Municipality.

Create an effective, efficient, sustainable and | Maintaining a financially sustainable and
viable municipality through financial | viable Municipality.
management

Contribute to the creation of communities where | Contribute to the development and protection
residents and visitors can work, live and play of the rights and needs of all residents with a
without threat to themselves or their properties. | Particular focus on the poor.

Contribute to the development of caring Contribute to the creation of communities
communities which promote and protect the right | where

and needs of all citizens, with a particular focus | residents and visitors can work, live and play
on the poor. without threat to themselves or their

properties.

Ensure a healthy environment for all residents of
Ernthanjeni through effective environmental
management.

In order to ensure integrated and focused service delivery between all spheres of government
it was important for the Municipality to align its budget priorities with that of national and
provincial government. All spheres of government place a high priority on infrastructure
development, economic development and job creation, efficient service delivery, poverty
alleviation and building sound institutional arrangements.

Local priorities were identified as part of the IDP review process which is directly aligned to that
of the national and provincial priorities. The key performance areas can be summarised as
follows against the five sirategic objectives:




1. Provision of quality basic services and infrastruclure which includes, amongst others:
o Provide electricity;

Provide water;

Provide sanitation;

Provide waste removal,

0 00

Provide housing;

Provide roads and storm water;

Provide public transport;

Provide Municipality planning services; and
Maintaining the infrastructure of the Municipality.

00000

2. Economic growth and development that leads to sustainable job creation by:
o Ensuring the is a clear structural plan for the Municipality;
o Ensuring planning processes function in accordance with set timeframes;
¢ Facilitating the use of labour intensive approaches in the delivery of services
and the building of infrastructure.

3.1 Fight povertly and huild clean, healthy, safe and suslainable communities:

o Effective implementation of the Indigent Policy;

o Working with the provincial department of health o provide primary health care
services;
Extending waste removal services and ensuring effective Municipality cfeansing;
Ensuring all waste water treatment works are operating optimally;
Working with strategic partners such as SAPS to address crime;
Ensuring save working environments by effective enforcement of building and
health regulations;
Promote viable, sustainable communities through proper zoning; and
Promote environmental sustainability by protecting wetlands and key open
spaces.

000
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3.2 Integrated Social Services for empowered and sustainable communities
o Work with provincial departments to ensure the development of community
infrastructure such as schools and clinics is properly co-ordinated with the
informal settlements upgrade programme

4. Foster parlicipatory democracy and Batho Pele principles through a caring, accessible
and accountable service by:
o Optimising effective community participation in the ward committee system; and
o Implementing Batho Pele in the revenue management strategy.

5.1 Promote sound governance through:
o Publishing the outcomes of all tender processes on the municipal website

5.2 Ensure financial sustainability through:
o Reviewing the use of contracied services
o Continuing to implement the infrastructure renewal strategy and the repairs and
maintenance plan

5.3 Optimal institutional transformation to ensure capacity to achieve set objectives
o Review of the organizational structure to optimize the use of personnel;

In line with the MSA, the IDP constitules a single, inclusive strategic plan for the Municipality.
The five-year programme responds to the development challenges and opporiunities faced by
the Municipality by identifying the key performance areas to achieve the five the strategic
objeclives mentioned above.




In addition to the five-year IDP, the Municipality undertakes an extensive planning and
developmental strategy which primarily focuses on a longer-term horizon; 15 to 20 years. This
process is aimed at influencing the development path by proposing a substantial programme of
public-led investment to restructure current patterns of settlement, activity and access to
resources in the Municipality so as to promote greater equity and enhanced opporlunity. The
strategy specifically targets future developmental opportunities in traditional dormitory
settlements. It provides direction to the Municipality's IDP, associated sectoral plans and
strategies, and the allocation of resources of the Municipality and other service delivery
partners.

This development strategy introduces important policy shifts which have further been
translated into seven strategic focus areas/objectives as outlined below:

Developing dormant areas;

Enforcing hard development lines — so as 1o direct private investment;
Maintaining existing urban areas;

Strengthening key economic clusters;

Building social cohesion;

Strong developmental initiatives in relation to the municipal institution as a whole;
and

. Sound financial fundamentals.

Lessons learned with previous IDP revision and planning cycles as well as changing
environments were taken into consideration in the compilation of the fourth revised IDP,
including:

. Strengthening the analysis and strategic planning processes of the Municipality;

. Initiating zonal planning processes thatl involve the communities in the analysis and
planning processes. More emphasis was placed on area based interventions, within
the overall holistic framework;

. Ensuring better coordination through a programmatic approach and attempting to focus
the budgeting process through planning interventions; and
. Strengthening performance management and monitoring systems in ensuring the

ahjectives and deliverables are achieved.

The 2017/18 MTREF has therefore been directly informed by the IDP revision process and the
following tables provide a reconciliation between the IDP strategic objectives and operating
revenue, operating expenditure and capital expenditure.




Table 25 MBRR Table SA4 - Reconciliation between the IDP strategic objectives and budgeted

revenue
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Table 26 MBRR Table SA5 - Reconciliation between the IDP strategic objectives and
budgeted aperating expenditure
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Table 28 MBRR Table SA6 - NC073 Emthanjeni - Supporting Table SA6 Reconciliation of

IDP strategic objectives and budget (capital expenditure)
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Supporting Table SA7 Measureable performance objectives
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2.3 Measurable performance objectives and indicators

Performance Management is a system intended to manage and monitor service delivery
progress against the identified strategic objectives and priorities. In accordance with legislative
requirements and good business practices as informed by the National Framework for
Managing Programme Performance Information, the Municipality has developed and
implemented a perfermance management system of which system is constantly refined as the
integrated planning process unfolds. The Municipality targets, monitors, assess and reviews
organisational performance which in turn is directly linked to individual employee's
performance.




At any given time within government, information from multiple years is being considered;
plans and budgets for next year; implementation for the current year; and reporting on last
year's performance. Although performance informalion is reported publicly during the last
stage, the performance information process begins when policies are being developed, and
continues through each of the planning, budgeting, implementation and reporting stages. The
planning, budgeting and reporting cycle can be graphically illustrated as follows:
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Figure 2 Planning, budgeting and reporting cycle

The performance of the Municipality relates directly to the extent fo which it has achieved
success in realising its goals and objectives, complied with legislative requirements and
meeting stakeholder expectations. The Municipality therefore has adopted one integrated
performance management system which encompasses:

Planning (setting goals, objectives, targets and benchmarks);

Monitoring (regular monitoring and checking on the progress against plan);
Measurement (indicators of success);

Review (identifying areas requiring change and improvement};

Reporting (what information, to whom, from whom, how often and for what Purpose);
and

. Improvement (making changes where necessary).

The performance information concepts used by the Municipality in its integrated pedformance
management system are aligned to the Framework of Managing Programme Performance
Information issued by the National Treasury:
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Figure 3 Definition of performance information concepts

The following table provides the main measurable performance objectives the municipality
undertakes to achieve this financial year.




The following table sets out the municipalities main performance objectives and
benchmarks for the 2017/18 MTREF.
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2.4 Performance indicators and benchmarks

2.4.1 Borrowing Management
Capital expenditure in local government can be funded by capital grants, own-source revenue
and long term borrowing. The ability of a municipality to raise long term borrowing is largely
As with all other municipalities,
Emthanjeni's borrowing strategy is primarily informed by the affordability of debt repayments.
The structure of the Municipality's debt portfolio is dominated by annuity loans. The following
financial performance indicators have formed part of the compilation of the 2017/18 MTREF:

dependent on its creditworthiness and financial position.




Borrowing to asset ratio is a measure of the long-term borrowing as a percentage of the
iotal asset base of the municipality. While this ratic is decreasing over the MTREF from
2.65 per cent to 0 per cent in 2019/20, it needs to that this decrease is due to the fact
that the municipality will pay off all loans over the MTREF.

Capital charges to operating expenditure are a measure of the cost of borrowing in
relation to the operating expenditure. It can be seen that the cost of borrowing has
fluctuated from 1.38 per cent in 2017/18, 0 per cent in 2018/19 and 0 per cent in
2019/20. This decrease can be attributed to the paying off of loans by the municipality.

In summary, various financial risks could have a negative impact on the future borrowing
capacity of the municipality. In particular, the continued ability of the Municipality to meet ils
revenue targets and ensure its forecasted cash flow targets are achieved will be critical in
meeting the repayments of the debt service costs. As part of the compilation of the 2017/18
MTREF the potential of smoothing out the debt profile over the longer term will be investigated.

2.4.2 Safety of Capital

The debi-to-equity ratio is a financial ratio indicating the relative proportion of equity
and debt used in financing the municipality's assets. The indicator is based on the total
of loans, creditors, overdraft and tax provisions as a percentage of funds and reserves.
During the 2017/18 financial year the ratio deteriorated to a level 0.1 per cent.

The gearing ratio is a measure of the total long term borrowings over funds and
reserves. Between 2013/14 and 20158/20 the gearing ratio peaked at 0 per cent. This
was primarily a result of the having no long term borrowing.

2.4.3Liquidity

Current ratio is a measure of the current assels divided by the current liabilities and as
a benchmark the Municipality has set a limit of 1, hence at no point in time should this
ratio be less than 1. For the 2017/18 MTREF the current ratio is 3.3 in the 2017/18
financial year. Going forward it will be necessary to maintain these levels.

The liquidity ratio is a measure of the ability of the municipality to utilize cash and cash
equivalents to extinguish or retire ils current liabilities immediately. Ideally the
municipality should have the cash and cash equivalents on hand to meet at least the
current liabilities, which should translate into a liquidity ratio of 1. Anything beiow 1
indicates a shortage in cash to meet creditor obligations. For the 2017/18 financial year
the ratio was 0.3 and as part of the financial planning stralegy it has been remaining
constant at 0.3 in the 2018/18 financial year. This is expected to reach optimal level by
2019/20. This needs to be considered a pertinent risk for the municipality as any under
collection of revenue will translate into serious financial challenges for the Municipality.
As part of the longer term financial planning objectives this ratio will have to be set at a
minimum of 1.

2.4.4Revenue Management

As part of the financial sustainability strategy, an aggressive revenue management
framework has been implemented to increase cash inflow, not only from current billings
but also from debtors that are in arrears in excess of 90 days. The intention of the
strategy is to streamline the revenue value chain by ensuring accurate billing, customer
service, and credit conirol and debt collection. A Debt Collection firm has been
appointed to recover arrear monies from consumers.




2.4.5Creditors Management

. The Municipality has managed lo ensure that creditors are settled within the legislated
30 days of invoice. While the liquidity ratio is of concern, by applying daily cash flow
management the municipality has managed to ensure a 100 per cent compliance rate
to this legislative obligation. This has had a favourable impact on suppliers’ perceptions
of risk of doing business with the Municipality, which is expecled to benefit the
Municipality in the form of more competitive pricing of tenders, as suppliers compete for
the Municipality's business.

2.4.6Other Indicators

. The electricity distribution losses has decreased from 13.1 per cent in the 2013/14
financial year to 10.5 per cent in 2019/20. The initiatives to ensure these targets are
achieved include managing iilegal connections and theft of electricity by rolling out
smart metering systems, including prepaid meters, and the hiring of a meter readers
that prevent increasing illegal connections.

. The water distribution losses have been significantly reduced from 16.7 per cent in
2013/14 to 14.5 per cent in 2019/20. This has been achieved with the introduction of a
water leakage report and action centre. Various awareness programmes are unfolding
to reduce these losses and also to repair these leakages.

. Employee costs as a percentage of operating revenue decreases over lhe MTREF,
This is primarily owing to the high increase in bulk purchases which directly increase
revenue levels, as well as increased allocation relating to operating grants and
transfers.

C Similar to that of employee costs, repairs and maintenance as percentage of operating
revenue is also decreasing owing directly to cost drivers such as bulk purchases
increasing far above inflation. In real terms, repairs and maintenance has increased as
part of the Municipality’s strategy to ensure the management of its asset base.

2.5 Free Basic Services: basic social services package for indigent households

The social package assists residents that have difficulty paying for services and are registered
as indigent households in terms of the Indigent Policy of the Municipality. With the exception
of water, only registered indigents qualify for the free basic services.

For the 2016/17 financial year 3 451 registered indigents have been provided for in the budget
with this figured increasing to almost 4 000 by 2017/18. In terms of the Municipality's indigent
policy registered households are entitled to 8k{ free water, 50 kwh of electricity, sanitation and
free waste removal once a week, as well as a discount on their property rates.

Further detail relating to the number of households receiving free basic services, the cost of
free basic services, highest level of free basic services as well as the revenue cost associated
with the free basic services is contained in Table 27 MBRR A10 {Basic Service Delivery
Measurement).

Note that the number of households in informal areas that receive free services and the cost of
these services (e.g. the provision of water lhrough stand pipes, waler tankers, elc) are not
taken into account in the table noted above.




2.6 Providing clean water and managing waste water

The Municipality is the Waler Services Authority for the entire municipality in terms of the
Water Services Act, 1997 and acts as water services provider.

The Depariment of Water Affairs conducts an annual performance rating of water treatment
works, presenting a Blue Drop or Green Drop award respectively to potable water treatment
works and waste water treatment works that meet certain criteria of excellence.

Emthanjeni Municipality is striving to obtain full Blue Drop status in 2017/18, indicating that the
Municipality's drinking water is of exceptional quality.

The following is briefly the main challenges facing the Municipality in this regard:

. The infrastructure at most of the waslte water treatment works is old and insufficient to
treat the increased volumes of waste water to the necessary compliance standard;

. Shortage of skilled personnel makes proper operations and maintenance difficult;

. Electrical power supply to some of the plants is often interrupted which hampers the

purification processes; and

2.7 Overview of budget related-policies

The Municipality's budgeting process is guided and governed by relevant legislation,
frameworks, strategies and related policies.

2.7.1 Review of credit control and debt collection procedures/policies

The Collection Policy as approved by Council in May 2016. While the adopted policy is
credible, sustainable, manageabte and informed by affordability and value for money there has
been a need to review certain components to achieve a higher collection rate. Some of the
possible revisions will include the lowering of the credit periods for the down payment of debt.
In addition emphasis will be placed on speeding up the indigent registration process to ensure
that credit control and debt collection efforts are not fruitiessly wasted on these debtors.

As most of the indigents within the municipal area are unable to pay for municipal services
because they are unemployed, the Integrated Indigent Exit Programme aims to link the
registered indigent households to development, skills and job opportunities. The programme
also seeks to ensure that all departments as well as external role players are actively involved
in the reduction of the number of registered indigent households.

The 2017/18 MTREF has been prepared on the basis of achieving an average debtors’
collection rate of 80 per cent on current billings. In addition the collection of debt in excess of
90 days has been pricritised as a pertinent strategy in increasing the Municipality's cash levels.
In addition, the potential of a payment incentive scheme is being investigated and if found to be
viable will be incorporated into the policy. The policy is currently being revised.

2.7.2 Asset Management, Infrastructure Investment and Funding Policy

A proxy for asset consumption can be considered the level of depreciation each asset incurs
on an annual basis. Preserving the investment in existing infrastructure needs to be
considered a significant strategy in ensuring the future sustainability of infrastructure and the
Municipality's revenue base. Within the framework, the need for asset renewal was
considered a priority and hence the capital programme was determined based on renewal of
current assets versus new asset construction.




Further, continued improvements in technology generally allows many assets o be renewed at
a lesser ‘real’ cost than the original construction cost. Therefore, it is considered prudent to
allow for a slightly lesser continual level of annual renewal than lhe average annual
depreciation. The Asset Management, Infrastructure and Funding Policy is therefore
considered a strategic guide in ensuring a sustainable approach to asset renewal, repairs and
maintenance and is utilised as a guide to the selection and prioritisation of individual capital
projects. In addition the policy prescribes the accounting and administrative policies and
procedures relating to property, plant and equipment (fixed assets). The policy is currently
being revised.

2.7.3Budget Adjustment Policy

The adjustments budget process is governed by various provisions in the MFMA and is aimed
at instilling and establishing an increased level of discipline, responsibility and accountability in
the financial management practices of municipalilies. To ensure that the Municipality
continues to deliver on its core mandate and achieves its developmental goals, the mid-year
review and adjustment budget process will be utilised to ensure that underperforming functions
are identified and funds redirected to performing functions. The policy is currently being
revised.

2.7.4Supply Chain Management Policy

The Supply Chain Management Policy was adopted by Council in September 2007. An
amended policy has been approved by council on the 30 May 2016. The policy is currently
being revised.

2.7.5 Budget and Virement Policy

The Budget and Virement Policy aims to empower senior managers with an efficient financial
and budgetary amendment and control system to ensure optimum service delivery within the
legislative framework of the MFMA and the Municipality's system of delegations. The Budget
and Virement Policy was approved by Council in May 2009 and was amended during May
2014 in respect of both Operating and Capital Budget Fund Transfers. An amended policy has
been approved by councif on the 30 May 2016. The policy is currently being revised.

2.7.6 Cash Management and Investment Policy

The Municipality's Cash Management and Investment Policy was amended by Council in May
2016. The aim of the policy is to ensure that the Municipality's surplus cash and investments
are adequalely managed, especially the funds set aside for the cash backing of certain
reserves. The policy details the minimum cash and cash equivalents required at any point in
time and introduce time frames to achieve ceriain benchmarks. An amended policy has been
been approved by council on the 30 May 2016. The policy is currently being revised.

2.7.7 Tariff Policies

The Municipality's tariff policies provide a broad framework within which the Council can
determine fair, transparent and affordable charges that also promote sustainable service
delivery. The policies have been approved on various dates and a consolidated tariff policy is
envisaged to be compiled for ease of administration and implementation of the next two years.
An amended policy has been approved by council on the 30 May 2016. The policy is currently
being revised.




2,7.8 Financial Modelling and Scenario Planning Policy

The Financial Modelling and Scenario Planning Policy has directly informed the compilation of
the 2017/18 MTREF with the emphasis on affordability and long-term sustainability. The policy
dictates the approach to longer term financial modelling. The outcomes are then filtered into
the budget process. The model and scenario planning outcomes are taken to Council every
November and then translate into recommendations for the budget guidelines that inform the
compilation of the next MTREF. One of the salient features of the policy is the emphasis on
financial sustainability. Amongst others, the following has been modelled as part of the
financial modelling and scenario planning process:

. Approved 2016/17 Adjustments Budget;

. Cash Flow Management Interventions, initiatives and Strategies (including the
cash backing of reserves);

. Economic climate and trends (i.e Inflation, household debt levels, indigent

factors, growth, recessionary implications);

Loan and investment possibilities;

Performance trends;

Tairiff lIncreases;

The ability of the community to pay for services (affordability);
Policy priorities;

Improved and sustainable service delivery; and

Debtor payment levels.

«a & 8 & & * »

All the above policies are available on the Municipality's website, as well as the following
budget related policies:

Property Rates Policy;

Funding and Reserves Policy;

Borrowing Policy;

Budget Policy; and

Basic Social Services Package (Indigent Policy).

- L] - » L]

The policy is currently being revised.




2.8 Overview of budget assumptions

The following assumptions were crucial and determining factors during
the budget process and the preparations of the budget.

2.8.1 ASSUMPTIONS

» Inflation is just inside the Reserve Bank parameters of 6% but it does not really
reflect the real price increases on the ground.

» NERSA tariff increase guideline stated that municipalities should budget for
increases of 8%. The average increment will be as from 01 July 2017 which, will not
only have a direct impact on the sale and procurement of electricity but to price hikes
in general.

» The current situation at ESKOM is also contributing the uncertainties and
uncontrollable factors experienced by South Africans as a whole.

» Annual increase of 7.33 % has been provided as per Collective Wage Agreement as
per SALGBC.

» The weak Rand Foreign Exchange Rate and the increase of Qil prices are also not
favorable to the current economic outlook.

» The Macro Economic outlock impacts not only directly on municipalities but forced
municipalities to operate within its budgetary means. Expenditure control will be a
major controlling factor for the years to come.

» Repair and Maintenance Costs together with labour costs of ‘repairing municipal
assets also fall victim of the huge price hikes which needs to be taken into
consideration. This is an area where much more investment will be invested over the
next few years.




2.8.2

2.8.2 FORECASTING OF REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE

REVENUE

Rates and taxes

~

”~

Residential properties will increased and decreased.

Agricultural properties will decreased mostly.
Other categories will increased.

The New General Valuation Roll will be implemented from 01 July 2017
and will be effective till 30 June 2022. Properties where values increase
or decrease will see tariff increases or decreases.

Agriculture properties will be levied according (residential properties) in
the ratio 1:0,25 and must apply for the rebate of 25% before the end of
August 2017.

The owner must be at least sixty (65) years of age and total gross
monthly income or earnings must not exceed

(/) an amount of R4 950 to qualify for a 50% rates rebate

(i) an amount of R5 550 to qualify for a 45% rates rebate

(iii) an amount of R6 200 to qualify for a 40% rates rebate

”~

Mining and Industrial property will increase higher than the other
categories. Portions of farms which are exclusive used for renewable or
solar energy will be part of this category of properties.

2. Electricity

~

~

Basic fee will increase by 4%

Conventional and Prepaid electricity tariffs will be increase (see tariff
schedule
1-50 kWh increase by 1.88 %

51-350 kWh increase by 1.88%

3. Water
”~
”~

~

Al

351 and more kWh units increase by 1.88%

Basic fee will increase by 6.4%.

Water consumption will be increased by 6.4% in all blocks

Water will be levied from the first kiloliter consumed for all consumers
that are not residential consumers.

A new block is being introduced for consumers who are consuming more
than 65kI.




4. Sewerage and sanitation

» Tariffs increased by 6.4%

5. Refuse removal

~ Tariffs increased by 6.4%

6. All other secondary tariffs.

~ Tariffs increased by 8%.

EXPENDITURE

21

2.2

23

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

EMPLOYEE COSTS: SALARIES AND WAGES
o Salaries and wages has been provided at an increment of 7.3 %
EMPLOYEE COSTS: SOCIAL CONTRIBUTIONS

o A provision of an average increment of 7.3 % has been provided

REPAIR AND MAINTENANCE

o A provision of an average increment of 6 % will provided. However Repair
and Maintenance expenditure increased by almost 7% in relation to last
year. This show Council's commitment to the maintenance of all assets, it
also includes an amount for operating vehicle leases (full maintenance
lease).

BULK PURCHASES

o Electricity purchases will increase on a weighted average of 8 % from 01
July 2017 and water will increase on average of 6.4 %.

CAPITAL CHARGES

o Capital Charges will decrease due the redemption of Exlernal Loans
GENERAL COSTS

o A provision of an average increment of 9% will provided.

PROVISION FOR BAD DEBTS

A provision of an average increment of 8% has been provided on all
o budgeted levied revenue.




BUDGET ANALYSIS

~ The overall increases during the 2017/2018 and 2018/2019 financial years
reflects an annual increment of + 10 % and in 2019/2020 budget year on
average decrease of 13% will be expected. This is mainly due to the non-
allocation of Capital Grant Funding as gazetted in the DORA

~ The total tariff increment will be +- 6% which is in line with the expectations of
National Treasury except the electricity tariff.

»  Electricity tariffs increments are as per NERSA'’s guidelines

~ The general tariff increment between 6-9% is also in line with the current
economic data available.

~ The budget is realistic and external or macro-economic factors as well as
micro economic factors were taken into consideration. However, the
municipality have no control over these macro conditions that impacts very
heavily on the operations of the municipality. These are interest rates, fuel
prices, inflation rates, high food prices, unemployment rate, and also statutory
levies imposed by National and Provincial Governments, etc.

~ The budget is very income generated driven and also focus on building and
maintain infrastructure development within the Emthanjeni Municipality.

~ All budgeted income will realised by the extensive efforts that will be enforced
by the officialdom.

~ Strict expenditure mechanisms will be enforced to ensure that the key
Strategic Objectives of the municipality are executed.

~ Budget is in line with the policies of council especially directed to the poorest
of the poor with the provision of Free Basic Services to all qualified Indigent
Households.

~ Local Economic Development opportunities has been identified in order to
provide sustainable LED projects for the communities.

» The budget is aiso biased towards the Indigent Households within the
municipality.




BUDGET RELATED POLICIES

The following policies were tabled to council during Council Meeting held on 30 March
2017 of the Budget Meeting. The policies are

(i} Draft IDP

(i) Draft Budget Policy

i) Draft Credit Control Policy

(i)  Draft Indigent Policy

(i)  Draft Tariff Policy

{iv)  Draft rates Policy

(v}  Draft Customer Care Policy

(v)  Draft Investment and Cash Management policy
(vi)  Draft Service Delivery and Budget Implementation Plan (SDBIP)
(vii) Draft Revised Supply Chain Management Policy
(viii) Draft Asset Management Policy

NCLUSION

The 2017/2018 budget is an budget to make services affordable to all consumers. Itis a plan
to implement the cross-cutling of expenditure. The budget testifies of the continuation with
the developmental agenda to expand the infrastructure to new and higher levels. It also aims
to continue with the creation of jobs, fighting poverty and most of all ensure that we invest in
infrastructure assets of the Emthanjeni municipality.

The increases of lariffs are mainly focused on affordability and to ensure that we generated
all revenue as budgeied for. Hence the low increment of operating expenditure and
expenditure control that will be sharpened over the next financial year.

The Council commitment to create an conducive environment for Investors to invest in the
economy of Emthanjeni municipality cannot be underestimated. The various economic
initiatives are testimony of Council's commitment, readiness and ability to ensure that we
continue with the path of National Development Plan.

1 The budget is prepared under the auspices and principles from the Minister of
finance and the MEC of Finance that all sectors of government must ensure that
austerity measures are introduced. Sustainable service delivery still takes
precedence in this draft budget.




2.9 Overview of budget funding

2.9.1

Medium-term outlook: operating revenue

The following table is a breakdown of the operating revenue aver the medium-term:

201718 Moedium Term Revenua &

Description Rot Expeonditure Framework
Budget Budget Budgot
R thousand 1 Year Yeoear +1 Yoar +2
201718 2018/19 2019/20

Rgvenue By Source
Property rales 2 26 620 27 818 29 265
Service charges - alectricity revenue 2 58 466 81 272 64 459
Service charges - waler revenue 2 29 746 31 084 32 576
Service charges - sanitation revenua 2 18 458 19 289 20 292
Sarvice charges - refuse revenue 2 10 701 11 215 11 798
Service charges - olhar 125 132 139
Rental of faciliies and equipment 732 77D 817
Intarast earned - extarnal investments 731 764 804
Inlerast earned - outstanding debtors 1 083 1132 1 180
Dividends raceived — — —
Fines, penalties and forfaits 3 720 3 888 4 083
Licences and permits 1 970 2 060 2162
Agency setrvices i - —
Transfers and subsidies 41 455 44 109 47 146
Other revenue 2 27 589 28 941 30 429
Gains on disposal of PPE 268 278 320

Total Ravenuo (excluding capital transfers and 221 664 232 760 245 479

contributions)

Expenditure By Tvpe
Employaee relaled costs 2 75 182 80 423 86 053
Remunearaton of councillors 5 297 S 668 6 065
Deblt irmpairmant 3 S 678 9 463 10 670
Depreciaton & asset mpairmeant 2 9 056 9 463 9 938
Finance charges 5 755 6 042 9 805
Bulk purchases 2 60 834 63 876 67 198
Other matarials a8 18 807 19 551 20 416
Contracled services 9 319 9 785 5477
Transfers and subsidles — - —
Other expendiure 4, 5 46 003 47 469 49 155
Loss on disposal of PPE - - -

Total Expenditure 239 911 251 740 264 775

Surplus/{Daoficit) {18 247) {18 879} {19 296)
Transfers and subsidies - capital {(monetary
allocatons) (Natienal / Provincial and Dislrict 32 292 44 744 18 978
Transfers and subsidies - capital (in-kind - all)

Surplus/{Deficit) after capital transfers & 14 045 25 765 (318)

cantributions

Surplus/(Deficit) after taxation 14 045 25 765 {318)
Alfributable 1 minorities

Surplus/{Doficit) attributable to municipality 14 045 25 765 {318}

Surplus/{Deficit) for the yoar 14 045 25 765 {318}

Tariff setting plays @ major role in ensuring desired levels of revenue. Getting tariffs right
assists in the compilation of a credibie and funded budget. The Municipality derives most of its
operational revenue from the provision of goods and services such as water, electricity,
sanitation and solid waste removal. Property rates, operating and capital grants from organs of

state and other minor charges (such as building plan fees, licenses and permits etc).

The revenue strategy is a function of key components such as:

. Growth in the Municipality and economic development;

. Revenue management and enhancement;

. Achievement of a 96 per cent annual collection rate for consumer revenue;
. Nalional Treasury guidelines;

Eleclricity tariff increases within the National Electricity Regulator of South

Africa (NERSA) approval;




. Achievement of full cost recovery of specific user charges;
. Determining tariff escalation rate by establishing/calculating revenue
requirements;

. The Property Rates Policy in terms of the Municipal Property Rates Act, 2004
(Act 6 of 2004) (MPRA), and
. And the ability to extend new services and obtain cost recovery levels.

The above principles guide the annual increase in the tariffs charged to the consumers and the
ratepayers aligned to the economic forecasts.

The proposed tariff increases for the 2017/18 MTREF on the different revenue categories are:

Table 27 Proposed tariff increases over the medium-term

2017/18 proposed tarifi | 2018/19 proposed tanff | 2019/20 proposed tariff
Revenue category increase increase increase

% % %
Property rates 6 6 6
Sanitation 6 6 6
Solid Waste 6 6 6
Water 6.4 6.4 6.4
Electricity 1.8 1.8 10.5

Revenue to be generated from property rates is R26, 620 million in the 2017/18 financial year
and increases to R27, 818 million by 2018/19 which represents 12 per cent of the operating
revenue base of the Municipality. It remains relatively constant over the medium-term. With
the implementation of the Municipal Property Rates Act the basis of rating significantly
changed.

Operational grants and subsidies amount to R41,455 million, R44, 109 miilion and R47, 146
million for each of the respective financial years of the MTREF, or 18.69, 17.85 and 13.08 per
cent of operating revenue. It needs to be noted that in real terms the grants receipts from
national government are changing over the MTREF..

Investment revenue contributes marginally to the revenue base of the Municipality with a
budget allocation of R1, 760 million, R1, 865 million and R3, 078 million for the respective
three financial years of the 2016/17 MTREF. It needs to be noted that these allocations have
been conservatively estimated and as part of the cash backing of reserves and provisions.
The actual performance against budget will be carefully monitored. Any variances in this
regard will be addressed as part of the mid-year review and adjustments budget.




The tables below provide detail investment information and investment particulars by maturity.

Table 28 MBRR SA15 ~ Detail Investment Information

NC073 Emthanjeni - Supporting Table SA15 Investment particulars by type

2017718 Medium Term Ravenus &

201314 | 2014115 | 201516 Curreni Year 201617
Expenditure Framework

Investment type

! Audited | Audited | Audited Original | Ad]usted | Full Year | Budget Year | Budget Year | Budget Year
Quitome | Outcome | Quicome | Budget | Budget | Forecast | 20%7/18 +1 201819 | +2 204920

R thousand

Paront municipality

Securities - National Govemment

Lisked Corporale Bonds

Deposils - Bank 9 600 8121 8 667

Deposils - Public invesimenl Commissioners

Deposils - Corporation for Public Deposils

Bankers Acceptance Cerificales

Negobable Certificates of Deposit - Banks

Guaranieed Endow menl Palicies (sinking)

Repurchase Agreements - Banks

Municipal Bonds
Municipality sub-total 1 - - - - - - % 600 91 4 667
|Cnnsolldated total: - - - - - - 3 600 9121 B8 667

Table 29 MBRR SA16 — Investment particulars by maturity

NCOT) Emthanjani - Supperting Table SA16 Invesiment particulars by matusity
Period of o ::2::: Inerest Commission| Commission Opening fterest F::l:l::l Investment| Closing
Maturi Ref G Expiry date
L LU ¢ Investment| Typeof uarentes interes] 2 Paid {Rands)| Recipien| an) balance h,b g Withdrawa| TopUp | Balance
Fvimant {Yes! Noj . 1 of realised it
: Investment ®
M
Name of institution & investmentID | 1 YsManths
Pareni mynicipality
General Imesment Yes  (FiredDeposiq  Yes Yes 1 0078 0 9 300620161 13448 15 14183
Musicipality sub-total 13443 - - | 1418
|IOTALINVESTMBHSANDINTEREST 1 13448 - =1 1418




2.9.1 Medium-term outlook: capital revenue

The following table is a breakdown of the funding composition of the 2017/18 medium-term
capital programme:

Table 30 Sources of capital revenue over the MTREF

NC073 Emthanjeni - Table AS Budgeted Capital Expenditure by vote, functional classification and funding
Vote Description 2017/18 Medium Term Revenue & Expenditure Framework
R thousand Budget Year Budget Year +1 | Budget Year +2
2017118 2018119 2019/20
Eunded by:

National Govemment 32292 14744 14 221
Transfers recognised - capital 32 292 14 744 14 221
Public contributions & donations - = -
Borrowing - = -
Internally generated funds 6 590 6 887 77

Total Capital Funding 38 862 21 631 21438

Sources of capital revenue for the 2017/18 financial year

Capital grants and receipts equates to 66.83 per cent of the total funding source which
represents R13, 992 million for the 2017/18 financial year and decreases to R12, 491 million or
65.11 per cent by 2017/18 then for 2018/19 it increases to R13, 118 million or 59.61 per cent.

internally generated funds consist of a mixture between surpluses generated on the operating
statement of financial performance and cash backed reserves. In determining the credibility of
this funding source it becomes necessary to review the cash flow budget as well as the cash
backed reserves and accumulated funds reconciliation, as discussed below. Internaily
generated funds consist of R6, 944 million in 2016/17, R6, 694 in 2017/18 and R8, 888 million
in 2018/19. The percentage funding remains constant over the MTEF period. This reflects the
commitment of the municipality to invest in renewal of their existing assets.

The following table is a detailed analysis of the Municipality’s borrowing liability.

Table 31 MBRR Table SA 17 - Detail of borrowings

NC073 Emthanjeni - Supporting Table SA17 Barrowing

2017148 Medium Term Revenue &
Expenditure Framework

Auditad | Audited | Audited | Original | Adjusted | Full Year { Budget Year | Budgei Year | Budget Year

Qutcome | Quicome | Outcome| Budget | Budget | Forecast| 20t7/18 « 11819 | 2 201920

Borrowing - Categorised by type Ref| 201314 | 2014115 | 2015/16 Current Year 2016/17

R thousand

Parent municipall
Annuity and Bullet Loans

Long-Term Loans {non-annuity) = - =
Local regislered stock
instalment Credil

Financial Leases

PPP liabilites

Finance Granted By Cap Equipment Supplier
Marketable Bonds

Non-Markesable Bonds

Bankers Acceplances

Financial derivaives

Other Secunties

Municipality sub-total 1 - - - - - - - - -

Tatal Unspent Borrowing 1 - - - - - - = = -




Emthanjeni Municipality will not enter into any loans during the 2017/18 MTREF and has paid
off all borrowings by the end of the 2016/2017 financial year.

Table 32 MBRR Table SA 18 - Capital transfers and grant receipts

NCO73 Emthanjenl - Supporting Table SA18 Transfers and grant receipts

2017118 Medium Term Revenue &
Expenditure Framework

Audited | Audited | Audited |Original | Adjusted | Full Year | Budget Year | Budget Year | Budget Year

Description Ref | 201314 | 2014115 | 2015/16 Current Year 2018/17

R thousand Outcome | Outcome | Quicome | Budget | Budget | Forecast| 2017/18 +12018/19 | +2 2019/20
RECEIPTS: 1.2
Capital Translers and Grants
Natienal Government: - - - - - - 32292 44 744 18 878
Municipal Inkastructure Grant (MIG) 12 292 12 744 13221
Regional Bulk Infrastnicture 14 000 30 000 4 757
hiegrated National Eleckrification Programme 6000 2000 1 000

Provincial Gavernment: - - - - - - - - -
District Municipality: - - - - - - - - -

Qther grant providers: - - - = = - = - -

Total Capital Teansters and Grants 5 - - - - - - 1210 44 744 18978
TOTAL RECEIPTS OF TRANSFERS & GRANTS - - - - - - 73747 88 853 66 124

2.9.2 Cash Flow Management

Cash flow management and forecasting is a critical step in determining if the budget is funded
over the medium-term. The table below is consistent with international standards of good
financial management practice and also improves understandability for councillors and
management. Some specific features include:

. Clear separation of receipts and payments within each cash flow category;

. Clear separation of capital and operating receipts from government, which also enables
cash from ‘Ratepayers and other' to be provide for as cash inflow based on actual
performance. In other words the actual coflection rate of billed revenue., and

. Separation of borrowing and loan repayments (no set-off), to assist with MFMA
compliance assessment regarding the use of long term borrowing (debt).




Table 33 MBRR Table A7 - Budget cash flow statement

N(:073 Emthanjeni - Table A7 Budgsted Cash Flows | [ |
Descriplivn [rot 20tarta | 20tts | 201506 Current Year 2018147 2017118 Wedlum Term Revenue &
Expenditure Framewark
R thausand Audited | Audited | Audited | Original | Adjusted | Full Year | Pre-audit | Budget Year | Budgel Year | Budgel Year
Cutcome | O Out Budget | Budget | Forecast | cutcome]  2017/18 +1 201819 | «2 201920
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts
Piopery raies 23799 24 003 24875
Service charges 11621 116 842 122 B0
Other revenue 32311 31 684 15816
Gavermnmenl - oparatng 1 £1 455 44 109 47 146
Govemment - captal 1 32292 44 744 18978
nierest 1723 1802 1894
Dwidends - - -
Paymenis
Suppiers and employ ees {199 t0s) {219 882) 1200 794)
Finance charges (5 755} 16 042) (9 BOS)
Transtars ane Grants 1 - - -
NET CASH FROMIUSED) OPERATING ACTIVITIES - - - - - - - 18 341 19 459 40 711
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Raceipis
Proceeds on disposal of PFE 268 278 320
Decreasa {increase) in non-currenl debiors = = =
Decrease (incraase) oher non-current receivables - - -
Decrrase (mcrease) in non-cumrent inv gsiments - - -
Payments
Capial asse’s (38 BA2) {40 B26) (42 B6)
HET CASH FROMI{USED) INVESTING ACTIITIES - = - - - - o {28 E14} {40 548) {42 547)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Receipts '
Short lerm loans - - -
Bormrowing long lrmiTefnancing 95 92 89
Increass (gecrease) in consumer deposits - = -
Paymenis
Repaymen of bormowing - - -
MET CASH FROMI{USED) FINANCING ACTIVITIES = - - - - - - 95 92 19
NET INCREASE/ (DECREASE} iN CASH HELD - - - - - - - {179) {997} (1 747)
Casticash equivalents at he year begin: 2 1139 960 {31}
Lash/cash equivalents at the year end: 2 - - - - - - - 960 {3n {1 784)

2.9.4 Cash Backed Reserves/Accumulated Surplus Reconciliation

This following lable meets the requirements of MFMA Circular 42 which deals with the funding
of a municipal budget in accordance with sections 18 and 19 of the MFMA. The table seeks to
answer three key questions regarding the use and availability of cash:

. What are the predicted cash and investments that are available at the end of lhe
budget year?

. How are those funds used?

. What is the net funds available or funding shortfall?

A surplus would indicate the cash-backed accumulated surplus that wasl/is available. A
shortfall (applications > cash and investments) is indicative of non-compliance with section 18
of the MFMA requirement that the municipality's budget must be ‘funded’. Non-compliance
with section 18 is assumed because a shortfall would indirectly indicate that the annual budget
is not appropriately funded (budgeted spending is greater than funds available or to be
collected). It is also imporiant to analyse trends to understand the consequences, e.g. the
budget year might indicate a small surplus situation, which in itself is an appropriate outcome,
but if in prior years there were much farger surpluses then this negative trend may be a
concern that requires closer examination.




Table 34 MBRR Table A8 - Cash backed reserves/accumulated surplus reconciliation

HCO73 Emthanjeni - Table A8 Cash backed ressrvesiaccumulated surplus reconcillation
Daseription Rel 201214 201418 WG Current Year 2016117

201718 Madium Tert Ravenue &
Expenditurs Framework

Audiled Audited Audited Original Adjusled Full Yeas Pra-audil | Budgel Year | Budgel Year | Budget Year

Outcome Ouicome Ouicoms Budgel Budgel Forecast outcems 201713 +1 2018018 | 220920

g |
Casticash equvalents ol ha year end 1
Omer cutenl nvesimens > 30 days. - -
Han currend assets - v esiments 1 = = - - - -

Cash aad investmants available; - - - - - -

Applicstion of cash ynd investments
Unspent conoional bansiers e = - - - - - - = -
Unspent bormow ing - - = - . - -
SELory requrements i
Cher warking caprl requiemensy E - - - - - - - 113 a3y (14 184 114 13
Uthet provigions
Long em nvesments commied 4 - - - = - - - -
Regetves 15 be bathed by cashinvesimens

Tatal Application of cash and - - - - - - - (13 747) {14 18y {14 1Y

Surplusishortisll) - - - - - L s 14735 14 176 12 878

G0 | 17 Ty
o ]
9 29 <]
989 )] i1 785)

{3
=

w

From the above table it can be seen that the cash and investments available total RO, 989
million in the 2017/18 financial year however this decreases to -R1, 755 million by 2019/20,
including the projected cash and cash equivalents as delermined in the cash flow forecast.
The following is a breakdown of the application of this funding:

Unspent conditional transfers (grants) are automatically assumed to be an obligation as the
municipality has received government transfers in advance of meeting the conditions.
Ordinarily, unless there are special circumstances, the municipality is obligated to return
unspent conditional grant funds to the national revenue fund at the end of the financial year. In
the past these have been allowed to ‘roll-over’ and be spent in the ordinary course of business,
but this practice has been discontinued. During the 2013/14 financial year the municipality was
required to supply National Treasury with a detailed analysis of the unspent grants as well as
an action plan of spending the grants.

There is no unspent borrowing from the previous financial years. In terms of the municipality’s
Borrowing and Investments Policy, borrowings are only drawn down once the expenditure has
been incurred against the particular project. Unspent borrowing is ring-fenced and reconciled
on a monthly basis to ensure no unnecessary liabilities are incurred.

. The main purpose of other working capital is to ensure that sufficient funds are
available to meet obligations as they fall due. A key challenge is often the mismatch
between the liming of receipts of funds from debtors and payments due to employees
and creditors. High levels of deblor non-payment and receipt delays will have a greater
requirement for working capital, as was experienced by the Municipality in 2017/18
resulting in cash flow challenges. For the purpose of the cash backed reserves and
accumulated surplus reconciliation a provision equivalent o one month's operational
expenditure has been provided for. It needs to be noted that although this can be
considered prudent, the desired cash levels should be 60 days to ensure continued
liquidity of the municipality. Any underperformance in relation fo collections could place
upward pressure on the ability of the Municipality to meet its creditor obligations.

. Most reserve fund cash-backing is discretionary in nature, but the reserve funds are not
available to support a budget unless they are cash-backed. The reserve funds are not
fully cash-backed. The level of cash-backing is directly informed by the municipality's
cash backing policy. These include the rehabilitation of landfill sites and quarries.




2.9.3 Funding compliance measurement

National Treasury requires that the municipality assess ils financial sustainability against
fourteen different measures that look at various aspects of the financial heaith of the
municipality. These measures are contained in the following table. Ali the information comes
directly from the annuat budgeted statements of financial performance, financial position and
cash flows. The funding compliance measurement table essentially measures the degree to
which the proposed budget complies with the funding requirements of the MFMA. Each of the
measures is discussed below.

Table 35 MBRR SA10 — Funding compliance measurement

NCO7] Emthanjen) Supporting Table SA10 Funding measurement

0004 | oS | oo Currenl You 201817 201718 Macium Tarm Revere &
Desenpicn WFMA ol Espenditure Framawoik
saction Audited Audlisd Audited Original Adlusted | Full Year | Pre-sucit |Budgel Yew | Budget Yasr | Budget Tasr
Quicome | Ouicome Quicoma Butqet Budget Faracast auicome nIMms +f 201819 | +2 209020
Eunding meatures
Cash/cash equr slena at he y ear 2rd - A0 B |1 - - - - - - % an {178)
Cash « mvesiments at e yr ¢ 3 appdcatons - RO0C Hie | 2 C - - - - - - 14735 4176 R ]
Cash year end'maonkly employ eelsuppber pay men's g |3 - - - - - - - o1 100} [(R]
Sumpiw(Detar] ox chxtng depreciaton ofhes. RO00 ey |4 - - - - - - - HMs 25 765 [£30-H
Servich charge ey % change - macro CMX tigetexciosrea | 18{1Ja (2] 5 NA e ! LI W
Cash recenis % of Rakpayer & Oher revemm ‘il 8 oi% % oo% 0% 1% 0% 0o% 6% 9311% 92 0%
Dbt imparmerd 62 pensa s & % of bl blable revenun iy ? 0% 20% 00% 0o% 0% 0% ao% 6% 6% &%
Captal pagments % of capial expentiune k9 8 0% 0o% ad% 0% 00% 90% ao% 1000% 68 1% 200 0%
Bortow ) recec % of capil ex penditvs (accl Fanskna} | 1800 | @ 00% 00% 00% 0% 0g% 0% oo% 14% 1% 1%
Grars % of Gorl kegislaed/qazetnd alocatons 81 |10 0o% oo% o0%
Cumeni consumet datbors % change - acridect} 181 1 HA 0% 0% 0% oM o0% 0% 00% Io% I0%
Long lerm recery atbes % change . ncridesr) 18ha |12 N A o 00% B0% oY 0o% or% 0% 0% 00%
LM % of Property Pt & Equpment 20010 | 13 ao% oo% 0o% 14 4% Do% 0% 0% 0% 2%
Assat tenewal % of capdal budget 201Hw} | 14 oo% Q0% 00% 0a% 00% 0% 0% 16 9% nes B

2.9.4.1 Cash/cash equivalent position

The Municipality's forecast cash position was discussed as part of the budgeted cash flow
statement. A ‘positive’ cash position, for each year of the MTREF would generally be a
minimum requirement, subject to the planned application of these funds such as cash-backing
of reserves and working capital requirements.

If the municipality's forecast cash position is negative, for any year of the medium term budget,
the budget is very unlikely to meet MFMA requirements or be sustainable and could indicate a
risk of non-compliance with section 45 of the MFMA which deals with the repayment of short
term debt at the end of the financial year. The forecasted cash and cash equivalents for the
2017/18 MTREF shows RO, 960 million, -R0, 037 million and —R1, 784 million for each
respective financial year.

2.9.4.2 Cash plus investments less application of funds

The purpose of this measure is to understand how the municipality has applied the available
cash and investments as identified in the budgeted cash flow statement. The detail
reconciliation of the cash backed reserves/surpluses is contained in Table 25. The
reconciliation is intended to be a relatively simple methodology for understanding the budgeted
amount of cash and investments available with any planned or required applications to be
made. This has been extensively discussed above.

2.9.4.3 Monthly average payments covered by cash or cash equivalents

The purpose of this measure is to understand the level of financial risk should the municipality
be under stress from a collection and cash in-flow perspective. Regardiess of the annual cash
position an evaluation should be made of the ability of the Municipality o meet monthly
payments as and when they fall due. It is especially imporiant to consider the position should
the municipality be faced with an unexpected disaster that threatens revenue collection such
as rale boycotts. Notably, the ratio has been falling significantly for the period 2013/14 to
2019/20, moving from 1.0 to 0.1 with the draft 2017/18 MTREF.

As part of the 2017/18 MTREF the municipalities improving cash position causes the ratio to
move upwards to 1.0 and then improves slightly slightly to 1.2 and 3.3 for the outer years. As
indicated above the Municipality aims to achieve at least one month’s cash coverage in the
medium term, and then gradually move towards two months coverage. This measure will have
to be carefully monitored going forward.




2.9.4.4 Surplus/deficit excluding depreciation offsets

The main purpose of this measure is to undersiand if the revenue levels are sufficient to
conclude that the community is making a sufficient contribution for the municipal resources
consumed each year. An ‘adjusted’ surplus/deficit is achieved by offsetting the amount of
depreciation related to externally funded assets. Municipalities need lo assess the resuit of
this calculation taking into consideration its own circumstances and levels of backlogs. If the
outcome is a deficit, it may indicate that rates and service charges are insufficient to ensure
that the community is making a sufficient contribution toward the economic benefits they are
consuming over the medium term. For the 2017/18 MTREF the indicative outcome is a surplus
of R14, 045 million, R25, 765 million and -R(, 318 million.

It needs to be noted that a surplus does not necessarily mean that the budget is funded from a
cash flow perspective and the first two measures in the table are therefore critical.

2.9.4.5 Property Rates/service charge revenue as a percentage increase less macro
inflation target

The purpose of this measure is to understand whether the municipality is contributing
appropriately to the achievement of national inflation targets., This measure is based on the
increase in 'revenue’, which will include both the change in the tariff as well as any assumption
about real growth such as new property development, services consumption growth etc.

The factor is calculated by deducling the maximum macro-economic inflation target increase
(which is currently 3 - 6 per cent}. The result is infended to be an approximation of the real
increase in revenue. Considering the lowest percentage tariff increase in relation to revenue
generated from rates and services charges is 6 per cent, with the increase in electricity at 8 per
cent it is to be expected that the increase in revenue will exceed the inflation target figures.
However, the outcome is lower than it might be due to the slowdown in the economy and a
reduction in consumption patterns. This trend will have to be carefully monitored and managed
with the implementation of the budget.

2.9.4.6 Cash receipts as a percentage of ratepayer and other revenue

This factor is a macro measure of the rate at which funds are ‘collected’. This measure is
intended to analyse the underlying assumed collection rate for the MTREF to determine the
relevance and credibility of the budget assumptions contained in the budget. It can be seen
that the outcome is at 93.6, 33.1 and 92.9 per cent for each of the respective financial years.
Given that the assumed collection rate was based on a 90 per cent performance larget, the
cash flow statement has been conservatively determined. In addition the risks associaied with
objections to the valuation roll need to be clarified and hence the conservative approach, also
taking into consideration the cash flow challenges experienced in the current financial year.
This measure and performance objective will have to be meticulously managed. Should
performance with the mid-year review and adjustments be positive in relation to actual
collections of billed revenue, the adjustments budget will be amended accordingly?

2.9.4.7 Debt impairment expense as a percentage of billable revenue

This factor measures whether the provision for debt impairment is being adequately funded
and is based on the underlying assumption that the provision for debt impairment (doubtful and
bad debts) has to be increased to offset under-collection of billed revenues. The provision has
been appropriated at 6.7, 6.3 and 6.7 per cent over the MTREF. Considering the debt
incentive scheme and the municipality's revenue management strategy’s objective 1o collect
outstanding debtors of 90 days, the provision is well within the accepted leading practice.




2.9.4.8 Capital payments percentage of capital expenditure

The purpose of this measure is to determine whether the timing of payments has been taken
into consideration when forecasting the cash position. It can be seen that a 2 per cent timing
discount has been factored into the cash position forecasted over the entire financial year. The
municipality aims to keep this as low as possible through strict compliance with the legislative
requirement that debtors be paid within 30 days.

2.9.4.9 Borrowing as a percentage of capital expenditure (excluding transfers, grants
and contributions)

The purpose of this measurement is to determine the proportion of a municipality's ‘own-

funded' capital expenditure budget that is being funded from borrowed funds to confirm MFMA

compliance. Externally funded expenditure (by iransfers/grants and contributions) has been be

excluded. It can be seen that borrowing equales to less than a per cent of own funded capital.

2.9.4.10 Transfers/grants revenue as a percentage of Government transfers/grants
available

The purpose of this measurement is mainly to ensure that all available transfers from national

and provincial government have been budgeted for. A percentage less than 100 per cent

could indicate that not all grants as contained in the Division of Revenue Act (DoRA) have

been budgeted for. The Municipality has budgeted for all transfers.

2.9.4.11 Consumer debtors change (Current and Non-current)

The purpose of these measures are to ascertain whether budgeted reductions in outstanding
debtors are realistic. There are 2 measures shown for this factor; the change in current
debtors and the change in long term receivables, both from the Budgeted Financial Position.
Both measures show a relatively stable trend in line with the Municipality's policy of settling
debtors accounts within 30 days.

2.9.4.12 Repairs and maintenance expenditure level

This measure must be considered important within the context of the funding measures criteria
because a trend that indicates insufficient funds are being committed to asset repair could also
indicate that the overall budget is not credible and/or sustainable in the medium 1o long term
because the revenue budget is not being protected. Details of the Municipality's strategy
pertaining to asset management and repairs and maintenance are contained in Table 60
MBRR SA34C.

2.9.4.13 Asset renewal/rehabilitation expenditure level

This measure has a similar objective to aforementioned objective relating to repairs and
maintenance. A requirement of the detailed capital budget (since MFMA Circular 28 which
was issued in December 2005) is to categorise each capital project as a new asset or a
renewal/rehabilitation project. The objective is to summarise and understand the
proportion of budgets being provided for new assets and also asset sustainability. A
declining or low level of renewal funding may indicate that a budget is not credible and/or
sustainable and future revenue is not being protected, similar to the justification for ‘repairs
and maintenance’ budgets. Further details in this regard are contained in Table 59 MBRR.




2.9.5 Expenditure on grants and reconciliations of unspent funds

Table 36 MBRR SA19 - Expenditure on transfers and grant programmes

NC073 Emthanjeni - Supporting Table SA19 Expenditure on transfers and grant programme

2017118 Medium Term Revenue &

Description Ref | 2013114 | 201415 { 201516 Current Year 2016/17 Expenditure Framework
R thousand Audited | Audited § Audiled | Original | Adjusted | Fult Year | Budget Year | Budget Year { Budget Year
Quicome | Outcome | Ouicome | Budget | Budget | Forecast| 201718 +1 201819 | +2 201910
EXPENDI|TURE: 1
Operal xpenditure of Transfars and Granis
National Government: - - - - - - 19 880 42 458 45 410
Local Governmenl Equitable Share 37 034 40 758 43710
Finance Management 1700 1700 1700
EPWP Incenive 1086 - -
Provincial Government: - - - - - - 1575 1 651 1736
Sport and Recreation 1575 1651 1736
District Municipaiity: - - - - - - - - -
Other gran! providers: - - - - - - = = =
Total operating expenditure of Transfers and Grants: - - - - - - 41 455 44 109 47 146
Capital expenditure of Transfers and Grants
Natlonal Gavernment: - - - - - - 2292 44 744 18978
Municipal Infrastructure Grant (MIG) 12 292 12744 13221
Regional Bulk Infrastruclure 14000 30 000 4757
Inkegrated Nabonal Electifcaton Programme 6 000 2000 1 000
Provincial Governmeni: - - - - - S - - =
District Municipality: - - - - - - = = =
Qther grant providers: - - - - - - - - -
Total capital expenditure of Transfers and Grants - - - - - - 32292 474 18 978
TOTAL EXPENDITURE OF TRANSFERS AND GRANTS - - - = o - 13747 88 853 66 124




Table 37 MBRR SA 20 - Reconciliation between of transfers, grant receipts and unspent

funds

NC073 Emthanjeni - Supportin

g Table SA20 Reconciliation of transfers, grant receipts and unspent funds

Description

2013114

2014015

201516

Current Year 2016/17

2017118 Medium Term Revenue &
Expenditura Framework

R thousand

Audited
Outcome

Audited
Qutcome

Audited
Quicome

Qriginal | Adjusted | Full Year
Budget | Budge! | Forecast

Budget Year
201718

Budget Year
+1 2018/19

Budget Year
+2 2019120

Quorating transfers and granis:

Natlonal Governmant:

Balance unspent al beginning of te y ear

Current y ear receipts

39 680

42 458

45 410

Conditions met - transferred 1o revenue

39 880

42 458

45 410

Conditicns stfl 1o be mel - vansferred ko liabilities|

Provincial Government:

Balance unspent at beginning of the year

Current y ear receipls

1575

1651

1736

Conditions mat - transferred to revenug

1575

1651

1736

Condimons stil o be met - ranskerred b kablib

District Municipality:

Blatance unspent at beginning of ¥ y ear

Cutrent y ear receipls

Conditions met - irans{erred 1o revenue

Cunditions st o be met - ranskerred to liabilites

Qther grant providers.

Balance unspent at beginning of the year

Current year receipts

Conditions met - transferred 1o revenue

Conditipns snll i be met - ranskered 1o liabiibes|

Total operating transters and granis revenue

41 455

44 109

47 146

Total operating transfers and granis - CTBM

Capital translors and grants;

Natlonal Governmont;

Balance urspent at beginning ol tha y sar

Curtent year recespls

32292

14 744

14 221

Conditions mat - iransferred to revonug

32 202

14744

1421

Conditions stll o be met - ranskerted 1 liabilities

Provincial Government:

Balance unspent at beginning of e year

Cument year receipls

Conditions met - transferred 1o revenue

Condiions stll 1o be met - ransterred b liabilises|

District Municipality:

Balance unspent af beginning of the year

Current year receipls

Conditions msl - transferred to revenys

Conditions stll to be met - ranslemed o labiives|

Other grant providers:

Balante unspenl at beginning of tha y ear

Curent y ear receip’s

Conditions met - transferred 1o revenue

Conditons stil to be met - ransferred I liabilives

Total capital iransfers and grants ravenue

32292

1474

14 221

Total capital transfers and grants - CTEM

TOTAL TRANSFERS AND GRANTS REVENUE

73747

53 853

61 367

TOTAL TRANSFERS AND GRANTS - CTBM




2.9.6 Councillor and employee benefits
Table 38 MBRR SA22 - Summary of councillor and staff benefits

NC073 Emthanjeni - Supporting Table $A22 Summary councillor and staff benefits

Saummary of Employee and Councillor

2017118 Medlum Term Revenue &

remuneration Ret| 201314 | 2004/15 | 2015116 Current Year 201617 Expenditure Framework
R thousand Audited | Audited | Audited | Original | Adjusted | Full Year | Budget Ysar | Budget Year { Budget Year
Duicom«| Oulcome | Outcome | Budget | Budget | Forecast| 201718 +1 201619 | +2 201920
1 A B C D E F G H I
Coungillors (Political Dtilce Bearers plus
Basic Salaries and Wages 1623 34985 4384
Pension and UIF Connbutions = = =
Medical Aid Contnbutions - - -
Mot Vehicle Allowance 1208 1328 1461
Cellphone Allow ance EYES 156 501
Housing Allowances £ = -
Other benefils and aflow ances 52 57 6]
Sub Total - Counclllors - - - - - - 5297 5 827 6 410
% Incraase 4 - - - - - - 10.0% 10.0%
5 Managers of the Mun H 2
Basic Salaries and Wages 4052 4 a57 4902
Pension and UIF Contibutions 673 741 815
Medical Aid Contributons 15 i) 139
Mok Vehicly Allow ance 3 770 847 931
Cellphone Allow ance 3 382 420 462
Other benefits and allow ances 1 62 68 75
Sub Total - Senlor Managers of Municipality - - - - - - 6053 6 658 7324
% increase 4 - - - - - - 10.0% 10.0%
Other Municipal Staff
Basic Salaries and Wages 52838 58 122 63 934
Pension and UIF Conttbutons 9228 10 151 11 166
Medical Aid Coninbutions 1863 2052 2257
Ovenme 1334 1467 t 614
Mator Vehicle Alowance k) 1 150 1 265 t 392
Cellphona Allow ance k) n7 322 326
Housing Allowances 3 1178 1328 1494
Other benefils and allowances 3 1141 1255 1364
Poskretrement benefit obligations 3 57 57 50
Sub Total - Other Municipal Staff - - - - - - 69 108 76 020 83 622
% Increass 4 - - - - - - 10.0% 10.0%
Total Parent Municipallty - - - - - - 80 459 88 505 97 155
TOTAL SALARY, ALLOWANCES & BENEFITS
- - - - - - B0 459 88 505 97 355
% increase 4 - - - - - - 10.0% 10.0%
TOTAL MANAGERS AND STAFF 5.7 - - - - - - 75 162 82 678 90 946




Table 39 MBRR $A23 - Salaries, allowances and benefits {political office

bearers/councillors/ senior managers)

73 Emthanjeni - Supporting Table SA23 Salaries, allowances & benefits (political office bearers/councillorsisenior manat_j

Salary Allowances |Performance | In-kind Total
Disclosure of Salaries, Allowances & Benefits 1. |Ref N Contributions Bonuses |henefits| Package
0.
Rand per annum [ 1. 2.
Councillors 3
Speaker 4 1 480 668 5 068 187 847 673603
Chief Whip 1 181 %13 3m 87 989 2712173
Executive Mayor i 600 856 5 869 227905 834 630
Deputy Executive Mayor =
Executive Commitiee 2| 498062 7048 221258 726 368
Tolal for all other councillors 10 1862 441 31 051 896 999 2 790 480
Total Councillars 8 | 15] 31622159 52107 1621 998 5297 264
Senlor Manaqers of the Municipality 5
Municipal Manager {MM) 1 997 437 181 752 404 313 1583 §02
Chief Finance Officer 1 964 600 215 363 266 541 1 446 504
Director Corporate Services 1 600 154 138 646 159 598 918 438
Director Infrastuchure Services 1 779 810 139 928 67 838 987 576
Director Community Services 1 709 600 154 125 253 184 1116 909
Total Senicr Managers of the Municipality 810 5] 4051641 849 814 1151474 6 052 929
TOTAL COST OF COUNCILLOR, DIRECTOR and 10| 20| 7674 300 901 921 2773472 11350 193
EXECUTIVE REMUNERATION
Table 40 MBRR SA24 — Summary of personnel numbers
NC073 Emthanjeni - Supporting Table SA24 Summary of persannel numbers
Summary of Personnel Numbers Ref 201516 Current Year 201617 Budgat Year 2017/16
Number 1.2 | Positions Permanent | Contract Positions P t| Contract ; Permanent| Contract
amployees |smployees smployess | employess amployees | employees
Municipal Council and Boards of Municipal Enlilies
Councilors [Polbcal Ofice Bearers phus Other Councilors) 14 2 12 14 2 7 4 P 12
Board Members ol mumc:pal entres 4 - - - - - - = = -
Municipal employess 5 - - - - - - - 5 5
Municipal Manager and Senior Managers 3 5 5 5 - ] 5 - 5
Oter Managers 7 7 6 1 7 [i 1 7 B 1
Professinals § [ - § [ - 6 [
Finance L) 4 - 4 4 - ) 1 -
Spalatitown planning - = = = = - = - -
Infarmation Tecmmbgly 1 - | 1 - 1 1 -
Roads - - - - - - - = =
Eiectnecity 1 - 1 1 - 1 1 -
Tethnicians hx) Jt 2 33 kil 2 13 I 2
Fingnce 5 3 2 5 3 H 5 3 2
Reads ] k] - k] ] - 1 3 -
Electntty & [} ] [ 6 6
Water : 2 - 2 2 = 2 2 -
Other 17 37 - 17 11 17 17 -
Clerks (Clerical and adrminiskatv e) 138 136 2 138 138 i 138 136 2
rak and related rades 45 45 - 45 45 - 45 45 -
Plant and Machire Operanrs 40 40 - 40 40 - 40 a0 -
Elementary Qccupatons 170 160 10 110 160 13 170 169 0
TOTAL PERSONNEL NUMBERS 9 458 426 12 458 426 2 458 135 LH
% intrease - - - = 21% 5
Totat lcipal employees h 8, 1{ 358 a0 19 159 3 19 152 132 F]
Finance perstdnel headcounl 4,13 “ k) 7 44 LY T 45 19 ]
Human Resources personnel headcount 8,10 3 ] - ] 3 - 1 k] -~




2.9.7 Monthly targets for revenue, expenditure and cash flow

Table 41 MBRR SA25 - Budgeted monthly revenue and expenditure

NCO73 E: jonl + 5 ing Table SA25 Budgsted monthly revenue and sxpenditure
Daserlpton et Buitge! Year 2017114 e :"":::::d e
udget Yeas | Budgel Year | Budget Year
R thousand July :August| Sept Iombn November | Becombar | Jonuary| February| Mach { April | May | June . “'::m—l . :::m' 2 :mm
Reepoue By Soyrcy
Property rams dhR| 2n8| z2ie} 220 218 2218 2218 213 23183 2218 22| 22w 6620 Pea i1 ] 29285
Sarvice chapes - dechcily evenus 4T 4Br2| aBr?| aEm 48R 1gR | 4en2 4812 4812) ABR2| s@r2| &g ELE 612 45
Saryice charges - wamd iy e 2410} 24mq 2419|2473 2479 2419} 2479 24719 24790 24M9} 2419} 248 97§ 08 12514
Srvice Charges « 120N fiy Bkl LM 1539 1534 15 1538 158 15 1508 1818) 1508) 538 158 18458 19283 nm
Seryice charges - reluse revarue 692 892 092 L3 892 B2 92 892 892 8 892 124 10701 125 nm
Servica charges - ohat 18 1% " 10 0 10 10 10 ] 10 0 L] 125 172 m
Renal o bebes 3od squpment L1 £1 41 €1 L1] 1] 81 81 Bt & [1] 3] 2 m a7
‘nieres] eamad - axiwmal i e mng #1 61 & 1 L] 61 61 1] E1 61 &l 2] m 764 (=}
TS 48 - OUS BNGNG Oebirt 0 90 % 0 %0 20 %0 9% %0 L] L] % 100 1132 1590
Doy wdonidt neconved - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
From, penalhes andt bries n 1L ne M m o no m ne o 101} ELl 1m0 188 108
Licances and pemm 14 164 154 4 164 [[* 164 164 B4 164 16a 164 1970 2060 2162
AQMICY SHYICES - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Tronskrs and subsids 3857 Jan8) J485) dass Jass 34587 a8 Ja35) D485 4450 JasS ) Lass 41455 41 AT 148
Cthat rrv g M) 2l 1| 1™ 2099 229y 229 29| TMAf I 199 159 27589 W Bnian
Gawg on dexpoaal of PPE n 2 2 a2 2 2 n 2 bt bl k4 2 %8 7 m
Tetal Revenue (suciuding caphal tramaters and contributtona] 10472 | t8472) 18472 10472 18412 T04T2] 84T AT 18470 | 1R &TZ) 10472 WA 221 6 pathi ) s
Exeeediture By Trpe
Employ o8 relad c235 G263 6263} 6261 626) 6283 6283 8181 6263 eM3IT 6263 61| E26) 75162 4 86053
Remunerayon of counc dots ] wfoan a1 i “ [ o n a1 szr § R6B 6065
Db e aenrand a7 w7 807 20r ? BOY Bary ear 2 807 07 807 9613 9483 1smn
Depreciaban & a3sel smpaemant %5 55 755 55 755 158 755 758 H1 148 %5 755 905 963 99%
Fnance charges & 480 450 %0 483 <60 80 80 im L] 480 4% 5785 65042 9805
Buk puichaies 50| 5070 5070 5070 5070 s070| 4on0 S070| S0 sofDf 5070F So70 L 63818 Ay 198
Oter maltialy VE6F | 1567 1567 1567 1567 1567 1581 V86| 1567( 1567 1567 1%67 18 807 19551 48
Conracied yervices nr nr mwr mr m m m m ne nt thid wr 9319 9 8% S5arr
Teardlrs and subjades - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Ol #xptie JAM | JeM| JaM| IgM JEM 38| deM S8 83| yeM | 2eM | Jam 26003 4T 463 43 15
Loas onarspossl of PPE - - - “ - - - - - - - - & -
Total Expenditure W NWL NI W 19 991 18993 | 19993 | 199910 19993 | 19993 [ 1993 WK M 9 TR 64 T3
Surpluw(Deficit) RN 8| nsan| 152 [LEH}] 18 (s p&m| pwen g pry nsy LES) {18 579} {39 29%)
Tiaradis and subixhes - xatol iMorelary docatons}
Nanonl / Prevancaal and Cisnel} prirerd 3732 L Td 18 978
SurplusiiDeflent) after capital transfers & contributions s Ryl RNl {152 [LEHI] (1829 &y ol psy| gy (12N AT Hods 57Te8 310y
Surploy[Defich) 1] szl e8] (1820 i 52111 [1) l!lll (1320)) 12824 (v s (1521) o) 820 (14m) 0T 14 343 25 763 (318H




Tahble 42 MBRR SA26 - Budgeted monthly revenue and expenditure

{municipal vote)

NCO073 Emthanjenl - Supporting Table $A26 Budgeled iy revertus and axpendiiure (municlpat vols)
Description Budget Year 2017118 Hadkam Torm ::::':::d T LI
Budget Year | Budget Yesr | Budget Yeu
A thousand July |August| Sept |October|November|December | Janusry | Februsry| Mareh | April | May | Juns 2:"“. - :mm’ . :OWZG
uysnus by Yoty
Yo 1 - EXECUTIVE AND COUNCRL 153 351 13 353 385 153 353 153 353 353 353 353 4258 4458 +770
Yoie 2 - FINANCE AND ADMNISTRATION In1] 3M) 3 174 114 TN 3 M| dMY] drIL 3wt Jmt 41 836 48 351 51 268
Vo J - PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT t115] LNns) ¥ ns 115 1115 1155 1115 TS| 1HS) 1M5) 1n1s) 118 13378 12 T4 IJ?.I_L
Vou 4+ HEALTH - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Vou 5- COMMUNITY AND SOCIAL SERVICES 186 186 186 186 186 186 186 186 186 186 186 186 2227 234 2453
Vo 6+ PUBLIC SAFETY 414 41 414 [iL a4 a5 4t 414 [i3 414 it 414 4369 LRE 5 482
Vo T - SPORT ANDRECREATION 11 |l 1" 1 11 11 1" 1 " 11 " 1 131 137 1
Vaie & - ROAD TRANSPORT 7 33 13 39 19 19 b k) 35 19 19 19 412 aH 514
Vow 9- OTHER - = - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Vole 10 - HOUSMG SERVICES 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 & 4 Lo a1 50
Vo 15+ WASTE MANAGEMENT VG| 1300) 1300 1303 1 300 1300 1 300 1300 1300) 1300{ 1300]| 1300 15 538 8 452 17 399
Vol 12 - WASTE WATER MANAGEMENT 2201) 2200 2200 220t 221 201] 220t 201f 2201) 2201 22| 2 26418 27 1% 29 389
Vot 13 - ELECTRICTY Trp Tr97| TTOR| TR 7787 tyor] rrer| iMr) rngr] Trar) rwer| 797 5 567 91840 §ren
Vom 14 - WATER 4003) 4001| 400)) 4003 4003 4003 400 4003; 4003) 4003) 4003} 4003 48 030 65 660 422
Total Reveniue by Vote 20083 | 21163 ) M ) | 20 14) 1 183 20183 | 21163) 20163 | 2103 | 20083 ) 21183 ) 2101 283 558 277 504 264 457
Espanditure by Yote 1o be agpeoprigted
Yole 1- EXECUTIVE AND COUNCL tR0| r2) I 1220 _1{.’0 1220 1220 1220 12201 1220 1220 12% 14 637 15 520 19 640
Vok 2 - FRIANCE AND ADMNISTRATION Josay 1000) 1006|3000 1000 3000 | 3000 1000 3000 30009 300G) 3000 15 999 812 35495
Vo 3+ PLANNNG ARD DEVELOPMENT 1011 10| 181 1001 1031 101 1011 1031} 1031 ) 141 | 1030 ) 102t 1231 1861 12 831
Vote 4 - HEALTH 13 13 13 13 13 1] 13 13 13 13 13 11 153 160 156
Vo 5 - COMMUNITY AND S0CIAL SERVIZES 1412 11123 1112 1112 1112 111 1112 1912] $192] 102) 11128 112 13 1 118% 14676
Voie § - PUBLIC SAFETY e | A [re] 829 829 823 829 829 229 629 829 A9 JUT 10 554 11209
Vam 7 - SPOAT AND RECREATION 461 461 461 461 461 261 161 1 161 461 461 461 5531 5 BRY9 6273
Vol 8 - ROAD TRANSPORT 1426 | 1426 1426 1426 1425 1426 1426 1428| 1426 1428 1426 1426 57113 18 30% 1518
Vo § - OTHER 57 57 T 57 57 £7 57 51 57 57 57 58 £90 122 778
Vol 10 - HOUSHG SERVICES 200 200 200 00 200 200 200 300 200 200 200 200 7195 2587 213
Yol 11 - WASTE MANAGEMENT 1451 1451 14 1451 1451 1451 1451 1451 1451) 1451 1451 1451 17 41§ 18 427 19522
Vem 12+ WASTE WATER MANAGEMENT 1042 1242] 1292 1242 t 242 1242 1382 TH2| 1242) 1242 1M2| V22 14 900 15 M 16 564
Voie £3 - ELECTRICETY 6504 | G504 BG504F 6504 6 54 BSOH | 6504 6504 ] 6504 G5M | 6504| 6502 78 052 82 062 86 412
Voie 14 - WATER 1347 1247F 1447 1447 y 447 147 | 1447 1447 raaf| 14| 17| 1 dr 17 362 18236 139 154
Total Ezpendtture by Vote 19993 ] 19993 | 19991 | 19993 19 983 19991 1999)| 19993} 19991 | 19993 ] 19391 ( 1999) 21391 281 780 164 T3
Surplus/[Dafieit) before suaoc. 1170 117¢) 1170 1170 1170 1170 1179 si7e| 11i0] 19i0) AT} 11470 14 043 25 785 {119)
Surpluw(Defict) 1100 10 v 00) 1970 11710 11710 11 1170) 1470) 1970) | 140 14 (48 2% 765 {1%3)




Table 43 MBRR SA27 - Budgeted monthly revenue and expenditure (standard

classification)

NCOT3 Emthanjerd - Supporting Table $A27

udgeted monthiy revanus and

Medwum Term Revenus and Capendiure

Drsenptian Budget Year 1021110 Framewerh
7
R moutens aip | suguet | Sest | Oeober | hovewser | Decembes | smuary | pobruary | wmen | apw ‘ '™ ! hine h;:.:.:;" ':"";‘:;::' '_“::;;;:
Far

GOriamcE W1d bIMIRHEIRDR LY, am am 4 oM L, 1 M M 1M 1 L1 1 E “an
[SEEr— 13 m I w i " " 1 m 1w w M i 1 4
Faunce 430 et st s am I 170 174 e I I e | ane|  am N 1 BE™

ey A = - - - . . 5 = - - 5 - . - -
Commuaity and public sahty " " ™ o “w " " " m " 1300 e "n
Communty 3l 5ot servies " 16 ™ ™ ™ % " " ™ ™ a 1 Dy
Spunt and racemann n 1m " 1 1 1" n " 1 1" 1 [k} it}
Pug 1akwy Ehl) 4 4 A1 A 41 454 anm ELl ) Lit] 4.9 5182 S48
Hourg 4 4+ L] 4 4 4 4 4 L 4 ] ar k]

heah - - - -
Ecoromic sed savireamental sarvites vt s visaf ovise| wme| vse] v v v vim] rw N 1918 1
Plavars s i wopreny sl ovnsl o 1ms 108 s 1 1 1| 1 tus[ v awms N 12tu 1321
Fload rampon » u » » » » » » . ) n w a ™ m

Exvonmank proscion = & A - - - - 5 . - - - 5 - 5
Troding sernces s et tamf o oww] wsam] wser|  wsam| asa| ssver | wae] e ww|  wen|  me|  wue
Erergy scurces | vee| rmr oamst| | awe| cwr) | rer| | re| b o %1 ™ wrem
Wotw managament aoor] o  eoos| e aooa|  wom|  aoes|  aeor|  aom]  soms]  soms| 4o wew 5680 wm
[T ] | m | 2 1 121 ) rm | | 2m 841 ar e 29
Vst managament 1] | 1w 1o0f  tw | txe el ow 1o]  ex0| 1 15590 04 17 399

et - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Total Aevenve - Funchionsl wwi aw|  wwl T T am| aa| wm| nwi nwi] nw| nes|  mos| mse| e

“Fyn

Governance snd sdmmisistion am| | em| am| am| amw|  am e eml el em T F) s
Exscusy s and coued I RE: I rzo) o) amel me 120 Vol vam| iz e s 19640
Faance and admnataon a0 oo  swe|  dow|] Jow| dom| yem sof  dwof  deof  30m now ET) 18495

[ - = B - - 5 B = 5 - - N - .
Communtly and poblic sefety ] ame| 2w poa | zea|  zew|  pwn aef 2en|  ted|  ren N a7 oy
Commondy and socusl ey ot i oam| wm 112 1m 1 m mef o ovm[ 1m o 1ur na ey
Spurt ) vcrmatin i W 61 " “ t 0l a8t " “ t EE] Sy sm
P 1ok 9 o o " 2y m o o © [ = Ny 05 "
g 20 S x0 0 B m 0 0 0 o0 ™ FE 158 am
- 1 1 " " " 1 1 1 i} 1 1 w ) 1
Ecananic snd nvronmentsl 1errices 1w | rw) rwm) e rw| 1w wug| rar|  ter|  aem na ) uen
[ p— P 1o 1om ran 164 1oh 1an 1o 1an 1em von 1231 11061 1
Foad banspord a2 144 148 1424 108 1008 148 14 1ip8 1424 140 it ny AL 1+ 191

Crry erwhants (rotecbon - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Tiading serviten LYY JETYVT) R TVVY G PYY PPN wa]  ress]  vosu|  wwa|  wes]  wea| | | wm
[ asoef esoa|  esa|  as| M ssoa]  escal  oesa|  eso| M) ms e 2062 "4y
Wt % vy e 147 14r 14?7 1447 147 1t 147 141 14ur 14y 1441 EL 18208 19t
U — vaz| e 1w 130 1202 Va2 1azf e el ] e o 15100 Wi
[ —— 1 1431 e 1t 1ast Vi 14 vast 141 Vst 1481 s 1saar 1982
Othar 5 o ') " ] 1] 5 o s W 5 " nz ™
Tats Espanaitue - Funstionsl WM w3 wen| ! e CTE ] wns|  wenl nWl| amen]|  aite] s
Sarpiun{behcs] befors maoe. T DY) T ViR 1] Tin iin Rl Tm I [TET) i

Shacw 1A purmumd (deled) of stsocie - - - -
[Sarptuniostiest 1 [ YT Y SRR N S A A Y DO ) S T Y I N YR YT 14043 e |




Table 44 MBRR SA28 - Budgeted monthly capital expenditure (municipal vote}

HCO73 Emthanjenl - Supponing Table SAZ8 Budgsted monthly capital expenditure {municipal vote)

Descriplion Raf Budgel Year 201718 R :::;::::ﬂ UL
R thoudand July |August{ SepL |Oclobar| Nov, | Dee. |Jenuary| Fab. |March| Apnil | May | June B"::;;:N ﬂ:’::;:;::’ B:'; ;;::;
Myili-vear sxpenditury fo ke appropriated 1 - - - - - - - - 5 = = = = - -
C apital muiti-year sxpanditure sub-lotal 2 - - - - - = &5 - - = 5 5 & - 5
Single-vest sagendilyrg b be sgproprisied
Voie t - EXECUTIVE AHD COUNCL 119 113 119 119 113 119 119 119 119 119 113 113 1425 1463 1561
Vo 2 - FNANCE AND ADMMISTRATION 12 12 132 122 122 g_'.: 12 122 122 122 12 122 1460 1526 159
Vow 3 - PLANNNG AND DEVELOPMENT - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Vote 4 . HEALTH - - = - = - - - - 5 - - - = -
Veie 5 - COMMUNITY AND SOCIL SERVICES ¢ 10 1] 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 1t 0 120 125 131
Vile 6 - PUBUC SAFETY 5 H 5 5 H 5 5 H 5 5 5 57 60 62
Vow T - SPORT AND RECREATION 5 § 5 5 5 5 ] £ 3 5 5 § 65 64 n
Vo B - ROAD TRAHSPORT 1263 1263 ) 12630 1263 ] 1263 1263} 1263 1263 (1263 ) 1263 ) 1260 126 15 153 157 16 154
Vo 8 - OTHER - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Vom 10 - HOUSHG SERVICES - - - - - - - - - - = = - = 5
Vol 11 - WASTE MANAGEMENT 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 22 22 4
Vo 12 - WASTE WATER MANAGEMENT - - - - - - - - - - - = = = 5
Vol 13 - ELECTRIETY 542 2| &2 542) 54| 542 2] 542 s42| s42) s42| sz 5 500 2523 1548
Vo $4 - WATER 173 13734 11473 1173 11| 1113 1] 13 1m0 1n 14 050 84 BA
Capital single-ysar expanditure sub-lotsl 213240 320 3240| 3240 J24b 3240} J260) 3240) 3240 240 ) 1340 3240 Ja 882 21631 21 438
Totl Caplisl Expendilure 2| 3200 2240) 3240} 3260] 3240 3240 3240| 3240) 3240 3200 J2e0| 3200 wn 21631 21438

Table 45 MBRR SA29 - Budgeted monthly capital expenditure (standard classification)

| classificatlon)

NCO073 Emthanjeni - Supporting Table SA29 Budgeted manthly capilat expanditure (f

Descriplion Ral Budget Year 201718 Medlum Tarm Revenue and Expenditure
Framework
R thousand I July |August| Sept |October| Mov. | Dec. |Janusry| Feb. |March | Aprll | Way | June Budgst Yeas | Budgat Year | Budgat Year
2017118 +1 201819 | +2 2019130
2D mdliure - Fungtion.

Govetnance and administration 40 50| 40 b b 240 240 40 20 FLl] 240 140 1985 s 3160
Execulve and coyncd 19 1"g "9 "9 19 159 1 119 119 1% 19 119 1425 1489 1461
Finance and admniskation 122 122 122 122 122 122 122 122 12 12 122 122 1 460 15826 1599

Community and public safely m 0 20 20 20 20 20 0 0 0 0 0 g F=] 5%
Commundy and social services 0 i1} i 12 0 10 10 10 10 10 n 1 120 125 13
Sport and recreaton 5 H 5 5 5 5 5 ] 5 5 H & 65 68 7
Public salety H § 5 3 5 § 5 5 5 H § $ 57 1] €2

Economic and snvironmental services 1263 1263 12630 163 [ 1263 | 1263 1263} 1260 | 1260 | 1283 1263 1263 15153 15734 16 154
Road transport 1263 ) 1263p 1263 12830 1263 | 1263 1263 1263} 1263 | 1263 | 1263 1263 15 153 15734 16 354

Trading services T THMPPANT] AMT{ATTEANT) TP A HT I M1 AT 1T 20 602 2619 165§
Energy sources 542 S42 1 842 42| s 542 542 542 s4z| Sz Ba2| 52 & 500 2523 1548
Waler management 1N 1NN 11173111 1] 317 113 111 14 080 8 48
\Vatke esanagement 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 pe P

e i 1200 3200 ] 3200] 3200) 3200) 3200 3700 3700 3200 12000 3200 3200  wem|  menl 214w
Funded by,

Hatonal Govemment 2601 | 2691f 2691 2691 | 2691 | 2691 2691) 2631 | 2691 [ 2691 ] 2691 | 2601 32292 474 12
Translers recognised - capltal 2691 26910 2699 2699 | 2891 2891 2691 | 2631 2691 | 2601 | 2691 ) 2491 32292 i uwn
Internally genarated lunds 549 543 549 49| 59| 59 543 549 519} 549 S49| 549 6500 6887 ran

Tatal Capltal Funding 32400 3740 2240 3240 3240} 2240) 3240} 3240} 3240 3240} 3230 3240 J8 882 2160 21418




Table 46 MBRR SA30 - Budgeted monthly cash flow

NC073 Emthan]eni - Supporting Table SA30 Budgeted monthly cash flow

WROTONT TeTIT

MONTHLY CASH FLOWS Audget Year 2007118 . L
Budg#t Year | Budgel Year | Budget Yaar
R thousand July |Auguut| Sepl. | October | November | Cecernbor | January | February | March | April | May | June z:m" - :lnlm . :Msuzo
Eash Receicts By Source !
Property raies 193] 1983 1981) 193] 158 198 1983 1983 150) 1983 198 | 1943 Akt 24 0G3 24 875
Servica charpes - eletyicly reveue 1629 1629| as29 4 82% 4629 1629| 1629 416290 4629 4629 3629| 4629 55543 58 209 &1 236
Service charmes - walEr revenue 13865| 21s5) 2355( 2355 2355 2255 2156 23565) 2355| 2355) 2355 21355 28258 29530 10 94
Servite chames - Lanadoen revenus 1 461 1461 1 461 1 261 1461 1461 1461 1461 1461 1361 1461 1461 17 535 18 125 19 217
Sorvice charges - reluse revenue B4 87 T 7 847 87 Ba7 M7 847 BA7 a7 BA7 13 166 10 654 1 208
Servic charges - oy 10 13 10 10 1¢ 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 13 125 132
Rertal of bcikbes and eqspment 58 58 58 58 58 58 53 58 58 58 58 58 895 740 176
lnietest samedt - ex lernal By ELTenty 58 54 58 5 53 58 58 58 53 58 54 58 £34 726 761
Tieresi samed - oulkandng debiors 86 B 86 88 B8 86 B B6 B85 86 86 86 1020 1076 111
Oividands receved - = = - - = - - - - = - -
Fines. penalbes and boriey o 285 255 295 295 picid 295 295 265 295 295 235 151 1654 1678
ticences and permdy 156 156 156 156 156 156 156 1% 156 156 156 156 1872 1957 203
Agenty Services - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Transier rece:pts - operasonal 5455| J455) 3455 3455 1455 3455 455 34551 34550 3a55) 2455 3485 41455 44 109 AT 136
Ohet revenue DA 1B4| 2184 2184 218 218) 2184 2184 ) 2184 2184] 2184 | 2184 26209 PR 28 907
Cash Receipts by Source 17576 | 17478 | 17476 | 17 576 17 578 1788 | 17578 ) 17578} 17876 | 17578 | 17 578 | 17576 218 9509 220 633 232 332
Qther Cash Flows by Source
Transier receiphs - capial 2691| 2691) 2691| 2691 2691 2691 2691 2691 ) 28914 2601 2401 ) Ied 320 44 74 tH 574
Pioceeds on asposal ol FPE 22 2 22 pe] 2 2 22 pr] 2] 2 Frd 22 268 B 0
Shorl e loans - - - - - - - - - - - -
Borigraeng long kevm/reknancng ] L] i ] 3 ] ] B ] 8 ] B ] L ]
ncrease (dacreasal in consumer depod - - - - = S = = = = = -
Decroase {ncrease) i non-current oebl - =+ - = - - = - - - - -
Decrease {ncrease) ober non-curent - = - = - - = - - = - -
Degrease (ngrease) n non-cumrent mnvd - - - = - - - - - = - -
Total Cash Receipts by Source 20297 | 20297 | 20297 | 20 297 20297 0297T| 2007 VAN N W27| 0297 00T 243 583 288 76 251719
Cash Payments by Tupe
Employee relaied costs 6263] 6i63] 6263] 6261 £ 3 6263 | 6263 6263 ) 62631 6263) 626 | 6263 75 162 80 423 06 051
Remunerason of councilors Ht a1 Eail 44 i1 Ladl 1 At 441 i 4 Hi 5297 5 658 6 065
Finance charpes 80 480 480 480 480 180 480 480 4RO 4B 480 480 5 755 6042 9 E05
Bulk prchases - Blecmcey 40137 4833 4833| 26833 1533 1633| 4633 4813 ) 46331 4633) 4833 ) 483 57 992 60 891 B4 057
Bul purchases - Water & Sewer 237 237 237 7 pat) pat] patg 27 a7 23 pats 237 289) 2985 3140
Cher maenals tT[ 1571 57| 1567 1567 157 1567 1567 ) 15677 1567] 1567 | 1567 13 807 19 551 20 416
Conriied services ki T m mr mw ! hitd ki T L Litd 7 9219 9785 5477
Transiers and grants - other munscipakg - - - = = = 5 - - - = = - - -
Trantlers and grants - other - - - - - - - - - ~ - - - - -
Other eapendire: 24741 2474) 2414 241 2474 2474 2474 24Tk | 2474 2474 24744 1474 29686 40 580 15 588
Cash Paymants by Type 1T0T2§ 17012 17072 | 17072 17072 170r2| 1rovz| worz| wor| w7or2| srorz| wwO72 204 860 25924 210 599
Other Cash Flows/Payments by Type
Capetal assats J240{ 32400 J230| 320 1240 J240| 240 3240 ) 40| 3240 30| 14 39 882 40 826 42 867
Repayment of borrowng - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Cther Cash Flow#/Payments - - - - - - - - - - - - = - -
Total Cash Paymants by Type 0312 | W3] 02| 0312 20 312 W3] 20321 012 0M2| WM2) 20 42| 002 243 12 266 750 283 468
HeCHEASCIIECREASS {15} {18} s [£1] 1] {15) {15} {15) {15) {15) (15) 118 {119) 93h i1 747
CASH HELD
Cashicash equivalents athg monbiyead 1130 1124 1108] 1084 1079 1064 1049 1034 | 1019] 1005 990 15 1139 360 115y
Cashicash equivalens atthe monbiyea] 1126] 1109] 109 ] 107% 1064 48] 1034 1019 | 1005 950 9% 2 960 137 11 TE)




2.9.8 Annual budgets and SDBIPs - internal departments

2.9.8.1 Water Services Department - Vote 14

The department is primarily responsible for the distribution of polable water within the
municipal boundary, which includes the purification of raw water, maintenance of the
reticulation network and implementation of the departmental capital programme.

There are currently no unfilled positions in the top management structure of the Water Services
Department. The top management structure consists of the Director of Infrastruciural and
Housing Services, three Managers who report directly to him.

The departmental strategy is ensuring the economic value and useful life of the water
reticulation network and infrastructure is maintained. The departmental revenue base is
primarily informed by the sale of water of which budget appropriation for the 2017/18 financial
year is and has been informed by a collection rate of 90 per cent and distribution losses of 12
per cent.

The establishment of a water demand management unit has proven to be extremely successful
with the reduction of distribution losses by 2.6 per cent for the 2016/17 financial year. The
further expansion of this unit will inevitably result in the further lowering of the distribution
losses, thus paying for the unit itself and effecting additional savings for the municipality.

2.10 Contracts having future budgetary implications

In terms of the Municipality's Supply Chain Management Policy, no contracts are awarded
beyond the medium-term revenue and expenditure framework (three years). In ensuring
adherence to this contractual time frame limitation, all reports submitted to either the Bid
Evaluation and Adjudication Committees must obtain formal financial comments from the
Financial Management Division of the Treasury Department.

2.11 Capital expenditure details

The following three table’s present details of the Municipality's capital expenditure programme,
firstly on new assets, then the renewal of assets and daftly on the repair and maintenance of
assels.




Table 47 MBRR SA 34a - Capital expenditure on new assets by asset class

NC073 Emihanjeni - Supporting Table SA34a Capital expenditure on new assats by asset class

Description Ref| 2093114 § 2014115 | 201516

Current Year 201617

2017118 Madium Term Revenua &
Expendlture Framework

R thousand

Audiled | Auditad | Audited

0 Qut 0

Orlginal
Budgst

Adjusied
Budget

Full Year
Forecast

Budget Year
2007118

Budget Year
+1 2018419

Budgei Year
+2 3019/20

Infrasiructurs

Capital excenditure on new assets by Asset Class/Sub-class

32292

14744

14 221

Roads inkastucure

12744

13 221

Roads

12 144

13221

Skorm wakr Infrasiructure

12 292

Sterm waler Conveyance

12292

Efecincal hirasrutiure

6000

2000

1000

HV Transmissan Conduclors

6 000

2000

1000

Water Supply Infrastuctura

14 000

Dams and Weirs

Borehoies

14 000

Santaton Infrasyuchre

Solid Waste inhasrucure

Rail hfastuchusre

Coastal fastrucure

Infomeaton and Commaunicaton

hirastucure = = =

Community Assets

Communily Fackbes

Sport and Recreation Facilbes

Invesiment properties

Revenue Generatng

Non-revenue Generatng

Othar_assats

Onerabonal Bukd:ngs

Housing

Intanaibly Asyely

Blological or Cultivated Avsats - - -

Licences and Rights

Computer Equipmeni

Machi L

Furnilyre and OHice Eouipmant - - -

Transport Assety

Librariss

’s, Marine 3 -bigl

al Anb - - =

|Total Capital Expenditure on new assets 1 - - -

32292

14 744

1411




Table 48 MBRR SA34b - Capital expenditure on the renewal of existing assets by asset class

NC73 Emthanjeni - Supporting Tahle SA34b Capital expenditure on the renewal of existing assets by

asset class

2017718 Medium Term Revenue &

Description Ref| 2314 | 200415 | 201516 Current Year 2617 Expendilure Framework
R thousand 3 Audited | Audited | Audited | Origina | Adjusted | Full Year | Budget Year | Budget Year | Budget Year
Cutcome | Outcome | Qutcome | Budgel | Budget | Forecast| 203718 | +# 2018149 | +2 2019120
Capital expenditure on rerewal of existing assels by Asset Class/Sub-class
Infrastructure - - - - - 140 3558 17
Roads fashuctse - - - - - 230 2926 1666
flads 2300 2926 13966
Storm water Infrasiuctue - - - - - - - -
Elecincal nkasiucture - - - - - 00 523 548
Captal Spares 00 523 548
Waier Supply Infstucture - - - - 2] ;] 2
Distnbution B0 84 28
Sanizion kfasiuciure - - - - - - - -
Sold Waste infrastruciure - - - - - n 2 K
Capital Spares 2 28 Kl
Rad Inkastuciure - - - - - - - -
Coastal kashnchire - - - - - - - -
fiermaton and Communicakan hrastructire - - - - 5 - - -
Comm uni_ﬂhsug - - - - - 15 152 158
Communiy Facikies - - - - - 120 125 131
Hals 105 10 115
Cemelenps/Cremalonia 13 16 15
Sparl and Recreaton Facilies - - - - - ) % Hi
Outdoor Facilties 5 % 7
Herifage asgelt - - - - - 5 = -
Invastmeni propertles - - - - - - - 5
Revemia Generaing - - - - - - - -
hon-mvenve Ceneraing - - - - - - - -
Other assely - - - - - hr!] pEl} 350
Cperalonal Buildings - - - - - 30 M 350
Manicipal Offices 0 IH 350
Housirg - - - - - - - -
Biolonical or Cultivated Assets - - - - - - - -
Inlangible Assets - - - - - 680 m 745
Licences and Righls - - - - - 630 m 45
Comptter Softaare and Applicalions 0] m 45
Computer Equipment - - - - - 1830 177 1862
Computer Equipment 163 i 1862
Furpiture and Offtce Equipment - - - - - 5 181 190
Fumture and Office Equipment 5 181 190
Machingty and Equipment - - - - - Lt 1 186
Mackénery and Equipment 14 mn 186
Tﬂsgnft Assels - - - - - - - -
Zo0's, Marina and Non.blolegical Animals - - - - = = - =
Total Capital Expenditure on renewal of existing assets 1 - - - - - 6§50 §387 Tur




Table 49 MBRR SA34c - Repairs and maintenance expenditure by asset class

NC073 Emthanjend - Supporting Table SA34¢ Repairs and maintenance expenditure by asset class
Description Rt | 20w | 20tns | 20086 | Curront Year 201617 2047118 Medium Term Reverlue &
Expenditure Framework
R thousand Audited | Audited | Audited | Original | Adjusted | Full Year | Budget Year| Budget Year] Budget Year
Quiteme | Outtoma | Ouicoma | Budget | Sudget | Forecast] 2017718 +1 201819 | +22H%20
Rapairs and maintenarca expendilure by Asset ClassiSub-class
Infrastructura - - - - - - 3891 4045 4
Roads nkastucture - - - - - - 39 383 400
Roads 39 38 400
Storm waler hrastucture - - - - - - 13%6 9 365
Storm water Conveyance 3% U9 365
Elecrical Infrastucture - - - - - - iREA 18N 18680
RV Transmissaon Conducions 1197 124 129
Capital Spares 536 557 581
Waler Supply Snkaskucture - - - - - - 1380 1435 149
Darns and Weirs 225 H 244
Disinbution 1155 1200 1254
Sanialion Infrastructure - - - - - - 74 77 81
Reliculation 4 7 81
Soid Waste Infrastruchure - - - - - - - - -
Ral hrastucume - - - - - - - - -
Coastal Wrasruchure - - - - - - = = -
Informaton and Communicaton niasructurg - - - - - - - - -
Commupity Asggls - - - - - - 234 234 2479
Community Facilites - - - - - - 2190 225 234
Capdal Spares 2150 2235 234
Sport and Recreaton Facites - - - - - - 1 19 145
Intloar Faciities
Quidoor Facdities 14 133 145
Capital Spares
t 1 1 1 t 1 1 1 1
|Heritage assety = - - - - - - - -
Investment properties - - - - - - - - -
Revenue Generabng - - - - - - - - -
Non-revenua Generatng - - - - - - - - -
Qthet assaty - - - - - - 2100 2183 2280
Operatonat Buldings - - - - - - 2100 2183 2280
Muncipal Offices 1902 1978 2066
Capial Spares 197 206 2t
iousing - - - = = - - - =
Blologleal or Cullivated Asyets - - - - - = = = -
1 ibls Assat - - - - - - 1708 1175 1835
Licences and Rights - - - - - - 1708 1775 1955
Computer Software and Applications 1708 1775 1 855
Computsr Equipmeny - - - - - - 6% 728 760
Compuer Equipment 699 728 760
Furniture and Offics Equipment - - - - - - ki) 108 1084
Furniture and Ofice Equipment %9 1038 1084
Machinery and Equipment - - - - - - 1079 12 117
Machmery and Equpment 1079 12 111
Transport Assely - - - - - - 6047 6286 6564
Transpon Assels 6047 6 286 6 564
{Libraries - - - - - - = = =
Zoo's, Maring an -biologicy) Animal - - - - - - - - -
Totz) Repairs and Maintananes Expendibete - - - - - - 18 807 13 551 0415




2.12 Legislation compliance status

Compliance with the MFMA implementation requirements have been substantially adhered to
through the following activities:

1. In year reporting
Reporting to National Treasury in electronic format was fully complied with on a monthly
basis. Section 71 reporting to the Executive Mayor (within 10 working days) has
progressively improved and includes monthly published financial performance on the
Municipality's website.

2. Internship programme
The Municipality is participating in the Municipal Financial Management Internship
programme and has employed five interns undergoing training in various divisions of the
Financial Services Department. Three interns have been appointed, recruitment process
have commenced for the appointment of another three. Since the introduction of the
Internship programme the Municipalily has successfully employed and trained 5 interns
through this programme and a majority of them were appointed either in the Municipality or
ather Institutions. The interns were trained by institutions such as Kgolo Instilute, KPMG,
Ernest &Young, SARS, Auditor General, and National Treasury.

3. Budget and Treasury Office
The Budget and Treasury Office has been established in accordance with the MFMA.,

4. Audit Committee

An Audit Committee has been established and is fully functional. Capacitation training will
be provided to Audit Committee members.

5. Service Delivery and Implementation Plan

The detail SDBIP document is at a draft stage and will be Draftised after approval of the
2017/18 MTREF in June 2017 directly aligned and informed by the 2017/18 MTREF.

6. Annual Report
Annual report is compiled in terms of the MFMA and National Treasury requirements.
7. MFMA Training

The MFMA training module in electronic format is presented at the Municipality's internal
centre and training is cngoing.

8. Policies

An amendment of the Municipal Property Rates Regulations as published in Government
Notice 363 of 27 March 2009, was announced in Government Gazette 33016 on 12 March
2010. The ratios as prescribed in the Regulations have been complied with.




2.130ther supporting documents
Table 50 MBRR Table SA1 - Supporting detail to budgeted financial performance
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Table 51 MBRR Table SA2 — Matrix financial performance budget (revenue
source/expenditure type and department)
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Table 52 MBRR Table SA3 — Supporting detail to Statement of Financial Position

NC073 Emthanjeni - Supporting Table SA3 Supportinging delail to ‘Budgeted Financial Position’

201718 Madium Term Revenue &
Expenditurs Framework

Audited | Audited | Audited | Original | Adjusied | Full Year | Pre-audit| Budget Year | Budget Year | Budget Year

Outcoma | Oulcoms | Outcoms | Budget | Budget | Forecast | owicome] 2017118 +1 2018119 § +2 201920

2013114 | 209415 | 2015116 Current Year 2016/17
Description Rel

R thousand
ASSETS

i in:

Call depasits 9571 909 8638
Total Call investment deposits 2 - - - - - - - 9571 9092 B 638
Consymer deblors

Consumer debiors 3387 33617 15611

Provigion br debl mparrmen (9 578)| 19 463) {10 670}
Total Consumer dabiors 2 - - - - - - - 23 509 4214 14 940
Dsbt impalrment provision
Coninbubons I tha provision 9 678 9463 19 670
Balante at end of year - - - - - - - 3678 9 463 10 670
Prope lant and equipm ent (PP
PPE 8t cosyvaluaton (excl, inance leases) 1012 484 1024 979 1038 041
Accymul ¢ 64 879 67 798 71188
Total Propeity, plant and equipment {PPE)} 2 - - - - - - - 947 605 957 181 966 853
LIABILITIES
Currani labilitles - Borrowing
Total Current liabllitles - Borrowing - - - - - - - - - -
Tra Il

Trada and other crediors 19127 19 510 19 500
Total Trade and other payables 2 - - - - - - - 1927 19 510 18 900
Non_current liabillties - Borrowing
Tatal Non current liabllitles - Borrowing - - - - - - - - - -

i . -Cyrr
Ratrement benefls 33 258 33 955 3651
List other major provision ilems
Fafusa landtil s:v rahathtaton 75 80 81
Qiher J 459 3454 3 546
Total Provisions - non-current - - - - - - - 15 792 37 528 B

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

A la u []
Accumulated SurplusfiDeberd) - opaning balance 979 358 976 700 1 008 527
GRAP adjustments
Restited balance - = - - - - - 979 358 976 100 1008 527
SurplesiiDetc - - - - - - - 14 (45 25765 {18!
Aceumulated Surplus/(Deficit) 1 - - - - - - - 993403 | 1002 465 1008 209
Resarves = = =

TOTAL COMMUNITY WEALTHIEQUITY 2 - = = - d - - 991 403 1002 485 1008 209




Table 53 MBRR Table SA9 - Sccial, economic and demographic statistics and assumptions
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2.14 Municipal Manager Quality Certificate

b, j}ﬁ /L / J'J,g ..... municipal manager of Emthanjeni Municipality, heraby certify
ihat the Drait AnnGal Budget and Supporting Documentation have been prepared in
accordance with the Municipal Finance Management Act and the reguialions made under the

Act, and that ihe annual budget and supporting documents are consistent with the Integrated
Development Plan of the municipalily.

— 772 %rm’{/

Municipal manager of Em i Municipality (NCO73)

Signalure

v/ / “
Date 30 March 2017
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MFMA Municipal Finance Management Act

MPRA Municipal Property Rates Act and MPRA Amendments Act
MSA Municipal Systems Act

NCA National Credit Act

SAPOA South African Property Owners Association
SARS South African Revenue Services

VAT Value Added Tax
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Emthanjeni Municipality Draft Municipal Property Rates Policy 2017/18 MTERF

1. PURPOSE OF THIS DOCUMENT

This purpose of this Policy is to set out the guiding principles and legislative requirements that governs the compilation and
management of the municipal Valuation Roll. This policy should at all times be read together with the Municipa) Property
Rates Ac, 2004 AND the Municipat Property Rates Amendments Act, 2015.
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Emthanjeni Municipality Draft Municipal Property Rates Policy 2718 MTERF

2.

DEFINITIONS

In this policy, definitions, words and expressions have the same meanings as assigned to them in the Act, unless the

context indicates otherwise: -

"accommodation” means accommodation in an accommodation establishment, a room, dwelling/ house or second

dwelling unit, self-catering room, self-catering apartment or free standing building let to transient guests consisting of three
or more lettable units;

“accommodation establishments” - consists of one or mare of the following lettable types of accommodation, consisting

of three or more lettable units -

(a)

(b)

(<}

{d)

(e)

(f)

{9)

(h)

“Camping” (informal temporary accommodation in a unique environment) is defined by a property used for erection
of tents or other temporary structures for temporary accommaodation for visitors or holiday-makers, which includes
ablution, cooking and other facilities that are reasonably and ordinarily related to camping , for use of such visitors,
and includes a caravan park, whether publicly or privately owned, but which excludes the alienation of land on the
basis of time sharing, sectional title share blocks or individual subdivision; and excludes resort accommodation or
mobile homes;

“Bed and Breakfast” (accommodation in a dwelling-house or second dwelling unit for transient guests) is defined by
a dwelling-house or second dwelling in which the owner of the dwelling supplies lodging and meals for compensation
to transient guests who have permanent residence elsewhere; provided that the primary use of the dwelling-house
concerned shall remain for the living accommadation of a single family and where not more than 3 guest rooms are
provided;

“Guest House” is defined by a dwelling-house which is used for the purpose of supplying lodging and meals to
transient guests for compensation, in an establishment which exceeds the restrictions of a bed and breakfast
establishment and may include business meetings, training sessions and conference facilities for resident
guests; (includes Self Catering units)

"Bed and Breakfasts” establishment means a dwelling house or second dwelling unit in which the occupant of the
dwelling house supplies lodging and meals for remuneration to transient guests who have permanent residence
alsewhere

“Self catering Accommodation” {(accommodation for non-permanent residents and transient guests) is defined by a
house, cottage, chalet, bungalow, flat, studio, apartment, villa, or similar accommodation where facilities and
equipment are provided for guests to cater for themselves. The facilities should be adequate to cater for the
maximum advertised number of residents the facility can accommodate;

“Self catering Apartments” (accommodation for non-permanent residents and transient guests) is defined by a
building or group of buildings consisting of separate accommodation units, each incorporating a kitchen / -ette
facility, and which may include other communal facilities for the use of transient guests, together with outbuildings
as are normally used therewith; which are rented for residential purposes and may include holiday flats; but does
not include a hotel, dwelling-house, second dwelling or group house;

“Backpackers Accommodation” {accommodation and communal facilities in a building or free standing buildings for
transient guests) is defined by a building where lodging is provided, and may incorporate cooking dining and
communal facilities for the use of lodgers, together with such outbuildings as are normally used therewith and
includes a building in which dormitories/rooms/beds are rented for residential purposes, youth hostel, and
backpackers’ lodge; but does not include a hotel, dwelling house, second dwelling or group house;

"Boarding House"” a dwelling-house or second dwelling which is used for the purpose of supplying lodging with or
without meals or self catering to non permanent/permanent residents for compensation; provided that the primary
use of the dwelling-house shall remain for the living accormmaodation of a single family,;
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Emthanjeni Municipality Draft Municipal Property Rates Policy 201718 MTERF
“Act” - means the Local Government: Municipal Property Rates Act, 2004 {Act No 6 of 2004) and any amendment thereof;
“annually” - means ance every financial year;

“business and commercial property” - means -

(a) property used for the activity of buying, selling or trading in commodities or services and includes any office or other
accommodation on the same property, the use of which is incidental to such activity; or

(b) property on which the administration of the business of private or public entities take place;

“Calendar year” shall mean 12 consecutive months of a financial year(s);

llcategowﬂ' -
(a) in relation to a property, means a category of properties determined in terms of section 8(2) of the Act;
(b) in relation to the owners of property, means a category of owners determined in terms of section 15(2) of the Act;

“conservation area” -

(a) a protected area as listed in section 10 of the Protected Areas Act, 2003;

(b) a nature reserve established in accordance with the Nature and Environment Conservation Qrdinance, no 19 of
1974, or

(<) any land area zoned as open area zone 1l in accordance with the Municipality’s zoning scheme regulations;
provided that such protected areas, nature reserves or land areas, with the exception of tourism facilities that may
be erected thereupon, be used exclusively for the conservation of the fauna and flora and the products of those land
areas may not be traded for commercial gain;

“exclusion” - in relation to a Municipality's rating power, means a restriction of that power as provided for in sections 16
and 17 of the Act;

“exemption™ - in respect of the calculation of a rate means an exemption granted in terms of section 15(1)(a) of the Act;

"“farm property or small holding used for agricultural purpose’” - means property that is used for the cultivation of
soils for purposes of planting and gathering in of crops; forestry in the context of the planting or growing of trees in a
managed and structured fashion; the rearing of livestock and game or the propagation and harvesting of fish, but
excludes the use of a property for the purpose of eco-tourism; OR for the trading in hunting of game, accommodation of
members of the public for gain, and in the respect of property on which game is reared, trade or hunted, it excludes any
portion that is used for commercially for the hospitality of guests, or business purposes. in this definition such
properties could also be included within the urban edge of a town;

As per MPRA, sec 9(1)(B), the dominant use of the property will be the determining
factor to determine the category

“farm property or small holding not used for any purpose” - means agricultural property or an agricultural zoned
land which is not used for farming purposes, regardless of whether such portion of such property has a dwelling on it which
is used as a dwelling and must be regarded as residential property;

As per MPRA, sec 9(1)(B), the dominant use of the property will be the determining
factor to determine the category
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"“Renewable Solar Energy farm or property and Wind Farms” - means agricultural land as defined in the Subdivision
of Agricultural Land Act, 70 of 1970, on which energy producing sofar energy panels have been erected for the purpose of
generating electricity, but which are dually used for agricultural purposes as defined as defined under “agricultural use”,
which are dually utilise and inctudes all land situated in the demarcated municipal area.

As per MPRA, sec 9(1)(B), the dominant use of the property will be the determining
factor to determine the category

“Wind Farms” - means agricultural land as defined in the Subdivision of Agricultural Land Act, 70 of 1970, on which
energy-producing windmills or wind turbines have been erected for the purpose of generating electricity, but which are
dually used for agricultural purposes as defined as defined under "agricultural use”, which are dually utilise and includes alt
land situated in the demarcated municipal area.

As per MPRA, sec 9(1)(B), the dominant use of the property will be the determining
factor to determine the category

“financial year” - the period starting from 1 July in a year to 30 June the following year;

“industrial property” - means property used for construction, repair, trade or manufacturing, production, assembly or
processing of finished or partially finished products from raw materials or fabricated parts on such a large scale that capital
and labour are significantly involved, and includes any office or other accommodation on the same property, the use of
which is incidental to such activity;

“local community” - in relation to the Municipality -
{a} means that body of persons comprising -
{i) the residents of the Municipality;
(i) the rate payers of the Municipality;
(i)  any civic organisations and non-governmental, private sector or labour organisations or bodies which are
involved in local affairs within the Municipality; and
(iv)  visitors and other people residing outside the Municipality, who, because of their presence in the Municipality,
make use of servicas or facilities provided by the Municipality; and
{b) includes, more specifically, the poor and other deprived sections of such bedy of persons;

“jocal Municipality” - a Municipality that shares municipal executive and legislative authority in its area with a district
Municipality within whose area it falls and which is described in section 155(1) of the Constitution as a category 8
Municipality;

“market value” - in relation to a property, means the value of the property determined in accordance with section 46 of
the Act;

“multiple purposes” - in relation to a property, means the use of a property for more than one purpose as intended in
section 9 of the Act;

Multi-purpose in relation to a property, shall mean a property partially used for the gencration of
renewable energy. The solar/wind farm portion shall be classified as commercial use with the remamder
of the property based on the dominant use of said remander.
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“municipal council” or “"council” - is a municipal council referred to in section 18 of the Municipal Structures Act, 1998
{Act No 117 of 1998);

“municipal manager” - means a person appointed in terms of section 82 of the Municipal Structures Act, 1998 (Act No
117 of 1998);

“municipal property” - is property registered or established in the name of the Example Municipality;

“Municipality” -

(a) as a corporate entity means a Municipality as described in section 2 of the Municipal Systems Act, 2000 {Act No 32 of
2000); and

(b) as a geographical area, means a municipal area demarcated in terms of the Local Government: Municipal
Demarcation Act, 1998 (Act No 27 of 1998);

“occupier” - in respect of a property means a person in actual occupation of a property, whether or not that person has a
right to occupy the property;

“open space” - means land that is used as a park, garden, for passive leisure or maintained in its natural state and that is

zoned as open space;

“owner'-
(a) in relation to a praoperty referred to in paragraph (a) of the definition of “property”, means a person in whose name
ownership of the property is registered;
(b) in relation to a right referred to paragraph () of the definition of “property” means a person in whose name the
right is registered;
(c} in relation to a land tenure right referred to in paragraph (c) of the definition of “property” means a person in whose
name the right is registered or to whom it was granted in terms of legislation; or
(d) in relation to public service infrastructure referred to in paragraph (d} of the definition of “property”, means the
organ of state which owns or controls that public service infrastructure, as envisaged in the definition in the Act of
the term “publicly controlled” provided that a person mentioned below may for the purposes of this Act be regarded
by a Municipality as the owner of a property in the following cases:-
(i) a trustee, in the case of a property in a trust, excluding state trust land;
{ii) an executor or administrator, in the case of a property in a deceased estate (the applicant must produce a
letter from the Master of the Court or appropriate legal proof to substantiate the appointment);
{iii)  a trustee or liquidator, in the case of a praperty in an insolvent estate or in liquidation;
{iv) & judicial manager, in the case of a property in the estate of a person under judicial management;
{v) a curator, in the case of a property in the estate of a person under curatorship;
(vi) 2 person in whose name a usufruct or other personal servitude is registered, in the case of a property that is
subject to a usufruct or other personal servitude (the applicant must produce a letter from the Master of the
Court or appropriate legal proof to substantiate the appointment);
{vii) a lessee, in the case of a property that is registered in the name of a Municipality and is leased by it;
(viii} a buyer, in the case of a property that was sold by a municipality and of which possession was given to the
buyer pending registration of ownership in the name of the buyer;
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Y

“permitted use” - in respect of a property means the limited purposes for which a property may be used in terms of the
following -
(a} any restrictions imposed by -
(i) a condition of title; or
[ii) a provision of a town planning or fand use scheme; or
(it}  any legislation applicable to any specific property or properties; or
(b) any alleviation of any such restrictions;

“private open space” means land that is privately owned and used for practising of sport, play- or leisure facilities or used
as a botanical garden, cemetery or nature area and which is joined as Private Open Space;

“privately owned townships serviced by the owner” - means single properties (group housing or single residential
erven), situated in an area not ordinarily being serviced by the Municipality, divided through subdivision or township
establishment in (ten or more) full-title stands and/or sectional title units and where all rates-related services inclusive of
installation and maintenance of streets, roads, sidewalks, lighting, storm water drainage facilities, parks and recreation
facilities, are installed at the full cost of the developer and are rendered and maintained by the residents, Home owners
association or management companies/ bodies of such estate;

“property” - means

(a) immovable property registered in the name of a person, including, in the case of a sectional title scheme, a sectional
title unit registered in the name of a person;

(b) a right registered against immovable property in the name of a person, excluding a mortgage bond registered
against the property;

(c) a land tenure right registered in the name of a person or granted to a person in terms of legislation; or

(d}) public services infrastructure;

“property register” - a register of properties referred to in section 23 of the Act;

“public benefits organisation” means an crganisation conducting specified public benefit activities as defined in the act
and registered in terms of the Incomne Tax Act for tax reductions because of tis activities.

“rate” - a municipal rate on a property envisaged in section 229(1)(a) of the Constitution;

“rateable property” - means property on which a Municipality may in terms of section 2 of the Act levy a rate, excluding
property fully excluded from the levying of rates in terms of section 17 of the Act;

“rebate” - in relation to a rate payable on a property, means a discount granted in terms of section 15 of the Act on the
amount of the rate payable on the property;

“reduction” - in respect of 3 rate payable on a property, means the lowering of the amount for which the property was
valued and the rating of that property at that lower amount;

“residential property” - means improved property that:-

(a) is used predominantly (60% or more) for residential purposes, including any adjoining property registered in the
name of the same owner and used together with such residential property as if it were one property. Any such
grouping shall be regarded as one residential property for rate rebate or valuation reduction purposes, if still used
dominantly for residential purposes;

{b) is a unit registered in terms of the Sectional Title Act and is used predominantly for residential purposes;
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{c) is owned by a share-block company and is used predominantly for residential purposes;

(d) is a residence used for residential purposes situated on a property used for educational purposes;

(e} is property which is included as residential in a valuation list in terms of section 48(2){b) of the Act;

(F) are retirement schemes and life right schemes used predominantly (60% or more) for residential purposes;

vacant properties {empty stands), hotels, hostels, old-age homes and accommodation establishments, irrespective of their
zoning or intended use, have been specifically excluded from this property category;

“*small holding” - means
(a} all agricultural zoned land units situated within an urban region with an area of one to three hectares; or

{b) any agricultural zoned land unit situated outside an urban region with an area of three hectares or less;

“public service infrastructure” - section 13 of the Amendment Act amends section 17(1) which prohibits the rating of
these category of property;

"“public services purposes” - property used by an organ of state for rendering of a service directly to the public such as
Health, education, police stations, court of law but exclude property contemplated in the definition of “Public Service

Infrastructure”

"state owned property” - excludes any property included in the valuation roll under the category ‘residential property’ or
‘vacant land’;

“vacant property” - means any land without any improvements thereon.

“Valuation roll” - means the general valuation roll 2017 with effective date 01 July 2017 and date of valuation 01 July
2016
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OBJECTIVES OF THE POLICY

The objectives of this policy are: -

31

3.2

3.2.1
3.2.2
323
3.2.4
325

3.3

331
3.3.2

3.4

3.5

3.5.1
3.5.2

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

to comply with the provisions of section 3 of the Act;

to determine criteria to be applied for -

levying differential rates for different property categories;
exemptions;

reductions;

rebates; and

rate increases,

to determine or provide criteria for the determination of the following -

property categories for the purpose of tevying different rates; and
categories of owners of properties for the purpose of granting exemptions, rebates and reductions;

to determine how the Municipality's power should be exercised in terms of multiple-used properties;

to identify and quantify the following for the Municipality in terms of costs and the benefit for the commumty

exemptions, rebates and reductions; and
exclusions,

to take into account the effect of rates on the indigent;

to take into account the effect of rates on organisations that perform activities for public benefit;

to take into account the effect of rates on the public services infrastructure;

to determine measures for promoting local economic and social development; and

to identify all rateable revenue not being rated.
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3. CONSTITUTIONAL AND LEGAL FRAMEWORK

The Municipal Property Rates Act, 2004 forms the legal basis of this policy. However, the following additional legal
references were observed during the compilation of this policy:-

. Municipal Finance Management Act, 2003;

. Municipal Systems Act, 2000;

. Municipal Property Rates Policy, as reviewed annually; and

. Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, 1996 as amended.

4. APPROVAL AND EFFECTIVE DATE

The Chief Financial Officer {CFQ) is responsible for the submission of the Policy to Council to consider its adoption after
consultation with the AOQ. Council shall indicate the effective date for implementation of the policy.

The policy will take effect on 01 July 2017

5. POLICY PRINCIPLES

5.1 Apart from meeting legislative requirements, this policy also emanates from the objectives determined in
Council’'s anti-corruption policy.

5.2 The levying of rate on a property is an exclusive right of the Municipality which will be exercised:-

5.2.1 optimally and comprehensively within the Municipality; and

5.2.2 with consideration of the total revenue source of the Municipality.

5.3 The rating of properties will be done independently, justly, equitably and without prejudice and this principle witl

also be applied with the determination of criteria for exemptions, reductions and rebates as provided for in
saction 15 of the Act.

5.4 The levying of property rates must be implemented in such a way that: -
5.4.1 it is aimed at development;
5.4.2 it promotes sustainable local government by providing a stable and constant revenue source within the

discretionary control of the Municipality; and

5.4.3 it promotes economic, social and local development.

5.5 Property rates will be levied to: -

5.5.1 correct the imbalances of the past; and

5.5.2 minimise the effect of rates on the indigent.

5.6 The market value of a property serves as basis for the calculation of property rates.

57 The rate tariff will be based on the value of all rateable properties, as per general valuation roll 2017 and

supplementary valuation rolls applicable, and the amount the Municipality needs to fund community and
subsidised services, after taking into account any pessible surplus generated froam trading and economic services
and the amounts required to finance exemptions, rebates and reductions of rate, as approved by council from
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5.8

3.9

time to time.

Trade and economic services will be financially ring fenced and tariffs and service charges will as far as possible
be calculated in such a way that the revenue generated covers the cost of the services or generate a surplus.

The provision for operating capital and bad debt must be related to community and subsidised services and must
not include any provisions in respect of trade and economic services.

Property rates will be used to finance community and subsidised services.

Surpluses from trade and economic services may be used to subsidise community and subsidised services,

The revenue basis of the Municipality will be optimally protected by limiting the exemptions, rebates and
reductions.

6. CATEGORISATION OF SERVICES

6.1

6.1.1
7.1.2.1
7.1.2.2

6.1.2
7.1.2.3
7.1.2.4

7.1.3

7.1.3.1
7.1.3.2
7.1.3.3
7.1.3.4

7.1.3.5
7.1.36
7.1.3.7
7.1.38
7.1.3.9
7.1.3.10
7.1.3.11
7.1.3.12
7.1.3.13
7.1.3.14
7.1.3.15
7.1.3.16
e lok 10? b/
7.1.3.18

The Chief Financial Officer must, subject to the guidelines provided by the National Treasury and Mayoral
Committee of councit, make provision for the following categories of municipal services: -

Trade services
Water
Electricity

Economic services
Waste removal

Sewerage

Community services

Air pollution

Local tourism

Municipal planning

Municipal public works, in respect of the needs of the Municipality in the execution ¢f its responsibilities and to
administer functions specially assigned to the Municipality under the Constitution or any other law
Storm water management systems in built-up areas

Trade regulations

Advertising billboards and the display of advertisements in public places

Cemeteries

Control of public nuisances

Control over undertakings that sell aleohol to the public

Township development

Facilities for accommodation, care and burial of animals

Fencing and fences

Licensing of dogs

Licensing and control of undertakings that sell food to the public

Local amenities

Local sport facilities

Municipal parks and recreation
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7.1.3.19
7.1.3.20
7.1.3.21
7.1.3.22
7.1.3.23
7.1.3.24
7.1.3.25
7.1.3.26
7.1.3.27
7.1.3.28
7.1.3.29
7.1.3.30
7.1.3.31
7.1.3.32

Municipal rcads

Noise pollution

Pounds

Public places

Street trading / Street lighting

Traffic contrel and parking

Building control

Licensing of vehictes and vehicle permits
Nature reserves

Child-care facilities

Ferry boats, jetties, piers and harbours
Markets

Cleaning

Beaches and entertainment facilities.

7. CATEGORIES OF PROPERTIES

7.1

7.1.1
7.1.2
7.1.3

7.2

7.2.1
7.2.2
7.2.3

7.2.4
7.2.5
7.2.6
7.26.1
7.2.6.2
7.2.6.3
7.264

7.2.7
7.2.8
7.2.8.1
7.2.8.2
7.2.8.3
7.2.8.4
7.2.8.5
7.2.9
7.2.10

Subject to section 19 of the Act, Example Municipality may, in terms of the criteria set out in its rates policy, levy
different rates for different categories of rateable properties, which may include categories determined according
to the (SAPOA vs City of Johannesburg (648/20111)[2012] ZASCA 157 (8 November 2012)): -

Predominant use of the property;

permitted use of the property; or

geographical area in which the property is situated.

Categories of rateable property that may be determined in terms of paragraph 5 include the following: -

residential (improved property);

property that is vacant {empty stands) with zoning or proposed use earmarked for residential;

property that is vacant {empty stands) with zoning or proposed use earmarked for industrial, business or
commercial;

industrial;

business, commercial;

farm properties used for -

agricultural purposes as defined in paragraph 2 under definitions;

residential purposes as defined in paragraph 2 under definitions;

Farms Commercial or Industrial in paragraph 2 under definitions

Properties ar sections of properties (solar renewable paneis and windmills or wind turbines) where renewable
energy are generated which were specifically rezoned, where portions or properties are rented or leased to Solar
Businesses and where rental income is generated as defined in paragraph 2 under definitions

farm properties not used for any purpose;

smallholdings used for -

agricultural purposes;

residential purposes;

industrial purposes;

commercial and business purposes; or

purpases other than those specified in subparagraphs (8.3.8.1) to (8.3.8.4).

state-owned property and public service purpose;

municipal property; also municipal leased house or RDP houses awaiting transfer will be categorised to residential

Page 11 of 25



Emthanjeni Municipality Draft Municipal Property Rates Policy 2017/18 MTERF

7.2.11
7.2.12
7.2.12.1

7.2.12.2

7.2.13
7.2.14

7.2.15

7.2.16

7.2.17

7.2.18

7.2.19

7.2.20

public services infrastructure (PSI;

properties

acquired through the Provision of Land and Assistance Act, 1993 {Act No 126 of 1993) or the Restitution of Land
Rights Act, 1994 {(Act No 22 of 1994); or

which is subject to the Communal Property Associations Act, 1996 (Act No 28 of 1996);

properties: places of worship (churches, mosques, synagogue’s, etc.}
properties: places of worship (churches, mosgues, synagogue's, etc.)- vacant property

protected areas;

properties owned by public benefit organisations and used for any specific public benefit activities listed in Part 1
of the Ninth Schedule to the Income Tax Act, 1962 (Act No 58 of 1962);

properties used for multiple purposes, subject to section 9 of the Act;

Properties or sections of properties (solar renewable panels and windmills or wind turbines) where renewable
energy are generated which were specifically rezoned, where portions or properties are rented or leased to Solar
Businesses and where rental income is generated as defined in paragraph 2 under definitions
accommeodation establishments;

private open space; and

such other categories as may be determined by the council from time to time.

8. CATEGORISATION OF OWNERS

8.1

§.1.1

8.1.2
8.1.2.1
§.1.2.2
§.1.3
§.1.4
8.1.5
8.1.6
8.1.7
8.1.8
8.1.9

For the purpose as described in section 3.2.1 of the policy the following categories of owners will be recognised in
terms of section 15(2) of the Act:-

Those owners who qualify and who are registered as indigent in terms of the adopted indigent policy of the
Municipality;

Owners of properties situated within an area affected by: -

a disaster within the meaning of the Disaster Management Act, 2002 (Act No 57 of 2002); or

any serious adverse social or economic conditions.

Owners of agricultural properties as referred to in clause 12.1.1 of this policy;

Owners of farm properties that are used for residential purposes;

Owners of farm properties that are used for industrial, commercial and business purposes;

Owners of smallholdings used for residential purpeses;

Owners of smallholdings used for industrial, commercial and business purposes; and

Owners of developed properties not yet sold and transferred.

Owners or Occupiers of farm properties that are used for renewable energy or renewable solar energy and wingd
mills or wind turbines

9. DIFFERENTIAL RATING

9.1

Criteria for differential rating on different categories of properties in terms of section 8(1) of the Act will be
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9.1.1

9.1.2

9.2

9.3

according to -

the nature of the property including its sensitivity to rating, e.g. agricultural properties used for agricultural
purposes; and

the promotion of social and economic development within the Municipality.

Differential rating among the various property categories will be done by way of setting a different cent amount
in the rand for each property category; and

by way of reductions and rebates as provided for in this policy document.

10. EXEMPTIONS

10.1

10.1.1
11.1.1.2
11.1.1.3

11.1.1.4

11.1.1.5

11.1.1.6

11.1.1.7

11.1.1.8

10.2

Categories of properties

The following property categories are exempt from the payment of property rates: -

Municipal properties are exempted from paying property rates,

Residential properties

All residential property with a market value of less than the amount as annually determined by the Municipality,
are exempted from paying property rates. The impermissible rates of R15 000 contemplated in terms of section
17(1)}(h) of the Act and can be supplemented by council based on affordability, ratepayer profile and the
municipality's predetermined level of support to the poor.

Publi rvice Infr r

Is exempted from paying rates as it provides essential services to the community.

Public Benefit Organisations —

Public Benefit Organisation Property means property owned by public benefit organisations and used for any
specified public benefit activity listed in item 1 (welfare and humanitarian), item 2 (health care), and

item 4 (education and development} of part 1 of the Ninth Schedule to the Income Tax Act. The current property
rates levy ratio of (1:0.25) in relation to residential property and PBO wilt be applicable.

Exemptions in 11.1.1.1 to 11.1,1.4 will automaticaliy apply and no application is thus required by the owners of
such property.

A rate-exemption certificate as issued by the South African Revenue Service (SARS), as contemplated in terms of
Part 1 of the Ninth Schedule to the Income Tax Act, 1962 (Act No 58 of 1962), may be submitted together with
the application.

The Municipality retains the right to refuse the application for exemption if the details supplied in the application
were incomplete, incarrect or false.

Impermissible Rates

In terms of section 17(1} of the Property Rates Act, 2004, the Municipality may, inter alia, not levy rates: -

10.2.1

10.2.2

on those parts of a special nature reserve, national park or nature reserve within the meaning of the National
Envircnmental Management: Protected Areas Act, 2003 (Act No 57 of 2003), or of a national botanical garden
within the meaning of the National Environmental Management Biodiversity Act, 2004 {Act No 10 of 2004), which
are not developed or used for commercial, business, residential or agricultural purposes.

on mineral rights within the meaning of paragraph (b) of the definition for "property” in section 1 of the Act.
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10.2.3 on a property belonging to a land reform beneficiary or his or her heirs, provided that the exclusion lapses ten
years from the date on which such beneficiary's title was registered in the Deeds register.

10.2.4 on a property registered in the name of and primarily used as a place of public worship, including an official
residence registered in the name of the church that is occupied by an office-bearer who acts as officiant of the
church,

11, REBATES

11.1 <Categories of properties

11.1.1 Busin mmercial andg in rial i
11.1.1.1 The Municipality may grant rebates to rateable undertakings that promote local, social or economic development
within the municipal jurisdiction. The following criteria will apply: -
{a) job creation in the municipal area;
(b) social upliftment of the local community; and
(c) creation of infrastructure for the benefit of the community.
11.1.1.2 Rebates will be granted on application subject to: -
(a) a business plan issued by the directors of the company indicating how the local, social and econocmic
development objectives of the Municipality are going to be met;
() a continuation plan issued by the directors and certified by the auditors stating that the objectives have been met
and how they plan to continue meeting the objectives; and
(3] an assessment by the municipal manager or his/her nominee indicating that the company qualifies.
11.1.1.3 Council will consider all LED requests on an individual basis according to merits.
11.1.2 R ricultural pr:
11.1,2.1 the Municipality grants additional rates rebate (as set out below) in respect of properties used for agricultural
purposes only, after to the current property rates levy ratio of (1:0.25) is applied, which is the applicable rate for
properties used for agricultural purposes
Financial Year % Percentage Rebate Application date
2016/2017 28% 31 August 2016
2017/2018 25% 31 August 2017
2018/2019 18% 31 August 2018
2019/2020 10% 31 August 2019
11.1.2.2 1In terms of section 84 of the Act the Minister for Provincial and Locai Gevernment, and in concurrence with the
Minister of Finance as required through section 19 of the Act, may determine that a rate levied by council on a
category of non-residential property may not exceed a prescribed ratio to the tariff levied on residential
properties. In the absence of any such promulgation the Municipality will apply a standard ratio for agricultural
properties from 1:0.25 {75% impermissible on the tariff for residential properties). Before the start of 2009/2010
financial year the Minister had promulgated a ratio of 1:0.25 which remains unchanged for the 2016/2017
financial year. The Amendment Municipal Property Rates Act gives more clear interpretations on the ratio
{1:0.25).
11.1,2.3 The granting of additional rebates is subject to the following: -
{a) All applications must be addressed in writing to the Municipal Manager indicating how service delivery and

development obligations of the Municipality and contribution to the social and economic welfare of farm workers
were met, This application will be required as a once-off requirement;
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(b}

(c)

(d)

11.1.2.4

Any new applications must be addressed in writing to the Municipality by 31 August of the financial year in
respect of which the application is made. Applications are only valid for one financial year.

Council reserves the right to send officials or its agents on an annual basis to premises/households receiving
relief for the purposes of conducting an on-site audit of the details supplied. The onus also rests on recipients to
immaediately notify Council of any changes in their original applications; and

The Municipality retains the right to refuse applications for rebates if the details supplied in the application form
were incomplete, incorrect or false.

No other rebates will be granted to properties that qualify for the agricultural rebate. In order to avoid doubt,
properties that qualify for the agricultural rebate will not be entitled to the residential rate exemption as set out
in paragraph 11.1.1.2 of this policy. The rates account must be paid up to date otherwise the application will be

unsuccessful,

Rebates on Public Benefit Qrganisations

The Municipality may grants additional rates rebate in respect of properties owned by public benefit
organisations and used for any specific benefit activities listed in Part 1 of the Nine Schedule to the Income Tax
Act, after to the current property rates levy ratio of (1:0.25) is applied. Applications received after 31 August for
the financial year in respect of which the application is made will only not be considered. The rates account must
be paid up to date otherwise the application will be unsuccessful.

11.1.2.5 Rebates will be granted on prescribed application form,

12.1.2.5.1 Rebates will only be granted on vacant municipal properties which are being developed. Proper buildings

and plants must be erected within six months after registration at the deeds office. Construction must be
completed within one year in order to qualify for rates rebates. Failure to complete construction on these
properties within one year after registration of properties at the deeds office, the municipality will used the
building plans amount as a basis of municipal property valuation, and levy the properties accordingly,
Rebates will only ba granted on vacant municipal land. The rebates will be implemented as follows:

First Year {Year 1)

A rebate of 100% on the municipal value will be allowed to these properties.
Second Year (Year 2)

A rebate of 100% on the municipal value will be allowed to these properties.
Third Year (Year 3)

A rebate of 60% on the municipal value will be allowed to these properties.
Fourth Year (Year 4)

A rebate of 40% on the municipat value will he allowed to these properties.
Fifth Year (Year 5)

A rebate of 20% on the municipal value will be allowed to these properties.
Sixth Year (Year 6)

A rebate of 0% on the municipal value will be allowed to these properties.

The rebates will be applicable on all these municipal properties where development has taken place
since 01 July 2012,
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11.2

11.2.1

11.2.2
11.2.2.1

{a)

(b)

(i)
{iii)

()
d)

(e)

11.2.2.2

11.2.2.3

11.2.2.4

11.2.2.5

(a)

(b)

(e}
{d)

Categories of Owners

Indigent ow -
The owners that gualify and are registered indigents in terms of the Municipality’s policy for indigents receive a
rebate on the payment of rates as specified in the Municipality’s policy for indigents,

R for retir

Retired and disabled persons qualify for special rebates in accordance with their monthly household income.
Property owners who meet the following requirements may apply for a rebate:-

The property must be registered in the name of the applicant or the usufruct of the property must be established
in the name of the applicant.

The owner must be at least sixty (65} years of age and total gross monthly incomne or earnings must not exceed
an amount of R5 200 to quaiify for a 50% rates rebate
an amount of R5 950 to qualify for a 45% rates rebate
an amount of R6 750 to qualify for a 40% rates rebate

The property owner may not be the owner of more than one property.
The owner must occupy the relevant property. Where the owner is unable to occupy the property due to no fauit
of his/her own, the spouse or minor children may satisfy the occupancy requirement.
In the case of a semi-detached house, of which a section is rented out, anly the rates paid on that section
occupied by the owner is subject to rebates.
Property owners must apply annually for a rebate on a prescribed form as stipulated by the Municipality, and
these applications must reach the Municipality by 30 September of the financial year in respect of which rates are
levied. If the rebate applied for is granted, the rebate will apply for the full financial year. Applications received
after 30 September for the financial year in respect of which the application is made will only be applied for the
remainder of that financial year if approved.
The Municipality retains the right to refuse the granting of rebates if the details supplied in the application were
incomplete, incorrect or false.
In the case of where the property has been sold during the financial year and where rebates have been granted,
the rebates amount will be written back or debited against the account of the owner. The rebate will be forfeited.
Applications for rebates must be completed on the official Emthanjeni Municipality’s Rebate application form and
must be accompanied by the following information: -
a certified copy of the identity document of the owner or any other proof of the owner's age which is acceptable
to the Municipality;
sufficient proof of income of the owner and the his/her spouse;
an affidavit from the owner;
if the owner is a disabled person, satisfactory proof submitted to the Municipality that the relevant person
receives a disability pension payable by the state; and

12. REDUCTIONS

12,1

12.1.1
12.1.2

12.2
12.2.1

Reductions as contemplated in section 15 of the Act will be considered on an ad-hoc basis in the event of the
following:-

Partial or total destruction of a property; or

Disasters as defined in the Disaster Management Act, 2002 (Act 57 of 2002).

The following conditions shall be applicable in respect of clause 13.1:-

The owner of the property referred to in clause 13.1.1 shall apply in writing for a reduction and the onus will rest
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12.2.2

12.2.3

12.2.4

12.2.5

12.2.6

on such applicant to prove to the satisfaction of the Municipality that his property has been totally or partially
destroyed. He/ she will aiso have to indicate to what extent the property can still be used and the impact on the
value of the property.

Owners of praperty referred to in clause 13.1.2 will only qualify for a rebate if affected by a disaster as referred
to in the Disaster Management Act, 2002 (Act No. 57 of 2002).

A maximum reduction to be determined on an annual basis shall be allowed in respect of both clauses 13.1.1 and
13.1.2..

An ad-hoc reduction will not be given for a period in excess of 6 months, unless the Municipality gives further
extension on application.

If rates were paid in advance prior to granting of a reduction the Municipality will give credit to such an owner as
from the date of reduction until the date of lapse of the reduction or the end of the period for which payment was
made whichever occurs first,

The CFO in consultation with the Executive Committee will determine the percentage (%) of reduction in rates
levy applicable to the damage caused by these properties.
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13. COST OF EXEMPTIONS, REBATES AND REDUCTIONS

13.1 The chief financial officer must inform councl! during the budgeting process of all the costs assaciated with the
proposed exemptions, rebates, reductions, phasing-in of rates and grants in the place of rates.

13.2 Provision must be made on the operating budget for -

13.2.1 the full potential revenue associated with property rates; and

13.2.2 the full cost associated with exemptions, rebates and reductions.

14. MULTIPLE USE OF PROPERTIES

Properties used for multipie purposes which for example do not fall within the definition of Residential Properties and,
accordingly, do not qualify for the residential rate, may be included into the category of multiple-use properties, as per
section 9 {1} (c) of the Property Rates Act, for which an apportionment of value for each distinct use of the property will be
calculated by the municipal valuer and used for billing at the appropriate and applicable rate, in cases where the municipai
valuer considers it reasonable to apply this category as per section 9 {1) (c) of the Property Rates Act.

This category shall only apply to properties utilised for the generation of renewable energy. For all other
properties Sce 9(1)(b) shall apply,

15. PROPERTY REGISTER

15.1 A property register, divided into Sections A and B, regarding all properties in the municipai area of junsdiction,
must be compiled and maintained by the Municipality.

15.2 Section A of the register will consist of the current valuation roll of the Municipality and will include all
supplementary valuations, as done from time to time.

15.3 Section B of the register will specify which properties on the valuation roil or any supplementary valuation roll are
subject to: -

15.3.1 exemption from rates in terms of section 15 of the Act;

15.3.2 a reduction or rebate in terms of section 15 of the Act;

15.3.3 the phasing in of tariffs in terms of section 21 of the Act; and

15.3.4 exclusions as referred to in section 17 of the Act.

15.4 The register will be open for inspection by the public during office hours at the head office of the Municipality or
on the internet website of the Municipality.

15.5 Section A of the register will be updated at least annually by the Municipality during the supplementary valuation
process.

156 Section B of the register will be updated annually as part of the implementation of the Municipality’s annual
budget.

16. NOTIFICATION OF RATES

16.1 Council will give notice at least 30 days before the rate approved during the annual budget meeting will come
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into effect. Accounts furnished after the 30 days’ notice will be based on the new rates.

17. A nectice containing the extent of council’s resolution and the date on which the new rate will come into effect will
bhe displayed by the Municipality at places installed for this purpose.
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18.

18.1

18.2

18.2.1

18.2.2

18.2.3

18.2.4

18.2.5

19.

19.1

19.1.1
19.1.2
18.1.3
19.1.4
19.1.5

19.2

19.3

19.4

20.

20.1
20.1.1
20.1.2

CONSULTATION PROCESS

Before council commands a new valuation in terms of the Act, a consultation process involving all interest groups
will be undertaken during which the purpose and method of valuation will be explained.

Before the Municipality accepts the rates policy the municipal manager will follow a process of public
participation, as prescribed in chapter 4 of the Municipal Systems Act, and comply with the foliowing
requirements: -

Display the draft property rates policy continuously for a period of thirty (30) days at the Municipality's head
office, satellite offices and on the website.

Publish a notice in the media stating that the draft property rates policy was compiled for submission to council
and that such a policy is available at the different municipal offices and on the website for public inspection.
Property owners and interested persons may obtain a copy of the draft policy from the municipal office during
affice hours at a prescribed cost per copy.

Property owners and interested parties are invited to address written suggestions or representations to the
Municipality within the period prescribed in the notice.

Council will consider all suggestions and/or representations received during the finalisation of the property rates
policy.

FURNISHING OF ACCOUNTS

The Municipality will furnish each person liable for the payment of a rate with a written account, specifying: -
the amount due for rates payable;

the date on or before which the amount is payable;

how the amount was calculated;

the market value of the property; and

exemptions, reductions and rebates or the phasing-in of rates, if applicable.

A person liable for the payment of rates remains liable for payment, whether or not that person has received a
written account from the Municipality. Inquiries must be addressed to the Municipality by such a person who has
not received a written account.

in the case of joint ownership the Municipality will, upon request, furpish written accounts to one or more
individual owners.

In the case of joint ownership the Municipality may, in order to limit costs and prevent unnecessary
administration, recover the rates continuously from one of the joint owners.

PAYMENT OF RATES

Council may claim the payment of rates: -
on a monthly basis; or
annually before 30 September of each year.

Rate payers may choose to pay rates in one instalment annually on or before 30 September of each year. The
property owner subject to rates must notify the municipal manager or his/her nominee by no later than 30 June
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20.3
20.3.1
20.3.2

20.4

20.5

20.6

20.7

20.8

20,9

20.10

20.11

20,111
20.11.2
20.11.3
20.11.4

in any financial year, or such later date in the financial year as determined by the Municipality, that he/she
wishes to pay all rates in respect of such a property in annual instalments, after which such an owner shall be
entitled to pay all rates in the subsequent financial year and all subsequent financial years annually until he/she
withdraws this notice in similar manner.

If a rate is payable: -
in a single amount annually, it must be paid on or before a data determined by the Municipality.
in instalments, it must be paid on or before a date in each period determined by the Municipality.

Interest on rates in arrear, whether paid annually or in egual monthly instalments, shail be calculated in
accordance with the provisions of the Municipality’s policy on credit control and debt collection.

If a property owner who in terms of this policy is liable for the payment of property rates fails to pay such rates
in the prescribed manner, it will be recovered from him/her in accordance with the provisions of the Municipality’s
by-law on credit control and debt collection.

Rates in arrear shall be recovered from tenants, occuplers and agents for the owner in terms of section 28 and 29
of the Act and the Municipality’s policy on credit control and debt collection.

In the event of rates levied emanating from a supplementary valuation, payment thereof will be according to the
date determined by the Municipality and payment thereof may not be withheld pending an objection or appeal as
determined by section 78(2) of the Act.

In the event that a property has been transferred to a new owner and rates emanating from a supplementary
valuation become due and payable, the owner on date of the levy will be held responsible for the settlement of
the interim rates account.

Where the rates on a specific property have been incorrectly determined, whether because of an error or
omission on the part of the Municipality or false information provided by the property owner concerned, or a
contravention of the permitted use to which the property concerned may be put, the rates payable shall be
adjusted retrospectively for the period of the date on which the error or omission is detected, back to the date on
which rates were first levied in terms of the current valuation roll.

Where the error occurred because of false information provided by the property owner or as a result of a
contravention of the permitted use of the property, interest on the unpaid portion of the adjusted rates payable
shall be levied at the maximum rate permitted by prevailing legislation,

Rates Clearance Certificates:-

will be valid for up to end of the financial year, 30 June 20__ ;

No clearance certificates will be issued for part of the financial year, only up and till the end of the financial year
no extension on a certificate will be granted. If it expires a new appiication for clearance must be made;

if the valid period surpasses 30 June, the total annual debit for the following financial year will be payable;

21. ADJUSTMENT OF RATES PRIOR TO SUPPLEMENTARY VALUATION

21.1

In circumstances where a valuation has been carried out by the municipal valuer in pursuance of a
Supplementary Valuation {SV} in terms of section 78(1)(d) or 78(1)(f) of the MPRA as a result, for example, of a
demclition having taken place on a property or a fire having destroyed buildings on a property, but the
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21.2

21.2.1
21.2.2

20.3

22,

22.1

22.2

22.3

23.

Municipality has not yet included such valuation of the relevant property in a SV, such valuation shall be
submitted to the CFO for approval to levy rates on the property in accordance with such valuation, with effect
from the date of the occurrence of the event which caused a SV to be required.

if the owner of a property which has been subdivided or consolidated after the last general valuation wishes to
sell the consclidated erf, or one or more of the erven which have been subdivided off the parent erf, as the case
may be, applies to the Municipality for a clearance certificate in terms of section 118 of the Systems Act and if
the Municipality has not yet included such valuation of the relevant property/s in a SV, then:-

the municipal valuer shall conduct a valuation of the relevant property(ies) for purposes of a 5V; and

the valuation shall be submitted to the CFO for approval of the lavying of rates on such property(ies) in
accordance with such valuation, with effect from the date on which the relevant subdivision or consolidation {as
the case may be) was registered in the Deeds Office,

Any valuations performed in terms of paragraph 15 shall be included in the next SV prepared by the City without
any amendments to the valuation and any objections to such valuation may only be lodged once such SV is made
public in terms of section 49 of the MPRA,

FREQUENCY OF VALUATIONS

The Municipality shall prepare a new valuation roll at least every five (5) years as stated in the Amendments to
the Municipal Property Rates Act. The latest General Valuation Roil 2017 will become effective on 01 July
2017.

in accordance with the Act the Municipality, under exceptional circumstances, may request the MEC for Local
Government and Housing, to extend the validity of the valuation roll to five {7) years.

Supplementary valuations shall be done on a continual basis, but at least on an annual basis, in order to ensure
that the valuation roll is maintained.

REVIEW PROCESS

The Property Rates Policy must be reviewed on an annual basis to ensure that it complies with the strategic objectives of

the Municipality, as stipulated in the Integrated Development Ptan and other applicable legislation.

24,

IMPLEMENTATION

This policy will comes into effect on 1 July 2017.
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MUNICIPAL SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT POLICY
LOCAL GOVERNMENT: MUNICIPAL FINANCE MANAGEMENT

ACT, 2003

Date of adoption:

Original

1%t Review
2™ Review
3 Review
4h Review
5" Review
6'" Review
7™ Review

8™ Review

[29 September 2005]

[15 October 2009]

(5 May 2011]

[31 May 2012]

[31 May 2013]

[31 May 2014]

[28 May 2015]

[31 May 2016]

[anticipated date 31 May 2017]

Emthanjeni Local Council resolves in terms of Section 111 of the Local Government
Municipal Finance Management Act (No. 56 of 2003), lo adopt the following proposal as
the Supply Chain Management Policy of Emthanjeni Local Municipality.
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CHAPTER 1
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Delegation of supply chain management powers and duties
Sub-delegations
Oversight role of Council
Supply chain management units
Training of supply chain management officials
CHAPTER 2
SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT SYSTEM
Format of supply chain management system
Part 1: Demand management
System of demand management
Part 2: Acquisition management
System of acquisition management
Range of procurement processes
General preconditions for consideration of written quotations or bids
Lists of accredited prospective providers
Petty cash purchases
Written quotations
Formal written price quotations
Procedures for procuring goods or services through written
quotations and formal written price quotations
Competitive bidding process
Process for competitive bidding
Bid documentation for competitive bids
Public invitation for competitive bids
Procedure for handling, opening and recording of bids

Registration of contractors
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25.
26.
27.
28.
29.
30.
31.
32.
33.
34,
35.
36.
37.
38.
39.
40,
41.
42.

Negotiations with preferred bidders

Unbundling of tenders

Two-stage bidding process

No obligation {o accept lowest or any bid

Committee system for competitive bids

Bid specification committees

Bid evaluation commitiees

Bid Adjudication Committees

Procurement of banking services

Procurement of IT related goods or services

Procurement of goods and services under contracts secured by other organs of state
Procurement of goods necessitating special safety arrangements

Proudly SA Campaign

Appointment of consultants

Deviation from, and ratification of, minor breaches of procurement processes
Urgent and emergency cases

Unsolicited bids

Combating of abuse of supply chain management system.

43.Management of expansion or variation of orders against the original contract
44, Local Content

Part 3: Logistics, Disposal, Risk and Performance Management

45, Logistics management

46. Disposal management

47.Risk management

48. Performance management

49,

50.
51.
52.

Part 4: Other matters
Safe custody of coniracts

Prohibition on awards to persons whose tax matters are not in order
Prohibition on awards to persons in the service of the state

Awards to close family members of persons in the service of the state
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53. Ethical standards
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54,
55.
56.
57.
58.
59.

Inducements, rewards, gifts and favours

Sponsorships

Objections and complaints

Resolution of disputes, objections, complaints and queries
Contracts providing for compensation based on turnover

Penalties

CHAPTER 3

CODE OF CONDUCT FOR SUPPLY CHAIN PRACTITIONERS

CHAPTER 4

PURCHASES PROCEDURES

CHAPTER 5

CREDITOR PAYMENT PROCEDURES

1.

DEFINITIONS

In this Policy, unless the context otherwise indicates, a word or expression to which a

meaning has been assigned in the Act has the same meaning as in the Act, and ~

“Accounting officer” means the Accounting Officer referred to in section 60 of the
Municipal Finance Management Act, No. 56 of 2003, in relation to a municipal entity,
means the official referred to in section 93, and includes a person acting as the
accounting officer.

“Accredited Agent’ means a provider who is authorized to deliver cerlain goods /
services and can be trading in a specific area, however, an accredited agent is not a
sole provider.

‘accredited” means goods / services that are officially recognized, are generally
accepted or having a guaranteed quality.
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B-BBEE” meaning the broad-based black economic empowerment as defined in
section 1 of the Broad-Based Black Economic Empowerment Act.

“ B-BBEE status level of contributor” means the B-BBEE status of an entity interms
of a code of good practice on Black economic empowerment issued in terms of section
9(1) of the Broad-Based Black Economic Empowerment Act.

* black designated groups’ has the meaning assigned to it in the codes of good
practice issued in terms of Section 9(1) of the Broad-Based Black Economic
Empowerment.

“black people; is as generic term which means Africans, Coloureds and Indians as
defined in the Broad-Based Black Empowerment Act (No. 53 of 2003);

“competitive bid” means a bid in terms of a competitive bidding process;

“competitive bidding process” means procurement above a transaction value of
R200 000 (including VAT) and long term contracts.
“competitive bidding process" means a competitive bidding process referred to
in paragraph 12 (1 } (d) of this Policy;

“ designated groups’ means;
a) Black designated groups;
b} Black people;
c) Women;
d} People with disability; or
e) Small enterprises as defined in section 1 of the National Small Enterprises Act,
1996 (Act No.102 of 1996},

“emergency procurement” emergency cases are cases where immediate action is
necessary in order to avoid dangerous or risky situation (life threatening) or misery
such as floods or fires.

“exceptional / urgent cases” exceptional cases are cases where early delivery is of
critical importance and the invitation of competitive bids is either impossible or
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impractical. However a lack of proper planning should not be constituted as an urgent
case subject To the approval of the Accounting Officer. The nature of the urgency and
the details of the justifiable procurement must be recorded and the AO to approve.

“Exempted Micro Enterprise” [EME’s] Enterprises with an annual total revenue of R5
million or less [all taxes included] for goods and services. Sector charters have been
developed for the Tourism and Construction industry where thresholds of Rand 2.5
million and Rand 1.5 million respectively have been established.

“final award”, in relation to bids or quotations submitted for a contract, means bids or
quotations submitted for a contract, means the final decision on which-bid or

quote to accept;

"formal written price quotation"” means quotations referred to in paragraph 12 (1) (¢)
of this Policy;

“Fruitless expenditure”-expenditure made in vain and could have been avoided if
reasonable care taken;

“formal written price quotation” means quotations for procurement of transaction value
of over R10 000 up to R200 000

“functionality’” means the ability of a tenderer to provide good or services in accordance
with specifications as set out in the tender documents;

“in the service of the state” means to be —
(a) amemberof-
(i) any municipal Council;
(i any provincial legislature; or
(i)  the National Assembly or the National Council of Provinces;
(b} a member of the board of directors of any municipal entity;
{c}  an official of any municipality or municipal entity;
{d} an employee of any national or provincial department, national or provincial public
entity or constitutional institution within the meaning of the Public Finance

Management Act, 1999 (Act No.1 of 1999);
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(¢}  a member of the accounting authority of any national or provincial public entity; or

(f) an employee of Parliament or a provincial legislature;

“ Irregular expenditure’-expenditure incurred that is not in accordance with a
requirement of a SCM policy of the municipality or by-laws giving effect to such a
policy/eg. Unsolicited bids

“long term contract” means a contract with a duration period exceeding one year;
“list of accredited prospective providers” means the list of accredited prospective
providers which the municipality must keep;

“military veteran” has the meaning assigned to it in section 1 of the Military Veterans
Act, 2011 (Act No. 18 of 2011);

“other applicable legislation” means any other legislation applicable to municipal
supply chain management, including -

(a) the Preferential Procurement Policy Framework Act, 2000 (Act No. 5 of 2000},

(b) the Broad-Based Black Economic Empowerment Act, 2003 (Act No. 53 of 2003);
and

(c)  the Construction Industry Development Board Act, 2000 (Act No.38 of 2000);

“people with disabilities” has the meaning assigned to it in section 1 of the Employment
Equity Act, 1998 (Act No.1 of 1998)

*price” includes all applicable taxes less all unconditional discounts;

“*QSE" means a qualifying small business enterprise in terms of a code of good practice on
black economic empowerment issued in terms of section 9(1) of the Broad-Based Black
Economic Empowerment Act;

“Rand value'’ means the total estimated values of a coniract in Rand, calculated as the
time of tender invitation;

“rural area” means-
a) a sparsely populated area in which people farm or depend on natural resources,
including villages and small towns that are dispersed through the area; or

b) an area including a large settlement which depends on migratory labour and
remittances and government social grants for survival, and may have a traditional
land tenure system;

“Sole Provider’-means a provider of specialized or exclusive goods/services who has a
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sole distribution / patent /manufacturing rights and copy rights.

“Transversal contract” means a contract arranged for more then one dept/mun or for
more than one level of government eg. National and Provincial Government.

(d)  Circular issued dated 08 December 2011 by Minister of Trade and Industry and
other related circulars issued

“Treasury guidelines” means any guidelines on supply chain management issued by
the Minister in terms of section 168 of the Act;

“the Act” means the Local Government: Municipal Finance Management Act, 2003 (Act

No. 56 of 2003),

“the Regulations” means the Local Government: Municipal Finance Management Act,
2003, Municipal Supply Chain Management Regulations published by Government Notice
868 of 2005, and also Circular 1/2/1/2/2 that deals with Insurance and validity of Broad
Based Black Economic Empowerment(B-BBEE) Status Level Certificates in respect of
Exempted Micro Enterprises {(EMEs)

“the Treasury Circulars” means the Local Government:. Municipal Finance
Management Act, 2003, Municipal Supply Chain Management Regulations
published by Government Notice 868 of 2005, Circular1/2/1/2/2 that deals with
Issuance and validity of Broad Based Black Economic Empowerment(B-BBEE)
Status Level Certificates in respect of Exempted Micro Enterprises (EMEs) and:
Local production and content.

“township” means an urban living area that any time from the 19nth century until 27 April
1994, was reserved for black people; including areas developed for historically

disadvantaged individuals post 27 April 1994;
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“written” means quotations of transaction value of R2 000 up to R30 000(VAT included).

“youth" has the meaning assigned to it in section 1 of the National Youth Development
Agency Act, 2008 (Act.No. 54 0f2008),

CHAPTER 1
IMPLEMENTATION OF SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT POLICY

Supply chain management policy

2.

(a)

(b)

(d)

(e)

N

(1)  All officials and other role players in the supply chain management system

of Emthanjeni Local Municipality must implement this Policy in a way that —

gives effect to —

(i) Section 217 of the Constitution; and

(i)  Part 1 of Chapter 11 and other applicable provisions of the Act;

is fair, equitable, transparent, competitive and cost effective;

complies with —

(i) the Regulations; and

(i)  any minimum norms and standards that may be prescribed in terms of
Section 168 of the Act;

is consistent with other applicable legislation;

- Broad Based Black Economic Empowerment Act [B-BBEEA];

-Corruption Act, 1998 — anti-corruption measures and practices;

- Competition Law and Regulations;

- Promotion of Administrative Justice Act, 2000;

- National Archives of South Africa Act, 1996;

- National Small Business Act;

- Construction Industry Development Board Act, 2000 [ Act no 38 of 2000].

does not undermine the objective for uniformity in supply chain management
systems between organs of state in all spheres; and
is consistent with national economic policy concerning the promotion of

investments and doing business with the public sector.
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(3)  This Policy applies when Emthanjeni Local Municipality—

(a)  procures goods or services;
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(b)

(a)

(b)

disposes of goods no longer needed;

selects contractors to provide assistance in the provision of municipal services
otherwise than in circumstances where Chapter 8 of the Municipal Systems Act
applies; or

This Policy, except where provided otherwise, does not apply in respect of the
procurement of goods and services contracted with another organ of state,
including —

water from the Department of Water Affairs or a public entity, another municipality
or a municipal entity; and

electricity from Eskom or another public entity, another municipality or a municipal
entity.

Amendment of the supply chain management policy

3.
(a)
(b)

(a)
(b)

(1)  The Accounting Officer must -~

at least annually review the implementation of this Policy; and

when the Accounting Officer considers it necessary, submit proposals for the
amendment of this Policy to the Council.

(2) If the Accounting Officer submits proposed amendments to the Council that
differ from the model policy issued by the National Treasury, the Accounting
Officer must —

ensure that such proposed amendments comply with the Regulations; and

report any deviation from the model policy to the National Treasury and the

relevant provincial treasury.

(3) When amending this supply chain management policy the need for
uniformity in supply chain practices, procedures and forms between organs of
state in all spheres, paricularly to promote accessibility of supply chain
management systems for small businesses must be taken into account.

Delegation of supply chain management powers and duties

4.

(1)  The Emthanjeni Council hereby delegates all powers and duties to the

Accounting Officer which are necessary to enable the Accounting Officer —
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(a)

(b)

(c)

to discharge the supply chain management responsibilities conferred on Accounting
Officers in terms of -

(i) Chapter 8 or 10 of the Act; and

(i) this Policy;

(i}  MFMA delegations

to maximise administrative and operational efficiency in the implementation of this
Palicy;

to enforce reasonable, cost-effective measures for the prevention of fraud,
corruption, favouritism and unfair and irregular practices in the implementation of
this Policy; and

to comply with his or her responsibilities in terms of Section 115 and other applicable
provisions of the Act.

(1)  Sections 79 and 106 of the Act apply to the sub-delegation of powers and

duties delegated to an Accounting Officer in terms of subparagraph (1).

{(2) The Accounting Officer may not sub-delegate any supply chain
management powers or duties to a person who is not an official of Emthanjeni
Local Municipality or to a committee which is not exclusively composed of officials
of Emthanjeni Local Municipality;

(3) This paragraph may not be read as permitting an official to whom the power
to make final awards has been delegated, to make a final award in a competitive
bidding process otherwise than through the committee system, provided for in
paragraph 28 of this Palicy.

Sub-delegations

The Chief Financial Officer may only appoint supply chain practitioners on
the committees with express prior permission from the Accounting Officer
[Municipal Manager).
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(a)

(b)

(c)

(4)

(1) The Accounting Officer may in terms of Section 79 or 106 of the Act sub -

delegate any supply chain management powers and duties, including those

delegated to the Accounting Officer in terms of this Policy, but any such sub-

delegation must be consistent.

(2}  The power to make a final award —

Above R10 million (including VAT) must not be sub-delegated by the Accounting

Officer;

above R2 million ( including VAT), but not exceeding R10 million ( including VAT),

may be sub-delegated but only to —

{i) the Chief Financial Officer;

(i) a Senior Manager; or

(iii}  a Bid Adjudication Commiitee of which the Chief Financial Officer or a
Senior Manager is a member; or

not exceeding R2 miliion (including VAT} may be sub-delegated but only

to —

(i) the Chief Financial Officer;

(i)  a Senior Manager;

(i) a Manager directly accountable to the Chief Financial Officer or a Senior
Manager; or

(iv)  a Bid Adjudication Committee.

An official or Bid Adjudication Committee to which the power to make final awards
has been sub-delegated must, within five days of the end of each month, submit to
the Accounting Officer a written report containing particulars of each final award
made by such official or committee during that month, including—

(a) the amount of the award;

(b)  the name of the person to whom the award was made; and

{c}  thereason why the award was made to that person.

A written report must be submitted —
(@) to the Accounting Officer, in the case of an award by —

(i) the Chief Financial Officer;
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(i)
(iii)

(b)

(5)

(6)
Oversightro
6. (1)

a Senior Manager; or

a Bid Adjudication Committee of which the Chief Financial Officer or a
Senior Manager is a member; or

to the Chief Financial Officer or the Senior Manager responsible for the
relevant bid, in the case of an award by -

a manager; or

a Bid Adjudication Committee of which the Chief Financial Officer or

a Senior Manager is not a member.

This paragraph may not be interpreted as permitting an official to whom the
power to make final awards has been sub-delegated, to make a final award
in a competitive bidding process otherwise than through the committee
system.

No supply chain management decision-making powers may be delegated to
an advisor or consuitant.

le of Council

Emthanjeni Council reserves its right to maintain oversight over the

implementation of this Policy.

(2)
(i)

(ii)

(3)

For the purposes of such oversight the Accounting Officer must -
within 30 days of the end of each financial year, submit a report on the
implementation of this Policy and the Supply Chain Management Policy
of any municipal entity under the sole or shared control of the
municipality, to the Council of the municipality; and
whenever there are serious and material problems in the implementation
of this Policy, immediately submit a report to the Council.
The Accounting Officer must, within 10 days of the end of each quarter,
submit a report on the implementation of the Supply Chain Management
Policy to the Mayor.
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(4) The reports must be made public in accordance with Section 21A of the
Municipal Systems Act.

Compliance with Ethical Standards

In order to create an environment where business can be conducted with integrity and in
a fair and reasonable manner, this Policy will strive to ensure that the Municipal Manager
and all representatives of Emthanjeni Municipality who are involved in supply chain
management activities shall act with integrity and in accordance with the highest ethical
standards.

All supply chain management representatives shall adhere to the code of conduct of
municipal staff contained in schedule 2 of the Systems Act, and this Policy's Code of
Ethical Standards.

Supply chain management unit

7. Emthanjeni municipality shall strive to a centralised supply chain management
system is hereby established to implement this Policy; the supply chain unit
operates under the direct supervision of the Chief Financial Officer.

A centralized purchasing structure offer benefits in terms of:
« Greater standardisation, because purchases are made through one office.
» The buying power for each transaction is increased.
» Buyers are afforded the opportunity to become experts.

» Control over all aspects of the purchasing system is improved, and the
system tends to be simpler.

* Suppliers may communicate more easily with a centralised purchasing
structure than with different departments.
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Training of supply chain management officials

8. The training of officials involved in implementing this Policy should be in
accordance with any Treasury guidelines on supply chain management training.

CHAPTER 2
SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

Format of supply chain management system

9. This Policy provides systems for —
(i) demand management;
(i) acquisition management;
(i)  logistics management;
(iv) disposal management;
(v)  risk management; and
(vi) performance management.

(vii) asset management

Part 1;: Demand management

System of demand management

10. (1) The Accounting Officer must establish and implement an appropriate demand
management system in order to ensure that the resources required by Emthanjeni
Local Municipality support its operationa! commitments and its strategic goals
outlined in the IDP.
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(2) The demand management system must —
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(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f

include timely planning and management processes to ensure that all goods and
services required by Emthanjeni Local Municipality are quantified, budgeted for
and timely and effectively delivered at the right locations and at the critical delivery
dates, and are of the appropriate quality and quantity at a fair cost;

take into account any benefits of economies of scale that may be derived in the
case of acquisitions of a repetitive nature; and

provide for the compiiation of the required specifications to ensure that its needs
are met.

To undertake appropriate industry analysis and research to ensure that innovations

and technological benefits are maximized.

The municipality must compile a Procurement Plan containing all planned
Procurement for the financial year in respect of the procurement of goods,
services and infrastructure projects which exceed R 200 000 [all applicable taxes
included] per case as described in the Supply Chain Management Guide for
Accounting Officers.

The procurement plan must be finalized on the 1 July every year. The relevant
information should preferably be fumished in the format contained in the
Procurement Plan Template enclosed as Annexure A.

{g) (Also refer to National Treasury MFMA Circular 62 and 77.

Part 2: Acquisition management

System of acquisition management

1.

(a)

(1) The Accounting Officer must implement the system of acquisition management
set out in this Part in order to ensure —

that goods and services are procured by Emthanjeni Local Municipality in
accordance with authorised processes only;

that expenditure on goods and services is incurred in terms of an approved
budget;
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(c)

(d)

(e)

()

{(9)

(h)

that the threshold values for the different procurement processes are complied
with;

that bid documentation, evaluation and adjudication criteria, and general conditions
of a contract, are as per National and Provincial prescripts [SCM Practice note 2,
Explanatory notes: Revised quotation / bid forms ]

that the preference point system used in accordance with the Revised Preferential
Procurement Policy Regulations of 20 January 2017 [utilizing B-BBEE status level
verification certificates to claim preference points).

that any Treasury guidelines on acquisition management are properly taken into
account.

Verification of bids in access of R10 million

Prior to advertisement:

Verification by the CFO

The senior manager responsible for a vote must submit to the CFO:

-proof that budgetary provision exists for the procurement of the goods/services
and / or infrastructure projects;

- any ancillary budgetary implications related to the bid;

- any multi -year budgetary implications;

Prior to the award of a bid

Contracts above the value of R 10 million [all applicable taxes included] may only
be awarded to the preferred bidder after the CFO has verified in writing that
budgetary provision exists for the acquisition of the goods, infrastructure projects
and /or services and that it is consistent with the Integrated Development Pian.

Publication of awards in respect of advertised competitive bids [above the
threshold value of R 200 000]
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(i)

The following information on the successful bids must be placed on the municipal

website:

-Contract numbers and description of goods, services or infrastructure projects;

- Names of the successful bidders and the B-BBEE level of contribution claimed;

- Brand names and dates for completion of contracts.

Functionality

Adhere to the revised guidelines when functionality is included as a criterion in the

evaluation of bids [National Treasury note issued in September 2010].

- Clear indication must be given in bid documents if bids will be evaluated on
functionality.

- Evaluation criteria must be objective.

- The weight of each criterion, applicable values and the minimum qualifying
score [for each bid on its own merit] must be indicated in the bid documents.

- Bidders failing to achieve the qualifying score for functionality must be
disqualified.

- Bidders achieving the minimum qualifying score must be evaluated further in
terms of points for price and B-BBEE status level contribution

Pre —evaluation

- After closure of the bid pre-evaluation is done to ensure all bidders comply with

the prescribed minimum norms and standards, NO TECHNICAL EVALUATION 1S

DONE AT THIS POINT.

- Bidders are then invited to prepare for a functionality presentation in line with the

criteria set out in the bid document on a specific date and provided with a time slot.

Appointment of a functionality committee

-The functionality commitiee is an ad-hoc committee appointed per bid.

- It should consist out of a cross functional team

- To be included as well:

- A SCM Practitioner;

- The end-user;

- Technical experts;

- Members of the Bid Evaluation- and Adjudication committees;

-CFO or a person with knowledge of the available budget from the CFO’s office;

- Any other official deemed to be relevant;
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(2)

(b)

-Provincial SCM official.

- Each member will complete a score sheet per bidder.

-The totals to be calculated by SCM, an average calculated and only the bidders
who scored the minimum qualifying score will be evaluated further.

-Prior to the functionality committee meeting the end-user and the technical experts
can sit with all the appointed committee members and peruse each bidder's
proposal and draw-up a list of questions for clarification. Each member can add
his / her own questions and during the presentations clarify or verify the information
presented with relevant questions.

NOTE: There cannot be two [2] technical evaluation processes, only one
done by a duly appointed functionality committee.

- Functionality evaluation forms part of the formal evaluation processes and is
open for legal scrutiny and challenges —therefore it is a formal once off process
with proper procedures and score sheets to be completed per committee
member for each bidder, duly signed off by the relevant committee member.

- Score sheets form part of a bid and year-end audit by the Auditor -General.
- Not following proper processes may lead lo expenditure been classified as

irregular by the Auditor-General’s office.
- that bid documentation, evaluation and adjudication criteria, and general
conditions of a contract, are in accordance with any applicable legislation;
and
(j) that any Treasury guidelines on acquisition management are properly taken into
account.
Where the municipality contracts with another organ of state for the provision of
goods and services, the Accounting Officer must make public the fact that such
goods or services are procured otherwise than through the municipality’s supply
chain management system, including -
the kind of goods or services; and
the name of the supplier.
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AMOUNT [VAT INCL ]

PROCEDURES

RuptoR 1000

«  One quotation will be required

« The supplier is lo be selected and will be
appointed on a rotation basis, provided that
parts or repairs could be supplied immediately.

« Normal stock items: the Buyer will re-order on
the agreed minimum stock level.

» For the purchasing of non-stock items
authorization is required in accordance with
delegations.

Approval: Chief Financial Officer

R 1001 up to R 2 000

s  One quolations will be required.

e Supplier is to be appeinted on a rotation basis,
provided that parts of repairs could be supplied
immediately.

« Normal stock items: The Buyer will re-order
on the agreed minimum stock level.

o For the purchasing of non-stock items

authorization is required in accordance with
delegations.
Approval: Chief Financial Officer

R2001 up to R 10 000

«  Two written quolations will be required

e Supplier is to be appointed on a rotation
basis, provided that paris or repairs could be
supplied immediately

+« Normal stock items: the buyer will re-order on
the agreed minimum stock level

¢ For the purchasing of non-stock items

authorization is required in accordance with
delegations
Approval: Chief Financial Officer

R 10 001 up to R 200 000

Three formal written quotalions are required
The CFO will appoint the suppiier of on a

rotation basis depending on the urgency and
delivery period.

+ All requirements in excess of R30 000 must be
adverlised for at least 7 days on the websile
and an official notice board of Emthanjent
Locail Municipality;

Purchases above R100 000 CFQ will approve
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More than R 200 000 & long term contracts Standard procedures as defined in the

Procurement Policy apply

(2)

(a) lower, but not increase, the different threshold values specified in table (1),

ar

(b)  direct that-—
a competitive bidding process be followed for any specific  procurement of a
transaction value lower than R200 000.

The Accounting Officer may, in writing-

(3)

(4)

Goods or services may not deliberately be split into parts or items of a
lesser value merely to avoid complying with the requirements of the policy.
When determining transaction values, a requirement for goods or services
consisting of different parts or items must as far as possible be treated and
dealt with as a single transaction.

The following types of transactions are excluded from the normal bid
process:

(i) Where there are only soie suppliers of a product / service e.g.

i. Eskom
ii. Bulk water suppliers
iii. Postage and telephone
iv. Rail and road transport
v. De Aar Printers / Die Echo
vi. De Aar Stone Crushers
vii. De Aar Chemist
viii. De Aar Glassworks
ix. Lexis Nexis
x. Lex Patria
xi. OVK
Where prices are fixed or regulated

i. Fuel purchases
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ii. Newspapers and magazines
(iii) Where services / products are subjected to maintenance contracts e.g.
i. Assets under guarantee {Servicing vehicles and machinery)
ii. Alarm Monitoring
(iv) Where the normal bid process is not feasible e.g:
i. Subsistence and travel
ii. Official lunches
jii. Annual health examinations for officials
iv. Stripped (dismantled) machinery requiring a quote for repairs.
v. Annual licence fees. Software & vehicles

(v} Emerging contractors (Decision by Municipal Manager or
designate)

(vi) Service Level Agreements

{vii) External professional membership institutions within the Local
Government sphere: membership fees.
i. IPMSA {Institute of municipal practitioners of SA)

il. ILGM (Institute for Local Government management in SA)
ili. IMFO (institute for municipal financial officers)
iv. IMESA (institute for municipal engineers of SA)

(5) Please note. The list of transactions will be excluded from the normai

bidding processes and may be amended or extended, as and when

required

General pre-conditions for consideration of written quotations or bids

13. A formal written quotation or bid may not be considered uniess the provider who
submiited the quotation or big -

(&) has fumished that provider's —
() full name;

(i) identification number or company or other registration number; and
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(i)  tax reference number and VAT registration number, if any;

(iv) check in respect of the recommended bidder whether municipal
rates and taxes and municipal service charges are not in arrears for
more than three [3] months;

Bids/ quotations should only be awarded to suppliers who are not in
arrears with their municipal rates and taxes. If the suppliers are not
resident in this municipality, but offer their services from any other
municipality, the same applies. It should be established if they are
not in arrears in their own municipality.
(v) requirements for construction and engineering related bids should
be awarded according to CIDB regulations;
(vii) The CIDB Act requires that all projects need to be registered with the
CIDB;
(vii) Before an award is done to a contractor, the contractor's CIDB grading
must be confirmed with the CIDB website;
(ix) The CIDB grading designation is as follows:

Grading designation Less than or equal to
1 R 200 000

R 650 000

R 2 000 000

R 4 000 000

R

R

R

R

6 500 000
13 00C 000
40 000 000
130 000 000

No Limit

Wt O ~| O v B W] N

(b)  has authorized Emthanjeni Local Municipality to obtain a tax clearance from the
South African Revenue Services that the provider's tax matters are in order; and
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(c)

has indicated —

(i) whether he or she is in the service of the state, or has been in the service of
the state in the previous twelve months;

(i) if the provider is not a natural person, whether any of its directors,
managers, principal shareholders or stakeholder is in the service of the
state, or has been in the service of the state in the previous twelve months;
or

(i)  whether a spouse, child or parent of the provider or of a director, manager,
shareholder or stakeholder is in the service of the state, or has been in the
service of the state in the previous twelve months.

Lists of accredited prospective providers:

Central Supplier Database (CSD)

14.

(a)

(b}

(c)
(d)

(1)  The Accounting Officer must —

keep a list of accredited prospective providers of goods and services that must be
used for the procurement requirements through written quotations and formal
written price quotations; and

at least once a year through newspapers commonly circulating locally, the website
and any other appropriate ways, invite prospective providers of goods or services
to apply for evaluation and listing as accredited prospective providers;

specify the listing criteria for accredited prospective providers, and

disallow the listing of any prospective provider whose name appears on the National
Treasury's database as a person prohibited from doing business with the public

sector.

(2) The list must be updated at least quarterly to include any additional
prospective providers and any new commodities or types of services, Prospective
providers must be allowed to submit applications for listing at any time.

(3)  The list must be compiled per commodity and per type of service.
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The listing requirements are as follows:
a) Street address;

b) Postal address;

c) Contact person in Sales Department;

d) Sales Department's telephone number;
e) Sales Department’s fax number;

f) Sales Department’s cell number;

g) Sales Department’s email address;

h) Contact person in Accounts Department;
i) Accounts Department's telephone number;
j) Accounts Department's fax number;

k) Accounts Department's email address;

1) VAT regisiration yes/no;

m) VAT registration number,

n) Bank details;

o) Type of industry;

p) Valid certification for specialised services;
q) Valid tax clearance certificate;

r) CIDB registration if applicable;

2017/18 Financial Y car

s) Valid certification in respect of Exempted Micro Enterprises or -BBEE Status

Level of Contributor.

t) Relevant identification numbers of all members, directors and partners

Petty cash purchases

15.

(a)

The conditions for the procurement of goods by means of petty cash purchases,

are as follows —

a Senior Manager may delegate responsibility for petty cash to an official reporting

to the manager if the amount is equal to or less than R2 000;

the maximum number of petty cash purchases or the maximum amounts per

month for each manager is R2 000;
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(c) types of excluded expenditure from petty cash purchases include office furniture
and equipment; and

(d)  a monthly reconciliation report from each manager must be provided to the Chief
Financial Officer, including —
(i) the total amount of petty cash purchases for that month; and
(ii) receipts and appropriate documents for each purchase.

Written quotations

Although the Act makes provision for verbal quotations, Emthanjeni Local
Municipality will not apply this condition due to the loopholes it poses and
lack of capacity to monitor it. Only written quotations will be applicable as

per decision by the Municipal Manager.

Written or verbal quotations

16. The conditions for the procurement of goods or services through written or verbal
quotations are as follows:

(a) Quotations must be obtained from at least three different providers preferably from,
but not limited to, providers whose names appear on the list of accredited prospective
providers of the municipality , provided that if quotations are obtained from providers
who are not listed, such providers must meet the listing criteria set out in paragraph
14(1)}{b) and (c) of this Policy,

{b) where no suitable accredited service providers are available from the list, quotations
may be obtained from other possible providers not on the list, provided that such
service providers meet the listing criteria set out in paragraph 14(1)b) and (c) of this
policy.

[c] quotations must be approved on a rotation basis.

[d] to the extent feasible, providers must be requested to submit such quotations in
writing if it is not possible to obtain at least three quotations, the reasons
must be recorded and reported quarterly to the accounting officer or another
official designated by the accounting officer;

(f the accounting officer must record the names of the potential providers requested

Page 26 of 69



EMTHANJEN]I MUNICIPALITY DRAFT SCM POLICY 20117/18 Financial Year

to provide such quotations with their quoted prices; and if a quotation was submitted

verbally, the order may be placed only against written confirmation by the selected
provider:

-~

The municipality will investigate and utilize various other options to advertise
bids/quotations viz. community boards, the library, public buildings, police station,
etc. This is to ensure that the municipality tried to obtain at least three quotations.
In cases where there are only a few suppliers for certain goods and, vehicle
repairs, the municipality will then use these suppliers on a rotation basis, in order
to give everybody a chance. This practice will only be utilized in exceptional
cases. As soon as more suppliers become available, such goods / services will be
provided via the database.

Formal written price quotations

17.

(a)

(b)

(1) The conditions for the procurement of goods or services through formal
written price quotations are as follows:

quotations must be obtained in writing from at least three different providers whose
names appear on the list of accredited prospective providers of Emthanjeni Local
Municipality;

quotations may be obtained from providers who are not listed, provided that such
providers meet the listing criteria set out in paragraph 14(1) (b) and (c) of this
Policy;

The revised PPPFA prescripts are applicable, eg. Point system and Status level
verification certificates [score cards] must be applied in the adjudication process.
Please refer to paragraph 19 {3] for more detail.

(c) offers received must be evaluated on a comparative basis taking into account

unconditional discounts;

(d) the accounting officer or chief financial officer must on a monthly basis be notified

in writing of all written or verbal quotations and formal written price quotations
accepted by an official acting in terms of a sub delegation;

(e) offers below R30 000 (VAT included) must be awarded based on compliance to

specifications and conditions of contract, ability and capability to deliver the goods
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(h)

and services and lowest price;

(f) acceptable offers, which are subject to the preference points system (PPPFA and

associated regulations), must be awarded to the bidder who's offer is according to

(g) specifications, has the ability to deliver and is compliant with all the other

requirements and scored the highest points. Minimum requirements for proper
record keeping must be complied with.

if it is not possible to obtain at least three quotations, the reasons must be recorded
and approved by the Chief Financial Officer or an official designated by the Chief
Financial Officer, and

the CFO must record the names of the potential providers and their written
quotations.

(2) A designated official referred to in subparagraph (1) (c) must within three days of

the end of each month report to the Chief Financial Officer on any approvals given
during that month by that official in terms of that sub-paragraph.

Procedures for procuring goods or services through written quotations and formal

written price quotations

18.

(a)

(b)

(c)

The procedure for the procurement of goods or services through written
quotations or formal written price guotations is as follows:

when using the list of accredited prospective providers the Accounting Officer must
promote ongoing competition amongst providers by inviting providers to submit
quotations on a rotation basis;

all requirements in excess of R30 000 that are to be procured by means of
formal written price quotations must, in addition to the requirements of
paragraph 17, be advertised for at least 7 days on the website and an officiai
notice board of Emthanjeni Local Municipality;

offers received must be evaluated on a comparative basis taking into account

unconditional discounts;
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(d) the Accounting Officer must on a monthly basis be notified in writing of all written
guotations and formal written price quotations accepted by an official acting in
terms of a subdelegation;

(e} offers below R30 000 must be awarded based on compliance to specifications and
conditions of contract, ability and capability to deliver the goods and services;

() acceptable offers, which are subject to the preference points system (PPPFA and
associated regulations), must be awarded to the bidder who scored the highest
points;

(k)  Original / legal copies of written contracts agreements should be kept in a

secure place for reference purposes.

Competitive bids
19. (1) Goods or services above a transaction value of R200 000 (VAT included) and

long term contracts may only be procured through a competitive bidding
process, subject to paragraph 11 (2) of this Policy.

(2) No requirement for goods or services above an estimated transaction value
of R200 000 (VAT included), may deliberately be split into parts or items of
lesser value merely for the sake of procuring the goods or services
otherwise than through a competitive bidding process.

(3) The 80 / 20 principle is applicable; 80 points for price and 20 points for B-
BBEE status level verification certificates. The 20 points will be standard

as follows;

B-BBEE Status Level of | Number of points [80 / 20] | Number of points [90/10]
Contributer

1 20 10

2 18 9

3 14 8

4 12 5

5 4

6 3

7 2
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8 2 1
Non compliant 0 0
Contributer

The points scored for price must be added to the points scored for B-BBEE status level of
contribution to obtain the bidder's total points scored out of 100.

A bid must not be disqualified from the bidding process if the bidder does not
submit a certificate substantiating the B-BBEE status level of contribution or is a
non-compliant contributor. Such a bidder will score 0 out of a maximum of 10 or 20
points for B-BBEE status.

PLEASE NOTE:

[a] The 80/20 point system is applicable from R30 000 [all taxes included] up to R 50
million [all taxes included]

[b] The 90/10 point system is applicable to bids invited exceeding R 50million [all
taxes included]

This should not be interpreted that quotations can be invited for up to R 50million.

The threshold for the invitation of quotations did not change and it is still at R200 000.
Note: Quotations can anly be invited not exceeding R 200 000.

Process for competitive bidding

20. The procedures for the following stages of a competitive bidding process are as
follows:

(a) Compilation of bidding documentation;

(b)  Public invitation of bids;

c)  Site meetings or briefing sessions;

d)  Handling of bids submitted in response to public invitation;

(

(

(e) Evaluation of bids;
(f Award of contracts;
{

g)  Administration of contracts
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(h)

After approval of a bid, the Accounting Officer and the bidder must enter into a
written agreement, Proper record keeping Original / legal copies of written
contracts agreements should be kept in a secure place for reference purposes.

(i) Sub-contracting

()

A bidder must not be awarded the points claimed for B-BBEE status level
contribution if it is indicated in the bid documents that such a bidder intends sub-
contracting more than 25% of the contract value to any other enterprise that does
not qualify for at least the same number of points that the bidder qualifies for,
unless the intended sub-contractor is an EME that has the capacity to execute the
sub-contract.

A contractor is not allowed to sub-contract more than 25% of the contract value to
another enterprise that does not have an equal or higher B-BBEE status level,
unless the intended sub-contractor is an EME or QSE that has the capacity and
ability to execute the sub-contract.(please refer to new PPPFA regulations for sub-
contracting)

Evaluation of bids that scored equal points

In the event that two or more bids have scored equal total, the successful bid must
be the one that scored the highest points for B-BBEE.

If two or more bids have equal points, including equal preference points for B-
BBEE, the successful bid must be the one scoring the highest poinis for
functionality, if functionality is part of the evaluation process. In the event that two
or more bids are equal in all respects, the award must be decided by drawing lots.

{k) Cancellation and re-invitation of bids

In the application of the 80/20 point system, if all bids received exceed R50 million,
the bid must be cancelled. If one or more of the acceptable bid[s] received are
within the R 50 million thresholds, all bids received must be evaluated on the 80/20
preference point system.

In the application of the 90/10 preference point system, if all bids received are
equal or below R50million, the bid must be cancelled. If one or more of the
acceptable bid[s] received are above the R50million threshold, all bids received
must be evaluated on the 90/10 preference paint system.

If a bid was cancelled as indicated above, the correct preference point system
Page 31 of 69



EMTHANJENIMUNICIPALITY DRAFT SCM POLICY 2017/18 Financial Yuar

must be stipulated in the bid documents of the re-invited bid.

(I Awarding of contracts

A contract must be awarded to the bidder who scored the highest total number of

points in terms of the preference point system. Points scored must be rounded off

to the nearesti 2 decimal places.

In exceptional circumstances a contract may, on reasonable and justifiable
grounds be awarded to a bidder that did not score the highest number of points.
The reasons for such a decision must be approved and recorded for audit purposes
and must be defendable in a court of law.

(m) Sale and letting of assets

(n)

The Preferential Procurement Regulations, 2011, are not applicable to the sale
and letting of assets.

In instances where assets are sold or leased, by means of a bidding process, the
bid must be awarded to the bidder with the highest price

Proper record keeping

{0) Criginal / legal copies of written contracts agreements should be kept in a secure place

for reference purposes.

Bid documentation for competitive bids

21.

The criteria to which bid documentation for a competitive bidding process must

comply, must —

(a)

take into account —

(i) the general conditions of contract and any special conditions of contract, if
specified;

(ii) any Treasury guidelines on bid documentation; and

(i)  the requirements of the Construction Industry Development Board, in the
case of a bid relating to construction, upgrading or refurbishment of
buildings or infrastructure;
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(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

include the preference points system to be used , goals as contemplated in the

Preferential Procurement Regulations and evaluation and adjudication criteria,

including any criteria required by other applicable legislation;

compel bidders to declare any conflict of interest they may have in the transaction

for which the bid is submitted;

if the value of the transaction is expected to exceed R10 million (VAT included),
require bidders to furnish—

(i if the bidder is required by law to prepare annual financial statements for
auditing, their audited annual financial statements —

(aa) for the past three years; or
{bb) since their establishment if established during the past three years;

(i) a cerificate signed by the bidder certifying that the bidder has no
undisputed commitments for municipal services towards a municipality or
other service provider in respect of which payment is overdue for more than
30 days;

(i)  particulars of any contracts awarded to the bidder by an organ of state
during the past five years, including particulars of any material non-
compliance or dispute concerning the execution of such contract;

a statement indicating whether any portion of the goods or services are
expected to be sourced from outside the Republic, and, if so, what portion
and whether any portion of payment from the municipality or municipal
entity is expected to be fransferred out of the Republic, and

stipulate that disputes must be settled by means of mutual consuitation, mediation

(with or without legal representation), or, when unsuccessful, in a South African

court of law.

The Accounting Officer reserves the right to stipulate such a dispute to be settled

utilizing a court of law preferably within the municipal boundaries or as close as

possible to the municipal boundaries

Public invitation for competitive bids

22,

(1)  The procedure for the invitation of competitive bids is as follows:
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(a) Any invitation to prospective providers to submit bids must be by means of a public

advertisement in newspapers commonly circulating locally, the website of

Emthanjeni Local Municipality or any other appropriate ways; and

(b) the information contained in a public advertisement, must include —

(i)

(i)

(iii)

the closure date for the submission of bids, which may not be less than 30
days in the case of transactions over R10 million (VAT included), or which
are of a long term nature, or 14 days in any other case, from the date on
which the advertisement is placed in a newspaper;

a statement that bids may only be submitted on the bid documentation
provided by Emthanjeni Local Municipality; and

date, time and venue of any proposed site meetings or briefing sessions;

(2) The Accounting Officer may determine a closing date for the

submission of bids which is less than the 30 or 14 days requirement, only if

such shorter period can be justified on the grounds of urgency or

emergency or any exceptional case where it is impractical or impossible to

follow the official procurement process.

(6)

(4)

Bids submitted must be sealed.

Where bids are requested in electronic format, such bids must be

supplemented by sealed hard copies.

Procedure for handling, opening and recording of bids

23. The procedures for the handling, opening and recording of bids, are as follows:

(a) Bids—
(i)
(if)

(i)

must be opened only in public;

must be opened at the same time and as soon as possible after the period
for the submission of bids has expired; and

received after the closing time should not be considered and returned
unopened immediately.
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(b) Any bidder or member of the public has the right to request that the names of the
bidders who submitted bids in time must be read out and, if practical, also each
bidder’s total bidding price;

(c) No information, except the provisions in subparagraph (b), relating to the bid should
be disclosed to bidders or other persons until the successful bidder is notified of the
award; and

(d)  The Accounting Officer must —
(i) record in a register all bids received in time;
(i) make the register available for public inspection; and
(iiiy  publish the entries in the register and the bid results on the website.

Registration of contractor

24. Contractors/bidders who are compelled to register with controlling authorities
regarding their goods/services to be delivered should ensure that their relevant
registration is in order prior to the closure of the bids.

Negotiations with preferred bidders

25. (1) The Accounting Officer may negotiate the final terms of a contract with
bidders identified through a competitive bidding process as preferred bidders,
provided that such negotiation —

(a) does not allow any preferred bidder a second or unfair opportunity;

(b} is not to the detriment of any other bidder; and

(c) does notlead to a higher price than the bid as submitted.

(2) Minutes of such negotiations must be kept for record purposes.
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Unbundling of tender

26.

When it is considered in Emthanjeni Local Municipality's best interest to divide the
total requirement on any one tender between two or more tenderers e.g. in order
to draw from the most convenient or nearest sources, or to ensure continued
competition or to optimize available resources or to support SMME's, a supply or
service may be divided amongst several tenderers, and contracts can be placed
accordingly, provided that this was a tender condition

Two-stage bidding process

27.

(a)
(b)

(c)

(1) A two-stage bidding process is allowed for —

large complex projects;

projects where it may be undesirable to prepare complete detailed technical

specifications; or

long term projects with a duration period exceeding three years.

(2) In the first stage technical proposals on conceptual design or performance

specifications should be invited, subject to technical as well as commercial

clarifications and adjustments.

(3) In the second stage final technical proposals and priced bids should be
invited.

No obligation to accept lowest or any bid

28.

The lowest of any tender or quotation shall not necessarily be recommended for

acceptance, provided that this was a tender condition.

Committee system for competitive bids

29.

(1} A commiltee system for competitive bids is hereby established, consisting
of the following committees for each procurement or cluster of procurements as
the Accounting Officer may determine:
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(a) a Bid Specification Committee;
{b) a Bid Evaiuation Committee; and
(¢) a Bid Adjudication Committee

The services of the consultant in the committee system will only be procured with
express _invifation from Municipal Manager and their participation will explicitly be

of advisory nature

Quorum

The quorum for meetings will be fifty percent of members plus one member.

(2) The Accounting Officer appoints the members of each committee, taking into
account that Councillors are barred from serving on municipal tender
committees; and Outside technical experts can also be co-opted, they must leave
the meeting after advice has been given. Only standing committee members can

be involved in final deliberation and recommendations or final approval.

(3) A_neutral or_independent observer, appointed by the Accounting Officer,

must attend or oversee a committee when this is appropriate for ensuring

fairness and promoting transparency.

(4) The committee system must be consistent with —
(a)  paragraph 28, 29 and 30 of this Policy; and
(b)  any other applicable legisiation.

The Accounting Officer may apply the committee system to formal written price
quotations.

Bid Specification Committees

30.(1) A Bid Specification Committee must compile the specifications for each
procurement of goods or services by Emthanjeni Local Municipality.
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(a)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

{9)

(2) Specifications —

to be drafted in an unbiased manner to allow all potential suppliers to offer their
goods or services;

must take account of any accepted standards such as those issued by Standards
South Africa, the Intemational Standards Organisation, or an authority accredited
or recognised by the South African National Accreditation System with which the
equipment or material or workmanship should comply;

must, where possible, be described in terms of performance required rather than in
terms of descriptive characteristics for design;

may not create trade barriers in contract reguirements in the forms of
specifications, plans, drawings, designs, testing and test methods, packaging,
marking or labeling of conformity certification;

may not make reference to any particular trade mark, name, patent, design, type,
specific origin or producer unless there is no other sufficiently precise or intelligible
way of describing the characteristics of the work, in which case such reference
must be accompanied by the word “equivalent”;

must indicate each specific goal for which points may be awarded in terms of the
points system set out in the Preferential Procurement Regulations 2001; and

must be approved by the Accounting Officer prior to publication of the invitation for
bids in terms of paragraph 22 of this Policy.

(3) A Bid Specification Committee may be composed of

of:
« manager responsible for the function involived
» legal advisor

» when appropriate, include external specialist advisors.

(4) No person, advisor or corporate entity involved with the Bid Specification

Committee, or director of such a corporate entity, may bid for any resuiting contracts.
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Bid Evaluation Committees

31.

(a)

(b)
(c)

(1) A Bid Evaluation Committee must -

evaluate bids in accordance with —

(i) the specifications for a specific procurement; and

ii) the points system set out in terms of paragraph 29(2) (f).

evaluate each bidder’s ability to execute the contract;

check in respect of the recommended bidder, whether municipal rates and taxes
and municipal service charges are not in arrears, and;

submit to the Adjudication Committee a report and recommendations regarding the
award of the bid or any other related matter.

(2) A Bid Evaluation Committee must as far as possible be composed of:

*» One or two senior managers from depariments requiring the goods or
services;

» Supply chain practitioner/staff member
¢ Tender secretariat

* Internal Auditor:

To promote transparency, the Internal Auditor’s role in the committee system will

be purely to monitor and not to participate in the committee system.

Bid Adjudication Committees

32.

(a)
(b)

(1) A Bid Adjudication Committee must —
consider the report and recommendations of the bid evaluation committee; and
either —
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(i) depending on its delegations, make a final award or a recommendation to
the Accounting Officer to make the final award; or

(ii) make another recommendation to the Accounting Officer how to proceed
with the relevant procurement,

For better control and efficiency purposes Directors who will serve
on this committee will be appointed by the Accounting Officer and it
will be on a rotational basis

A Bid Adjudication Committee may include —

Chief Financial Officer ; [The Chairperson of Committee]
Directors of various directorates;

Supply Chain Accountant;

Internal Auditor;

Tender Secretariat; and or

¢ O ¢ 0o QO O

Technical expert in the relevant field who is an official, if such an expert
exists.

(3) [f the chairperson is absent from a meeting, the members of the committee
who are present must elect one of them to preside at the meeting.

(4) Neither a member of a Bid Evaluation Committee, nor an advisor or
person assisting the Evaluation Committee, may be a member of a Bid

Adjudication Committee.

(5) (a) If the Bid Adjudication Committee decides to award a bid other than the
one recommended by the bid evaluation committee, the Bid Adjudication Committee
must prior to awarding the bid -
(i) check in respect of the preferred bidder whether that bidder's municipal
rates and taxes and municipal service charges are not in arrears, and;
(i) notify the Accounting Officer.

(b)  The Accounting Officer may —
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(i)

(i)

(6)

after due consideration of the reasons for the deviation, ratify or reject the
decision of the Bid Adjudication Committee referred to in paragraph (a); and
if the decision of the Bid Adjudication Committee is rejected, refer the
decision of the adjudication committee back to that committee for
reconsideration.

The Accounting Officer may at any stage of a bidding process, refer any

recommendation made by the Evaluation Committee or the Adjudication Commitiee

back to that committee for reconsideration of the recommendation.

(7)

(8)

The Accounting Officer must comply with Section 114 of the Act within 10
working days

For the purposes of continuity and not to delay meetings the Accounting
Officer may also appoint any official to temporarily replace members that
are absent from meetings due to iliness, leave, etc. The Accounting Officer
may also decide whether or not such an official will have the same powers
as committee members

Extension of Awarded Contract

(b)

The Accounting Officer may —

(M)

(i)

(ifi)

(iv)

award or extend a existing contract when a written submission has been
received by the specific Director for the extension due to circumstances
unknown.

That the extension must not be more than 20% of the original contract price
of the tender amount awarded.

That all the relevant supporting documentation form the Director, Consulting
Engineer and also the Contractor involved.

that National Treasury be informed about the extensions.
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Procurement of banking services

(1) A contract for banking services —

must be procured through competitive bids;

must be consistent with Section 7 or 85 of the Act; and
may not be for a period of more than five years at a time.

(2) The process for procuring a contract for banking services must commence

at least nine months before the end of an existing contract.

(3) The closure date for the submission of bids may not be less than 60

days from the date on which the advertisement is placed in a newspaper. Bids
must be restricted to banks registered in terms of the Banks Act, 1990 (Act No. 94
of 1990).

Procurement of IT related goods or services

34,

(b}

(1) The Accounting Officer may request the State Information Technology Agency
(SITA) to assist with the acquisition of 1T related goods or services through a

competitive bidding process.

(2) Both parties must enter into a written agreement to regulate the services
rendered by, and the payments to be made to, SITA.

(3)  The Accounting Officer must notify SITA together with a motivation of the IT
needs if —

the transaction value of IT related goods or services required in any financial year
will exceed R50 million { including VATY); or

the transaction value of a coniract to be procured whether for one or more years

exceeds R50 million (including VAT).
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(4) If SITA comments on the submission and Emthanjeni Local Municipality
disagree with such comments, the comments and the reasons for rejecting or not
following such comments must be submitted to the Council, the National Treasury,
the relevant Provincial treasury and the Auditor General.

Procurement of goods and services under contracts secured by other organs of
state

35. (1) The Accounting Officer may procure goods or services under a contract
secured by another organ of state, but only if -

(a) the contract has been secured by that other organ of state by means of a
competitive bidding process applicable to that organ of state;

(b) there is no reason to believe that such contract was not validly procured;

(c) there are demonstrable discounts or benefits to do so; and

(d) that other organ of state and the provider have consented to such procurement in
writing.

(2)  Sub-paragraphs (1) (c) and (d) do not apply if —

(a)  a municipal entity procures goods or services through a contract secured by
its parent municipality; or

(b} a municipality procures goods or services through a contract secured by a
municipal entity of which it is the parent municipality.

Procurement of goods necessitating special safety arrangements

36. (1) The acquisition and storage of goods in bulk (other than water), which
necessitate special safety arrangements, including gasses and fuel, should be
avoided where ever possible.

(2) Where the storage of goods in bulk is justified, such justification must be
based on sound reasons, including the total cost of ownership, cost advantages

and environmental impact and must be approved by the Accounting Officer.
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Proudly SA Campaign

37. Emthanjeni Local Municipality supports the Proudly SA Campaign to the extent

that, all things being equal, preference is given to procuring local goods and

services and see also Cir 1/2/1/2/2 that deals with the promotion of local

production and content

Appointment of consultants

3s. (1)

(2)

(3)

{4)

The Accounting Officer may procure consulting services provided that any
Treasury guidelines in respect of consulting services are taken into account
when such procurements are made.

Consultancy services must be procured through competitive bids if
(a) the value of the contract exceeds R200 000 (VAT included); or

(b) the duration period of the contract exceeds one year.

In addition to any requirements prescribed by this policy for competitive

bids, bidders must furnish particulars of —

(a) all consuitancy services provided to an organ of state in the last five
years; and

(b} any similar consultancy services provided to an organ of state in the
last five years.

The Accounting Officer must ensure that copyright in any document

produced, and the patent rights or ownership in any plant, machinery,
thing, system or process designed or devised, by a consultant in the
course of the consultancy service is vested in Emthanjeni Local

Municipality.
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Deviation from, and ratification of, minor breaches of procurement processes

39.

(1)
(a)

(i)

(iv)
v)

(b)

(2)

The Accounting Officer may —

dispense with the official procurement processes established by this

Policy and to procure any required goods or services through any
convenient process, which may include direct negotiations, but only —

in an emergency;

if such goods or services are produced or available from a single provider
only;

for the acquisition of special works of art or historical objecls where
specifications are difficult to compile;

acquisition of animais for zeos and/or nature and game reserves; or

in any other exceptional case where it is impractical or impossible  to
follow the official procurement processes; and

ratify any minor breaches of the procurement processes by an official or
committee acting in terms of delegated powers or duties which are purely of
a technical nature.

The Accounting Officer must record the reasons for any deviations in terms

of this policy and report them to the next meeting of the Council and include as a

note to the annual financial statements.

(3)

Reasons for any deviation will not apply to the procurement of goods and

services contracted with another organ of state.

Management of expansion or variation of orders against the original contract

39.1. Contracts may be expanded or varied by not more than 20%forconstructionrelated

goods, services and /or infrastructure projects and 15% for ail other goods
and/or services of the original value of the contract. Furthermore, anything
beyond the above mentioned thresholds must be reported to council. Any
expansion or variation in excess of these thresholds must be dealt with in
terms of the provisions of Section 116 (3) of the MFMA which will be
regarded as an amendment of the contract.
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39.2. The contents of this paragraph are not applicable to transversal
contracts,facilitated by the relevant treasuries on behalf of municipalities and
specific term contracts. The latter refers to orders placed as and when
commodities are required and at the time of awarding contracts, the required
guantities were unknown.

39.3 Local Content

The Preferential Procurement Regulations, 2011 pertaining to the Preferential
Procurement Policy Framework Act, Act No 5 OF 2000 which came into effect on
7 December 2011 make provision for the dti to designate sectors in line with
national development and industrial policies for local production. To this end the
dti has designated and determined the stipulated minimum thresholds for the
following sectors:

-Bus Sector 70 -80 %
-Pylons 100 %
-Rolling Stock 55-80%
-Textiles 100%

- Processed Vegetables 80 %

- Set Top Boxes 30 %

- Furniture Products from 65 to 100%

Note: Other designated sectors may be added by dti in future.

When inviting bids/quotations where local content is applicable, municipalities must

indicate this in the bid advertisement. The MBD 6.2, SABS Specification SATS

1286:2011, and dti Guidance on the calculations of local content [available on dti's

official website http://www.thedti.gov.za] should also be inciuded in the bid

documents/quotations.

The supplier has to proof that the product he offers does indeed compiy with the
stipulated thresholds. In order to do this there are three annexures which the
supplier has to fill in and submit together with the bid document/quotation. These
forms are also available on the dti Guidance on the calculations of Local content. It
is advisable that municipalities attach the Guidance document to the bid
documents/quotations in order to assist the suppliers to fill in the bid documents.

A two stage evaluation process may be followed

-First stage: calculate if the bidder adheres to the local content percentage
requirement

-Second stage: Only the bidders who comply with the local content percentage
requirement will be evaluated further.

Urgent and emergency cases

40. In urgent and emergency cases, a municipality may dispense with the invitation of

bids and may obtain the required goods, works or services by means of quotations by

Page 46 of 69



EMTHANJENIMUNICIPALITY DRAFT 5CM POLICY 2017/18 Financial Year

preferably making use of the database of prospective suppliers, or otherwise in any

manner to the best interest of the municipality.

Urgent cases are cases where early delivery is of critical importance and the invitation of
competitive bids is either impossible or impractical .However, a lack of proper planning
should not be constituted as an urgent case.

Emergency cases are cases where immediate action is necessary in order to avoid a

dangerous or risky situation or misery.

The reasons for the urgency/emergency and for dispensing of competitive bids should be

clearly recorded and approved by the Accounting Officer.

Unsolicited bids

41. (1) In accordance with Section 113 of the Act there is no obligation to consider
unsolicited bids received outside a normal bidding process.

{2)  The Accounting Officer may decide in terms of Section 113(2) of the Act to
consider an unsolicited bid, only if —

{a) the product or service offered in terms of the bid is a demonstrably or proven
unique innovative concept;

(b) the product or service will be exceptionally beneficial to, or have exceptional cost
advantages;

(c) the person who made the bid is the sole provider of the product or service;
and

(d) the reasons for not going through the normal bidding processes are found to be
sound by the Accounting Officer.

(e)  If the municipality will not incur any cost in monetary value.
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(a)
(b)
(c)

(b}

(3) If the Accounting Officer decides to consider an unsolicited bid that
complies with subparagraph (2) of this policy, the decision must be made public
together with —

reasons as {o why the bid should not be open to other competitors;

an explanation of the potential benefits if the unsolicited bid were accepted; and

an invitation to the public or other potential suppliers to submit their comments

within 30 days of the notice.

(4)  The Accounting Officer must submit all written comments received pursuant
to sub-paragraph (3), including any responses from the unsolicited bidder, to the

National Treasury and the relevant provincial treasury for comment.

(8) The Adjudication Committee must consider the unsolicited bid and may
award the bid or make a recommendation to the Accounting Officer, depending on
its delegations.

(6) A meeting of the Adjudication Committee to consider an unsolicited bid

must be open to the public.

(7)  When considering the matter, the Adjudication Committee must take into
account -

any comments submitted by the public; and

any written comments and recommendations of the National Treasury or the

relevant provincial treasury.

(8) If any recommendations of the National Treasury or provincial treasury are
rejected or not followed, the Accounting Officer must submit to the Auditor General,
the relevant provincial treasury and the National Treasury the reasons for rejecting
or not following those recommendations.

(9)  Such submission must be made within seven days after the decision on the

award of the unsolicited bid is taken, but no contract committing Emthanjeni Local
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Municipality to the bid may be entered into or signed within 30 days of the
submission,

Combating of abuse of supply chain management system

42,

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(1}  The Accounting Officer must-

take all reasonable steps to prevent abuse of the supply chain management

sysiem;

investigate any allegations against an official or other role player of fraud,

corruption, favouritism, unfair or irregular practices or failure to comply with this

Policy, and when justified —

(i) take appropriate steps against such official or other role player; or

(i)  report any alleged criminal conduct to the South African Police Service;

check the National Treasury's database prior to awarding any contract to ensure

that no recommended bidder, or any of its directors, is listed as a person prohibited
from doing business with the public sector;

reject any bid from a bidder—

(i) if any municipal rates and taxes or municipal service charges owed by that
bidder or any of its directors to Emthanjeni Local Municipality, or to any
other municipality or municipal entity, are in arrears for more than three
months; or

(i) who during the last five years has failed to perform satisfactorily on a
previous contract with Emthanjeni Local Municipality or any other organ of
state after written notice was given to that bidder that performance was
unsatisfactory;

reject a recommendation for the award of a contract if the recommended bidder, or

any of its directors, has committed a corrupt or fraudulent act in competing for the

particular contract;

cancel a contract awarded to a person if —

(i) the person committed any corrupt or fraudulent act during the bidding
process or the execution of the contract; or
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(9)

(i}  an official or other role player committed any corrupt or fraudulent act during
the bidding process or the execution of the contract that benefited that
person; and

reject the bid of any bidder if that bidder or any of its directors —

(i has abused the supply chain management system of Emthanjeni Local
Municipality or has committed any improper conduct in relation to such
system;

(i)  has been convicted for fraud or corruption during the past five years;

(i)  has willfully neglected, reneged on or failed to comply with any government,
municipal or other public sector contract during the past five years; or

(iv) has been listed in the Register for Tender Defaulters in terms of section
29 of the Prevention and Combating of Corrupt Activities Act (No 12 of
2004).

(2) The Accounting Officer must inform the National Treasury and relevant
provincial treasury in writing of any actions taken in terms of subparagraphs
{1)(b)(ii), (e) or (f) of this policy.

Part 3: Logistics, Disposal, Risk and Performance Management

43.

(a)

(b)

(c)

Logistics management

The Accounting Officer must establish and implement an effective system of
logistics management, which must include -

the monitaring of spending patterns on types or classes of goods and services
incorporating, where practical, the coding of items to ensure that each item has
a unique number;

the setting of inventory levels that includes minimum and maximum levels and lead
times wherever goods are placed in stock;

the placing of manual or electronic orders for all acquisitions other than those from
petty cash;
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{(d)  before payment is approved , certification by the responsible officer that the goods
and services are received or rendered on time and is in accordance with the order,

(a) appropriate standards of internal control and warehouse management to
ensure that goods placed in stores are secure and only used for the purpose
for which they were purchased;

(b} regular checking to ensure that all assets including official vehicles are
properly managed, appropriately maintained and only used for official
purposes; and

(c) monitoring and review of the supply vendor performance to ensure
compliance with specifications and contract conditions for particular goods
or services.

(h) the maintenance and administration of term contracts is co-managed with acquisition

management for general goods / services.

Disposal management
44. (1) The criteria for the disposal or letting of capital assets, including
unserviceable, redundant or obsolete capital assets are as follows:

Section 14 and 90-Disposal of capital assets
1 A municipality may not transfer ownership as a result of a sale or other

transaction or otherwise permanently dispose of a capital asset
needed to provide the minimum level of basic municipal services.

2 A municipality may transfer ownership or otherwise dispose of a
capital asset other than an asset contemplated in subsection 1, but
only after the municipal Council, in a meeting open to the public-

(a) Has decided on reasonable grounds that the asset is not needed to provide
the minimum level of basic municipal service; and

(b) Has considered the fair market value of the asset of the asset and the
economic and community value to be received in exchange for the asset.

3 A decision by a municipal council that a specific capital asset is not

needed to provide the minimum level of basic municipal services, may
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(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

not be reversed by the municipality after that asset has been sold,
transferred or otherwise disposed of.

4 A municipal council may delegate to the Accounting Officer of the
municipality its power to make the determinations referred to in sub-
section 2 (a) and (b) in respect of movable capital assets below a value
determined by the council.

5 Any transfer of ownership of a capital asset in terms of sub-section 2
or 4 must be fair, equitable, transparent, competitive and consistent
with the supply chain management policy which the municipality
must have and maintain in terms of Section 111.

8 This section does not apply to the transfer of a capital asset to
another municipality or to 2 municipal entity or to a national or
provincial organ of state in circumstances and in respect of
categories of assets approved by the National Treasury, provided
that such transfers are in accordance with a prescribed framework

(2) Assets may be disposed of by -
(i) transferring the asset to another organ of state in terms of a provision of the

Act enabling the transfer of assets;

(ii) transferring the asset to another organ of state at market related value or,
when appropriate, free of charge;

(i)  selling the asset; or

(i) destroying the asset.

(2) The Accounting Officer must ensure that -

immovable property is sold only at market related prices except when the public
interest or the plight of the poor demands otherwise,

movable assets are sold either by way of written price quotations, a competitive
bidding process, auction or at market related prices, whichever is the most
advantageous,

firearms are not sold or donated to any person or institution within or outside the
Republic unless approved by the National Conventional Arms Control Committee;

immovable property is let at market related rates except when the public interest or
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(e)

(f)

(9)

the plight of the poor demands otherwise;
all fees, charges, rales, tariffs, scales of fees or other charges relating to the letting
of immovable property are annually reviewed;

where assets are traded in for other assets, the highest possible trade-in price
is negotiated; and

in the case of the free disposal of computer equipment, the provincial
department of education is first approached to indicate within 30 days whether
any of the local schools are interested in the equipment.

Risk management

45.

(1)  The criteria for the identification, consideration and avoidance of potential

risks in the supply chain management system, are as follows:

(a)
(b}
(c)
(d)

(e)

(2)  Risk management must include —

lhe identification of risks on a case-by-case basis;

the allocation of risks to the party best suited to manage such risks:

acceptance of the cost of the risk where the cost of transferring the risk is greater
than that of retaining it;

the management of risks in a pro-active manner and the provision of adequate cover
for residual risks; and

the assignment of relative risks to the contracting parties through clear and
unambiguous contract documentation.

Performance management

46.

The Accounting Officer must establish and implement an internal monitoring system

in order to determine, on the basis of a retrospective analysis, whether the authorised

supply chain management processes were followed and whether the objectives of this

Policy were achieved.

Part 4: Other matters

Safe custody of contracts
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47.

Original contracts should be kept by the Corporate Department, with
the copies to the relevant department. The Accounting officer together
with the Chief Financial Officer will be the only officials who will hold
the keys to the safe.

Prohibition on awards to persons whose tax matters are not in order

48.

(2)

(3)

(1)  Noaward above R15 000 may be made in terms of this Policy to a person
whose tax matters have not been declared by the South African Revenue

Service to be in order.

Before making an award to a person the Accounting Officer must first check
with SARS whether that person’s tax matters are in order.

If SARS does not respond within 7 days such person’s tax matters may be

presumed to be in order.

Prohibition on awards to persons in the service of the state

49,

(a)
(b)

(c)

Irrespective of the procurement process followed, no award may be made to a
person in terms of this Policy —

who is in the service of the state;

if that person is not a natural person, of which any director, manager, principal
shareholder or stakeholder is a person in the service of the state; or

a person who is an advisor or consultant contracted with Emthanjeni Municipality.

Municipalities are exempted from complying with this regulation until 2011,

Einsofar as this regulation prohibits making awards to a persons in the

Page 54 of 73



CMTHANJENI MUNICIPALITY DRAFT SCM POLICY 201718 Financial Year

following circumstances:
o where the person receiving the award is a non-executive member of
the Board of Directors of a municipality entity; or
» where the person receiving the award is not a natural person and any
of it's directors, managers, principal shareholders or stakeholders is

a non-executive member of the Board of Director of a municipal entity.

Awards to close family members of persons in the service of the state

50. The Accounting Officer must ensure that the notes to the annuail financial statements
disclose particulars of any award of more than R2000 to a person who is a spouse, child
or parent of a person in the service of the state, or has been in the service of the state in
the previous twelve months, including -

(a) the name of that person;

(b) the capacity in which that person is in the service of the state; and

(¢) the amount of the award.

Ethical standards
51. (1) A code of ethical standards is hereby established for officials and other role
players in the supply chain management system of Emthanjeni Local Municipality in
order to promote —
(@)  mutual trust and respect; and
(b)  an environment where business can be conducted with integrity and in a fair and
reasonable manner.

Note:

It is recommended that the municipality or municipal entily adopt the ‘National
Treasury's code of conduct for supply chain management practitioners and other
role players involved in supply chain management’. When adopted, such code of
conduct becomes binding on all officials and other role players involved in the
implementation of the supply chain management policy of the municipality or
municipal entity. A copy of the National Treasury code of conduct is available on the
website www.treasury.qov.za/mfma located under ‘legisiation”. This code of

conduct must be adopted by council or board of directors to become binding.
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Inducements, rewards, gifts and favours to municipalities, officials and other role

players

52. (1) No person who is a provider or prospective provider of goods or services, or
a recipient or prospective recipient of goods disposed or to be disposed of may either
directly or through a representative or intermediary promise, offer or grant —

{a) anyinducement or reward to Emthanjeni Local Municipality for or in connection with
the award of a contract; or

{b) anyreward, gift, favour or hospitality to —

(i) any official; or
(i)  any other role player involved in the implementation of this Policy.

(2) The Accounting Officer must promptly report any alleged contravention of
subparagraph (1) to the National Treasury for considering whether the offending
person, and any representative or intermediary through which such person is
alleged to have acted, should be listed in the National Treasury's database of
persons prohibited from doing business with the public sector.

(3)  Subparagraph (1) does not apply to gifts less than R350 in vaiue.

Sponsorships

53. The Accounting Officer must promptly disclose to the National Treasury and the
relevant provincial treasury any sponsorship promised, offered or granted, whether
directly or through a representative or intermediary, by any person who is -

(a) a provider or prospective provider of goods or services; or
(b)  arecipient or prospective recipient of goods disposed or to be disposed.

Objections and complaints
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54. Persons aggrieved by decisions or actions taken in the implementation of this supply
chain management system, may lodge within 14 days of the decision or action, a written
objection or complaint against the decision or action.

Hesolution of disputes, objections, complaints and queries

55. (1) The Accounting Officer must appoint an independent and impartial person,
not directly involved in the supply chain management processes —
(a) to assist in the resolution of disputes between Emthanjeni Local Municipality and
other persons regarding -
(i) any decisions or actions taken in the implementation of the supply chain
management system; or
(ii) any matter arising from a contract awarded in the course of the supply chain
management system; or
(b) to deal with objections, complaints or queries regarding any such decisions or
actions or any matters arising from such contract.

A parent municipality and a municipal entity under its sole or shared control may for
purposes of subparagraph (1) appoint the same person

(2)  The Accounting Officer, or another official designated by the Accounting
Officer, is responsible for assisting the appointed person to perform his or her functions
effectively.

(3)  The person appointed must -

(a) strive to resolve promptly all disputes, objections, complaints or
queries received; and

{(b) submit monthly reports lo the Accounting Officer on all dispuies, objections,
complaints or queries received, attended to or resolved.

(4)  Adispute, objection, complaint or query may be referred to the
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relevant provincial treasury if —
the dispute, objection, complaint or query is not resolved within 60 days; or
no response is forthcoming within 60 days.

(5)  |f the provincial treasury does not or cannot resolve the matter, the
dispute, objection, complaint or query may be referred to the National Treasury for

resolution.

(8)  This paragraph must not be read as affecting a person’s rights to approach a
court at any time.

Contracts providing for compensation based on turnover

(a)
(b)

if a service provider acts on behalf of Emthanjeni Municipality to provide any
service or act as a collector of fees, service charges or taxes and the
compensation payable to the service provider is fixed as an agreed
percentage of turnover for the service or the amount collected, the contract
between the service provider and Emthanjeni Local Municipality must
stipulate —

a cap on the compensation payable to the service provider; and

that such compensation must be performance based.

Penalties

57.

If the supplier fails to deliver any or ali the goods or to perform the services
within the period specified in the contract, the Municipality should, without
prejudice to its other remedies under the contract, deduct from the contract
price, as a penalty, a sum calculated on the delivered price of the delayed
goods or unperformed services using the current prime interest rate

calculated for each day until actual delivery or performance. The Municipality
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may also consider termination of the contact

CHAPTER 3

CODE OF CONDUCT FOR SUPPLY CHAIN PRACTITIONERS

The purpose of this Code of Conduct is to promote mutual trust and respect and an environment where

business can he conducted with integrity and in a fair and reasonable manner.

1 General Principles

Emthanjeni Local Municipality commits itself to a policy of fair dealing and integrity in the conducting of
its business. Officials and other role players involved in supply chain management (SCM) are in a
position of trust, implying a duty to act in the public interest. Officials and other role layers should not
perform their duties to unlawfully gain any form of compensation, payment or gratuities from any

person, or provider/contractor for themselves, their family or their friends.

QOfficials and other role players involved in SCM should ensure that they perform their
duties efficiently, effectively and with integrity, in accordance with the relevant legisiation,
policies and guidelines. They should ensure that public resources are administered
responsibly.

Officials and other role players involved in SCM should be fair and impartial in the
performance of their functions. They should at no time afford any undue preferential
treatment to any group or individual. They should not abuse the power and authority
vested in them.

2  Conflict of interest
An official or other role player involved with supply chain management-

» must treat all providers and potential providers equitably;
» May not use his or her position for private gain or to improperly benefit
another person;
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« may not accept any reward ,gift, favour, hospitality or other benefit directly or
indirectly, including to any close family member, partner or associate of that
person, a value of more than R350;

» must declare to the Accounting Officer details of any reward ,gift, favour,
hospitality or other benefits promised, offered or granted to that person or any
other family member, partner or associate of that person;

« must declare to the Accounting Officer details of any private or business
interest which that person, or any close family member, partner or associate,
may have in any proposed procurement or disposal process, or in any award
of a contract by Emthanjeni Local Municipality,

« must immediately withdraw from participating in any manner whatsoever in a
procurement or disposal process or in the award of a contract in which that
person ,or close family member, partner or associate , has any private or
business interest;

» must declare any business, commercial and financial interest or activities
undertaken for financial gain that may raise possible conflict of interest;

» should not place him/herself under any financial or other obligation to outside
individuals or organizations that might seek to influence them in the
performance of their official duties; and

« should not take improper advantages of their previous office after leaving
their official position.

3 Accountability
Practitioners are accountable for their decisions and actions to the public.
Practitioners should use public property scrupulously.

Only Accounting Officer or their delegates have the authority to commit Emthanjeni Local
Municipality to any transaction for the procurement of goods and/ or services.

All transactions conducted by a practitioner should be recorded and accounted for in an
appropriate accounting system. Practitioners should not make any false or misleading
entries into such a system for any reason whatsoever.

Practitioner must assist the Accounting Officer in combating fraud, corrupt, favouritism and
unfair and irregular practices in the supply chain management system

Praclitioners must report to the Accounting Officer may alleged irregular conduct in the
supply chain management which that person may become aware of, including

1. any alleged fraud, corruption, favouritism or unfair conduct
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2. an alleged contravention of the policy on inducements, reward, gifts and favours to
municipalities or municipal entities, officials or other role players; and
3. any alleged breach of this code of conduct.

Any declarations made must be recorded in a register which the Accounting Officer must
keep for this purpose. Any declarations made by the Accounting Officer must be made to
the Mayor who must ensure that such declaration is recorded in the register.

4. Openness

Practitioners should be as open as possible about all the decision and actions that they
take. They should give reasons for their decisions and restrict information only if it is in the
public interest to do so.

5. Confidentiality

Any information that is the property of Emthanjeni Local Municipality or its providers should
be protected at all times. No information regarding any bid/contract/bidder/contactor may
be revealed if such an action will infringe on the relevant bidder's/contractor's personal
rights.

Matters of confidential nature in the possession of officials and other role players involved
in SCM should be kept confidential unless legislation, the performance of duty or the
provisions of law requires otherwise. Such restrictions also apply to officials and other role
layers involved in SCM after separation from service.

6. Bid Committees

Bid Specification, Evaluation and Adjudication Committees should implement supply chain
management on behalf of Emthanjeni Local Municipality in an honest, fair, impartial,
transparent, cost-effective and accountable manner.

Bid Evaluation /Adjudication commitiees should be familiar with and adhere to the
prescribed legislation, directives and procedures in respect of supply chain management
in order to perform effectively and efficiently.

All members of Bid Adjudication Committees should be cleared by the Accounting Officer
at the level of ‘CONFIDENTIAL" and should be required to declare their financial interest
annually.
No person should-
s interfere with the supply chain management system of Emthanjeni Local
Municipality; or

e amend or tamper with any price quotation/bid after its submission.
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7. Combative Practices

Combative practices are unethical and illegal and should be avoided at all cost. They
include but are not limited to:

Suggestions of fictitious lower quotations;

Reference to non-existent competition;

Exploiting errors in price quotations/bids

Soliciting price quotations/bids from bidders/contractors whose names appear on the
Register for Tender Defaulters

When adopted, this code of conduct becomes binding on all officials and other role
players involved in the implementation of the Supply Chain Management Policy of
Emthanjeni Local Municipality.

(2) A breach of the code of ethics must be dealt with as follows —

(@) in the case of an employee, in terms of the disciplinary procedures of Emthanjeni
Local Municipality envisaged in section 67(1)(h) of the Municipal Systems Act;

(b) inthe case a role player who is not an employee, through other appropriate means
in recognition of the severity of the breach.

(c) in all cases, financial misconduct must be dealt with in terms of Chapter 15
of the Act and in accordance with the Regulations on financial misconduct

procedures an criminal procedures .

The Accounting Officer must review the policy at least annually and, where necessary,
submit proposals for amendment to the Council { Regulation 3).

Commencement
This Revised Policy takes effect on 01 July 2017.
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CHAPTER 4
PURCHASES PROCEDURES
NO. PROCEDURE FREQUENCY RESPONSIBILITY KPI
1. Purchase Requisitions:
¢ Purchase requisitions (PR) are completed . '
in the various sections of the Municipality. | Ongoing MM, Directors Yes
The CFO should assign the responsibility of
1.1
C e . Ongoing
maintaining the Purchases Requisition Book to CFO Yes
a specific person in each section. Ongaing CFO Yes
The buyer is responstble for maintaining a
1.2 record of the pre-numbered colour coded
purchase requisition books issued to each
section.
13
2, The Officer authorising the purchase | Ongoing Municipal Manager Yes

requisition, should ensure that there is
sufficient funds available within the
nominated vote, Where there are
insufficient funds, the Municipal
Manager may utilise a saving in the
amount appropriated under a main
division within a vote, towards the
defrayment of excess expenditure
under another main division within the
same vote.

CFO
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NO. PROCEDURE FREQUENCY RESPONSIBILITY KPI
&)
Purchases requisitions should be forwarded to | Ongoing CFO Yes
3.1 the Supply Chain Clerks.
3.2 The _ §upply Chain Clerks. check the Ongoing CFO Yes
requisition to ensure the following:
s The correct vote has been inserted;
« The description of the goods/services is
accurate and the quantity specified;
o That all unused lines have been ruled off
to prevent unauthorised additions; and
« That the requisition has been signed by
an authorised Officer designaled by the
Municipal Manager.
4. It is the SC Clerks' responsibility to source ;| Ongoing Supply Chain Yes
the supplier for the goods requested. The Accountant
database is to be used, unless these
suppliers are unable to fulfil the order on
and as required basis.
5. In the instance that quotations are required, | Ongoing Municipal Manager, Yes
the purchase requisitions together with the Chief Financial
quolations must be handled according to the Officer,
Supply Chain Management Policy. Supply Chain
Accountant
8. Once the requisition has been through the | Ongoing Municipal Manager Yes
process and has been approved, the CFO
requisition and quotations should be Supply Chain
returned to the buyer. Accountant.
7. The buyer would then make out the order. | Ongoing CFO Yes
Four copies of the order must be produced.
The first must be sent to the supplier, the
second must be attached to the requisition
and forwarded to the creditors department,
the third copy must be sent to the receiving
section, and the final copy remains in the
order book.
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NO.

PROCEDURE

FREQUENCY

RESPONSIBILITY

KPI

8.

All goods should be received in a
demarcated area by the stores. An
exception to this would be the delivery of
capital works or maintenance projects, as
well as goods to be delivered directly to the
department for example motor vehicles,
plant and equipment.

Ongoing

CFO

Yes

When the delivery of goods is made by the
suppliers, the receiver must:

o Maich the supplier delivery note to a
properly authorised purchase order;

» Check the quantity of goods received
against the supplier delivery note and
the purchase order;

*» Reject all incorrect deliveries. In the
case of short deliveries, clearly indicate
as such on the suppliers delivery note
and the purchase order;

* Prepare a goods received note (GRN)in
duplicate detailing the items and
quantities received;

» Sign the suppliers delivery note and
GRN to indicate receipt of the goods;
and

» Ensure that the supplier's delivery
personnel sign the delivery note to
indicate agreement with the delivery and
to the adjustments, if any.

Ongoing

| CFO

Yes

10.

Goods should then be sent to the relevant
section. The official that authorised the
requisition should sign the goods received
note to indicate receipt of the goods.

Ongoing

CFO

Yes

11.

The supplier's delivery note and the original
goods received note should be forwarded
to the creditors section.

The duplicate goods received note should
be filed.

Ongoing

CFO

Yes

12.

If the Chief Financial Officer instructs that a
supplier make delivery of goods at a location
other than the demarcaled area, a person
designated by the Chief Financial Officer,
shall take delivery thereof and sign the
supplier's delivery note to indicate receipt of

Periodic

CFO

Yes
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NO. PROCEDURE FREQUENCY RESPONSIBILITY KPI

the goods. This delivery note must then be
submitted to the creditors section after being
signed by the Chief Financial Officer.

13. The creditors seclion receives the following | Weekly CFO Yes
in batches as the invoices are finalised for
payment;

e Orders with corresponding requisitions
from the buying section;

» The supplier's delivery note and the
internal goods received note (GRN) from
the receiving section; and

» If the supplier forwards his invoice with
the delivery note, the receiving official
should date stamp and forward to
creditors.

14. Procedures far actual payment of creditor
invoices are documented under the creditor
payment section.

CHAPTER 5

CREDITORS PAYMENT PROCEDURE

NO. PROCEDURE FRE QUENCY RESPONSIBILITY KPI

1. Each supplier invoice must be | Ongoing CFO Yes
matched to a properly approved {Creditors Section)
requisition and order form.

2. The invoice must then be matched to | Ongoeing CFO Yes
the delivery note. The description of (Creditors Sectlion)

the goods, the quantity supplied and
the signature of the authorised
person receiving the goods must be
confirmed.
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NO.

PROCEDURE

FRE QUENCY

RESPONSIBILITY

KPI

3.1.

3.2,

The creditors section is responsible
for checking the adequacy and
completeness of documents received
from the purchasing and stores
sections.

If the creditors section is not satisfied
with the documents received from the
purchasing or stores sections, they
must interrogate the relevant
purchasing or stores officials.

Ongoing

Ongoing

CFO
{Creditors Seclion)

SC Manager

CFO

{Head of Creditors
Section)

Yes

No

If the invoice relates to a service that
was supplied, the official that
requested the service, should sign the
invoice to indicate that the service was

received.

Ongoing

CFO
{Creditors Section)

Yes

Where a service is rendered regularly
in terms of a standing contract, or
where a continuing service such as a
telephone is provided, order forms
are not required. The official
receiving the service must approve
the invoice before submitting it to the
creditors section for checking and
payment.

Ongoing

CFO

Yes

All payments:

» Should be effected by cheque or
by electronic transfer. Apart from
petty cash, no payments should
be made in cash; and

Should be made monthly, and, only

under exceptional circumstances, as

delermined by the Chief Financial

Officer, should a payment be made

oulside of these intervals.

Ongoing

Cro

Yes

The creditors section must
prepare a list of payments to be
made, differentiating between
electronic and cheque payments.

Monthly

CrO
{Creditors section)

Yes
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NO.

PROCEDURE

FRE QUENCY

RESPONSIBILITY

KPI

8.

The creditors section must
present the payment listing
together with supporting
documentation to the Chief
Financial Officer.

Monthly

CFQ
(Creditors Section)

Yes

The CFO must critically inspect
the supporting documentation to
satisfy himself/herself that the
requested payments are in order.

Monthly as
whenever
payments are
requesi

CFO

Yes

10.

Disputed payments will be returned
to the creditors section. It is the
responsibility of the creditors section
to ensure that the supporting
documentation is complete.

Maonthly

CFO
(Creditors Section).

Yes

11.

These cheque requisition forms
will be forwarded to an official
who has been assigned the
responsibility to prepare
cheques.

Monthly

Chief Financial Qtficer

No

12.

The cheques and the supporting
documentation are forwarded to
the Municipal Manager and Chief
Financial Officer or to the
signatories appointed by them for
signing.

Municipal Manager
CFO
SCM Accountant

13.

The cheques and the supporting
documentation are forwarded to
the Municipal Manager and Chief
Financial Officer or to the
signatories appointed by them for
signing.

Monthly

14.

Every signatory must inspect the
documentation and satisfy him/
herself as to the validity of the
expense before he/she signs the
cheque.

Monthly

All designated
signatories

Yes

15.1

15.2

Two signatories must sign every
cheque.

The cheque number must appear
on the supporting
documentation, The
documentation should also be
stamped as evidence of it being
paid.

Monthly

All designated
signdtories

Chief Financial Officer

Yes
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NO.

PROCEDURE

FRE QUENCY

RESPONSIBILITY

KPI

18.

The cheques should then be
posted to or collected by the
respective creditor.

Monthly

Chicf Financial Officer

No
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TRAVEL AND SUBSISTENCE ALLOWANCES
POLICY

All expenditure referred to in this policy is against Public
Funds. Councillors and Officials are requested to be prudent
when incurring any subsistence and travel expenditure

A: NATIONAL TRAVEL WITHIN THE BOUNDARIES OF THE
REPUBLIC OF SOUTH AFRICA

1. APPROVAL

In accordance with the delegated powers, the approval of the
attendance of meetings is vested in the Municipal Manager and Chief
Financial Officer for workshop, seminars, conferences, congresses and
similar events and special visits which are in the interest of the Council,
provided that the necessary funds are available.

(i) Approval by Municipal Manager
For attendance by:

Mayor
Councillors
Directors

(i)  Approval by Chief Financial Officer

For attendance by Municipal Manager and officials in the finance
directorate. If the Municipal Manager is absent the Chief
Financiai Officer will sign forms on his/her behaif.

(iii)  Approval by Directors

For attendance by officials in the directorate
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2. ALLOWANCES
2.1 Subsistence Allowances

(a) Allowances Payable:

2017/18 Fin year

Overnight Subsistence
Allowances per day or part

Day allowances {(no
overnight) per day or

thereof part thereof
(i) Mayor, Speaker, Councillors, | R353.00 R109.00
Municipal Manager, Directors,
Senior Managers
(i} All other officials R353.00 R109.00
(i) Prospective applicants who were
invited for interviews for vacant
positions will only be assisted in:
(a) Over night accomodation Accomodation costs RO

(b) Re-imbursive travel claim

© The Municipal Manager will
determine and approve such claims
as it occur from time to time and the
rates as per policy will be paid to
Shortlisted Candidates

R2.20 per kilometre

*Breakfast=R50(leaving before 6h15 am); Lunch = R69 and Supper =R125 (returning after

18h00 pm)

NB: The allowance amounts will be unchanged for the 2017/2018 financial year due to the

cash flow position of Council

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

That where expenses are supported by documentary proof, the actual
costs be payable in all instances under (a)

that expenses shall consist of the cost in respect of accommodation,
meals, parking and tollgate fees (an approved route must be
submitted), excluding expenses for alcoholic beverages, private
telephone calls and entertainment;

That subject to submission of documentary proof and attached to the
application for subsistence allowance before departure, payments shall
be made directly to a hotel or travel agency for accommodation costs.
Further approved expenses incurred by a delegate may be claimed for
reimbursement on return;

That in the event that the Mayor, Speaker, Councillors, Municipal
Manager and Directors have to attend emergency meetings on behaif
of the municipality, where proof is not immediately available the
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Municipal Manager or his designate must approved such trips or
claims. All other trips should be substantiated with all the
necessary supporting documentation before the Municipal
Manager or Directors can approve such trips or claims.

() All claim forms to be submitted seven {7) days before the actual
trip, to the Director for finance or his/her nominee. Payment must
be done via EFT.

(g)  For private lodging (staying with family, etc.) a maximum amount of
R400.00 will be paid.

(n) Al Councillors, Municipal Manager, Directors and officials must be
encourage to stay overnight in Guest Houses to ensure cost
effectiveness. A maximum amount of R960 per night should be paid for
accommodation within the Northern Cape Province.

(i) Accommodation outside the NC province should be in consuitation with
the Office of the Municipal Manager.

M No Re-imbursive Trave! and DAILY allowance will be paid to any
Councilor or Official for traveling costs on any visits within the
Emthanjeni Municipality boundaries.

(k)  Claiming of Lunch fees:

Lunch fees wifl not be claimed unless it is explicitly stated that no
lunch will be served at meeting, workshops, briefing sessions,
etc.

In the event where a councillor or official is unable to make use of the
meals provided due to religious convictions, circumstances beyond
their control, etc., the reimbursement for alternative meals shall be
dealt with on an ad hoc basis with the authorization of the Municipal
Manager or his/her delegated authority. Proof of payment vouchers
must be submitted before payment will be made.

(1) Miscelianeous Expenses — National
The following expenses incurred are regarded as miscellaneous and may

claimed within the boundaries of the Republic of South Africa on
production of proof of expenditure only when the councillor or official are
away for more than five days:

=< Laundry

-»Parking fees while travelling

-2 Toll fees

=< Public transport costs

- Any additional reasonable claim
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No subsistence allowance will be paid, and no representative will be

entitled to a subsistence allowance, if the trip or travel is not related to the

All allowances are subjected to the annual SARS increment limits as

publish on the official website of the South African Revenue Services

(m)

official business of the municipality.
(n)

(SARS)
2.2 Travelling Cost

(a)  Travelling

(i) Mayor, Speaker, Councillors, Municipal
Manager, Directors, Senior Managers
(Air Travelling)

Actual costs of an economy class air tickets of
SAA or applicable other airline payable to the
stipulations under paragraph (b). SAA being
the preferred airline.

(ii) Other officials

As above or fravelling method as approved by
the Chief Financial Officer.

(i) Where private motor vehicle is used
for re-imbursive travel

{a) when a monthly transport allowance is
receive.

(b) when a monthly transport allowance is
not received.

Tariff as determined by SARS
(non-taxabie SARS limit)

Tariff as determined by SARS
(non-taxable SARS limit)

Currently R3.15¢ @ km

{n) Al allowances are subjected to the
annual SARS increment limits as
publish on the official website of the
South African Revenue Services
{SARS), but the 2015/2016 allowance
amounts will be applicable during
2017/2018 financial year due to the

cash flow position of Council.

The Department Transport tariffs may be
applicable for employees with such contracts.

(iv) If persons in paragraph (i) and (ii) are accompanied by each other, when travelling by
private vehicle, the allowance payable will only be appiicable to the person who supplies

the motor vehicle.

(b)

that all airfare be in the account of the Emthanjeni Local Municipality.

An account for this purpose be opened at a travel agency and the
following procedure for air travel, be followed, namely.

(i) Municipal Manager and Directors within the delegated powers;
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(i)  an official airfare order form will be requested by the relevant
Departments and issued by the Department of the Director for
Finance;

(i}  bookings will be done by Departments and the order form will be
submitted to the travel agency as authorization;

(iv)  an invoice will be issued by the travel agency for payment.
(v}  Or alternatively bookings may be made directly with the airline.
(vi) 2.3 Nomination by a Third Party or Institution

The abovementioned will be applicable (points 2.1, 2.2 and 2)

{c)COUNCILLORS OR OFFICIALS TRAVELLING FOR THE
SAME EVENT

When Councillors or Officials representing Emthanjeni municipality should
ensure that all times the travelling arrangements must be efficient and cost
effective.

(i) Maximum of four persons should be travelling with one vehicle. No travel
claim will be reimbursed for two vehicles where only two representatives
of Emthanjeni Municipality will attend. Only one vehicle’s travel claim will
be paid for the event.

(i) In the case where the Mayor and Municipal Manager must attend the

same
meeting, then separate vehicle may be used to travel to the venue of the
meeting, where possible.

(iii) In the case where the Mayor and Councillor must attend the same
meeting, then one vehicle should be used to travel to the venue of the
meeting.

(iv) In the case where the Municipal Manager and Director must attend the

same
meeting, then one vehicle should be used to travel to the venue of the
meeting.

(v) In the case where the Director and Manager must attend the same
meeting, then one vehicle should be used to travel to the venue of the
meeting.

(vi)} When a Councillor must accompany the Mayor, then the Councillor
must travel with the Mayor to the event.

(vii)When a Director or official must accompany the Municipal Manager, then

the
Director or official must travel with the Municipal Manager or with one
vehicle to the event.

{viii) When an official must accompany the Director, then the official must

travel
with the Director or with one vehicle to the event.
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(ix) Managers and Officials below Managers level must utilised the pool
vehicles
when attending workshops, training, seminars, etc. as far as possible.
(x) Prior written approval from the Accounting Officer must be obtained in
order
to deviate from the above.

(d)Time of travelling

During summer, when a meeting takes place less than 300km outside De Aar
and starts at 09h00, Councillors or Officials should not overnight and are
expected to travel in the morning of when the event starts and the return time
must not be after 18h00.

Prior written approval from the Accounting Officer must be obtain in order to
deviate from the above.

2.3 CAR RENTAL

(a) The following category vehicles are approved for car rental from
airports:

Category B - Mayor, Speaker and Municipal
Manager
Directors and Councillors

(b)  All reservations for car rentals will be done by the office of the
Chief Financial Officer at a car rental agency or the relevant
travel agency, on a quotation basis and be arranged prior to
departure.

B. INTERNATIONAL TRAVEL

1. Approval of Foreign Visits (Approved by the Council)

(i) Approval by Municipal Manager
For attendance by:

- Mayor
- Councillors
- Directors

(i)  Approval by chief Financial Officer

For attendance by Municipal Manager and officials in the
finance directorate. If the Municipal Manager is absent
the Chief Financial Officer will sign forms on his/her
behalf.
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Approval by Directors

For attendance by officials in the directorate

2, ALLOWANCES

Mayor, Speaker, Councillors, Municipal Manager, Directors, Senior

Managers and officials:

2.1
Municipality

(i)

Nomination by Counciil to represent the Emthanjeni Local

Where a delegate is responsible for his own cost in

respect of accommodation

. Fixed amount for incidental expenses @ US$350

Allowance @

thereof
. Airfare

US$ 190 per day or part

(i) Mayor, Speaker, Councillors, Municipal
Manager, Directors, Senior Managers

Actual cost of business class air ticket when
travelling time is more than ten hours, payable
to a ftravel agency for the account of
Emthanjeni Local Municipality

(i) Other officials

Actual cost of economy class air ticket
payable to a travel agency for the account of
Emthanjeni Local Municipality. Business
class must be specially motivated to Municipal
Manager

(ii)

Where all cost in respect of accommodation, transport,

etc. is payable by Council

. Fixed amount for incidental expenses
) Allowance
. Airfare

(i) Mayor, Speaker, Councillors, Municipal
Manager, Directors, Senior Managers

Actual cost of business class air ticket when
travelling time is more than ten hours, payable
to a travel agency for the account of
Emthanjeni Local Municipality

(i) All other officials

Actual cost of economy class air ticket
payable to a travel agency for the account of
Emthanjeni Local Municipality.  Business
class must be especially motivated to
Municipal Manager.
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2.4 Nomination by a Third Party or Institution

Subject to written confirmation of tariffs payable by the third
party or institution concerned, the following policy will be
applied:

() Where Council is requested to bear all cost in respect of
accommodation, transport, efc.

. The policy as reflected in 2.1 (i) or (ii) above, will
be applied
(ii) When only part of the cost in respect of accommodation
and travel is borne by the third party or institution, and
Council is requested to subsidize part of the costs.

. The difference between the allowances payable by
the institutions and the tariffs as reflected in 2.1
above.

(i)  Where the third party or institution is responsible for all
cost in respect of accommodation and transport and not
further subsistence allowances are paid to delegales.

« Fixed amount for incidental expenses @ US$ 350
+ Allowance @ US$ 30 per day or part thereof.

(iv)  If all cost is borne by the third party or institution and
additional subsistence allowance are paid to the
nominees

. Fixed amount for incidental expenses @ US$350

The policy will be implemented on the 01 July 2017,
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1 PURPOSE OF THIS DOCUMENT

This document indicates the policy framework for the management of Municipal mavable and immovable Property Plant and
Equipment (PPE), investment property, intangible, biclogical assets and heritage assets.

2 BACKGROUND

2.1 CONSTITUTIONAL AND LEGAL FRAMEWORK

The South African Constitution requires municipalities to strive, within their financial and administrative capacity, to achieve
the following objects:

. providing democratic and accountable government for local communities;

. ensuring the provision of services to communities in a sustainable manner;

. promoting social and economic development;

. promoting a safe and healthy environment; and

- encouraging the involvement of communities and community organisations in matters of local government.

The manner in which a municipality manages its Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)}, investment property, intangible assets
and heritage assets are central to meeting the above challenges. Accordingly, the Municipal Systems Act, 2000 (MSA) section
2(d) specifically highlights the duty of municipalities to provide services in a manner that is sustainable, and the Municipal
Finance Management Act {(MFMA) requires municipalities to utilise and maintain their assets in an effective, efficient,
economical and transparent manner. The MFMA specifically places responsibility for the management of municipal assets with
the Accounting Officer {AD).

The Occupational Health and Safety Act (OHSA) requires municipalities to provide and maintain a safe and healthy working
environment, and in particular, to keep its PPE safe.

2.2 ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

The MFMA requires municipalities to comply with the Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP), in line
with international practice.

The Accounting Standards Board (ASB) has approved a number of Standards of GRAP. When compiling the asset register in
accordance with the accounting standards, the requirements of GRAP 17 cannot be seen in isclation. Various other accounting
standards impact on the recognition and measurement of assets within the municipal environment and should be taken into
account during the compilation of a GRAP compliant asset register. The applicable standards of GRAP are noted in section 8.

2.3 MANAGEMENT OF INFRASTRUCTURE AND COMMUNITY ASSETS

Effective management of infrastructure and community facilities is central to the municipality providing an acceptable standard
of services to the community. Infrastructure impacts on the quality of the living environment and opportunities to prosper.
Not only is there a requirement to be effective, but the manner in which the municipality discharges its responsibilities as a
public entity is also important. The municipality must demonstrate good governance and customer care, and the processes
adopted must be efficient and sustainable. Councillors and officials are custodians on behalf of the public of infrastructure
assets, the replacement value of which amounts to several hundred million Rand.

Key themes of the latest generation of national legislation introduced relating to municipal infrastructure management include:
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. long-term sustainability and risk management;

. service delivery efficiency and improvement;

. performance monitoring and accountability;

. community interaction, transparent processes and reporting;

. priority development of minimum basic services for all; and

. the proviston of financial support from central government in addressing the needs of the poor.,

Legislation has also entrenched the Integrated Development Plan (IDP) as the principal strategic planning mechanism for
municipalities, However, the IDP cannot be compiled in isolation - for the above objectives ta be achieved, the IDP needs to
be informed by robust, relevant and holistic information reiating to the management of the municipality’s infrastructure.

There is a need te direct limited resources to address the most critical needs, to achieve a balance between maintaining and
renewing existing infrastructure whilst also addressing backlogs in basic services and facing on-going changes in demand.
Making effective decisions on service delivery priorities requires a team effort, with inputs provided by officials from a number
af departments of the municipality.

CoGTA has prepared guidelines in line with international practice, that propose that an Infrastructure Asset Management Plan
(IAMP) is prepared for each sector (such as potable water, roads etc.). These plans are used as inputs into a Comprehensive
Municipal Infrastructure Plan (CMIP) that presents an integrated pitan for the municipality covering all infrastructure. The
arrangements outlined in the CoGTA guidelines are further strengthened by the provision of National Treasury's Local
Government Capital Asset Management Guidelines. This is in line with the practice adopted in national and provincial spheres
af government in terms of the Government-wide Immoveable Asset Management Act {GIAMA).

Accordingly, the asset register adopted by a municipality must meet not only financial compliance requirements, but also set
a foundation for improved infrastructure asset management practice.

Recognised good practice in the management of infrastructure assets from across the globe has been increasingly documented
aver the past 10 to 15 years. [n 2000, the Warld Bank cited practice in Australasia as representative of best practice and this
has been captured in the International Infrastructure Management Manual {IIMM), and regularly updated with case studies
from across the globe, incfuding South Africa, In 2008 the British Standards Institute issued PAS 55 (a publicly available
specification on asset management). There is now an initiative by the [nternational Standards Organisation (ISO) to draw on
these documents to establish an international standard for infrastructure asset management (ISO 55000 series) that is
expected to be issuved in 2014. Progressive entities are expected te set compliance with the proposed 150 as a benchmark
for practice.
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3 OBJECTIVES

The objective of this pelicy is for the municipality to:

o implement prevailing accounting standards; and

. apply asset management practice in a consistent manner and in accordance with legal requirements and

recognised good practice.

4 APPROVAL AND EFFECTIVE DATE

The CFO is responsible for the submission of the Policy to Council to consider its adoption after consultation with the AQ.
Council shall indicate the effective date for implementation of the policy.

5 DELEGATIONS AND KEY RESPONSIBILITIES

Accounting Officer
The Accounting Officer (AQ) is responsible far the management of the assets of the municipality, including the safeguarding
and the maintenance of those assets.

The AO shall ensure that:

. The municipality has and maintains a management, accounting and information system that accounts for the assets
of the municipality;

. The municipality's assets are valued in accordance with the standard of generally recognised accounting practice;

. That the municipality has and maintains a system of internal control for assets, including an asset register; and

. The HOD(S0)s and their teams comply with this policy.

The Accounting Officer of the municipality shall be the principal custodian of the entire municipality's assets, and shall be
responsible for ensuring that this policy is effectively applied on adoption by Council. To this end, the AO shall be responsible
for the preparation, in consultation with the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) and Heads of Department (Senior Official)
(HOD(S50)), of procedures to effectively and efficiently apply this policy.

This policy should be applied with due observance of the municipality’s policy with regard to delegated powers. Such
delegations refer to defegations between the AO and other responsible officials as well as between Council and the Executive
Mayor and the Council and the AO. All delegations in terms of this policy must be recorded in writing.

In accordance with the MFMA, the AO of the municipality and all designated officials are accountable to him / her. The AQ is
therefore accountable for all transactions entered into by his / her delegates. The overall respansibility of asset management
lies with the AQ. However, the day to day handling of assets should be the responsibility of all officials in terms of detegated
authority reduced in writing, The AQ may delegate or otherwise assign responsibility for performing these functions but will
remain accountable for ensuring these activities are performed.
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Chief Financial Officer
The Chief Financial Officer (CFO) is responsible to the AQ to ensure that the financial investment in the municipality's assets
are safequarded and maintained.

The CFQ, as one of the Directors of the municipality, shall also ensure, in exercising his financial responsibilities, that:

. Appropriate systems of financial management and internal control are established and carried out diligently;

. The financial and other resources of the municipality are utilised effectively, efficiently, economical and
transparently;

. Any unauthorised, irregular or fruitless or wasteful expenditure, and losses resulting from criminal or negligent
conduct, are prevented;

. All revenue due to the municipality is collected, for example rental income reiating to immovable assets;

. The systems, procedures and registers required to substantiate the financial values of the municipality’s assets are
maintained to standards sufficient to satisfy the requirements of the Accounting Standards;

. Financial processes are established and maintained to ensure the municipality’s financial resources are optimally
utilised through appropriate asset plans, budgeting, purchasing, maintenance and disposal decisions;

- The AO is appropriately advised on the exercise of powers and duties pertaining to the financial administration of
assets;

. The Senior management team are appropriately advised on the exercise of their powers and duties pertaining to the

financial adrministration of assets; and
. This palicy and support procedures are established, maintained and effectively communicated,
In terms of section 82 read with section B1(1)(e) of the MFMA the CFO may delegate or otherwise assign responsibitity for
performing these functions but will remain accountable for ensuring these activities are performed. The CFO shall be the fixed
asset registrar of the municipality, and shall ensure that a complete, accurate and up-to-date computerised fixed asset register
s maintained. No amendments, deletions or additions to the fixed asset register shall be made other than by the CFO or by
an official acting under the written instruction of the CFO.

Directors

Directors report directly to the AQC shall ensure that:

. The municipal resources assigned to them are utilised effectively, efficiently, economically and transparently;

. Procedures are adopted and implemented in conformity with this policy to produce reliable data to be input to the
municipal fixed asset register;

. Any unauthorised, irregular or fruitless or wasteful utilisation, and losses resulting from criminal or negligent
conduct, are prevented;

. The asset management, processes and controls can provide an accurate, reliable and up to date account of assets
under their control;

. They are able to manage and justify that the asset plans, budgets, purchasing, maintenance and disposal decisions
optimally achieve the municipality’s strategic objectives; and

. Manage asset life-cycle transactions to ensure that they comply with the plans, legislative and municipal
requirements.

Directors may delegate or otherwise assign responsibility for performing these functions but they shail remain accountable
for ensuring these activities are performed.
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POLICY AMENDMENT
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This policy should be reviewed annually to ensure continued compliance with the relevant legislation and accounting

standards. Changes to this document shail only be applicable if approved by Council. Any proposals in this regard shall be

motivated by the CFO in consultation with the AQ and respective Directors. The recommendations of the CFO shall be

considered for adoption by Council.

7

RELATIONSHIP WITH OTHER POLICIES

This policy, once effective, will replace the pre-existing Asset Management with respect to the scope of assets covered by this

policy.

This policy needs to be read in conjunction with other relevant adopted policies of the municipality, inciuding the following:

Delegation of Powers;

Accounting Policy;

Insurance Policy;

Enterprise Risk Management Policy;

Disaster Management Policy;

Supply Chain Management Policy;

Credit Control and Debt Collection Pelicy;

Tariff Policy;

Property Rates Policy;

Funding and Reserves Policy;

Borrowing Policy;

Cash Management and Investment Policy

iLong Term Financiai Plan Policy;

Infrastructure Investment And Capital Projects Palicy;
Indigents Policy;

Provision of Free Basic Services Policy;

Budget Implementation and Monitoring Policy;
Managing Electricity and Water Distribution Losses; and
Asset Disposal Policy.

REFERENCES

The following references were observed in compiling this document:

Asset Management Framework, National Treasury, 2004
Guidelines for Infrastructure Asset Management in Local
Government, 2006

Municipal Finance Management Act, 2003

Disaster Management Act, 2002

Municipal Systems Act, 2000

Municipal Structures Act, 1998

Accounting Standards Board

MFMA Circular 18 & 44

Government, Department of Provincial and Local

Local Government Capital Asset Management Guidelines, National Treasury, 2008

Government Gazettes {30013 & 31021)

Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (1-14, 16, 17, 19, 21, 23-27, 31 and 100-104)
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. Interpretations of the standards of GRAP issued by the Accounting $tandards Board (ASB) (IGRAP 1- 17)
. Directives issued by the ASB

. Municipal transfer and disposal regulations, Government Gazette no.31346

] Accounting guideline issued by National Treasury relating to intangible assets

* Government Gazette, 30 May 2005, No. 27636 on disposal

9 POLICY FORMAT

Figure 1 gives an overview to the format of presentation of this policy document, and how it links to a separate document
that provides the procedures. Procedures should be prepared and adopted to give effect to this policy.

Figure 1 - Interaction between the policy and the procedures

Extracts from the
accounting standards and
Definitions and Rules their interpretation for
application in the
municipality

A statement that reflecis
the specific policy adopted
Policy statement by the municipality, in tine
with the applicable
accounling standards

Policy
document

Allocation of key
Responsibilities responsibility areas 1o give
effect to the adopted poticy

- Actions to effectively
Procedures irmplement the key
document Rrocedures responsibility areas

indicated in the palicy
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10 POLICY FOR FIXED ASSET ACCOUNTING

10.1 RECOGNITION OF IMMOVABLE AND MOVABLE ASSETS

(a) Definitions and rules

Asset

An asset is defined as a resource controlled by an entity, as a result of past events; future economic benefits or service
potential associated with the item will flow to the entity.

Fi A
A fixed asset (also referred to as a “non-current asset”) is an asset with an expected useful life greater than 12 months.

P_,D_E

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that are held for use in the preduction or supply of goods or services, for
rentals to others, or for administrative purposes; and are expected to be used during more than one reporting period. This
includes items necessary for environmental or safety reasons to leverage the economic benefits or service potential from
other assets, Insignificant items may be aggregated. Property, plant and equipment are broken down into groups of assets
of a similar nature or function in the municipality’s operations for the purposes of disclosure in the financial statements.

{mmovable PP

Immoveable PPE are fixed structures such as buildings and roads. A plant that is built-in to the fixed structures and is an
essential part of the functional performance of the primary asset is considered an immovable asset (though it may be
temporarily removed for repair).

Movabie PPE
Movable assets are the stock of equipment owned or leased by the municipality such as office equipment and furniture, motor
vehicles and mobile plant.

Investment property

Investment property is defined as property (land and/or a building, or part thereof) held (by the owner or the lessee under a
finance lease) to earn rentals or capital appreciation, or both (rather than for use in the production or suppiy of goods or
services or for administration purpases or sale in the ordinary course of operations). Examples of investment property are
office parks that are rented out, There is no asset hierarchy for investment property; each functional item will be individually
recorded. Land held for a currently undetermined use is recognised as investment property until such time as the use of the
land has been determined.

Intangible assels
Identifiable non-monetary assets, without physical substance are intangible assets, for examples licenses or rights {such as
water licenses), servitudes and software.

An asset meets the criterion of being identifiable in the definition of an intangible asset when it:

(a} is separable, i.e. is capable of being separated or divided from the municipality and sold, transferred, licensed, rented
or exchanged, either individually or together with a related contract, asset or liability, or

(by  arises from contractual rights (including rights arising from binding arrangements) or other legal rights (excluding
rights granted by statute}, regardless of whether those rights are transferable and separable from the municipality
ar from other rights and obligations.
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Biological A
Biological assets are living animals or plants as per the definition in the GRAP on Agriculture.

Capital Spares (Major Spare Parts)

Spares and materials used on a regular basis in the ordinary course of cperations are usually carried as inventory (i.e. they
are not usually considered fixed assets) and are expensed when consumed. Major spares that constitute an entire or significant
portion of a component type, or a specific component, defined in the immovable PPE asset hierarchy are considered capital
spare parts and are recognised as an item of PPE as they are expected to be used for more than one period or they can only
be used in connection with an item of PPE,

Useful Life
The period aver which an asset is expected to be available for use by an entity, or the number of production units expected
to be obtained from the asset by an aentity.

Major inspections

A condition of continuing to operate an item of PPE may be to perform regular major inspections for faults regardless of
whether parts of the item are replaced (for example, Occupational Health and Safety Act no. 85 of 1993 requires lifting
equipment to be inspected once a year). When each major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying
amount of the item of PPE as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. Any remaining carrying amount of the
cost of the previous inspection (as distinct from physical parts) is de-recognised. This occurs regardiess of whether the cost
of the previous inspection was identified in the transaction in which the item was acquired or constructed. If necessary, the
estimated cost of a future similar inspection may be used as an indication of what the cost of the existing inspection component
was when the item was acquired or constructed.

m irri Il
Tangible items that are used in the production or supply of goods or services on an irregular basis (such as standby equipment)
are recognised as items of PPE.

ontrof
An item is not recognised as an asset unless the entity has the capacity to control the service potential or future economic
benefit of the asset, is able to deny or regulate access of others to that benefit, and has the ability to secure the future
economic benefit of that asset. Legal title and physical possession are good indicators of control but are not infallible,

Past transactions or events
Assets are only recognised from the point when some event or transaction transferred control to an entity.

Probability_of the flow of benefits or service potential

The degree of certainty that any economic benefits or service potential associated with an item will flow to the municipality is
based on the judgement. The CFQ shall exercise such judgement on behalf of the municipality, in consultation with the
respective HOD(S0).

Economi nefj

Economic benefits are derived from assets that generate net cash inflows.
rvice Potent;.

An asset has service potential if it has the capacity, singularly or in combination with other assets, to contribute directly or
indirectly to the achievement of an objective of the municipality, such as the provision of services.
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Leased gssets

A lease is an agreement whereby the lessor conveys to the lessee (in this case, the municipality) the right to use an asset for
an agreed period of time in return for a payment ar series of payments. Leases are categorised into finance and operating
leases. A finance lease is a lease that transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incident to ownership of an asset, even
though the title may not eventually be transferred (substance over form). Where the risks and rewards of ownership of the
asset are substantially transferred to the municipality, the lease is regarded as a finance lease and the asset recognised by
the municipality. Where there is no substantial transfer of risks and rewards of ownership to the municipality, the lease is
considered an operating lease and payments are expensed in the income statement on a systematic basis {straight line basis

over the lease term).

Asset custodion

The department that controls an asset, as well as the individual (asset custodian) or post that is responsible for the operations
associated with such asset in the department, is identified by the respective HOD(S0), recorded, and communicated on
recognition of the asset.

Refiable m Jial

Items are recognised that possess a cost or fair value that can be reliably measured in terms of this policy.

(b} Policy statement

The municipality shall recognise all movable and immovable assets existing at the time of adoption of this policy and the
development of new, upgraded and renewed assets on an on-going basis, Such assets shall be capitalised in compliance with
prevailing accounting standards.

{c) Responsibilities

. The CFO, in consultation with the AQ and Directors, shall determine effective procedures for the recognition of
existing and new assets. .

. Every Director shall ensure that all assets under their control are correctly recognised as assets.

. The CFO shall keep a lease register with the following minimum information: name of the lessor, description of the

asset, fair value of the asset at inception of the lease, lease commencement date, lease termination date, economic
useful life of the asset, lease payments, and any restrictions in the lease agreement.

10.2 CLASSIFICATION OF ASSETS

(a) Definitions and rules

Fixed asset cateqories

. Property, plant and eguipment (which is broken down into groups of assets of a similar nature or function in the
municipality’s operations) {GRAP 17);

. Intangible assets (GRAP 31);

. Heritage assets (GRAP 103);

. Biclogical assets {GRAP 101/27);

. Capital Finance Lease assets (GRAP 13); and
. Investment proparty (GRAP 16).

Class of PPE

A class of PPE is defined as a group of assets of a similar nature or function. The total balance of each class of assets is
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

PPE Asset hierarchy
An asset hierarchy is adopted for PPE which enables separate accounting of parts (components) of the asset that are
considered significant to the municipality from a financial point of view, and for other reasons determined by the municipality,
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including risk management (in other words, taking inte account the criticality of components) and alignment with the strategy
adopted by the municipality in asset renewal (for example the extent of replacement or rehabilitation at the end of lifa). In
addition, the municipality may aggregate relatively insignificant items to be considered as one asset. The structure of the
hierarchy recognises the functional relationship of assets and components,

PPE: Inf;

Infrastructure assets are immoveable assets which are part of a network of similar assets that jointly provide service potential.

PPE: ity P
Community property is immoveable assets contributing to the general well-being of the community, such as community hails
and recreation facilities.

PEE: Other property
Buildings that are used for municipal operations such as administration buildings and rental stock or housing not held for
capital gain.

PPE: Cther A
Movable assets are by nature stand-alone assets which are not directly attached or associated with an item of immaovable
assets and are utilised in an enabling or assisting role on a day-to-day basis.

Heritage assets

Heritage assets are assets of cultural, environmental, historical, scientific, technological or artistic significance and are held
indefinitely for the benefit of present and future generations, such as monuments, nature reserves, and works of art. Some
heritage assets have more than one purpose, e.g. an historical building which, in addition to meeting the definition of a
heritage asset, is also used as office accommodation. The CFO, on behalf of the municipality, must use his / her judgement
to make such an assessment. The asset should be accounted for as a heritage asset if, and only if, the definition of a heritage
asset is met, and only if an insignificant pertion is held for use in the praduction or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes. If a significant portion is used for production, administrative purposes or supply of services or goods,
the asset shall be accounted for in accordance with the Standard of GRAP on PPE.

Investment property

Investment property is defined as property (land and/or a building, or part thereof) held (by the owner or the lessee under a
finance lease} to earn rentals or capital appreciation, or both (rather than for use in the production or supply of goods or
services or for administration purposes or sale in the ordinary course of operations). Examples of investment property are
office parks that are rented out. There is no asset hierarchy for investment property; each functional item will be individually
recorded, Land held for a currently undetermined use is recognised as investment property until such time as the use of the
land has been determined.

Intangible assets
Identifiable non-monetary assets, without physical substance are intangible assets, for examples licenses or rights (such as
water licenses), servitudes and software.

An asset meets the criterion of being identifiable in the definition of an intangible asset when it:

(c) is separable, i.e, is capable of being separated or divided from the municipality and sold, transferred, licensed,
rented or exchanged, either individually or together with a related contract, asset or liability, or

{d) arises from contractual rights (including rights arising from binding arrangements) or other legal rights (excluding
rights granted by statute), regardless of whether those rights are transferable and separable from the municipality
or from other rights and obligations,
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However, if the municipality is of the opinion that even though a servitude may meet the definition of an intangible asset, it
is essential to the operation of a tangible asset. For example, where the municipality would not be able to construct or operate
infrastructure on land that it does not own without acquiring certain rights from the landowner. Therefore the municipality
may be of the opinion that it would be more appropriate to include the cost of the servitude in the cost of the tangible asset
rather than recognising a separate intangible asset. In such cases servitudes will be accounted for as PPE by applying GRAP
17, and componentisation may be required as the values, nature and the useful life of the servitude and the tangible asset
are different.

Servitudes

Where municipalities establish servitudes as part of the registration of a township, the associated rights are granted in statute
and are specifically excluded from the standard on intangible assets. Such servitudes cannot be sold, transferred, rented or
exchanged freely and are not separable from the municipality. Consequently such servitudes are not recognised in the asset
register.

Servitudes that are created through acquisition {including by way of expropriation or agreement) can be recognised as either
intangible assets or PPE at cost. The municipality may include the cost of the servitude in the cost of the PPE if it is essential
to the construction or operation of the asset {such as in the case of pipes).

Biglogical Assets
Biological assets are living animals or plants as per the definition in the GRAP on Agriculture.

Non-curren held for sal

A non-current asset (or disposal group) is considered to be "held for sale” if its carrying amount will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. An immovable asset classified as a "non-current asset held for
sale” shall be reclassified as a current asset, and will therefore be taken off the Asset Register. This provision does not apply
to immovable assets that are abandoned.

To be classified as “held for sale”, the asset must be available for immediate sale (i.e. to be completed within a year) in its
present condition, and it must be highly probable that the sale will take place {management must be committed to a plan to
sell the asset and an active programme to locate a buyer must have been initisted). If the municipality acquires an immovable
asset exclusively for the purpose of selling it, it shall be classified as a "non-current asset held for sale” at its acquisition date
only if all the above requirements are met.

An extension of the period required to complete the sale does not preclude an asset from being classified as held for sale if
the delay is caused by events or circumstances beyond the municipality’s control and there is sufficient evidence that the
municipality remains committed to its plan to sell the asset. However, if the municipality has classified an asset as held for
sate, but the criteria are no longer met, the municipality shall cease to classify the asset as held for sale.

if the criteria are only met after the reporting date, the municipality shall not classify the immovable asset as held for sale in
those financial statements when issued. However, when those criteria are met after the reporting date but before the
authorisation date for the financial statements to be issued, the municipality shall disclose a description of the immovable
asset: a description of the facts and circumstances of the sale, or leading to the expected disposal, and the expected manner
and timing of disposal; and if applicable, the segment in which the asset (or disposal group) is presented. Non-current assets
held for sale are not similar to inventory. Inventory refers to assets held for trading purposes, assets manufactured or
purchased to be sold for a profit. If a management decision has been made to sell a non-current asset, that asset will be
classified as a non-current asset held for sale.
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{b) Policy statement

Asset hierarchies shall be adopted for each of the asset groups, separately identifying items of PPE at component level that
are significant from a financial or risk perspective, and, where applicable, grouping items that are relatively insignificant.
Investment Property and Intangible assets are not required to be componentised.

PPE shall be disclosed in the financial statements at the sub-category level.

A committee to be nominated by Council will consider the recognition of assets as heritage assets and motivate their
recommendation for adoption by Council.

Annexure A indicates the hierarchy structure for immovable assets while Annexure B indicates the hierarchy structure for
movable assets,
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Figure 2 - Decision tree - Classification of assets
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(c} Responsibilities

. The CFO shall ensure that the classification of immovable assets adopted by the municipality complies with the
statutory requirements.

* The CFQ shall consult with the Directors responsibfe for PPE to determine an effective and appropriate asset
hierarchy for each asset class of PPE to component level and record such in the asset management procedures
document.

. Every Director shall ensure that all immovable assets under their control are classifiad correctly within the
classification adopted by the municipality.

. Every Director shall advise the CFO when assets should be re-classified.

10.3 IDENTIFICATION OF ASSETS

(a) Definitions and rules

Immovabl in

An asset coding system is the means by which the municipality is able to uniquely identify each immovable asset {at the
lowest level in the adopted asset hierarchy) in order to ensure that it can be accounted for on an individual basis.

Barcodin m

A barcoding system will be used for movable assets as the means by which the municipality is able to uniquely identify each
mavable asset in order to ensure that it can be accounted for on an individual basis, which will also assist with the subsequent
venfication process of movable assets.

{b) Policy statement

A coding system shall be adopted and applied that will enable each asset of immovable assets {with PPE at the lowest level
in the adopted asset hierarchy) to be uniquely and readily identified. Similarly a barcoding system shall be adopted for
maovable assets.

(c) Responsibilities

D The AO shall develop and implement an immovable asset coding system in consultation with the CFO and other
Directors to meet the policy objective.

. Directors shall ensure that all the immovable assets under their control are correctly coded.

. Directors shall ensure that all the movables assets under their control are barcoded.

10.4 ASSET REGISTER

(a) Definitions and rules

Asset register

A fixed asset register is a database with information relating to each asset. The fixed asset register is structured in line with
the adopted classification structure, The scope of data in the register is sufficient to facilitate the application of the respective
accounting standards for each of the asset classes, and the strategic and operational asset management needs of the
municipality.

Procurement of assels

All assets acquired must be in terms of the capital budget and assets must be procured in such a way that:

. a proper need for the asset was identified;

. procurement documentation supports the format adopted for the asset register and the asset hierarchy; and
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. proper and approved procurement procedures are adhered to in terms of the Supply Chain Management Policy.
Authorisation for procurement should be as per the Municipalities’ delegation of authority and payment for assets should be
in accordance with the financial policies and regulations of the Council.

Updating data in the asset register
The fixed asset register is updated by an Asset Management Administrator only when authorised and instructed to do so by
the CFO. The Asset Management Administrator is precluded from being a custodian of any asset.

(b} Policy statement

A fixed asset register shall be established to provide the data required to apply the applicable accounting standards, as well
as other data considered by the municipality to be necessary to support strategic asset management planning and operational
management needs. The asset register shall be updated and reconciled to the general ledger on a regular basis, which wiil
be reconciled to the financial statements at year end.

(c} Responsibilities

. The CFO shall define the format of the fixed asset register in consultation with the AO and the Directors shall
ensure that the format complies with the prevaiiing accounting standards and disclosure requirements.

. Directors shall provide the CFO with the data required to establish and update the asset register in a timely fashion.

. The CFO shalt establish procedures to control the completeness and integrity of the assef register data.

. The CFO shal! ensure proper application of the control procedures.

10.5 MEASUREMENT AT RECOGNITION

(a) Definitions and rules

Measurement at r njtion of PPy

An item of PPE that qualifies for recognition is measured at cost. Where an asset is acquired at no or nominal ¢ost (for example
in the case of donated or developer-created assets), its cost is deemed to be its fair value at the date of acquisition. In cases
where it is impracticable to establish the cost of an item of PPE, such as on recognising PPE for which there are no records,
or records cannot be linked to specific assets, its cost is deemed to be its fair value.

Measurement at recognition of investment property
Investment property will be measured at cost including transaction cost at initial recognition. However, where an investment

property was acquired through a non-exchange transaction (i.e. where the investment property was acquired for no or nominal
value), its cost is its fair value at the date of acquisition.

Measurement at recognition of intangible assets

Intangible assets will be measured at cost at initial recognition. Where assets are acquired for no or nominal consideration,
the cost is deemed to equal the fair value of the asset on the date acquired.

M T n I nition of heril

Heritage assets will be measured at cost at initial recognition. Where assets are acquired for no or nominal consideration, the
cost is deemed to equal the fair value of the asset on the date acquired.
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If the municipality holds an asset that might be regarded as a hentage asset but which, on initial recognition, does not meet
the recognition criteria of a heritage asset because it cannot be reliably measured, relevant and useful information about it
shall be disclosed in the notes to the financial statements as follows:

. A description of the heritage asset or class of heritage assets.
. The reason why the heritage asset or class of heritage assets could not be measured reliably.
- On disposal of the heritage asset or class of heritage assets, the compensation received and the amount recognised in

the statement of financial performance.

M 1 i ition i

Biological assets shall be measured on initial recognition and at each reporting date at its fair value less costs to sell.

Fair value

Fair value is defined as the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable,
willing parties in an arm’s length transaction. Market based evidence by appraisal can be used where there is an active and
liquid market for assets (for example land and some types of plant and equiprment). In the case of specialised buildings (such
as community buildings) and infrastructure where there is no such active and liquid market, a depreciated replacement cost
{DRC) approach may be used te identify the fair value. The appraisal of the fair value of assets is normally undertaken by a
member of the valuation profession, who holds a recognised and relevant professional qualifications and appropriate
knowledge and experience in valuation of the respective assets.

reci rep/,
If no evidence is available to determine the market value in an active and liquid market of an item of property, the fair value
of the item may be established by reference to other items with similar characteristics, in similar circumstances and location.
In many cases, the depreciated replacement cost of an asset can be established by reference to the buying price of a similar
asset with similar remaining service potential in an active and liquid market. In some cases, an asset’s reproduction cost will
be the best indicator of its replacement cost. For example, in the event of loss, a parliament bulding may be reproduced
rather than replaced with alternative accommodation because of its significance to the community.

Costs incurreg to enhance or restore a heritage asset to preserve its indefimte useful life should be capitalised as part of the
cost of the asset. Such costs should be recognised in the carrying amount of the heritage asset as incurred.

Chan in the existing decommissioning or restoration cost included in the cost of an item

Changes in the measurement of an existing decommissioning cost or restoration cost as a result of changes in the estimated
timing or amount of the cutfiow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential required to settle the
obligation, should be treated as follows:

10.5.1 If the cost model is used -

. Changes in the liability shall be added to or deducted from the cost of the reiated asset.

. If the amount deducted from the cost of the asset exceeds the carrying amount of the asset, the excess shall be
recognised immediately in surplus or deficit.

. If the adjustment results in an addition to the cost of an asset, the municipality should consider whether this is an
indication that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. In this case the municipality should test the asset for

impairment.
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10.5.2 If the revaluation model is used -

. A decrease in the liabitity shall be credited to the revaluation surplus, except that it shall be recognised in the surplus
or deficit to the extent that it reverses a revaluation deficit on the asset that was previously recognised in the surplus
or deficit; and

. an increase in the liability shall be recognised in surplus or deficit, except that it shall be debited to the revaluation
surplus to the extent that any credit balance may exist in the revaluation surplus in respect of asset.

. If the decrease in liability exceeds the carrying amount that would have been recagnised if the asset has been
carried under the cost model, the excess shall be recognised immediately in the surplus or deficit.

. If the change in liability is an indication that the asset may have to be revalued in order to ensure that the carrying
amount does not differ materially from that which would be determined using fair value at the reporting date. Any
such revaluation shall be taken into account in determining the amounts to be taken to surplus or deficit and net
assets as discussed above, If a revaluation is necessary, all assets of that class shall be revalued.

. The change in the revaluation surplus arising from the change in the liability shall be separately identified and
disclosed on the face of the statement of changes in net assets.

Einan.

At the commencement of a lease term, the municipality (the lessee) shall recognise a finance lease as an asset and liability
in the statement of financial position at amounts equal to the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, the present value
of the minimum lease payments, cach determined at the inception of the lease. The discount rate to be used in calculating
the present value of the minimum lease payments is the interest rate implicit in the |lease contract, if this is practicable to
determine; if not, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate shall be used. Any initial direct cost of the lessee is added to the
amount recognised as an asset.

Self-constructed immovable PPE

Self-constructed assets relate to all assets constructed by the municipality itself or another party on instructions from the
municipality. All assets that are constructed by the municipality should be recorded in the asset register and each component
that is part of this immovable PPE should be depreciated over its estimated useful life for that category of asset.

Proper recards are kept such that all costs associated with the construction of these assets are completely and accurately
accounted for as capital under construction, and upon completion of the asset, all costs (both direct and indirect) associated
with the construction of the asset are summed and capitalised as an asset.

Construction of future investment property

If property is developed for future use as an investment property, such property shall in every respect be accounted for as
investment property.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred by the municipality from borrowed funds. The items that are classified
as borrowing costs include at interest on bank overdrafts and shart-term and long-term borrowings, amortisation of premiums
or discounts associated with such borrowings, amertisation of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of
borrowings; finance charges in respect of finance leases and foreign exchange differences arising from fareign currency
borrowings when these are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs. Borrowing costs shall be capitalised if related to
construction of a qualifying asset (one that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or
sale) and external funding is sourced to fund the project.
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In the following cases it is inappropriate to capitalise borrowing costs:

. It is inapprapriate to capitalise borrowing costs when, and only when, there is clear evidence that it is difficult to link
the borrowing requirement of the municipality directly to the nature of the expenditure to be funded i.e. capital or
current. In such case, the municipality shall expense those borrowing costs related to a qualifying asset directly to
the statement of financial performance.

. In exceptional cases the municipality is allowed to expense borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset, it may be difficult for the municipality to identify a direct
relationship between an asset and borrowing costs incurred because the financing activity is controlled centrally and
it will not always be possible to keep track of the specific borrowing costs which should be allocated to the qualifying
asset. As a result the reasonable effort and cost may outweigh the benefit of presenting the information, making it
inappropriate to capitalise the borrowing cost,

Non-current assets held for sale

Immovable assets classified as non-current assets held for sale shall be measured at the lower of its carrying value and its
fair value less cost to sell immediately before meeting the criteria for such classification.

In the event that a non-current asset held for sale ceases to meet the criteria for such classification, it is recognised in the

asset register and measured at the lower of:

. its carrying amount before the asset was classified as held for sale, adjusted for any depreciation, amortisation or
revajuations that would have been recognised had the asset not been classified as held for sale, or

. its recoverable amount or recoverable service amount at date of the subsequent decision not to sell.

The municipality shall include any required adjustment to the carrying amount of an immovable asset that ceases to be
classified as held for sale in revenue of the continuing operations in the period in which the criteria to be held for sale are no
longer met. The municipality shall present that adjustment in the same caption in the Statement of Financial Perfarmance
used to present a gain or loss.

Deferred pavment

The cast of an asset is the cash equivalent at the recognition date. If the payment of the cost price is deferred beyond normal
credit terms, the difference between the cash price equivalent (the total cast price is discounted to the asset’s present value
as at the transaction date) and the total payment is recognised as an interest expense over the period of credit uniess such
interest is recognised in the carrying value of the asset in accordance with the Standard on Borrowing Costs, GRAP 5.

Exchanged PPE assets

In cases where assets are exchanged, the cost is deemed to be the fair value of the acquired asset and the disposed asset is
de-recognised. If the acquired asset is not measured at its fair value, its cost price will be the carrying amount of the asset
given up.

Cost of an item of PPE

The capitalisation value comprises of;

(i the purchase price,

(i) any directly attributable costs necessary to bring the asset to its location and condition necessary for it to be operating
in the manner intended by the municipality, and

(i)  an initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the itern and restoring the site on which it is located.

VAT is excluded (unless the municipality is not allowed to claim input VAT paid on purchase of such assets - in such an
instance, the municipality should capitalise the cost of the asset together with VAT).
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Dir:

ributabl

Directly attributable costs are defined as:

(b)

Cost of employee benefits arising directly from the construction or acquisition of the item of immovabie PPE and
intangible assets.

costs of site preparation (in the case of PPE assets);

initial delivery and handling costs (in case of PPE infrastructure, PPE community assets and PPE heritage assets) ;
installation and assembly costs, cost of testing whether the immovable PPE or associated intangible asset is
functioning properly, after deducting the net proceeds from selling any item praduced while bringing the asset to
that location and condition;

commissioning {cost of testing the asset to see if the asset is functioning properly, after deducting the net proceeds
from selling any item produced while bringing the asset to its current condition and location)

professional fees (for example associated with design fees, supervision, and environmental impact assassments) (in
the case of all asset classes); and

proper transfer taxes (in the case of all asset classes).

Policy statement

PPE, intangible assets, heritage assets and investment property that qualify for recognition shall be capitalised at cost.

Interest on deferred payments will be expensed. Biological assets that qualify for recognition shall be capitalised at fair value

less costs to sell.

In cases where complete cost data is not available or cannot be reliably linked to specific assets:

The fair vatue of PPE infrastructure, community property and building property shall be adopted on the basis of
depreciated replacement cost;

If the cost of heritage assets cannot be measured reliably, this shall be disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements together with a description of the nature of the asset; and

Investment property and intangible assets shall be measured at fair value on the date of acquisition. If no fair value
can be allocated to the intangible asset, the asset will not be recognised as an asset.

Page 22 of 42



EMTHANJIENI MUNICIPALITY DRAFT ASSET MANAGEMENT POLICY 2017/2018 MTERF

Figure 3: Measurement at initial recognition
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(c) Responsibilities

. The CFO, in consultation with the AC and Directors, shall determine effective procedures for the capitalisation of
assets on recognition,

. Every Director shall ensure that all assets under their control are correctly capitalised.

. Every Director shall advise the CFO of any deferred payments from the municipality, providing the relevant details
of such.

10.6 MEASUREMENT AFTER RECOGNITION

(a) Definitions and rules

Options
Accounting standards allow measurement after recognition on immovable assets as follows:

. PPE, heritage assets and intangible assets: on either a cost or revaluation model;
. Biological assets: fair value less costs to sell; and
- Investment Property: either cost model ar the fair value model.

Different models can be applied, providing the treatment is consistent per asset class.
Cost model

When the cost model is adopted, the asset is carried after recognition at its cost less any accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses.
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Revaluation model

when the revaluation model is adopted an asset is carried after recognition at a re-valued amount, being its fair value at the
date of revaluation less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses.
Revaluations are made with sufficient regularity to ensure that the carrying amount dees not differ materially from that which
would be determined using fair value at the reporting date. When ravaluations are conducted, the entire class of assets should
be re-vaiued. The appraisal of the fair value of assets is normally undertaken by a member of the valuation profession, who
holds a recognised and relevant professional qualifications and appropriate knowledge and experience in valuation of the
respective assets.

If the carrying amount of an asset is increased as a result of a revaluation, the increase shall be credited directly to a
revaluation surpius. However, the increase shall be recognised in surplus or deficit to the extent that it reverses a revaluation
decrease of the same asset previcusly recognised in surplus or deficit.

If the carrying amount of an asset is decreased as a resuit of a revaluation, the decrease shall be recognised in surplus or
deficit. However, the decrease shall be debited directly in net assets to the extent of any credit balance existing in the
revaluation surplus in respect of that asset. The decrease recognised directly in net assets reduces the amount accumulated
in net assets under the heading revaluation surplus.

When an asset is revalued, any accumulated depreciation at the date of the revaluation is treated in one of the following

NAYS!

. Restated proportionately with the change in the gross carrying amount of the asset after revaluation equals its
revalued amount. This method is often used when an asset is revalued by means of applying an index to its DRC.

. Eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net amount restated to the revalued amount of
the asset.

The revaluation surplus is transferred to the Accumulated Surpluses/ (Deficits) Account on de-recognition of an asset. An
amount equal to the difference between the new (enhanced) depreciation expense and the depreciation expenses determined
in respect of such asset before the revaluation in question may be transferred from the Revaluation Reserve to the
muhicipality’s Accumulated Surplus/Deficit Account. IFf this option is selected, an adjustment of the aggregate transfer is
made at the end of each financial year.

{nvestment property

When the fair value model is adopted, all investment property should be measured at its fair value except when the fair value
cannot be determined reliably on a continuing basis. The fair value of the investment property shall reflect imarket conditions
at the reporting date. It shall be valued on an annual basis. All fair value adjustments shall be included in the surplus or deficit
for the financial year. If a municipality selects the cost model to measure all of its investment property, it does s in accordance
with the Standard of GRAP on Property, Plant and Equipment, i.e., at cost less any accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses.

in ion
The cost of a statutory inspection that is required for the municipality to continue to operate immovable PPE is recognised at
the time the cost is incurred, and any previous statutory inspection cost is de-recognised.

Expen it ai

Expenses incurred in the enhancement of PPE (in the form of improved or increased services or benefits flowing from the use
of such asset), or in the material extension of the useful operating life of assets are capitalised. Such expenses are recognised
once the municipality has beneficial use of the asset (be it new, upgraded, and/or renewed) - prior to this, the expenses are
recorded as work-in-progress, Expenses incurred in the maintenance or repair (reinstatement) of PPE that ensures that the
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useful operating life of the asset is attained, are considered as operating expenses and are no{ capitalised, irrespective of
the quantum of the expenses concerned.

Spares

The location of capital spares shall be amended once they are placed in service, and re-classified to the applicable PPE asset
sub-category. Depreciation on the capital spares will commence once the items are placed in service as this is when they are
in the location and condition necessary for them to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management,

Major inspection
Major inspections will be recognised at the value of the major inspection,

(b} Policy statement
Measurement after recognition shall be on the following basis:

. PPE: cost model or revaluation model (selected based on municipalities policy}

. Heritage: cost model or revaluation model (selected based on municipalities policy)

. Investment praperty: cost model or fair value model (selected based on municipalities policy)
. Intangible assets: cost model or revafuation model (selected based on municipalities policy)
. Biological assets: fair value less cost to sell

An increase in asset value as a result of revaluation shall be reflected in a Revaluation Reserve, while fair value adjustments
will be recogmised in surplus / deficit.

The restatement method will be applied to proportionately restate the accurnulated depreciation to be in fine with the gross
replacement cost or CRC of the revalued asset or the elimination method will be applied and the accumulated depreciation
will be eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset (therefore accumulated depreciation becomes zero) and the
net amount restated to the revalued amount of the asset or DRC of the revalued asset.
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Figure 4: Measurement after recognition
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Figure 5: Measurement after recognition
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Figure 6: Measurement after recognition
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Figure 7: Measurement after recognition
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Figure 8: Measurement after recognition
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{c) Responsibilities
. The CFO, in consultation with the AC and Directors, shall determine effective procedures for the on-going
capitalisation of assets after recognition.
. Every Director shall ensure that all capital expenses associated with assets under their control are correctly
capitalised.
. Every Director shall ensure that revaluations and fair value adjustments are conducted where applicable to

immovable infrastructure under thewr control.

10.7 DEPRECIATION

(a) Definition and rules
Depreciation

Depreciation is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over its remaining useful hfe. The amortisation

of intangible assets is identical.

Land and servitudes are considered to have unlimited life; therefore they are not depreciated. Heritage assets and investment

property are also not depreciated.

Depreciable amount

The depreciable amount is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted for cost, less its residual value.
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Residual value

The residual value is the estimated amount that the municipality would currentiy obtain from disposal of the asset after
deducting the estimated costs of disposal, if the asset were already of the age and in the condition expected at the end of its
useful life.

The residual values of assets are indicated in Annexure C and D in the form of a percentage. In the case of assets measured
after recognition on the cost model, the percentage s of the initial cost of acquisition. In the case of assets measured after
recoegnition on the revaluation model, the percentage is of the revalued cost.

Intangibl Wi i i ful lif

An intangible asset with an indefinite useful life will not be amortised. Impairment testing shall be performed on these assets
on an annual basis and whenever there is an indication that the assets might be impaired, comparing its recoverable amount
with its carrying amount.

Remaini f fife
The rermaining useful life (RUL) of a depreciable PPE asset is the time remaining until an asset ceases to provide the required
standard of performance or economic usefulness,

The remaining useful life of all depreciable immovable PPE assets at initial recognition is the same as the expected useful life
indicated in Apnexure C above, The remaining useful life of all depreciable movable PPE assets that are new, or are considered
to have been renewed, at initial recognition is the same as the expected useful life indicated in Annexure D.

Annugi review of r fnin ful fif

The remaining useful lives of depreciable PPE are reviewed every year at the reporting date. Changes may be required as a
result of new, updated or more reliabie information being avaitable. Changes may also be required as a resuit of impairments
{as contemplated in Section 10.8 of this policy}. Depreciation charges in the current and future reporting periods are adjusted
accordingly, and are accounted for as a change in an accounting estimate,

Depreciatipn meth

Depreciation of PPE is applied at the component level. A range of depreciation methods exist and can be selected to model
the consumption of service potential or economic benefit {for example the straight line method, diminishing amount methaod,
fixed percentage on reducing balance method, sum of the year digits method, production unit method). The approach used
should reflect the consumption of future economic benefits or service potential, and should be reviewed annually where there
has been a change in the pattern of consumption.

Depreciation charge

Depreciation starts once an asset is available for use, when it is in the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating 'n the manner intended by management. Depreciation of an assets ceases at the earlier of the date that the asset
is classified as held for sale (in accordance with the standard of GRAP on Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations) and the date the asset is de-recognised.

rrvin

The carrying amount is the cost price / fair value amount after deducting any accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses.
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ital r
Depreciation on capital spares will commence once the items are placed in service as this is when they are in the location and
condition necessary for them to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.

Finance lease

Depreciable assets financed through 2 finance lease will give rise to a depreciation expense and finance cost which will occur
for each accounting pericd. The depreciation policy for depreciable leased assets shall be consistent with the policy of
depreciable owned assets, and the depreciation recognised shall be calcuiated in accordance with the Standard on Property,
Plant and Equipment, GRAP 17, If there is no reasonable certainty that the municipality will obtain ownership by the end of
the lease term, the asset shall be fully depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and its useful life. If there is certainty
that the municipality will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset will be fully depreciated over the asset's
useful life.

(b) Policy statement

All PPE, except land, servitudes and heritage assets, shall be depreciated over their remaining useful lives. Al intangible
assets, other than intangibles with an indefinite useful life, shall be amortised over their remaining useful lives.

The method of depreciation / amartisation shall be reviewed on an annual basis, though the straight fine method / diminishing
amount method / fixed percentage on reducing balance method / sum of the year digits method / production unit method
shall be used in all cases unless Council determines otherwise. Investment Property on the fair value method will also not be
depreciated. The existence, remaining usefu! lives and residual values shall also be reviewed at each reporting date.

(¢) Responsibilities

. The Director shall ensure that a budgetary provision is made for the depreciation of the immovable PPE in the
ensuing financial year, in consultation with the CFO.

. The CFO shall indicate a fixed annual date for the review of the remaining useful life of immovable PPE under the
control of the respective Directors.

. Every Director shall annually review the remaining useful life as well as the expected useful life and residual values
stated in Annexures C and P and the depreciation method of PPE that are under their control and motivate to the
AD and CFQ any adjustments if these are required, in the judgement of the Directors.

. Changes should not be made on a continuous basis because the accounting principle of consistency would be
violated.

. The CFO shall report changes made to the remaining useful life of immovable PPE in the asset register to the AO and
Council.

. The CFO shall ensure that depreciation charges are debited on a monthly basis and that the fixed asset register is

reconciled with the general ledger.

10.8 IMPAIRMENT

(a) Definition and rules

Impairment
Impairment is defined as the loss in the future economic benefits or service potential of an asset, over and above the
systematic recognition of the loss of the asset’s future economic benefits or service potential through depreciation,

Indications of impairment
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The municipality must review assets for impairment when one of the indicators below occurs or at least at the end of each
reporting period. In assessing whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, an entity shall consider as a
minimum the following indicators:

10.8.1 External sources of information:

. decline or cessation in demand;

. significant lang-term changes in the technolocgical, legal or governmeant policy environment;

. the carrying amount of the net assets of the entity is more than its market capitalisation;

. market interest rates have increased during the period, and those increases are likely to affect the discount rate

used in calculating an asset’s value in use and decrease the asset's recoverable amount materially; or
. a halt in construction could indicate an impairment. Where construction is delayed or postponed to a specific date in
the future, the project may be treated as work in progress and not considered as halted.

10.8.2 Internal sources of information:

- evidence of physical damage;
. evidence of obsolescence;
. significant changes with an adverse effect on the entity have taken place during the period, or are expected to take

place in the near future, in the extent to which, or a manner in which, an asset is used or is expected to be used,
including an asset becoming idle, plans to dispose of an asset before the previously expected date, and reassessing
the useful life of an asset as finite rather than indefinite;

. cash flow for acquiring an asset or maintenance cost thereafter is higher than originally budgeted;
. the actual net cash flow or operating profit or loss flowing from an asset are significantly worse than those budgeted;
. a significant decline in budgeted net cash flow or operating profit, or a significant increase in the budget loss, flowing

from the asset; or
. operating losses or net cash outflows for the asset, when current period amounts are aggregated with budgeted
amounts for the future.

10.8.3 Other indications, such as loss of market value,

Impairment of i r construction

In assessing whether a halt in construction would trigger an impairment test, it should be considered whether construction
has simply been delayed or postponed, whether the intention to resume construction in the near future or whether the
construction work will not be completed in the foreseeable future, Where construction is delayed or postponed to a specific
future date, the project may be treated as work in progress and is not considered as halted.

Intangible assets

The municipality must test all intangible assets associated with immovable PPE not yet available for use or which have an
indefinite useful life for impairment. This impairment test may be performed at any time during the reporting period provided
it is performed at the same time every year,

Investment property on the fair value mode!
Investment property that is measured at fair value is specifically excluded from the scope of GRAP 21 and GRAP 26
(impairment standards). Any impairment would be reflected in the annual review of fair value.

Recover. Jii]

The events and circumstances in each instance must be recorded. Where there are indications of impairment, the municipality
must estimate the racoverable service amount of the asset and also consider adjustment of the remaining useful life, residual
value, and method of depreciation.
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Impairment loss
An impairment loss of a non-cash-generating unit or asset is defined as the amount by which the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable service amgunt. The recoverable service amount is the higher of the fair value less costs to sell and

its value in use.

An impairment loss of a cash-generating_unit (smallest group of assets that generate cash inflows) or asset is the amount by
which the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of the fair value
less costs to seHl and its value in use.

Non-cash gen i

Non-cash-generating units are those assets (or group of assets) that are not held with the primary objective of generating a
commercial return, This wauld typically apply to assets providing goods or services for community or social benefit. The
recoverable service amount is the higher of the asset’s fair value less cost to sell and its value in use. It may be possible to
determine the fair value even if the asset is not traded in an active market. If there is no binding sales agreement or active
market for an asset, the fair value less cost to sell is based on the best information available to reflect the amount that an
entity could obtain. However, sometimes it will not be possible to determine the fair value less cost to sell because there is
no basis for making reliable estimates of the amount obtainable. For non-cash generating assets which are held on an on-
going basis to provide specialised services or public goods to the community, the value in use of the assets is likely to be
greater than the fair value less cost to sell. In such cases the municipality may use the asset's value in use as its recoverable
=irvice amount. The value in use of a non-cash generating unit/asset is defined as the present value of the asset's remaining

service potential.

This can be determined using any of the following approaches:

. the Depreciated Replacement Cost (DRC) approach (and where the asset has enduring and material over-capacity,
for example in cases where there has been a decline in demand, the Optimised Depreciated Replacement Cost
(ODRC) approach may be used);

. the restoration cost approach {(the Depreciated Replacement Cost less cost of restoration) - usually used in cases
where there has been physical damage; or

. the service units approach (which could be used for example where a production units model of depreciation is
used).

Where the present value of an asset’s remaining service potential {determined as indicated above) exceeds the carrying value,
the asset is not impaired.

Cash-generating unit

Cash-generating units are those assets held with the primary objective of generating a commercial return. An asset generates
a commercial return when it is deployed in a manner consistent with that adopted by a profit-oriented entity. Holding an asset
to generate a “commercial return” indicates that an entity intends to generate positive cash inflows from the asset (or from
part of the cash-generating unit of which the asset is a part) and earn a commercial return that reflects the risk involved in
holding the asset. When the cost model is adopted, fair value is determined in accordance with the rules indicated for
measurement after recognition. Costs to sell are the costs directly attributable to the disposal of the asset (for example agents
fees, legal costs), excluding finance costs and income tax expenses, The value in use is determined by estimating the future
cash inflows and outflows from the continuing use of the asset and net cash flows to be received or (paid) for the disposal of
the assets at the end of its useful life, including factors to reflect risk in the respective cash-flows and the time value of

money.
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Judgement

The extent to which the asset is held with the objective of providing a commercial return needs to be considered to determine
whether the asset is a cash generating or non-cash generating asset, An asset may be held with the primary objective of
generating a commercial return even though it does not meet that objective during a particuiar reporting period. Conversely,
an asset may be a non-cash-generating asset even though it may be breaking even or generating a commercial return during
a particular reporting period, In some cases it may not be clear whether the primary objective of holding an asset is to
generate a commercial return. In such cases it is necessary te evaluate the significance of the cash fiows. It may be difficult
to determine whether the extent to which the asset generates cash flows is so significant that the asset is a non-cash-
generating- or a cash-generating asset. Judgement is needed in these circumstances.

Recoagnition of impairment

The impairment loss is recognised as an expense when incurred (unless the asset is carried at a re-valued amount, in which
case the impairment is carried as a decrease in the Revaluation Reserve, to the extent that such reserve exists). After the
recognition of an impairment loss, the depreciation charge for the asset is adjusted for future periods to allocate the asset’s
revised carrying amount, less its residual value (if any)}, on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life.

When no future economic benefit is likely to flow from an asset, it is de-recognised and the carrying amount of the asset at
the time of de-recognition, less any economic benefit from the de-recognition of the asset, is debited to the Statement of
Financial Performance as a "Loss on Disposal of Asset”.

In the event of compensation received for damages to an item of PPE, the compensation is considered as the asset’s ability
to generate income and is disclosed under Sundry Revenue; and the asset is impaired/ de-recognised,

Reversing an impairment fo.

The municipality must assess each year from the sources of information indicated above whether there is any indication that
an impairment loss recognised in previous years may no longer exist or may have decreased. In such cases, the carrying
amount is increased to its recoverable amount (providing that it does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior periods). Any reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as a
credit in surplus or deficit.

(b) Policy statement

Impairment of assets shall be recognised as an expense in the Statement of Financial Performance when it occurs or at least
at every reporting date. Ad-hoc impairment shall be identified as part of normal operational management as well as scheduled
annual inspections of the assets.

The municipality considers the following asset classes to be cash generating:
. note asset classes

All assets refating to these classes are held with the primary objective of generating a8 commercial return. Consequently the
municipality adopts the impairment treatment for cash generating units in the impairments of its PPE and associated intangible

assets that relate to these classes.

The municipality considers alf other following classes:

. note asset classes

All these asset classes are considered to be assets whose primary objective is to provide goods and services for community
or social benefit, and where positive cash flows are generated, these are with the view to support the primary objective rather
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than for financial return to equity holders. Conseguently the municipality adopts the impairment treatment for non-cash

generating units in the impairments of its PPE and associated intangible assets that relate to these asset classes.

{c) Responsibilities

. The CFO shall indicate a fixed annual date for the review of any impairment that may have occurred on assets under
the control of the respective Directors.

. The Directors shall review any impairment on the PPE under their control at the annual review date, and from time
to time as a result of any events that come to their attention that may have a material negative effect on the
performance of these assets. The Directors shall motivate to the CFO proposed changes to the performance of such
assets and the necessary impairments that needs to be recognised on such assets.

. The Directors should evaluate all the immovabte PPE for impairment, taking into consideration any discussions with
the senior accountants and operating managers.

. The Asset register administrator should update the fixed asset register with the information received, relating to the
impairment, from the financial management system where the impairment journals have been processed.

. The CFO shall report changes made to the carrying values of these assets in the asset register to the AQO and Council.

10.9 DE-RECOGNITION

(a) Definition and rules

Exempt assets

Capital assets transferred to another municipality or to a municipal entity or to a national or provincial organ of state in
circumstances and in respect of categories of assets approved by the National Treasury, provided that such transfers are in

accordance with a prescribed framewaork in terms of the Municipal Asset Transfer Regulations.

Non-exempt assels
Assets other than exempt assets.

De:-recognition

Assets are de-recognised on disposal ar when ne future economic benefits or service potential are expected from its use or
disposal. Where assets exist that have reached the end of their useful life yet they pose potential liabilities, the assets will
not be de-recognised until the obligations under the potential liabilities have been settled.

The gain or loss arising from de-recognition of an item of immovable assets shall be included in surplus of deficit when the
itern is de-recognised.

PPE that is associated with the provision of basic services cannot be disposed without the approval of Council.

Government Gazette no.31346, Municipal asset transfer regulations, sets out the regulations regarding municipal asset
transfers and disposals, for example type of assets that need approval to be disposed or transferred, timeframes, possible
public participation requirements, considerations in approving the transfer or disposal and Council approval.

Read in conjunction with the Municipal Finance Management Act (MFMA) it is clear that a municipality may not transfer

ownership as a resuit of a sale or other transaction or otherwise permanently dispose of a capital asset needed to provide the

mintmum level of basic municipal services unless that transfer is to an organ of state, and the following conditions must be

met:

. Ownership in the capital asset {including replacements, upgrading and improvements made by the organ of state)
must immediately revert to the municipality should the organ of state for any reason cease to or is unable to render
the service;
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. The organ of state may not without the written approval of the municipality:

. Transfer, dispose of or encumber the capital asset (including replacements, upgrading and improvements made by
the organ of state) in any way;

. Grant a right to another person to use, control or manage the capital asset (including replacements, upgrading and
improvements made by the organ of state);

. The transfer agreement must reflect the conditions above; and

. The organ of state must demonstrate the ability to adequately maintain and safeguard the asset,

If the combined value of any non-exempt capital assets a municipality intends to transfer or dispose of in any financial year
exceeds 5% of the total value of its assets, as determined from its latest available audited AFS, a public participation process
must be conductad to facilitate the determinations of the mumicipal councll, in relation to all the non-exempt capital assets
proposed to be transferred or disposed of during the year.

Ceuncil may delegate the following powers and responsibilities to the AD:

. The decision as to whether the non-exempt capital asset is needed to provide a basic service;
. The power to approve in-principle that the non-exempt capital asset may be transferred or disposed of; and
. The authority to approve in-principle of the granting of a right to use a capital asset. This delegation does not extend

however, to cover long-term high-value transactions.

Disposal of assets should be at fair value. If payment for the itemn is deferred, the consideration received is recognised initially
at the cash price equivalent (the total proceeds discounted to the present value as at the transaction date). The difference
between the nominal amount of the consideration and the cash price equivalent is recognised as interest revenue,

O | Managemen
An effective system of disposal management for disposal or letting of assets, including unserviceable, redundant or obsolete

assets, must be provided for in the Supply Chain Management Policy.

This must specify the ways in which assets may be disposed of, including by:

. transfer the asset to another organ of state in terms of a provision of the MFMA enabling the transfer of assets;
- transferring the assets to another organ of state at market related value or, when appropriate, free of charge;
. selling the asset; or

. destroying the asset.

PPE may be sold only at market related prices except when the public interest or the poor demands otherwise, When assets
are traded in for other assets, the highest possible trade-in price must be negotiated.

Revaluation model

The revaluation surplus is transferred to the Accumulated Surpluses/ (Deficits} Account on de-recognition of an asset. An
amount equal to the difference between the new (enhanced) depreciation expense and the depreciation expenses determined
in respect of such immovable asset before the revaluation in question may be transferred from the Revaluation Reserve to
the municipality’s Accumulated Surplus/Deficit Account. An adjustment of the aggregate transfer is made at the end of each
financial year.

(b) Policy statement

Fixed assets for which no future economic benefits or service potential are expected shall be identified and methods of disposal
and the associated costs or income considered by Council. The carrying amount of the asset shall be de-recognised when no
future economic benefits or service potential are expected from its use or its disposal. Where assets exist that have reached
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the end of their useful life yet they pose potential liabilities, the assets will not be de-recognised until the obligations under
the potential liabilities have been settled.

Where an asset being de-recognised was previously revalued, the revaiuation surplus is transferred to the Accumulated

Surpiuses/ (Deficits) Account on de-recognition of an asset.

(¢} Responsibilities

. Fixed assets shall be de-recognised only on the recommendation of the Directors controlling the asset, and with the
approval of the AO.

. Every Directors shall report to the CFO on assets which such Directors wishes to have de-recognised, stating in full
the reason for such recommendation, indicating whether or not the assets are assocrated with the provision of basic
services. The CFO shall consolidate all such reports, and shall promptly make a submission to the Disposals
Committee with a copy to the AOQ on the PPE to be de-recognised, the proposed method of disposal, and the
estimated cost or income from such disposal. The Disposals Committee shall consider the submission and make
recommendations to the Council for adoption.

. Assets that are replaced in the nominal course of the life-cycle renewal should be de-recognised and removed from
the asset register.

. The AC, in consultation with the CFO and other Directors shall formulate norms and standards from the replacement
of all PPE.

10.10 INSURANCE OF ASSETS

{(a) Definition and rules
Insurance provides selected coverage for the accidental loss of asset value.

Generally, government infrastructure is not insured against disasters because relief is provided from the Disaster Fund through
National Treasury. The municipality can however elect to insure certain infrastructure risks, though approval must be obtained
from the Council. The CFQ must conduct a risk assessment of all assets and after considering the risks involved, report to
Council, which assets must be insured. The risk assessment must be based on a loss probability analysis and if there is no
capacity within the municipality to conduct the analysis, the CFO should be authorised to obtain external professional

assistance,

The municipality may elect to operate a self-insurance reserve, in which case the CFO shall annually determine the premiums
payable by the departments or votes after having received a list of assets and insurable values of all relevant assets from the
HOD(S0)s concerned. This will be reflected in the accumulated surplus and wiil be cash backed.

Assets must be insured internally or externally and coverage must be based on the loss probability analysis. All insurance
claims must be assessed by an official, charged with the responsibility for the insurance of assets, to determine whether the
damage to the assets can be recovered from possible third parties involved. If the damage was caused by an identifiable
third party the CFO should compile a report advising the AC of the facts thereof and any possible further action.

(b) Policy statement

The municipality should adbere to the disaster management plan for prevention and mitigation of disaster in order to be able
to attract the disaster management contribution during or after disaster. The Council shall decide on insurance cover for
assets each financial year based on the recommendation from the AQ after consultation with the CFO.
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{c) Responsibilities

. The AQ will consult with the CFO on the basis of insurance to be applied to each type of asset: either the carrying
value or the replacement value of the immaovable asset concerned. The approach shall take due cognisance of the
budgetary resources of the municipaiity, and where applicable asset classes shail be prioritised in terms of their risk
exposure and value,

. The AD shall advise Council on the insurance approach taken,

. In the event that the CFO is directed by Council to establish a self-insurance reserve, the CFO shall annually submit
a report to the Council on any reinsurance cover which it is deemed necessary to procure for the municipality’s self-
insurance reserve.

11. POLICY FOR SAFEGUARDING

(a) Definitions and rules
The municipality applies controls and safeguards to ensure that assets are protected against improper use, loss, theft,
malicious damage or accidental damage.

The existence of assets is physically verified from time-to-time, and measures adopted to control their use, as follows:

. All above ground assets should be verified for existence and any changes in condition at least once a year. These
inspections should be formally recorded and signed off and, where possible, shail be worked into the routine
maintenance inspections, These inspections may be prioritised on a risk basis to give emphasis to assets approaching
the end of their useful life and assets with a high value in relation to total assets (the threshold for high value will be
determined by the CFQ), whereas a sample basis may be adopted for long life or multiple assets of a similar nature;

. Performance data shall be reviewed for buried assets to identify possible changes in condition; and

. A detailed road condition survey shall be conducted every 5 years.

Every Director shall at least once during every financial year undertake a comprehensive verification of all movable PPE
controlled by or used by the department concerned. Every Director shall promptly and fully report in writing to the CFO, in

the format determined by the CFO, all relevant results of such verification.

This report in respect of the annual physical verification of movable assets shall:-

. Confirm the location of the asset;

. Confirm the physical description of the asset;

. Confirm the level of utilisation of the asset;

. Indicate the assessment of the condition of the asset (Condition Grade);
. Indicate the expected useful life of the asset (RUL); and

. The existence or absence of any physical impairment of the asset.

The municipality may allocate day-to-day duties relating to such control, verification and safekeeping to asset custodians,
and record such in the asset register.

(b) Policy statement

An asset safeguarding plan shall be prepared for all assets indicating measures that are considered effective to ensure that
all immovable assets under control of the municipality are appropriately safeguarded from inappropriate use or loss, including
the identification of asset custodians for all assets. The impact of budgetary constraints on such measures shall be reported
to Council. The existence, condition and location of these assets shall be verified annually (in line with the assessment of
impairment).
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{c) Responsibilities

. Each Director shall prepare and submit to the CFO, upon request, an annual asset safeguarding plan for the assets
under the control of their respective departments, indicating the budget required.

. The CFO shall confirm the avaitable budget, and in consultation with the respective Directors, determine the impact of
any budget shortfall. The CFO shall report the impacts to the AQ for review, and advise Council.

. Each Director shall implement the safeguarding plan within the resources made available.

. Each Director shall report, within the time frame indicated by the CFQ, the existence, condition, location and
appropriate use of assets under the control of their respective departments at the review date.

. Every Director shall at least once during every financial year undertake a comprehensive verification of all movable
PPE controlled by or used by the department concerned.

. Every Director shall promptly and Fully report in writing to the CFO, in the format determined by the CFO, all relevant
results of such movable asset verification.

. Every Director shall at least once during every financial year undertake a comprehensive verification of
all movable PPE controlled by or used by the department concerned.

. Every Director shall promptly and fully report in writing to the CFO, in the format determined by the CFO, all relevant
rasults of such movable asset verification.

. Malicious damage, theft, and break-ins must be reported to the AQ or delegated person within 48 hours of its
occurrence or awareness by the respective Directors.

. The AQO must report criminal activities to the South African Palice Service.

12.  POLICY FOR LIFE-CYCLE MAMAGEMENT OF IMMOVABLE PPE ASSETS

{a) Definitions and rules

Service delivery

Immovable PPE assets (such as infrastructure and community facilities) are the means by which the municipality delivers a
range of essential municipal services. Consequently the management of such assets is critical to meeting the strategic
objectives of the municipality and in measuring its performance.

Asset management

The goal of asset management of immovable PPE is to meet a required level of service, in the most cost-effective manner,
through the management of assets for present and future customers.

The core principles are:

. taking a life-cycle approach;

. developing cost-effective management strategies for the long-term;

. providing a defined level of service and monitoring performance;

. understanding and meeting the impact of growth through demand management and infrastructure investment;
. managing risks associated with asset failures;

. sustainable use of physical resources; and

. continuous improvement in the immovablte PPE asset management practices.

{b) Policy statement

The municipality shall provide municipal services for which the municipality is responsible, at an appropriate level, and in a
transparent, accountable and sustainable manner, in pursuit of legislative requirements and in support of its strategic
objectives, accerding to the following core principles:

Effective governance
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The municipality shall strive to apply effective governance systems to provide for consistent asset management and
maintenance planning in adherence to and compliance with all applicable legislation to ensure that asset management is
canducted properly, and municipal services are provided as expected.

To this end, the municipality shall:

. continue to adhere to all constitutional, safety, health, systems, financial and asset-related legislation;
. regularly review updates and amendments to the above legislation;
. review and update its current policies and by-laws to ensure compliance with the requirements of prevailing legislation;
and
. effectively apply legislation for the benefit of the community.
inabl i fiv.

The municipality shalt strive to provide to its customers services that are technically, environmentally and financially
sustainable.

To this end, the municipality shall:

. identify a suite of levels and standards of service that conform with statutory requirements and rules for their
application based on long-term affordability to the municipality;

. identify technical and functional performance criteria and measures, and establish a commensurate monitoring and
evaluation system;

. identify current and future demand for services, and demand management strategies;

. zat time-based targets for service delivery that reflect the need to newly construct, upgrade, renew, and dispose
infrastructure assets, where applicable in line with naticnal targets;

. apply a risk management process to 1dentify service delivery risks at asset fevel and appropriate responses;

. prepare and adopt a maintenance strategy and plan to support the achievement of the required performance;

. allocate budgets based on long-term financial forecasts that take cognisance of the full life-cycle needs of existing and
future infrastructure assets and the risks to achieving the adopted performance targets;

. strive for alignment of the financial statements with the actual service delivery potential of the infrastructure assets;
and

. implement its tariff and credit control and debt collection policies to sustain and protect the affordability of services by

the community.

Social and economic development
The municipality shall strive to promote social and economic development in its municipal area by means of delivering
municipal services in a manner that meet the needs of the various customer user-groups in the community.

To this end, the municipality shall:
. regularly review its understanding of customer needs and expectations through effective consultation processes
covering all service areas;

. implement changes to services in response to changing customer needs and expectations where appropriate;

. foster the appropriate use of services through the provision of clear and appropriate information;

. ensure services are managed to deliver the agreed levels and standards; and

. create job opportunities and promaote skills development in support of the national Expanded Public Work Program
(EPWP).
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Custodianship

The municipality shall strive to be a responsible custodian and guardian of the community’s assets for current and future

generations.

To this end, the municipality shall:

establish a spatial development framework that takes cognisance of the affordability to the municipality of various
development scenarios;

establish appropriate development control measures including community information;

cultivate an attitude of responsible utilisation and maintenance of its assets, in partnership with the community;
ensure that heritage resources are identified and protected; and

ensure that a long-term view is taken into account in infrastructure asset management decisions.

Transparency
The municipality shall strive to manage its infrastructure assets in a manner that is transparent to all its customers, both now

and in the future.

To this end, the municipality shall:

Co

develop and maintain a culture of regular consultation with the community with regard to its management of
infrastructure in support of service delivery;

clearly communicate its service delivery plan and actual performance through its Service Delivery and Budget
Implementation Plan {(SDBIP);

avail immovable PPE asset management information on a ward basis; and

continuously develop the skills of councillors and officials to effectively communicate with the community with regard
ko service levels and standards.

-effectiven nd efficien

The municipality shall strive to manage its infrastructure assets in an efficient and effective manner.

To this end, the municipality shall:

assess life-cycle options for proposed new infrastructure in line with the Supply Chain Management Policy;

regularly review the actual extent, nature, utilisation, criticality, performance and condition of infrastructure assets to
optimise planning and implementation works;

assess and implement the most appropriate maintenance of infrastructure assets to achieve the required network
performance standards and to achieve the expected useful life of infrastructure assets;

continue to secure and optimally utilise governmental grants in support of the provision of free basic services;
implement new and upgrading construction projects to maximise the utilisation of budgeted funds;

ensure the proper utifisation and maintenance of existing assets subject to availability of resources;

establish and implement demand management plans;

timeously renew infrastructure assets based on capacity, performance, risk exposure, and cost;

timeously dispose of infrastructure assets that are no lenger in use;

review management and delivery capacity, and procure external support as necessary;

establish documented processes, systems and data to support effective life-cycle infrastructure asset management;
strive to establish a staff contingent with the required skills and capacity, and procure external support as necessary;
and

conduct regular and independent assessments to support continuous improvement of infrastructure asset management
practice,
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13.

Responsibilities

Upan adoption of this policy by Council, the AO shalt meet regularly with the CFO and Directors to take measures to
effactively implement this pelicy, and to report to Council on progress made at a frequency indicated by Council.
Directars shall develop, and update at regular intervals to be determined by the AO in consultation with the CFO and
Directors, an Asset Management Plan (AMP) for each service involving immovable PPE that shall assess levels and
standards of service, future demand, risk, determine a lifecycle plan for a minimum 10 year planning horizon, and
identify management practice improvement needs (3 year harizon). The AMPs will be submitted through the AO to
Council for adoption. AMPs shall be used to inform the preparation of a CMIP and budgets through the IDP process.
The time frame for the first time implementation of this will be determined by the AQ in consultation with the CFO and
Directors.

The CFO shall, in consultation with Directors, determine grading scales for the measurement of asset condition,
performance, cost-of-operation, and utilisation for that are common and applicable to all services. Where necessary,
the Directors shall interpret the grading scales for the immovable PPE assets under their control. HOD(SO)s shall
determine the grading of all immovable PPE assets under their control at a level of accuracy considered appropriate to
the municipality's resources, at intervals to be determined by the AO in consultation with the CFO and HOD(SO)s.
Directors shall prepare, and review at regular intervals to be determined by the AQ in consultation with the CFO and
Directors, an Operations and Maintenance Strategy and Plan, and submit such, through the AQ, to Council for adoption.
The municipality shall engage contractors when necessary to support in the implementation of maintenance actions
and adopt a system that assists in managing such maintenance, The time frame for the first time implementation of
this will be determined by the AQ in consultation with the CFO and Directors.

Directors shall determine detailed service performance measures (differentiated, where applicable for identified
customer groups), and submit such, through the AQ, to Council for adoption and inclusion in the Services Delivery and
Budget Implementation Plan. Directors shall establish a monitoring regime, and report actual performance each
financial year. The time frame for the first time implementation of this will be determined by the AQ in consuitation
with the CFO and Directors.

The AO shall establish procedures to ensure that legislative requirements regarding the management of immovable
PPE assets, including but not limited to health and safety, and environmental protection, are documented and advised
to Directors. Directors shall address legislative needs in their strategies and plans, and shall enforce implementation.
Review the municipality's Risk Management framework to ensure that it is effective for the management of physical
risks to infrastructure and buildings. Important actions shail be identified and implemented. The Directors shall report
risk exposure relating to their respective assets each financial year.

POLICY IMPLEMENTATION

Procedures should be prepared and adopted by the AQ, in consultation with the CFO and HOD{SO)s, to give effect to this
policy. This will be effective as from 01 July 2017
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ANNEXURE A: IMMOVABLE ASSET HIERARCHY
The following asset categories, sub-categories and groups shall be used at the highest level of the classification structure for
immovable assets:

Table 1 - Asset categories, sub-categories and groups
. CATEGORY SUB-CATEGORY 3 GROUP
Emthanjeni municipality's hierarchy |

ANNEXURE B: MOVABLE ASSET HIERARCHY

The following asset categories, sub-categories and groups shall be used at the highest level of the classification structure for
maovable assets:

Table 2 - Asset cateqories, sub-categories and groups
CATEGORY# SUB-CATEGORY. : GROUP

Cmthamieni municipality’s hierarchy
ANNEXURE C: EXPECTED USEFUL LIVES AND RESIDUAL VALUES OF IMMOVABLE ASSETS

Residual
{%)

COMPONENT TYPE

Emthanjeni municipality's component |ist indicating EUL and RV

ANNEXURE D: EXPECTED USEFUL LIVES AND RESIDUAL VALUES OF MOVABLE ASSETS

Companents. Descriptions i1 EUL years i

Emthanjeni municipality’s component list indicating EUL and RV
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EXCEPTIONS
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AUGMENTATION POLICY

BACKGROUND

The Emthanjeni Municipality ("the Municipality”) is entitled in terms of the
Constitution of the Republic of South Africa 2006 to implement rates and
taxes.

In terms of section 4 of the Municipal Systems Act 32 of 2000, the Council of
the Municipality has the right to finance the affairs of the Municipality by
charging fees for services and imposing surcharges on property inter alia by
levies on property.

The Municipality has evaluated and assessed the increase in demand on
infrastructure and the quantity of its services which are supplied to new
developments within its Mandate Area;

As a result of such demand and increase in services, the Municipality has
decided to levy augmentation fees on new developments;

INTERPRETATION

In this Policy unless the context otherwise indicates:-

Meaning:

2.1.1 | Augmentation Fees | Augmentation fees are in the amounts
calculated by virtue of the cost for the
provision and/ or upgrading (present and
future) of bulk infrastructure to accommaodate
new development and the cost thereof to the
Coungcil.

Closed or Private Instances where the Council will only provide
Development a bulk water and electricity meter and sewer
connection to the land/ erf of the
development and render bulk services. The
Council will not take over, or maintain any
internal services within a closed or private
development.

Consulting A Professional Engineer or Company
Engineer registered with the Engineering Council of
South Africa (ECSA), who assumes
responsibility for the design and technical
soundness of the infrastructure to be
provided to developments.

Effective Date Date of signature of the Service Agreement
by both parties.

Financial Year of 01 July - 30 June

Municipality
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2.1.6

Mandate Area

Jurisdictional area of Emthanjeni Municipality
as amended from time to time

2.1.7

Municipality

The Emthanjeni Municipality established in
terms of the Municipal Structures Act 32 of
2000, as amended, exercising its |legislative
and executive authority through its municipal
council; or

Its successor in title;

Any other structure with delegated power, in
terms of section 59 of the Municipal
Structures Act.

Multi-use property

A property where there is a combination of
different categories of property on the same
registered property.

Owner

The developer or person in whose name the
property is registered;

A Trustee - if property is owned by a Trust;
A Lessee - if the property is owned by the
Municipality and is leased to the Lessee;

A Buyer - if the property has been sold by
the Municipality, and the Buyer has been
given possession of the property, pending
registration of the property into the Buyer's
name.

Means this Policy, all the annexures attached
hereto and any future amendments

Any development being a sectional title
scheme, share block company, single
residential, group housing, commercial
property, small townships, minor
developments or closed and private
developments

Service Agreement

An agreement entered into between the
Council and the owner/developer of the
land/erf being developed, for the provision of
services to the property and to regulate
matters pertaining to the development.

OBJECTIVES OF THE POLICY

Implementation of measures by the Municipality to recover the costs incurred
for the provision of Bulk Infrastructure and Services to new developments.
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3.2

3.3

Alleviation of any extra financial burden by Private Developments/T ownship
establishments on existing residents and consumers.

Fair treatment of all developers and new residents, by eliminating the
subsidising of such new developments by existing residents.

Detail the criteria which the Municipality shall apply to levy additional
augmentation fees for the provision of bulk infrastructure capagcity to
accommodate new developments.

APPLICATION OF THIS POLICY

This Policy shall be applicable to the following categories of property:-
Sectional title units;

Share block schemes;

Business, commercial and industrial properties;

Single residential units;

New township establishments,;

Minor subdivisions and applications for an increased supply.

Closed or Private Developments.

a) Such a closed development will be fenced off and a Body Corporate/Home
Owners Association will be established to maintain all internal services.

b) The Council will not take over, or maintain any internal services within a
closed development.

CATERGORIES OF SERVICES

Bulk Services

All road, street, water, storm water, sewerage, solid waste sites and electricity
infrastructure, whereto the internal services can be connected for the
provision of such services to the development or new township.

Water

The provision of a bulk water infrastructure to a group of consumers or new
developments. This includes reservoir storage, water pump stations and
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rising mains, main feeder lines and the identification, obtaining and
development of water sources.

Electricity

The provision, maintenance and upgrading of main intake substations,
switchgear, overhead or underground main feeder lines and transformers up
to the border of such closed developments.

Sewerage

The provision of capacity, maintenance and upgrading of sewerage treatment
plants, bulk gravity sewers, sewerage pump stations and rising mains.

Roads and Storm water

The provision, maintenance and upgrading of Access Main Roads to
accommodate traffic impact by means of a traffic impact assessment (T.I.A)
and the provision of adequate storm water infrastructure to accommodate and
retain run-off and storm water drainage.

Refuse Removal/Solid Waste Site.

The provision, maintenance, upgrading and rehabilitation of refuse / waste
landfill sites.

Internal Services

All water, roads, electricity and sewerage networks and associated
installations and accessories including storm water drainage systems and
road infrastructure within the boundaries of the Development/Township and
connecting points for the particular services in/or near the boundaries of the
Development/Township including any connections where such connection
points are situated outside the boundaries of the Development/Township,
boundary services as well as elements of a system which have, in
consequence of topographical features or other reasons, to be located outside
the boundaries of the township but which provide solely for the needs of the
proposed Development/Township, which definition in particular shall include
water reservoirs/towers and sewerage pumping stations and treatment works.
The internal services for new Township Developments shall be provided by
the Developer but shall become the property of the Municipality. For closed or
Private Developments the internal services of the property shall be managed
by the Home Owners Association or the Body Corporate of the property.

5.2.1 Services other than Bulk Services
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52.1.2
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Water

The provision, maintenance and upgrading of the water reticulation in
the development to provide sufficient water pressure to all erven,
including the provision of a connection point.

Electricity

The provision, maintenance and upgrading of the electrical reticulation,
including transformers, cables and kiosks.

Roads and Storm water

The provision, maintenance and upgrading of roads, kerbing, street
names, traffic signs, road markings and storm water drainage with inlet
structures.

Refuse Removal

The provision of refuse removal services such as refuse compactors
and municipal transportation of refuse collected.

CALCULATION AND PAYMENT OF AUGMENTATION FEES

Augmentation fees shall be charges as a once-off fee on all new
Developments/Township establishments from the Effective Date.

Augmentation fees shall be levied in rands and shall be calculated
according to the Municipality's cost structure for the provision and/or
upgrading of bulk services to a development.

Where a developer has applied for development in phases,
augmentation contribution fees shall be calculated on cost structures
and in accordance with Council's Policy applicable when such deferred
development phase commences. Where it is not practical to phase
bulk infrastructure {eg. reservoir capacity etc), the full augmentation
contribution shall be payable or provided as determined by Council or
their representative.

If a property is utilised as a multiple-use property, then the
augmentation rates will be apportioned accordingly.

In the event of the Augmentation Levy being calculated incorrectly due
to the owner providing Council with false information, the owner will be
liable to pay interest {(insert rate of interest) on any outstanding amount
due to Council.
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THE FORMULA USED FOR THE CALCULATION OF THE
ELECTRICAL AUGMENTATION CONTRIBUTION LEVY

The Augmentation Contribution Levy is a Developer or Consumer's
contribution towards the present or future upgrading of the Primary
Network (main substations on MV network) to cater for the notified load
requirements.

In calculating the levy, the aim is to establish an equivalent average
charge per Equivalent Residential Unit (ERU).

The average cost per ERU is determined by pricing a model of the
Primary Network, which is as close as possible to the actual network,
and then dividing it by the ERU’s it can supply.

The total charge to the Development will be the calculated number of
ERU's of the Development multiplied by the Charge/ERU.

An ERU is considered to be a Residential Consumer with a 45 Amp
single phase supply at 230 Volts nominal.

The Factors/Formulae used to calculate the number of ERU's are
contained in the following table:
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DESCRIPTION

NO OF ERU’s

Domestic Erf/Consumer: (30 to
60A)

New Developments:

BDMD = 45A (10,35kVA) single phase

BDMD> or < 45A single phase but
limit to 60A

BDMD = 45A three phase

BDMD > or < 45A three phase but
limit to 60A

Existing Consumer:
Upgrade from tariff circuit breaker <

60A single phase to < 60A three
phase

Commercial Erf/Consumer: (30 to
100A)

New Developments:

BDMD = 45A single phase

BDMD > or < 45A but limit to 60A
single phase

BDMD = 45A three phase

BDMD > or < 45A but limit to 100A
three phase

Existing Consumers:

Upgrade from tariff circuit breaker <
60A single phase to > 30A but <
100A three phase

Upgrade from tariff circuit breaker >
30 A three phase to < 100 A three
phase

Bulk Supply Erfl Consumers (>
60kVA

New Developments:

Existing Consumers:
Increase Notified Demand

1
Amps required +45

3
Amps per phase
required + 45x3

1x 0,5 (Nf)=0,5
Amps required <+ 45
x 0,5 (Nf)

3x0,5 (Nf)=1,5
Amps/phase
required +45x3x0,5
(Nf)

[Amps per phase
required + 45x3x0,5
(NN}-0,5

[Amp per phase
required + 45x3x0,5
(Nf) - [Present amps
+45x3x0,5 (NF)]

(Notified Demand in
kKVA x Nf)+(10,35 X
Df}

[(New Notified
Demand in KVA -
Notified Demand in
Agreement) x Nf] +
(10,35xDf}

- Before Diversity Maximum Demand (usually at supply

meier)

-After Diversity Maximum Demand (BDMD xDf)
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45 -ERU amps (10,35KVA)
3 -No of Phases

0.5 - Average Network Factor for commercial consumers

Nf The symbol “Nf” signifies the Network Factor and is used in the

formulae for Commercial and Bulk Supply consumers where such
consumers peak demand do and may not coincide with peak demand
on the core network.

For Commercial consumers this was taken as an average of 0.5. No
value is given for the Network Factor (Nf) for Bulk Supply Consumers,
where such consumers do coincide with peak demand, as substantial
variations occur in this category, depending on the type of load
required. The limits will, however, be between 0,5 for say a
commercial/industrial type of development with 50% of its peak load
coinciding with the core network peak, and 1 (one) for say a domestic
development where 100% of its peak load coincides with the core
network’s peak. The value for a particular development can, however,
be anywhere between these limits and will be determined by the Head
of the Electrical Department or his appointed Consulting Engineer.

Df Diversity Factor between BDMD and ADMD determined by Head of the
Electrical Department or his appointed Consulting Engineer. The Df
depends on the quantity and type of individual loads connected to the
Bulk Supply Point. The following Df's are given as a guide:

For Domestic Developments

¢ < 60 kVA Notified Demand = 1Df

+ >60 kVA Notified Demand but < 80 kVA=0,75Df

« >80 kVA Notified Demand but < 100kVA = 0,58 Df
» >100 kVA Notified Demand but < 200 kVA=0,38 Df
o >200 kVA Notified Demand = 0,3 Df

For Commercial Developments

Use same Df's as Domestic but for “Notified Demand”
In formula use Demand after taking Nf into account,
i.e. Actual Notified Demand x Nf. For most commercial
developments this will be Actual Notified Demand x 0,5

7.7 The Charge/ERU is contained in the Schedule of Electricity Tariffs
published annually by the Municipality for each financial year starting
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1 July and ending 30 June.

THE FORMULAE USED FOR THE CALCULATION OF THE CIVIL AND
SOLID WASTE AUGMENTATION CONTRIBUTION LEVY.

In calculation the augmentation contribution levy, the aim is to establish the
number of Equivalent Erf (ee) per development.

The augmentation contribution levy per Equivalent Erf (ee} is based on the
assumed demand of an average sized residential site using 1000 It of water
per day.

All usage types in a development will therefore be converted to Equivalent
Erven {(ee) using the water demand/requirement for each type of usage within
a development.

The “Guidelines for Human Settlement, Planning and Design” and generally
referred to as, * The Red Book" as amended; will be used to determine the
water demand/usage for each type of development.

The total augmentation contribution levy to the Development will be the
calculated using the number of Equivalent Erven (ee’s) for the entire
development multiplied by the augmentation levy charge per service per
Equivalent Erf.

CONNECTION COST AND OTHER RELATED COSTS

The connection cost and deposits for services is the actual cost calculated by
the Municipal Engineer with the tariff of calculation as stipulated in the annual
budget document. This cost is a separate once-off connection cost to be paid
by the owner only, which includes metering apparatus and a deposit over and
above the augmentation levy.

The owner shall also be liable for a once-off administrative fee which shall
cover the following costs:-

Legal fees;
Advertisement fees;
Service Level Agreement;
Disbursements
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1.
1.1

11.3

APPROVALS / DOCUMENTATION REQUIREMENTS TO ENTER INTO THE
SERVICE AGREEMENT

Before embarking on construction, the Owner is required to enter into a
Services Agreement with the Municipality and the following documentation is
required prior to concluding the agreement.

These documents will form part of the service agreement (as annexures):

~ Approval from Department of Agriculture in terms of Act 70

Of 1970 (where applicable);

Environment Assessment Report (EIA) / Scoping report;

Approval from Department Environmental Affairs (record of decision);
Traffic Impact Assessment Report;

Approval from Provincial Roads Department;

Approval from Council / Council Resolution (rezoning, sub-division),
Developers details and whether development to take place in phases;
Engineering Feasibility report;

Engineering drawings and detailed design report of all services (civil
and electrical);

Layout plan indicating the stormwater flood lines in respect of new
township establishments in terms of Water Act {(Act 54 of 1956) and
National Water Act (Act 36 of 1998);

Letter of appointment for consulting engineers or any other professional
person involved with the development;

Site development plan as approved by Council. A plan will only be
approved if the Service Level Agreement has been signed and the
Augmentation Levy has been paid;

Layout map indicating zoning scheme with approved erf numbers and
street names;

~ Heritage Council’'s approval where applicable;

~ Constitution of Body Corporate / Home Owners Association.

AN D EE D D D R |

CLEARANCE CERTIFICATE

The Developer will only be furnished with a clearance certificate for transfer of
the property, upon proof of payment of all Augmentation Fees to the Council's
Engineer and Finance Department.

No erf shail be transferred until the Developer has paid all Augmentation
Contributions and fully complied with all the conditions of the service level
agreement.

The Municipality may give the necessary rates clearance required to pass
transfer of individual erven to purchasers prior to completion of the services, in
phased developments of new township establishments only; on condition the
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Developer provides the Municipality with a bank guarantee acceptable to the
Municipality to cover the installation of such incomplete services.

DISPOSAL OF PROPERTY

In the event of the owner disposing of the property, it shall be the
responsibility of the owner to inform the Municipality in writing of such change
in ownership, failing which the owner will still be held liable for payment of the
Augmentation Levy Fees.

EXPECTIONS

Provision of Infrastructure by the owner

The Municipality's Council Engineer may request an owner/developer to
provide bulk infrastructure, in accordance with the Municipality's requirements;
in fieu of payment of Augmentation Contribution fees of a particular service,
subject to such an arrangements being agreed to in writing and included in the
Services Agreement.

In the case of Augmentation Contributions made through contributed bulk
infrastructure, ownership will transfer to the Municipality only once the new
infrastructure has been completed and commissioned and all the required
inspections, testing and certificates have been completed and issued to the
requirements of the Municipality.

The owner must ensure that the appointment letter of its Consulting Engineers
make provision for professional indemnity in a situation where a
defect/breakage is experienced.

Provision of Bulk Services as per Infrastructure Master Plan

The Council may also buy into or share cost of the new bulk infrastructure as
per the Master Plan, subiject to its financial ability to do so.

If the other developers cannot share the cost at that moment in time, those
developers will then pay the full Augmentation Levy applicable to that specific
bulk service for the applicable financial year in which their development works
get under way.

New township establishments that are Government funded initiatives will be
excluded from this Policy, as the provision for bulk infrastructure is usually
funded through / funded with Government Grants, where applicable.
However, such projects cannot commence before the Council Engineer has
certified the availability of sufficient bulk infrastructure.
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14.

AUGMENTATION TARIFF APPLICABLE

Contributions which are payable to the Municipality are subject to annual
adjustments by the Municipality and the adjusted rates will apply from the
implementation date as decided by the Municipality.

Contributions are subject to VAT and are further subject to the provisions and
rates contained in the Value Added Tax Act, 1991 (Act No 89 of 1991) as
amended.

The Augmentation Tariff for all bulk services will be applicable for the financial
year in which the services agreement is signed.

In the event of a development having different development phases over
multiple financial years, the calculation of the Augmentation Fees payable will
be escalated with CPIX for each year.

On concluding of a Service Level Agreement, Augmentation Fees will be valid
until 30 June (End of Council's Financial Year) of the year in which the
agreement was signed, and are thereafter subject to an annual escalation in
accordance with the CPIX (as supplied by STATS SA on 30 of June each
year).

DEVELOPMENT OUTSIDE SPACIAL DEVELOPMENT
FRAMEWORK/RURAL AREAS

In such an event, the Council is not obliged to render services. Such
developments must provide their own services and pay augmentation fees to
Council only in respect of those Municipal services they intend to utilise.

(For example: licensed solid waste site and the waste water treatment plants).

DENSIFICATION OF ERVEN AND DEVELOPMENT

No differentiation will be made between the densification of developments
such as flats and group housing, or single residential erven where established
erven are consolidated and again subdivided to suite the above scenario of
development. The full Augmentation Fees, equivalent to a single erf, are
applicable irrespective of the size of flats and group housing on each of the
units so to be developed.

If the Municipality has to incur an extra expense due to the owner requiring
extra capacity for the property, then the owner will be liable for a payment of
maintenance fees as a resuit of the Municipality having to keep such extra
capacity.
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16.3 The development of the piece of land for which such extra capacity is being

held, shall be completed within a reasonable amount of time, as determined
by the Municipality.

17.REVIEW PROCESS

The Augmentation Policy will be reviewed on an annuai basis to ensure that it complies with the strategic
objectives of the Municipality, as stipulated in the Integrated Development Plan and other applicable legislation.

18.IMPLEMENTATION

This policy came into effect from 01 July 2015 but this Draft Augmentation policy wiil
comes into effect on 1 July 2017,
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ANNEXURE 2:
TARIFF LIST







Emthanjeni Municipality

DRAFT TARIFFS for 2017/2018 MTEF PERIOD

SERVICES
RBUDGET YEARS
2016/2017 |o017/2018  [2018/2000  |2019/2020

Cemeterles (Vatable Supply)

Cemetery : Caroluspoort, cemeteries next

N1&N12

Funerals during the week*

Aduits older than 12 years*® 113942 1230,58 1329,02 1435,34
Children younger than 12 years* 998,79 1078,70 1164,99 1258,19
Still born child® 908,03 980,67 1059,13 1143,86
Extra depth 9 feet {deeper than 2m per 300 mm}* 14381,25 1599,75 172773 1 B65,95
Funerals - weekends & public holidays* 2 045,90 2 209,57 2 386,34 2577,24
Extra depth 9 feet {deeper than 2m per 300 mm)* 2 659,67 287244 3102,24 3 350,41
Kareeville, Nonzwakazi, Jansenville, Mziwabantu, Barcelona, -

Hanover & next to Burgerville road” .

Selfdug graves* 184,51 199,27 215,21 232,43
Children younger than 12 years & still born* 92,43 99,83 107,82 116,44
* Tariff exclusive of VAT {14% VAT must still be added to the amount)

Housing 0,06
House rent sewerage * 162,02 171,74 182,05 196,61
|House rent refuse * 101,96 108,08 114,56 123,73
House rent water * 67,49 71,54 75.83 B1,90
Communal Services Charges in Malaykamp, Pampoegne 88,00 93,28 98,88 106,79
* Tariff exclusive of VAT {14% VAT must still be added to the amount}




Emthanjeni Municipality

DRAFT TARIFFS for 2017/2018 MTEF PERIOD

SERVICES
BUDGET YEARS

2016/2017 1201743018 20182019 |2019/2020
Building plans {Vatable Supply) 2016/2017 | zp17/2018 2018/2019 011
Minimum bultding plan fees* 297,00 320,76 352,84 381,06
Buildings with a value higher than *
R150 000, 2 % of value of the building*
{value caiculated per m2)
Description of building* m? m? m? -
Economic housas® 3 740 4033 4443 4 798,57
Sub-economic houses* 2324 2510 2761 2 981,75
Jutbuildings* 2329 2515 2767 2988,33
Factories and stores and churches* 3396 3 668 4035 4357,63
Cffices and business premises* 3564 3849 4234 4 572,75
Multistorey buildings® 3396 3 668 4035 4 357,63
Multistorey buildings: Upper floors less 10% of m?* Tariff less 10% 4 357.63
Toilets* 3 960 4277 4704 5 080,84
Canoples higher than 3 metres* 2329 2 515 2767 2 988,34
Carports® 1045 1129 1241 1340,78
Shadeports® 537 579 637 688,41
('pen verandahs® 358 386 425 454,04
i 1nsed verandahs* 1859 2008 2209 2 385,46
Lwimming pool* 1859 2008 2209 2 185,36
Communication towers and structures® 1100 1188 1307 1411,34
Fuel tanks* 500 540 594 541,52
Renewable Energy Farms: Fixed Costs {Excluding buildings)* 4 000 4 320 4752 5132,16
Sewerage plans : Inspection fees Minimun fee® 110 119 131 141,13
5cf R100.00 of the value of new buildings or alteraticns® 5c/R100 5c/R100 Sc/R100 HVALUE!
Building Plan Search fee® 88,00 95,04 104,54 112,91
Buiding Rubble/material deposit {pavement)* 325,00 891,00 980.10 1058.51
Advertisement signs® 300,00 324,00 356,40 384,91
A4 Paper copies: Plans*® -
Plan A1* 88 as 105 112,91
Plan AQ * 154 166 183 187,59
Photo copies Ad4* 2 2 3 2,82
Photo copies plan A3* 4 5 5 5,65
AS Building plan search fee* 38 95 105 112,91
A6 Buidling Rubblef material deposit (pavement)® 325 891 980 1058,51
Sewerage connections * 2728 2946 3241 3 500,03
Land-use applications* - -
Zoning certificates* 119 128 141 152,43
Extension of approval times frames 300 324 356 384,91
Hard Copy : SDF 250 210 297 320,76
Hard Copy : Town Planning Scheme 150 162 178 192,46

General fees *: Actual Costs for the applicants account
Advertisement: Local Newspaper, Government Gazette and
costs
Contribution
3) Appeals

2} Bulk Services

1)
any other

FOR THE APPLICANT'S ACCOUNT

L




Emthanjeni Municipality

DRAFT TARIFFS for 2017/2018 MTEF PERIOD

SERVICES

BUDGET YEARS

2016/2017

CATEGORY 1 APPLICATIONS

MPT}

2017/2018

2018/2019

2019/2020

Township establisment *:

R3300 Basic fee Plus RGO per erf Plus Bulk services contribution per

0-20erven  PLUS tariff per erf in addition to the first 20 erven * erf

H3300 Basic fee Plus RG0 per erf Plus Bulk services contribution per
Rezoning and Butk Services contribution only to hugher order usage*® erf
Removal, amendment of suspension of a restrictive or obsolete consition, 3000
servitude or reservation register against the title of the land® 3240 3564 3 849,12
Admentment or cancellation in whole o in part of a general plan® 2000 2 160 2376 2 566,08

Subdivision/consolidation of any land other than a subdivision and
consolidation which is provided for as a Category 2 application; Per

R3300 Basic fee Plus RGO per erf Plus Bulk services contributlon per

additional partion after 5. Then per erf tariff per erf in addition* erf

Permanient closure if any public place/road* 2 000 2160 2376 2 566,08

Any consent or approval required in terms if a condition of title, a

conditlon of establishment of a township or condition of an existing 2000

scheme or land use scheme* 2 160 2376 2 566,08
CATEGORY 2 APPLICATIONS {Authorised official)

Su division/consolidation (seperate of simultaneous) of any land where
sub divition is expressly provided for in 3 fand use scheme’
Per additional portion after 5. Then oer erf tariff per erf in addition*

erf

R2800 Basic fee Plus RGO per erf Plus Bulk services contribution per

The consent of the municipality for any kand use purpose or departure or
deviation in terms of a land use scheme or existing scheme which does
not constitute a land development application {Tuck shop, Second

R2B0D Basic fee Plus R60 per erf Plus Bulk services contribution per

Dwelling atc)” erf
Application to aCcupational practice, relaxationn of building lines, 300
coverage, boundary wall height, amendment of site development plan* 324 356 384,91

Removal, amendment of suspension of a restrictive title condition relating
to the density of residential development on a specific erf where the

R2300 Basic fee Plus RED per erf Plus Bulk services contribution per

residential density is regulated by a land use scheme in aperation erf

. . R 2000
Application that where not provided for elsewhere in this schedule® 2160 2376 2 566,08
BULK SERVICES CONTRIBUTION (Water, Electricity, Sewerage)* - - -
Subdivision - price additional erf® 11000 11 BBO 13 068 14 113,44
Second House* R50/m?* R55/m? R62,50/m? R68,75/m?
Tuck shops® 2750 2970 3267 3528,36
New Developments: Actual Buik Costs +10%* Actual + 10% | Actual+ 10% Actual + 10% | Actual + 10%
Guest housas: Actual Bulk Costs + 10% Actual + 10% | Actual+ 10% Actual + 10% | Actual + 10%
Guest houses: Minimum Prescribed Costs 5000 5500 6 000 5 480,00
* Tariff exclusive of VAT {14% VAT must still be odded to the amount)




Emthanjeni Municipality

DRAFT TARIFFS for 2017/2018 MTEF PERICD

SERVICES
BUDGET YEARS

2016/2017 |3097/2m18 2018/2019  {2019/2020
RENEWABLE ENERGY TARIFFS 0,11
AUGMENTATION CONTRUBUTIONS
Council will charge ONCE-OFF tariffs when developments bigger than 1Ha or where it is the best option. These
tariffs can be increase on discretion of Council
ONCE OFF AUGMENTATION FEES
WIND TURBINES
Electricity augmentatation fees 10 669,49 11 736,44 12 910,08 14 201,09
Roads and Stormwater augmentation fees 4 028,95 4431,85 4 875,03 5 362,53
Refuse augmentation fees 235526 2590,79 2 849,86 3134,85
Sewerage augmentation fees 19 136,84 21 050,52 23 155,58 25471,13
Water augmentation fees 18 641,23 20 505,35 22 555,89 24 811,48
Wind Turbines per turbine 6 200,00 6820,00 7502,00 8 252,20
Any structure additional to turbine: 11 -20 m?* 945,00 1039,50 1143,45 1257,80
Each additional 10m? or part thereof up tp 3000m? 180,00 198,00 217,80 239,58
Greater than 3001m? per 500m? or part thereof 380,00 418,00 459,80 505,78
ONCE OFF SOLAR PANELS AUGMENTATION FEES
SOLAR PANELS:
Electricity augmentatation fees 10 669,49 11 736,44 12 910,08 14 201,09
Roads and Stormwater augmentation fees 4 028,95 4431,85 4875,03 5 362,53
Refuse augmentation fees 2 355,26 2590,79 2849,86 313485
Sewerage augmentation fees 19 136,84 21 050,52 23 155,58 75 471,13
Water augmentation fees 18641,23 20 505,35 22 555,89 24 811,48
Every m? of solar panel constructed 25,00 27,50 30,25 33,28

Applicable since 01 July 2015




Emthanjeni Municipality

DRAFT TARIFFS for 2017/2018 MTEF PERIOD

SERVICES
BUDGET YEARS

2016/2017 |y017/2018 2018/2019  |2019/2020
Fire prevention 2016/2017 | 2017/2018 2018/2019 2019/2020
A) For each motor pump®
Call out fee 714,58 771,75 348,92 916,83
Pump cost - Plus for each jet per hour
or a portion thereof of during which the
motoer pump is used at the scene of the fire 193,30 208,76 229,64 248,01
Standby fee - each hour or a portion thereof
which the motor pump is on standby at the
scene of the fire. 714,58 771,75 848,92 916.83
B} For each vehicle called out* 250,69 170,74 297,82 321,64
C) For each chemical fire extinguisher* -
Wormal extinguisher 9 litre* 135,42 146,25 160,88 173,75
Lux extinguisher* 250,69 270,74 297,82 321.64
D} Fire brigade vehicles (per km)* 31,14 33,63 36,99 39,95
E} Patrol vehicle {per km)* 19,66 21,23 23,36 25.22
F) Tanker vehicle {per km)* 23,57 25,45 28,00 30,24
Traific Escort 300,00 400,00 450,00 500,00
Permission of erection funeral tents* 600,00 700,00 750,00 800,00
* Tariff exclusive of VAT (14% VAT must still be added to the omount)




Emthanjeni Municipality

DRAFT TARIFFS for 2017/2018 MTEF PERIOD

SERVICES
BUDGET YEARS

2016/2017 13047/2018 2018/2019  [2019/2020
Assessment rates (Vatable Supply : Zeto-rated) 2016/2017 | 2017/2018 2018/2019 2019/2020
Market value rate - - .
Residential* 0,013632 0,009500 0,010070 0,01
Agricultural Properties (1:0.25 Irt residential properties)
(Agficultural PmpeTtv must take note that the Nett Effect of the 0,003408 0,002375 0,002518
Agricultural Lavy will be as follows:)* 0,00
State Owned* 0,017950 0,017950 0,019027 0.02
Business & Guest Houses* 0,014200 0,016000 0,016360 0,02
Industrial* 0,018460 0,020000 0,021200 0,02
Place of Worship* 0,013632 0.003500 0,010070 0,01
Public Benefit Organization {1:0.25 it residential properties)® 0,003408 0,002375 0002518 0,00
Public Service Infrastructure® - -
Mining* 0,021565 0,017252 0,021565 003
Vacant Land* 0,034503 0,017252 0,034503 0,03
Farm propary whare a portion is used for renewable energy generation
purpose {Solar and Wind Mills or Turbines}* 0,043460 -
Rebates an Assessment rates 0.06
Residential on the First Valuation of 28 000 15 000 28 000 28 000
Agricultural Properties (on application) 28% 25% 18% 0.19
Place of Worship 100% 100% 100% 1,08
Public Benefit Organisation [on apglication) 75% 0% 5% 75,00
* Tariff exclusive of VAT (Municipal Rates & Taxes are a Zero-rated
{0 %) Taxabie Supply}
Sale of municipal erven per m™* 0.13
Residential Properties -
> De Aar East* 14,33 13,75 16,12 18,13
> Nonzwakazi* 14,32 13,75 16,11 18,13
> Britstown* 14,32 13,75 16,11 18,13
> Hanover* 14,32 13,75 16,11 18,13
> Solheim / Rantsig* 52,43 50,33 58,98 66,35
Sale of municipal erven per m ? for Place of Worship in:
> De Aar * 53,43 57,70 64,91 70,11
> Britstown® 40,06 43,27 48,67 52,57
> Hanover* 34,73 37,51 42,20 45,57
Industriai Properties
> De Aar* 53,43 57,70 64,91 70,11
> Britstown® 40,06 43,27 48,67 52,57
> Hanover® 34,73 37,51 42,20 45,57

Cther Properties®

Other Properties will be sold as per SCM Policy after Council’s

Author|

® Tariff exclusive of VAT {14% VAT must stili be added to the omount)

Issue of Rates Clearence Certificates * 114,40 124,12 134.68 145,45

Printing of Duplicate Monthly $ervice accounts 1,50 1,50 1,50 1,79
. . 25,00

printing of Duplicate Copies of Deeds of Property fram the Deeds Office 25,00 25,00

* Tariff exclusive of VAT {14% VAT must still be added to the amount)




Emthanjeni Municipality

DRAFT TARIFFS for 2017/2018 MTEF PERIOD

SERVICES
BUDGET YEARS
2016/2017 |017/2018 2018/2019  |2019/2020

Electricity (Vatable Supply)* 2016/2017 | 2017/2018 2018/2019 2019/2020
A} Basic levies 0,12
Household * 141,00 145,94 151,99 174,95
Business * 181,22 187,56 208,19 224,85
KVA and Transnet * 142,61 147,60 163,84 176,94
Departmental * 143,02 148,03 164,31 177,45
Departmental large/Rural* 133,54 138,21 153,42 165,69
B) Consumption levies {per unit) 0,08

0,09
Prepaid meter® - Households 0.02
Prepaid meter * 1 kWh - 50 kWh {Free Indigents only} 0,813 0,84 0,93 1.01
Prapaid meter * 51 kwh - 350 kwh 1,07 1,11 1,23 1,33
Prepaid meter * 351 kWh - 600 kwh 1,52 1,57 1,74 1,88
Prepaid meter * 601 and more 1,79 1,85 2,06 2,22
Prepaid meter”® - Business
Prepaid meter* - Business from 1kWh 1,75 1,81 2,01 2,17
Conventional meters - Households *
Households * 1 kwh - 50 kwh {Free Indigents only) 0,84 0,87 0.97 1,04
Households *51 kWh - 350 kWh 1,07 1,11 1,23 1,33
Households *351 kWh - 600 kWh 1,46 1,51 1,67 181
Households *601 kWh and more 1,57 1,62 1,80 1,94
Conventional meters - Business *
Business * 1,83 1,89 3,10 2,27
External consumers * 1,83 1,89 2,10 2,27
KVA * 202,16 209,24 232,25 250,83
kWh of KVA * 0,86 0,99 .10 1,19
Streatlights * 1,83 1,89 2,10 2,27
Transnet KVA *{minimum of 700 KVA) 204,14 211,28 234,52 253,28
Transnet kWh * 0,98 1,02 1,13 1,22
Departmental : small consumers * 72,17 74,70 82,92 89,55
Departmental : large KVA * 26,88 89,92 59,82 107,80
Departmental : large kWh * 1,00 1,04 1,15 1,24
Departmental : rural small consumers * 0,76 0,78 0,87 0,94
Departmental : bulk consumers KvA * 72,17 74,70 3291 129,55
€) Consumer deposits 0,08
Households 1774,88 1888,47 2020,66 2182,31
Small and medium business 226270 2 407,51 2576,04 2782,12
KVA Large busingess 10 028,32 10 670,66 11417,61 12 331,02
KvaA Demand Consumer 10 028.82 10 670,66 11417,61 12 331.02

-4




Emthanjeni Municipality

DRAFT TARIFFS for 2017/2018 MTEF PERIOD

SERVICES
BUDGET YEARS

2016/2017 201772018 2018/2018  |2019/2020
D) Service connections -
Single phase under ground level 60 A * 6 161,98 6 556,35 7 015,29 7 576,51
Overhead connection single phase GO A * 4 105,58 4 368,33 4674,12 5 048,04
3Phase * 7 595,31 8 081,41 8 647,11 333888
6.6 KVor 11KV 903227 9 610,33 10 283,05 11 105,70
Change from conventional meter to prepaid * 804,00 B55,46 315,34 988,57
Replacing of overhead connectlon * 2 282,83 2428,93 2 598,95 2 806,87
Replacing of connection under ground * 1940,40 2 064,59 2209,11 2 385,84
Change from prepaid to conventional meter * 1940,41 2 064,59 2 209,11 2 385,84
Tempary or building connection 60 A :
single phase * 6 203,32 6 600,33 7 062,35 7627,34
Temporary or building connection 60A 2 282,43 242893 2 598,95 2 806,87
3 Phase * 10 855,80 11 550,58 12 359,12 13 347,84
Reconnection temporary households * 204,72 217,82 233,07 251,72
Reconnection temporary business * 351,26 373,74 399,90 431,89
E) Termination
Tarminated due to nen-payment : Househalds 204,72 217,82 233,07 251,72
Tarminated due to non-payment : Small Business KhW users 2 240,00 2 340,80 2 504,66 2 705,03
Terminated due to non-payment : Business B All KVA consumers 3 750,60 3 990,00 4 269,30 4 610,84
lilegal Consumption and Tampering of meter - households * 3 872,54 4 120,38 4 408,81 4761,51
lillegal Consumption and Tampering with meter - business * 20076,27 21 361,15 22 856,43 24 684,95
1'llegal Consumption and Tampering with meter - KVA * 27 756,24 20 532,64 3159993 34127,92
Meter testing:
LWh single phase meter * 508,65 541,20 579,09 625,41
kwh 3 pbhase meter * 2 650,00 2 819,60 3016,97 3 258,33
Rural * 2 650,00 2 819,60 3016,97 3 258,33
F) Call out fee due to consumer fauits =
All area call out fee 53,55 56,98 650,97 65,84
After hours and Saturdays , Sundays & Public Holidays 80,33 85,47 91,45 98.76
G) Special meter reading when services are -
rerminated -
Al consumers * 58,98 94,67 101,30 109,40
F} Removing of service connection .
fiequested by consumer 1017,45 1082,57 1 158,35 1251,01
Overhead service connection * 444,06 472,48 515,55 546,00
Under ground * 39,48 680,41 728,04 786,28
Ticky box electricity® 512,97 545,80 58401 630,73
Electricity Hanover Highmass lightning* 13,38 14,23 15,23 16,45
Pravision of Electricity for Stalls, functions in street/parks per day 117.81 125,35 134,12 144,85
Prepaid Cards 10,71 11,40 12,19 13,17
* Tariff exclusive of VAT (14% VAT must still be odded to the amount) -
Caravan parks {VATABLE SUPPLY) 9,84
Day ¢r a portion of a day - max 4 persons® 129,64 137,94 147,60 159,41
Per person for more than 4 per day*® 60,13 63,97 68,45 73,93
Electricity per day* 69.62 74,07 79,26 85,60
* Tariff exclusive of VAT {14% VAT must still be added to the omount} -




Emthanjeni Municipality

DRAFT TARIFFS for 2017/2018 MTEF PERIOD

SERVICES
BUDGET YEARS
2016/2017 lagry/a008  |2018/2019  |2019/2020

Sewerage and Refuse removal __ ({Vatable Supply: Standard Rate) 2016/2017 | 2017/2018 2018/2019 2019/2020
Sewerage and Sanitation

Households, Churches &Church halls

Fixed costs * 90,71 96,52 102,31 110,50
Running costs * 59,91 63,75 £7,57 72,98
|Halls, Libraries, Sport clubs, Showground's,
ISwimmlng pools
lFixed costs * 90,71 96,52 102,31 110,50
Running costs * 119,82 127,49 135,14 145,95
All Businesses -
Fixed costs * 90,71 96,52 102,31 110,50
Running costs * 119,82 127,49 135,14 145.95
QOld age homes, Creches, Hostels &

Schoals

Fixed costs * 90,71 96,52 102,31 110,50 |
Running costs * 193,14 205,50 217,83 235,26
Hotels, guest houses & Correctional -
Services

Fixed costs * 90,71 96,52 102,31 110,50
flunning costs * 193,17 205,54 21787 235,30
Hospitals -
Fixed costs * 90,71 96,52 102,31 110,50
Running costs * 193,17 205,54 217,87 235,30
Availability tevy #
Abattoirs {Industrial effluent)* 326,07 346,93 367,75 397,17
Septic tanks

Maonday to Friday - per load or a

portion thereof. One free removal per

month. (Excluding public holidays) * 129,59 137,88 146,15 167,84
Monday to Friday - per load or a

portion thereof. Add removal -
Public holidays excluded.* 84,61 90,02 95,43 103,06
After hours & public holidays [As above)* -
Industrial effluent (85 % of water -
consumption ar as determined by contract} per kiloliter* 4,07 4,33 41,59 4,96
Km to outside of urban area per km * 29,75 31,66 33,56 36,24
Renewable Energy Site per truck* Payment upfront 2 900,00 307400 3319,92
Waste water removal -
Waste water removal* 75,30 80,12 84,93 91,72
Water water remaval per bucket® 75,30 80,12 84,93 91,72
Dry sanitation * 53,07 56,47 59.86 654,65
Sewerage clearance Monday - Friday -
during office hours * 274,30 291,85 309,36 334,11
Sewerage clearance Manday - Friday 654,59 696,49 738,28 797,34
After hours & public holidays * -

E) Sewerage connections * 2 347,80 2 498,06 2 647,95 2 859,78
Refuse removal 93,93 99,94 105,93 114,41
Refuse removal* 93,93 99,94 105,93 114,41
Special refuse remoaval * 163,65 174,13 184,57 193,34
Building rubbile* 329,16 350,23 371,24 400,94
Solar Rubble per / Kg self removal® 43,99 16,81 49,61 53,58
Sofar Rubble per / Kg :Ramoval by the Municipality per truck® 43,99 2 850,00 3021,00 31262,68

* Tariff exclusive of VAT {14% VAT must still be added to the amount)




Emthanjeni Municipality
DRAFT TARIFFS for 2017/2018 MTEF PERIOD

SERVICES
BUDGET YEARS

2016/2017 201772018 20182019 |2019/2020
Town halls and community halls 2016/2017 | 2017/2018 2018/2019 2019/2020
De Aar Town hall West
Deposit 715,00 772,20 849,42 917.37
Rent* -
070010 17:59 715,97 773,25 850,57 918,62
1800 to 23:59 1071,05 1156,73 127241 1374,20
(This amount is applicable if renting from 0700 - 23:59)
If there is any major damages not covered -
by the deposit the lessee will be alliable -
for repairs (Work done departmentally}
After 23.59 per hour and 2 hours thereafter
the hall wilt be closed
Kitchen per period of part thereof* 146,66 158,40 174,24 188,17
Electricity - Stoves per kWh* 6,75 7,29 8,02 8,67
Tables (per table) lif not renting anything else)® -
Hirlng of cutlery and crockery and tables* 537,46 580,46 638,50 689,58
Tanff for broken or damaged items -
peritem* {all items below are excluded)
Cups® 43,42 46,89 51,58 55,71
Saucers 43,42 46,89 51,58 55,71
Dessert plates 43,42 46,89 51,58 55,71
Dinner and soup plates 43,42 46,89 51,58 55,71
Table spoons 43,42 46,89 51,58 55,71
Tea spoons 43,42 46,89 51.58 55.71
Tahle knifes 43,42 46,89 51,58 55,71
Table forks 43,42 46,89 51,58 55,71
Dessert knifes 43,42 46,39 51.58 55,71
Dessert forks 43,42 46,89 51,58 55,71
Dessert spoons 43,42 46,89 51,58 55,71
S0up 5poons 43,42 46,89 51,58 55,71
Dessert bowls 43,42 46,89 51,58 55.71
Smatl dessert bowls 43,42 16,89 51,58 55,71
Small Plates 43,42 46,89 51,58 55.71
Trays 43,42 46,89 51,58 55,71
Ccffee pots 271,14 292,83 322,11 347,88
Rent of plano’s* -
Upright piono per function 119,65 129,22 142,14 153,51
Lipright piona per practice 43.42 46,89 51.58 55,71
Grand piano per function 355,09 383,50 421,85 455,60
Grand piano per practice 100,35 108,38 119,22 128,76
Bar -
Rent* 100,35 108,38 119,22 128,76
Vacation af premisses -
I lessee doos not evacuate within time limits -
above of have written permission 1o stay -
until the next day at 10:00 .
, the applicable tariff is 100,35 108,38 119,22 128,76

10




gmthanjeni Municipaiity
DRAFT TARIFFS for 2017/2018 MTEF PERIOD

SERVICES
BUDGET YEARS
2016/2017 |30:7/2018 2018/2019 201972020
Stands -
Stands {for trading} 44,00 47,52 52,27 56,45
De Aar Town Hall - side hall 165,00 178,20 196,02 211,70
Caretaker fee 181,50 196,02 215,62 232,87
De Aar Juvenes Hall
Rent
07:00 to 18:00 404,29 436,64 480,30 518,73
18:00 to 23:59 537,46 580,46 638,50 689,58
Dapaosit 711,65 768,58 845,43 913,07
Caretaker fee 330,00 356,40 392,04 423,40
Community hall East & Nonzwakazi -
Rent 181,40 195,91 215,50 232,74
Churth services 181,40 195,91 215,50 232,74
Meetings 359,91 388,70 427,57 461,78
Film shows & concerts 446,75 482,49 530,74 573,20
Disco 181,40 195,91 215,50 232,74
Weddings 181,40 195,91 215,50 232,74
Social functions 181,40 195,91 215,50 232,74
Deposit 370,70 400,36 440,39 475,62
Caretaker fee 181,50 196,02 215,62 232,87
Vacation of premises
As applicable for De Aar town hall
Hanover town hall
Rent
07.00 to 18:00 536,49 575,41 637,35 688,34
18:00 to 23.59 892,54 963,94 1 060,34 1145,16
Deposit 884,40 955,15 1050,67 1134,72
Deposit anly cover crockery and cutlery &
rant, if applicable.
If there is any major damages not covered
by the deposit the lessee will be alllable
for repalrs.[Work done departmentally)
‘Vacation of premisses
flessee does not evacuate within time limits
above of have written permission 1o stay
until the next day at 10.00
, the applicable tariff is 100,35 108,38 119,23 128,76

i1




Emthanjeni Municipality
DRAFT TARIFFS for 2017/2018 MTEF PERIOD

SERVICES
BUDGET YEARS

2016/2017 |3017/2018 2018/2019  [2019/2020
Hanover Community Hall Kwezi .
fAent 181,40 195,91 211,59 228,51
Church services 181,40 195,91 211,59 22851
Meetings 359,91 348,70 419.80 453,318
Film shows & concerts 446,75 482,49 521.09 562.78
Disco 131,40 195,91 211,59 228,51
Wedd ngs 181,40 195,91 211,59 228,51
Social functions 181,40 195,91 211,%9 228,51
Vacation of premissas
Same as above for Hanovar Town Hall
Britstown town hall
Rent
0700 to 1800 536,49 579,41 625,76 675,83
1800 to 23.59 803,77 868,07 937,52 1012,52
After 23°59 per hour and 2 hours thereafter
the hall will be tlosed 715,87 773,25 335,11 901,91
Braai area at Town Hall 186,23 01,13 217,22 234,60
Vagation of premisses
if lessee does not evacuate within time limits
above of have written permission to stay
until the next day at 10:00
, the applicable tariff is 100,35 108,38 117.05 126,42
Deposit -
Kitchen per pericd of part thereof 119,90 129,49 139,85 151,04
Electric